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PART |
Item 1. Business

Overview

Two Harbors Investment Corp. is a recently formeatyand corporation that focuses on investingimaricing and
managing residential mortgage-backed securitieRMBS, and related investments. We intend to qualéf a real estate
investment trust, or REIT, as defined under thertml Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or the. Code

The terms “Two Harbors,” “we,” “our,” and “us” raféo Two Harbors Investment Corp. and its subsidsaas a
consolidated entity. The term “Capitol” refers tapgitol Acquisition Corp., which became a wholly-auhindirect subsidiary of
Two Harbors after completion of the merger transaaiiescribed below. Upon completion of the metggnsaction, Capitol
was considered the accounting acquirer, similar teverse merger. As the surviving entity for acdimg purposes, Capitol's
financial information for the year ended DecemhErZ008 and for the period from June 26, 2007 (itioe) through
December 31, 2007 is presented in this Annual RegoForm 10-K on a historical carryover basis.

Our objective is to provide attractive risk-adjubteturns to our investors over the long term, grily through dividends
and secondarily through capital appreciation. Wguae and manage a portfolio of RMBS, with a bug-aold emphasis,
focusing on security selection and the relativaigalf various sectors within the mortgage market.a&kk to invest in the
following asset classes:

« Agency RMBS, meaning RMBS whose principal anériest payments are guaranteed by the Governmeiatnisht
Mortgage Association (or Ginnie Mae), the Federatidhal Mortgage Association (or Fannie Mae), e Eederal
Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (or Freddie Mac).

« Non-Agency RMBS, meaning RMBS that are not issueduargnteed by Ginnie Mae, Fannie Mae or Freddie lsliad,
* Financial assets other than RMBS, comprising @gprately 5% to 10% of the portfolio.

We deploy moderate leverage as part of our invaststeategy through short-term borrowings struatuas repurchase
agreements.

We are managed by PRCM Advisers LLC, a wholly-owselsidiary of Pine River Capital Management LaP Rine
River, pursuant to the terms of a management agneedated October 28, 2009. Founded in 2002, Piver & a global multi-
strategy asset management firm with offices in Na#k, London, Hong Kong, San Francisco, and Minnkt Minnesota.

We intend to elect and qualify to be taxed as alRat U.S. federal income tax purposes, commenuiitlg our initial
taxable period ended December 31, 2009. To quadifg REIT we will be required to meet certain itwvent and operating
tests and annual distribution requirements. We igdigawill not be subject to U.S. federal incomeeda on our taxable income
to the extent that we annually distribute all of oat taxable income to stockholders and maintaimirdended qualification as a
REIT. However, certain activities that we may parfanay cause us to earn income which will not balifing income for
REIT purposes. We have preserved Capitol as a @bl T subsidiary, or TRS, as defined in the Cadesngage in such
activities, and we may in the future form additibhRS’s. We also intend to operate our businessrimanner that will permit
us to maintain our exemption from registration urttie Investment Company Act of 1940, as amendettheo1940 Act.




TABLE OF CONTENTS

Capitol Acquisition Corp. (prior to October 28, 20D

Capitol was a blank check company formed undefativs of the State of Delaware on June 26, 200Tféztea merger,
capital stock exchange, asset acquisition, stockh@ase, reorganization or similar business comiginatith one or more
businesses or assets.

On November 14, 2007, Capitol completed its ingiablic offering of 25,000,000 units at a price$d0.00 per unit, and
received net proceeds of approximately $239.8 omillCapitol received additional net proceeds of @12illion on December
12, 2007, as a result of the initial public offerianderwriters exercising their over-allotment optto purchase an additional
1,249,000 units. Each unit consisted of one sh@apitol's common stock and one redeemable comstmek purchase
warrant. Each warrant entitled the holder to puseiffaom Capitol one share of common stock at anceseeprice of $7.50,
commencing the later of the completion of a busiresnbination or November 8, 2008 and expiring Nolver 8, 2012.
Certain of Capitol’s sponsors and founding stoc#bd, or the Initial Stockholders, purchased artiahél 7,000,000 warrants
for $7.0 million. The purchase and issuance ofdhearrants occurred simultaneously with consummatiche IPO on a
private placement basis. All of the net proceedsited from the foregoing sale of securities, tatahpproximately $258.4
million, were placed in a trust account pursuar€épitol’s charter, pending consummation of a bessncombination.

On June 11, 2009, Capitol signed an Agreement sndd® Merger with Two Harbors, Two Harbors Mer@arp. and Pine
River which sets forth the terms and conditions niehg Capitol agreed to merge into Two Harbors Metarp., with Capitol
being the surviving entity and becoming a whollyred subsidiary of Two Harbors.

Consummation of the Merger Transaction

On October 26, 2009, the majority of Capitol's &lomlders approved the merger transaction, andrémsaction closed on
October 28, 2009. In connection with the closihg, holders of Capitol's common stock and warraetsaine holders of the
securities of Two Harbors after the merger in thume proportion as their holdings in Capitol imméeliabefore the merger,
except as (i) increased by (A) the cancellatio,662,257 shares of Capitol common stock held byiftial Stockholders, (B)
conversion of 6,875,130 shares of Capitol commoaoksby holders thereof who exercised the righteteehtheir shares
converted into funds held in the trust account alae of $9.87 per share and (C) the purchase98#5661 shares pursuant to
forward sales agreements that provided for Caftpurchase such shares after the closing of thigenat a price of $9.87 per
share and (ii) decreased by the issuance of 2Zi&@s of restricted stock to our independent tire@t the closing.

In addition, in connection with the closing of tmerger transaction, we entered into a supplemehaarendment to the
agreement that governs the warrants, the term$imhwamong other things, (i) increased the exerpitce of the warrants
from $7.50 per share to $11.00 per share, (ii)reded the expiration date of the warrants from NdvenY, 2012 to November
7, 2013 and (iii) limited a holder’s ability to exése warrants to ensure that such holder’s Beiaéf@wnership or Constructive
Ownership (each as defined in our charter) do roe¢ed the restrictions contained in the chartettitig the ownership of
shares of our common stock.

Two Harbors Investment Corp. (post-merger)

As of October 28, 2009, upon consummation of thegereagreement, we commenced doing business as{awamrs
Investment Corp. Our common stock and warrantéistezl on the NYSE Amex under the symbols TWO aWdar WS,
respectively.
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The following chart shows our structure. We condutistantially all of our operations through ourmlyrowned
subsidiary, Two Harbors Operating Company LLC har Subsidiary LLC. The Subsidiary LLC in turn contiuits business
through two subsidiaries: Two Harbors Asset |, Lidjch holds most of our RMBS and other assets;Gagitol, which we
have elected to treat as a TRS, and which holdainaron-RMBS assets and conducts certain econbetging activity.

Management
Twoturbors | Aweemat | preu
Investment Corp Advisers LLC
—>

Management Fee

Two Harbors
Orperating Company LLC

Capitol Two Harhors
Acquisibion Corp. Asset [, LLC

Cautionary Statement

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forwarddimg statements within the meaning of the safédaprovisions of
the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of B9%orward-looking statements involve numeroussrasid uncertainties. Our
actual results may differ from our beliefs, exp#otss, estimates, and projections and, consequemtlyshould not rely on
these forward-looking statements as predictiorfsitofe events. Forward-looking statements are rsbotical in nature and can
be identified by words such as “anticipate,” “esttan” “will,” “should,” “expect,” “believe,” “interd,” “seek,” “plan” and
similar expressions or their negative forms, ordfgrences to strategy, plans, or intentions. Thaseard-looking statements
are subject to risks and uncertainties, includarmgpng other things, those described in this AnRegdort on Form 10-K under
the caption “Risk Factors.” Other risks, uncertiaisitand factors that could cause actual resutifer materially from those
projected are described below and may be deschibedtime to time in reports we file with the Seities and Exchange
Commission, or the SEC, including reports on Fobid&€) and 8-K. We undertake no obligation to upaateevise any
forward-looking statements, whether as a resuttesf information, future events, or otherwise.

” ” i, ”u ” o« ” o ”ou

Important factors, among others, that may affectamtual results include:

e changes in interest rates;

« changes in mortgage prepayment rates;

< the timing of credit losses within our portfolio;

e our exposure to adjustable-rate and negative @mation mortgage loans;

< the state of the credit markets and other gema@homic conditions, particularly as they afféet price of earning
assets and the credit status of borrowers;

« the concentration of the credit risks we are egpiato;

« legislative and regulatory actions affecting thertgage industry or our business;

< the availability of target assets for purchasatt@ctive prices;

« the availability of financing for our portfoliincluding the availability of repurchase agreenferancing;

e declines in home prices;
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increases in mortgage payment delinquencies;

changes in liquidity in the market for real estagcurities, the re-pricing of credit risk in tapital markets, inaccurate
ratings of securities by rating agencies, ratingney downgrades of securities, and increases iaupply of real estate
securities available-for-sale;

changes in the values of securities we own aadntipact of adjustments reflecting those changesuoincome
statement and balance sheet, including our stodkhsilequity;

our ability to generate the amount of cash floevexpect from our investment portfolio;
changes in our investment, financing, and hedgtrategies and the new risks that those changg®ruemse us to;

changes in the competitive landscape within ounsty, including changes that may affect our abiiit retain or attra
personnel;

our ability to manage various operational risksaeiated with our business;
our ability to maintain appropriate internal aaté over financial reporting;
our ability to establish, adjust and maintainrappiate hedges for the risks in our portfolio; and

limitations imposed on our business due to oufTRIEatus and our status as exempt from registratiwler the 1940
Act.

This Annual Report on Form 10-K may contain stetisand other data that in some cases have beaimetbtfrom or
compiled from information made available by mortgéman servicers and other third-party service jolers.

Our Business

Investment Guidelines and Strategy

We acquire and manage a portfolio of RMBS and edlatvestments, focusing on security selectionthadelative value of
various sectors within the mortgage market.

Our board of directors has adopted the followingestment guidelines:

no investment shall be made that would cause €altto qualify as a REIT for U.S. federal incota purposes;
no investment shall be made that would cause be regulated as an investment company underod@ Act;

we will primarily invest within our target asset®nsisting primarily of Agency RMBS and non-AggRMBS;
approximately 5% to 10% of our portfolio may inckufinancial assets other than RMBS; and

until appropriate investments can be identifigd,will invest available cash in interest-bearimg @hort-term
investments that are consistent with (i) our intemto qualify as a REIT, and (ii) our exemptioorr “investment
company” status under the 1940 Act.

These investment guidelines may be changed from tintime by our board of directors without the rapal of our
stockholders.

Within the constraints of the foregoing investmguidelines, PRCM Advisers LLC has broad authoutgelect, finance
and manage our investment portfolio. As a genegdten our investment strategy is designed to enablo:

build an investment portfolio consisting of AggrRMBS and non-Agency RMBS that will generate atiree returns
while having a moderate risk profile;

manage financing, interest, prepayment rate asditaisks;

capitalize on discrepancies in the relative védues in the mortgage market; and
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e provide regular quarterly distributions to stockders.

Within the requirements of the investment guidedif@RCM Advisers LLC makes determinations as tq#reentage of
our assets that will be invested in each of oigebassets. PRCM Advisers LLC’s decisions depenprewvailing market
conditions and may change over time in responspportunities available in different interest ragepnomic and credit
environments. As a result, we cannot predict thregrgage of our assets that will be invested inafrour target asset classes at
any given time. We believe that the diversificatadrour portfolio of assets and the flexibility ofir strategy, combined with
PRCM Advisers LLC’s and its affiliates’ expertisei)l enable us to achieve attractive risk-adjustetirns under a variety of
market conditions and economic cycles.

We may change our investment strategy and poleigsut a vote of our stockholders.

Target Assets
Our target asset classes and the principal assetsdollows:

Agency RMBS Agency RMBS collateralized by either fixed rate tgage loans,
adjustable rate mortgage loans or hybrid mortgaged, or
derivatives thereof, including:

« mortgage pass-through certificates;
» collateralized mortgage obligations;
« Freddie Mac gold certificates;

« Fannie Mae certificates;

« Ginnie Mae certificates;

« “to-be-announced” forward contracts, that is pails
mortgages with specific investment terms to beddduy
GSEs at a future date; and

« interest-only and inverse interest-only securities.

Non-Agency RMBS Non-Agency RMBS collateralized by prime mortgage lgakls-
A mortgage loans and subprime mortgage loans, whiy have
fixed rate, adjustable rate or hybrid rate terms.

Non-Agency RMBS includes both senior and mezzanine BMB
Senior RMBS refers to non-Agency RMBS tranches Wihiave
the highest priority claim to cash flows from tie¢ated collateral
pool, within the RMBS structure. Mezzanine RMBSersfto
subordinated tranches within the collateral pool.

Hybrid mortgage loans have terms with interestsréttat are fixe:
for a specified period of time and, thereafter,egatly adjust
annually to an increment over a specified interats index.
ARMs refer to hybrid and adjustable-rate mortgagné which
typically have interest rates that adjust annu@llgn increment
over a specified interest rate index.

Assets other than RMBS Non-real estate financial assets including asset-lthskeurities
and certain hedging transactions that may prodooequalifying
income for purposes of the REIT gross income tests.

At December 31, 2009, we had total assets of appaiely $538.4 million, of which $494.5 million, 81.8%, represented
our RMBS portfolio. At December 31, 2009, $417.8lion, or 84.5% of our RMBS portfolio was comprisefiAgency RMBS,
$54.1 million, or 10.9% of our RMBS portfolio wasraprised of
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senior non-Agency RMBS, and the remaining $22.86ionil or 4.6% was comprised of other non-Agency RBABhe
remaining $43.9 million of assets consists prinyaoil cash, restricted cash, receivables and pregssdts.

Competitive Strengths

Our investment strategy is focused on utilizing onderlying core strengths, described below inerrdetail, which we
believe offer competitive advantages in the mairketp

Significant Experience and Relationships of PineeR$ Fixed Income Team

PRCM Advisers LLC’s fixed income team has broadezignce in managing Agency RMBS, non-Agency RMB& atfer
mortgage-related assets through a variety of ceeditinterest rate environments and has demorgtiateability to generate
attractive risk-adjusted returns under differenti@aiconditions and cycles, on both a levered arevered basis.

The members of the fixed income team have an agavhd)5 years of experience in mortgage-backedrgiesutrading,
including experience in performing advisory sergiéar investment banks, funds, other investmenicles, and other managed
and discretionary accounts. Our Co-Chief Investn@#fiters are Steven Kuhn and William Roth. Mr. Kuk a Partner of Pine
River, and joined the firm in January 2008. He bayears of experience trading RMBS and other fikedme securities for
Goldman Sachs Asset Management, Citadel and CaviillRoth joined Pine River in June 2009, and Yagears of
experience working for Salomon Brothers and Citigran the fixed income markets, including mortgdgeked and asset-
backed securities. The fixed income team also dediseasoned traders, analysts and risk managdris, acked by Pine
River’s extensive infrastructure in the areas aflér execution, risk management, valuation, accogntiperations, corporate
governance and law.

PRCM Advisers LLC and its affiliates maintain exdere long-term relationships with financial interdigries including
prime brokers, investment banks, broker-dealersaasdt custodians. We believe these relationshipsnee our ability to
source, finance, protect and hedge our investmarsthus, enable us to succeed in various creditraerest rate
environments. Members of the fixed income team ftiexeeloped relationships within the RMBS industrgttthey are able to
bring to bear for the benefit of Two Harbors.

Disciplined Investment Approach

Asset selection is a key element of our strategg.ané, in essence, a value investor in mortgagkeldagecurities. PRCM
Advisers LLC selects RMBS based on factors thdtiohe prepayment trends, average remaining liflnefunderlying loans,
amortization schedules, fixed versus floating iestrates, geographic concentration, property tyegghted-average loan-to-
value and weighted-average credit score. Througltaneful selection of assets, we seek to buildnaaititain an investment
portfolio that provides value to stockholders otmgre both in absolute terms and relative to othBS portfolios. Our
business strategy is to manage both interestisk@nd credit risk in our efforts to generateaattive risk-adjusted returns
under a variety of market conditions and cycles.

Portfolio Construction

PRCM Advisers LLC uses its fixed income team'’s elipe across a broad range of asset classes wlithiRMBS markets
to build a portfolio that seeks to balance incooash, capital appreciation, leverage and risk. PRG@Msers LLC uses a cross-
product approach, conducting top-down market ass&ss with respect to sub-sets of the RMBS marketder to identify the
most attractive segments and investment opporésnitncluding smaller opportunities. In employihgstdetailed analysis,
PRCM Advisers LLC seeks to best capture markefiziefcies and identify the most mispriced secesitiWe believe this
holistic approach to non-Agency and Agency RMBSestment may achieve a higher risk-adjusted rehan &in approach that
focuses on a single sector.
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Access to PRCM Advisers LLC’s Analytical Toolsidstfucture and Expertise

The fixed income team constructs and manages wasiment portfolio through the use of qualitatinel guantitative
analysis, and with the assistance of proprietad/thind party analytic tools. We focus on in-deptfalysis of the numerous
factors that influence our target assets, including

» fundamental market and sector review;
e cash flow analysis;

« disciplined security selection;

e controlled risk exposure; and

e prudent balance sheet management.

We also use these tools to guide the hedging gtesteleveloped by PRCM Advisers LLC to the extemtsistent with the
requirements for qualification as a REIT.

In addition, we use Pine River’s proprietary tedbgy management platform, called Everest, to tiagkstments and to
monitor investment risk. Everest collects and stoeal-time market data, and integrates markebpagnce with portfolio
holdings and proprietary risk models to measureitiepositions in portfolios. This measurementiegsportrays overall
portfolio risk and risk sources. We believe thaitgsticated analysis of both macro and micro ecdadactors will enable us to
manage cash flow and distributions while presergiaygital.

Through our shared facilities and services agreémih Pine River, PRCM Advisers LLC has analytieald portfolio
management capabilities to aid in security selactiod risk management. We capitalize on the mé&rkatvledge and ready
access to data across our target markets that PRfders LLC and its affiliates obtain through thestablished platform. We
also benefit, through PRCM Advisers LLC, from PRiger’'s comprehensive finance, operational and adinative
infrastructure, including its risk management aindricial reporting and accounting operations, afagets business
development, legal and compliance, operations atittment and software development teams.

Financing Strategy

We deploy moderate leverage to increase potestiains to our stockholders and to fund the acdoisif our assets. We
are not required to maintain any particular levereggio. The amount of leverage we deploy for patdr investments in our
target assets depends upon an assessment of ty waffiectors, which may include:

« the anticipated liquidity and price volatility ofir assets;

« the gap between the duration of assets anditiabjlincluding hedges;

< the availability and cost of financing the assets

< our opinion of the credit worthiness of financiomunterparties;

e the health of the U.S. economy and residentiatgage-related markets;

e our outlook for the level, slope, and volatild@yinterest rates;

« the credit quality of the loans we acquire;

e the collateral underlying our Agency RMBS and +#&gency RMBS;

e and our outlook for asset spreads relative td_thedon Interbank Offered Rate, or LIBOR, curve.

Our primary financing sources are repurchase aggatsnWe may use repurchase agreements to deplaygdebt-to-equity
basis, up to ten times leverage on our Agency RM&sts, but we are not required to maintain artycpéar leverage ratio.
We expect under current market conditions to depioited leverage on our non-Agency RMBS througé tise of repurchase
agreements. In the future, we may pursue additievarage in conjunction with financings that mayawvailable from
traditional private sources of lending or undergreans established by the U.S. government.
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Repurchase agreements are financings pursuantith whe party, the seller or borrower, sells astetke repurchase
agreement counterparty, the buyer or lender, fagaeed price with the obligation to repurchaseatteets from the buyer at a
future date and at a price higher than the origiathase price. The amount of financing availainlder a repurchase
agreement is limited to a specified percentagbé®kstimated market value of the assets. The difter between the sale price
and repurchase price is the interest expense afi¢ing under a repurchase agreement. Under remarelgeement financing
arrangements, if the value of the collateral desgsathe buyer could require the seller to prosidditional cash collateral to re-
establish the ratio of value of the collateralite amount of borrowing. In the current economimelie, lenders under
repurchase agreements generally advance approxym@ss to 95% of the market value of the Agency R&ihanced
(meaning a 5% to 10% discount from market valudyadrcut) and 50% to 65% of the market value ofrthe-Agency RMBS
financed (meaning a 35% to 50% haircut). A sigaificdecrease in advance rate or an increase hmathmut could result in our
having to sell securities in order to meet addaianargin requirements by the lender. We expeatitmgate our risk of margin
calls under repurchase agreements by deployingdept amount of leverage that is below what coeldised under current
advance rates.

In order to reduce our exposure to counterparigteel risk, we generally seek to diversify our expesy entering into
repurchase agreements with multiple counterpaieBecember 31, 2009, we had $411.9 million ofstariding balances
under repurchase agreements with six counterpavtisa maximum net exposure (the difference betwthe amount loaned
to us, including interest payable, and the valuthefsecurities pledged by us as collateral, inolydccrued interest receivable
on such securities) to any single lender of $17lBom.

We enter into derivative financial instrumentshedging instruments, to hedge against increasiesarest rates on a
portion of our LIBOR-based repurchase agreemertitRetember 31, 2009, our hedging instruments ctatssolely of swaps,
which are used to lock-in fixed interest rates dherterm of the swap, related to a portion ofexisting and anticipated future
repurchase agreements. At December 31, 2009, weeavearty to fixed-rate swaps with an aggregatmnatamount of $100.0
million. We do not anticipate entering into any ey instruments for speculative or trading purgose

Management Agreement

We have entered into a management agreement withvVPARdvisers LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of PiRéver.
Pursuant to the management agreement, PRCM Ad\it€rsmplements our business strategy and perfarensin services
for us, subject to oversight by our board of dioest PRCM Advisers LLC is responsible for, amongeotduties, (i) performing
all of our day-to-day functions, (ii) determinimgviestment criteria in conjunction with our boarddofctors, (iii) sourcing,
analyzing and executing investments, asset satefirrancings, and (iv) performing asset managerdaties.

The initial term of the management agreement egpreOctober 28, 2012, with automatic, one-yeaeweats at the end of
the initial term and each year thereafter. Our jpashelent directors review PRCM Advisers LLC’s parfiance annually and,
following the initial term, the management agreetmeay be terminated annually by us without causeuhe vote of at least
two-thirds of our independent directors or by aevof the holders of a majority of the outstandihgres of our common stock,
based upon: (i) PRCM Advisers LLC’s unsatisfactpeyformance that is materially detrimental to uiiprour determination
that the management fees payable to PRCM Advide@Gsdre not fair, subject to PRCM Advisers LLC’shrigo prevent
termination based on unfair fees by accepting aatoh of management fees agreed to by at leasthinmds of our independent
directors. We are required to provide PRCM Adviddr€ with 180 days’ prior notice of such terminatidJpon termination
without cause, we will pay PRCM Advisers LLC a témation fee, as described below. We will also pagrenination fee to
PRCM Advisers LLC if PRCM Advisers LLC terminatéetmanagement agreement due to our material bofatith
agreement. We may terminate the management agréertier80 days’ prior notice from our board of diters, without
payment of a termination fee, for cause, as defindde management agreement. PRCM Advisers LLC t@aginate the
management agreement if we become required tateegis an investment company under the 1940 A, suich termination
deemed to occur immediately before such eventn@adalso decline to renew the management agredsgearbviding us with
180 days’ prior notice, in either case of whichwauld not be required to pay a termination fee.
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Base Management Fee

The base management fee paid to PRCM Advisers ELIC5% of our stockholders’ equity per annum, dated and
payable quarterly in arrears.

For purposes of calculating the management feestogkholders’ equity means the sum of the netg@ds from all
issuances of our equity securities since incefilocated on @ro ratadaily basis for such issuances during the fiscaligu
of any such issuance), plus our retained earnintieeaend of the most recently completed calendartgr (without taking into
account any non-cash equity compensation expenser@d in current or prior periods), less any antdliat we have paid for
repurchases of our common stock since inceptiatheaoluding any unrealized gains, losses or oteens that do not affect
realized net income (regardless of whether suchsitere included in other comprehensive incomess, lor in net income).
This amount will be adjusted to exclude one-timerds pursuant to changes in accounting principgeeially accepted in the
United States of America, or GAAP, and certain ©ash items after discussions between PRCM Advlde@sand our
independent directors and approval by a majoritgwfindependent directors. To the extent asseimmgnts reduce our
retained earnings at the end of any completed datequarter it will reduce the base managemenfioieguch quarter. Our
stockholders’ equity for the purposes of calculgtine base management fee could be greater thamtbent of stockholders’
equity shown on the consolidated financial statasen

Expense Reimbursement

We reimburse PRCM Advisers LLC for (i) our allocalshare of the compensation paid by PRCM Advisef 1o its
personnel serving as our principal financial offiaed general counsel and personnel employed byWwR@isers LLC as in-
house legal, tax, accounting, consulting, auditadministrative, information technology, valuatieomputer programming and
development and back-office resources to us ahdr{yi amounts for personnel of PRCM Advisers LL&ffiates arising
under a shared facilities and services agreement.

Termination Fee

Upon termination of the management agreement hyithout cause or by PRCM Advisers LLC due to outemnal breach
of the management agreement, we are required ta paiynination fee equal to three times the suth@fverage annual base
management fee earned by PRCM Advisers LLC dutied2d-month period immediately preceding the datermination,
calculated as of the end of the most recently ceteglfiscal quarter prior to the date of termirratio

Regulation
REIT Qualification

We intend to elect to qualify as a REIT under tloel€ commencing with our taxable period ended oreBwer 31, 2009.
Our qualification as a REIT depends upon our abititmeet on a continuing basis, through actuatstment and operating
results, various complex requirements under thee@elhting to, among other things, the sourcesiofjooss income, the
composition and values of our assets, our disiobuevels and the diversity of ownership of ouarss. We believe that we are
organized in conformity with the requirements foatification and taxation as a REIT under the Caate we conduct our
operations in a manner which will enable us to nieetrequirements for qualification and taxatioradREIT.

As long as we qualify as a REIT, we generally wik be subject to U.S. federal income tax on théTR&xable income we
distribute currently to our stockholders. If wel tai qualify as a REIT in any taxable year and doqualify for certain statutory
relief provisions, we will be subject to U.S. fedieincome tax at regular corporate rates and maydauded from qualifying
as a REIT for the subsequent four taxable yealswalg the year during which we lost our REIT gfiaition. Even if we
qualify for taxation as a REIT, we may be subjeatértain U.S. federal, state and local taxes arirmome or property.

1940 Act Exemption

We intend to conduct our operations so that wenat@equired to register as an investment companaigiuthe 1940 Act.
The 1940 Act exempts entities that are “primaritgaged in the business of purchasing or othervageiang mortgages and
other liens on and interests in real estate,” @dlifying interests. Under
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the current interpretation of the SEC'’s staff, ider to qualify for this exemption, we must mainté) at least 55% of our
assets in qualifying interests (referred to asbih Test) and (ii) at least 80% of our assetsahestate related assets including
qualifying interests (referred to as the 80% Tdatineeting the 55% Test, we treat as qualifyirtgriests those RMBS issued
with respect to an underlying pool as to which wanall of the certificates issued by the pool. RMiB&t do not represent all
of the certificates issued (i.e., an undividedriest) by the pool of mortgages (i.e., a whole paaljerlying such RMBS may be
treated as securities separate from such undenyortgage loans and, thus, may not be consideralifgng interests for
purposes of the 55% Test; however, such RMBS wbeldonsidered real estate related assets for mpsmdthe 80% Test.
Therefore, for purposes of the 55% Test, our ownigrsf these types of RMBS is limited by the prawis of the 1940 Act. If
the SEC or its staff were to adopt a contrary prgtation, we could be required to sell a substhatnount of our RMBS under
potentially adverse market conditions. Furtherider to ensure that at all times we qualify fas #xemption from the 1940
Act, we may be precluded from acquiring RMBS whyiedd is higher than the yield on RMBS that coutldiherwise
purchased in a manner consistent with this exemp#fiacordingly, we monitor our compliance with bdlte 55% Test and the
80% Test in order to maintain our exempt statusutite 1940 Act.

Corporate Governance
We strive to maintain an ethical workplace in whiblh highest standards of professional condugpieticed.

« Our board of directors is composed of a majarftindependent directors. Our Audit, Nominating &wfporate
Governance and Compensation Committees are compasbdsively of independent directors.

* In order to foster the highest standards of ethied conduct in all of our business relationshigshave adopted a Code
of Business Conduct and Ethics and Corporate GameGuidelines, which cover a wide range of bssimpeactices
and procedures that apply to all of our directoficers and employees. In addition, we have im@etad Whistle
Blowing Procedures for Accounting and Auditing Mat that set forth procedures by which any offareemployee
may raise, on a confidential basis, concerns régguahy questionable or unethical accounting, maeaccounting
controls or auditing matters with our Audit Comraét

* We have an insider trading policy that prohilaitey of our directors, officers or employees fronyibg or selling our
common and preferred stock on the basis of mateoiapublic information and prohibits communicatmgterial
nonpublic information to others.

« We have a formal internal audit function, throufl current use of an independent, outsourced forfurther the
effective functioning of our internal controls apbcedures. Our internal audit plan, which is appdoannually by our
Audit Committee, is based on a formal risk assessiauad is intended to provide management and oditAlommittee
with an effective tool to identify and address areffinancial or operational concerns and to emsliat appropriate
controls and procedures are in place. We have mmaéed Section 404 of the Sarbaedey Act of 2002, as amendkt
or the SOX Act, which requires an evaluation oéintl control over financial reporting in asso@ativith our financia
statements as of December 31, 2009. (See ltem@a@ntfols and Procedures” included in this Annugbéteon Form
10-K.)

Competition

Our net income will depend, in large part, on cuifiy to acquire assets at favorable spreads oueborrowing costs. In
acquiring our target assets, we will compete witteo REITSs, specialty finance companies, savingslaan associations,
banks, mortgage bankers, insurance companies, hfubus, institutional investors, investment bamkfirms, financial
institutions, governmental bodies and other emtitome of these entities may not be subject tsdahee regulatory constraints
that we are (i.e., REIT compliance or maintainingeaemption under the 1940 Act). In addition, thee numerous REITs with
similar asset acquisition objectives, includinguanier that have been recently formed, and otheyshmarganized in the
future. These other REITs will increase competifimnthe available supply of RMBS. Many of our castifors are
significantly larger than us, have access to grezpital and other resources and may
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have other advantages over us. In addition, sons@oompetitors may have higher risk tolerancediféerent risk
assessments, which could allow them to considedarwariety of investments and establish moreti@iahips than us.
Current market conditions may attract more compegjtwhich may increase the competition for soutcddmmancing. An
increase in the competition for sources of fundingld adversely affect the availability and cosfinéancing, and thereby
adversely affect the market price of our commoglsto

In the face of this competition, we have acce3R&€M Advisers LLC’s professionals and their industxpertise, which
may provide us with a competitive advantage antiheilp us assess investment risks and determin®ppate pricing for
certain potential investments. In addition, we énadi that current market conditions may have adieestected the financial
condition of certain competitors. Thus, our orgatizn, with no legacy portfolio prior to October,Z®09, may be able to
compete more effectively for attractive investmepportunities. However, we may not be able to agh@ur business goals or
expectations due to the competitive risks thataee f For additional information concerning thesmpetitive risks, see Risk
Factors — Risks Related to Our Business — We apéarat highly competitive market and competitiory it our ability to
acquire desirable assets

Employees

We are managed by PRCM Advisers LLC pursuant tortaepagement agreement between PRCM Advisers LLQisnAll
of our officers are partners or employees of PRCiltiders LLC or its affiliates. We have no direct@ayees.

Policies with Respect to Certain Other Activities

If our board of directors determines that additidnading is necessary or appropriate, we may rsisd funds through
additional offerings of equity or debt securitigstoe retention of cash flow (subject to provisiamshe Code concerning
distribution requirements and the taxability of istidbuted REIT taxable income). In the event thvait board of directors
determines to raise additional equity capitalai$ the authority, without stockholder approvalstue additional common stock
or preferred stock in any manner and on such tamdsfor such consideration as it deems appropaaty time.

As of the date of this filing, we do not intenddffer equity or debt securities in exchange forpamby. We have not in the
past repurchased or otherwise reacquired our sHaremay do so in the future, subject to the nequents of the MGCL.

As of the date of this filing, we do not intendinwest in the securities of other REITs, othert@giengaged in real estate
activities or securities of other issuers for thiegose of exercising control over such entities.

We have not in the past made loans to third pairiiéise ordinary course of business for investnpemposes, but may do so
in the future. As of the date of this prospectus,d® not intend to underwrite the securities oeofbsuers.

We furnish our stockholders with annual reportstaming consolidated financial statements auditgdlr independent
registered public accountants and file quartemborts with the SEC containing unaudited consolidditeancial statements for
each of the first three quarters of each fiscat.yea

Our board of directors may change any of theseiesliwithout prior notice, or a vote of our stockless, other than filing
of annual and quarterly reports with the SEC wlisctequired by law.

Financial Information

Financial information concerning our business facreof 2009, 2008, and 2007, including Capitofsficial information
for the year ended December 31, 2008 and for theg&om June 26, 2007 (inception) through Decengie 2007, is set forth
in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finah€ondition and Results of Operations,” “Qualitatand Quantitative
Disclosures about Market Risk,” and the consolidditgancial statements and the notes thereto, lEmdupplemental financial
information, which are in Part Il, Items 7, 7A a®adf this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Available Information

Our website can be foundwatvw.twoharborsinvestment.cariiVe make available free of charge on, or throighSEC
filings section of our website, access to our ahreorts on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Foi®rQ, current reports on
Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports fildfdimished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) ofuh®. Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, or the Exchange Act, as well as prstatements, as soon as reasonably practicablessdtelectronically file such
material with, or furnish it to, the SEC. Our Exnlga Act reports filed with, or furnished to, the(Ghre also available at the
SEC'’s website atvww.sec.gov The content of any website referred to in thisnfrd0-K is not incorporated by reference into
this Form 10-K unless expressly noted.

We also make available, free of charge, accesart@€orporate Governance Standards, charters foAodit Committee,
Compensation Committee, and Corporate Governart®&aminating Committee, our Corporate Governanead&irds, and
our Code of Ethics governing our directors, offs;eand employees. Within the time period requingthle SEC and the NYSE
Amex, we will post on our website any amendmertheoCode of Ethics and any waiver applicable toescutive officer,
director, or senior officer (as defined in the Cpde

Our Investor Relations Department can be contaat®&0 Madison Avenue, Suite 3703, New York, NY 200Attn:
Investor Relations, or by telephone at (612) 238833
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

The following is a summary of the risk factors the believe are most relevant to our business. & hesfactors which,
individually or in the aggregate, we think couldisa our actual results to differ significantly fremticipated or historical
results. In addition to understanding the key rig&scribed below, investors should understanditighot possible to predict
or identify all risk factors, and consequently, fbbowing is not a complete discussion of all putal risks or uncertainties.

Risks Related to Our Business and Operations

The value of your investment is subject to the ificgmt risks affecting REITs, and mortgage RElmgarticular, described
below. If any of the events described below ocour,business, financial condition, liquidity andresults of operations could
be adversely affected in a material way. This caaldse the price of our common stock or warrantetdine, perhaps
significantly, and you therefore may lose all ortpd your investment.

Risks Related To Our Business
We operate in a highly competitive market and corifggn may limit our ability to acquire desirablessets.

We operate in a highly competitive market. Our padflity depends, in large part, on our abilitygoquire target assets at
favorable prices. In acquiring assets, we compdte awariety of institutional investors, includilogher REITS, specialty
finance companies, public and private funds, consiakand investment banks, commercial finance asdrance companies,
governmental entities and other financial instiio§. Many of our competitors are substantiallydammnd have greater
financial, technical, marketing and other resoutbes we do. Furthermore, competition for assetg Iead to the price of such
assets increasing and their availability decreasifgch may limit our ability to generate desiredurns.

The RMBS investment strategy that PRCM Advisers L&@Gwner, Pine River, employs on behalf of othereclits is
different from the investment strategy that we el

PRCM Advisers LLC draws upon the experience of FRier’s fixed income investment team in implemegtour
investment and financing strategies. However, tlrestment strategy that Pine River has employedmmection with other
RMBS investments is different from the investmdrategy that we employ in several important respdatparticular, Pine
River has typically traded actively in fixed-raseljustable and interest-only RMBS, including c@fatized mortgage
obligations and “to-be-announced” forward contraotsTBAs, and equity investments in REITS, andvaty hedged its trading
positions. By contrast, we seek to invest primarilpAgency and non-Agency RMBS with a buy-and-hemdphasis, and we do
not anticipate actively trading our assets. Ouegtinent strategy may further differ from that aid’River’s funds, in that we
may use greater leverage with regard to our investmin Agency RMBS. Further, unlike the Pine Rifeerds, we are
constrained by limitations on our investment stygtihat are necessary in order to qualify as a REiith is exempt from
registration under the 1940 Act. In this regard,plaee a greater emphasis than Pine River on owsgngrities representing
100% of the interests in a particular RMBS mortgpgel, or whole pool Agency RMBS, for purposes @fimiaining our 1940
Act exemption.

We may change any of our strategies, policies aogedures without stockholder consent.

We may change any of our strategies, policies ocgntures with respect to investments, asset aibocagrowth, operations,
indebtedness, financing strategy and distributetreny time without the consent of stockholdersictvicould result in our
making investments that are different from, andsgag riskier than, the types of investments désatiin this Annual Report
on Form 10-K. A change in strategy may increaseegposure to credit risk, interest rate risk, ficiag risk, default risk and
real estate market fluctuations. These changes @liersely affect our financial condition, rislofile, results of operations,
the market price of our common stock or warrants@ur ability to make distributions to stockholders
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Difficult conditions in the mortgage and residentiaeal estate markets, the financial markets andetbconomy generally
may cause the market value of our RMBS assets tclide, and we do not expect these conditions toliaye in the near
future.

Our results of operations are materially affectgadnditions in the mortgage and residential retdte markets, the
financial markets and the economy generally. Régetdncerns about the mortgage market and a deglieal estate market,
as well as inflation, energy costs, geopoliticaliss and the availability and cost of credit, hasmtributed to increased
volatility and diminished expectations for the esoty and financial markets going forward. The magaarket has been
adversely affected by the tightening of lendingidtads and general availability of credit and thenmeo assurance that these
conditions have stabilized or that they will notraen. This has an impact on new demand for homashwill compress the
home ownership rates and weigh heavily on futuradiprice performance. There is a strong correldi&twveen home price
growth rates (or losses) and mortgage loan delimcjas. The further deterioration of the mortgagek®tamay cause us to
experience losses related to our assets. Declintbg imarket values of our investments may adweedédct our results of
operations and credit availability, which may reglearnings and, in turn, cash available for distrdn to stockholders.

There can be no assurance that the actions of th&UGovernment, Federal Reserve, U.S. Treasury atiter
governmental and regulatory bodies for the purpasfestabilizing the financial markets, or market rpsnse to those actions,
will achieve the intended results; our business mayt benefit from these actions and further goverent or market
developments could adversely impact us.

In response to turmoil in the financial marketsibaing in 2007, the U.S. Government, Federal ResddvS. Treasury and
other governmental and regulatory bodies have také&on to stabilize the financial markets. Sigrafit measures include: the
enactment of the Emergency Economic Stabilizationof 2008 to, among other things, establish theuibted Asset Relief
Program to purchase certain assets from finantstititions; the enactment of the Housing and Envodrecovery Act of
2008, which established a new regulator for FaiMae and Freddie Mac; the establishment of the TAidfich provides non-
recourse loans to borrowers to fund their purcludgdigible assets, which currently include certagset-backed securities and
commercial mortgage-backed securities; the estabbsit of the Public-Private Investment Programciwhsé designed to
encourage the transfer of certain legacy assetsidimg real estate-related assets, off of therfz@aheets of financial
institutions; and the implementation of the Homéofdable Modification program, to facilitate the dification of delinquent
mortgages and reduce foreclosures.

There can be no assurance that these recent UvBriiaoent actions will improve the efficiency andlslity of U.S.
financial markets, and the residential mortgageketarin particular, in the long term. To the extdra financial markets do not
respond favorably to these initiatives or thesgdtives do not function as intended, our busimeay be harmed. There also can
be no assurance that we will be eligible to pgytité in programs established by the U.S. Governowreiitwe are eligible, that
we will be able to utilize them successfully oalit In addition, because the programs are designgzhrt, to improve the
markets for certain of our target assets, the Bstabent of these programs may result in increasaalpetition for attractive
opportunities in our target assets. The U.S. Gavent, the Federal Reserve, the U.S. Treasury dmt gbvernmental and
regulatory bodies have taken or are consideringge&dditional actions to address the financiadisriwe cannot predict
whether or when such actions may occur, and suitnaacould have an adverse impact on our busimesslts of operations
and financial condition.

The lack of liquidity of our assets may adverseffeat our business, including our ability to valugnd sell our assets.

We may acquire assets or other instruments thatatriéquid, including securities and other instemts that are not
publicly traded, and market conditions could siguaifitly and negatively impact the liquidity of othassets. It may be difficult
or impossible to obtain third-party pricing on #Esets that we purchase. llliquid assets typieadperience greater price
volatility, as a ready market may not exist forlsassets, and such assets can be more difficuttitie. In addition, validating
third-party pricing for illiquid assets may be maubjective than more liquid assets. Any illiquyditf our assets may make it
difficult for us to sell such assets if the needlesire arises. In addition, if we are requiretidoidate all or a portion of our
portfolio quickly, we may realize significantly leshan the value at which we previously recordedasgets. Assets
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that are illiquid are more difficult to finance,dto the extent that we use leverage to financetasisat become illiquid we may
lose that leverage or have it reduced. Assetsttebdcome less liquid during times of financiaést, which is often the time
that liquidity is most needed. As a result, oulligbio sell assets or vary our portfolio in resgerto changes in economic and
other conditions may be limited by liquidity coratits, which could adversely affect our resultgpérations and financial
condition.

Maintenance of our 1940 Act exemption imposes ligniin our operations.

We intend to conduct our operations so as not ¢toine required to register as an investment compadgr the 1940 Act.
Section 3(a)(1)(A) of the 1940 Act defines an irtm@nt company as any issuer that is or holds itaglfas being engaged
primarily in the business of investing, reinvestorgrading in securities. Section 3(a)(1)(C) af #040 Act defines an
investment company as any issuer that is engagprbposes to engage in the business of invesgmgyesting, owning,
holding or trading in securities and owns or pre@®® acquire investment securities having a vaekeeeding 40% of the value
of the issuer’s total assets (exclusive of U.S. &oment securities and cash items) on an uncomrgetidbasis. Excluded from
the term “investment securities,” among other tejraye U.S. Government securities and securiteeg@éby majority-owned
subsidiaries that are not themselves investmenpaaias and are not relying on the exception froendifinition of investment
company set forth in Section 3(c)(1) or Section@(cof the 1940 Act.

We are organized as a holding company that condtsdisisinesses primarily through Subsidiary LL@tHBTwo Harbors
and Subsidiary LLC intend to conduct their operadiso that they do not come within the definitidmo investment company
because less than 40% of the value of their tasdta on an unconsolidated basis will consistrofe'stment securities.”

Certain of Subsidiary LLC’s subsidiaries intenddty upon the exemption from registration as aregtmnent company
under the 1940 Act pursuant to Section 3(c)(5)({@he 1940 Act, which is available for entities ifparily engaged in the
business of purchasing or otherwise acquiring nagreg and other liens on and interests in realee’sttis exemption
generally means that at least 55% of each suchidsalyss portfolio must be comprised of qualifyiagsets and at least 80% of
its portfolio must be comprised of qualifying assahd real estate-related assets under the 194@Aatifying assets for this
purpose include mortgage loans and other assets,asuwhole pool Agency and non-Agency RMBS, whaighconsidered the
functional equivalent of mortgage loans for thegmses of the 1940 Act. We expect each of our sigriéd relying on Section
3(c)(5)(C) to invest at least 55% of its assetwliwle pool Agency and non-Agency RMBS and othegrists in real estate that
constitute qualifying assets in accordance with SEf guidance and an additional 25% of its asse¢dther qualifying assets
and other types of real estate related assetslthadt constitute qualifying assets.

As a result of the foregoing restrictions, we amgted in our ability to make or dispose of certaimestments. To the extent
that the SEC staff publishes new or different gon@awith respect to these matters, we may be redjtdr adjust our strategy
accordingly. In addition, we may be limited in @bility to make certain investments and these &tiohs could result in the
subsidiary holding assets that we might wish tbaretelling assets that we might wish to hold haligh we monitor the
portfolios of our subsidiaries relying on the SentB(c)(5)(C) exemption periodically and prior &ch acquisition or
disposition of assets, there can be no assuraatsubh subsidiaries will be able to maintain thiemption.

We may organize special purpose subsidiaries tiibovrow under the Federal Reserve System’s TAsset-Backed
Securities Loan Facility, or TALF. We expect tHa¢$e TALF subsidiaries will rely on Section 3(c){@?) their 1940 Act
exemption and, therefore, our interest in eacihe$é TALF subsidiaries would constitute an “investtrsecurity” for purposes
of determining whether we pass the 40% test. We onggnize one or more TALF subsidiaries, as wetithsr subsidiaries,
that seek to rely on the 1940 Act exemption prodittecertain structured financing vehicles by R2de7. To the extent that we
organize subsidiaries that rely on Rule 3a-7 foex@mption from the 1940 Act, these subsidiaridsalso need to comply with
the provisions of Rule 3a-7 which in certain ciraiances may require, among other things, thatieniture governing the
notes issued by the subsidiary include additiongtations on the types of assets the subsidiary se#l or acquire out of the
proceeds of assets that mature, are refinancethervwzise sold, on the period of time during whiciels transactions may occur,
and on the amount of transactions that may
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occur. In addition, any subsidiaries organizedety on Rule 3a-7 will also need to comply with cande that may be issued by
the Division of Investment Management of the SEGiow such subsidiaries must be organized to comvjilythe restrictions
contained in Rule 3a-7. In light of the requirensenit Rule 3a-7, our ability to manage assets heldspecial purpose
subsidiary that complies with Rule 3a-7 will beitied and we may not be able to purchase or sadtsgsvned by that
subsidiary when we would otherwise desire to domdch could lead to losses. We expect that theeagge value of our
interests in TALF subsidiaries that seek to relyRarte 3a-7, as well as other subsidiaries that ag anganize in the future that
may rely on Rule 3a-7, will comprise less than 2806ur total assets on an unconsolidated basis.

We will make the determination of whether an ensta majority-owned subsidiary. The 1940 Act de§im majority-owned
subsidiary of a person as a company 50% or motteeobutstanding voting securities of which are advbg such person, or by
another company which is a majority-owned subsyd@drsuch person. The 1940 Act further definesng8ecurities as any
security presently entitling the owner or holdegrdof to vote for the election of directors of anpany. We treat companies in
which we own at least a majority of the outstandinting securities as majority-owned subsidiar@spgurposes of the 40%
test. We have not requested the SEC staff to appravtreatment of any company as a majority-owswdssidiary and the SEC
staff has not done so. If the SEC or its staff werdisagree with our treatment of one or more camgs as majority-owned
subsidiaries, we would need to adjust our strategl/our assets in order to continue to pass theté886Any such adjustment
in our strategy could have a material adverse effec

Qualification for exemption from registration undee 1940 Act limits our ability to make certairv@stments. For example,
these restrictions limit the ability of our subsides to invest directly in mortgage-backed semsrithat represent less than the
entire ownership in a pool of mortgage loans, @elot equity tranches of securitizations and cedaset backed securities and
real estate companies or in assets not relateshte@state.

Loss of our 1940 Act exemption would adversely affes, the market price of shares of our commoncit@r warrants
and our ability to distribute dividends, and coutdsult in the termination of the management agreemevith PRCM
Advisers LLC.

As described above, we intend to conduct operagorass not to become required to register as asiment company
under the 1940 Act based on current laws, reguigté;md guidance. Although we monitor our portfplasiodically, there can
be no assurance that we will be able to maintairegamption as an investment company under the A@4df we were to fail
to qualify for an exemption, we could be requiredestructure our activities or the activities af subsidiaries, including
effecting sales of assets in a manner that, otisi@when, we would not otherwise choose, whichidmegatively affect the
value of our common stock or warrants, the suskdliaof our business model, and our ability tokealistributions. Such
sales could occur during adverse market conditiand,we could be forced to accept prices belowwvinath we believe are
appropriate. The loss of our 1940 Act exclusion Ma@lso permit PRCM Advisers LLC to terminate thamagement
agreement, which could result in a material adveffaxt on our business and results of operations.

Rapid changes in the values of our assets may miakeore difficult for us to maintain our qualificaton as a REIT or
our exemption from the 1940 Act.

If the market value or income potential of our &sskeclines as a result of increased interest,rptepayment rates, general
market conditions, government actions or otherdisctwe may need to increase our real estate assgisncome or liquidate
our non-qualifying assets to maintain our REIT dicaltion or our exemption from the 1940 Act. IEtlecline in real estate
asset values or income occurs quickly, this magdpecially difficult to accomplish. This difficultpay be exacerbated by the
illiquid nature of any non-real estate assets wg aven. We may have to make decisions that we otiserwould not make
absent the REIT and 1940 Act considerations.
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We use leverage in executing our business strategyich may adversely affect the return on our assahd may reduce
cash available for distribution to our stockholderas well as increase losses when economic conubtiare unfavorable.

We use leverage to finance our investment operatinidl to enhance our financial returns. Our prinsatyrce of leverage is
repurchase agreement financing for our Agency RMB&ets. Other sources of leverage may includetdaaidlities (including
term loans and revolving facilities).

Through the use of leverage, we may acquire positisith market exposure significantly greater thi@amount of capital
committed to the transaction. For example, by émanto repurchase agreements with advance ratdwircut levels, of 5%
(which is not an atypical haircut for Agency RMB®) could leverage capital allocated to Agency RMBS ratio of as much
as 20 to 1. It is not uncommon for investors in AgeRMBS to obtain leverage equal to ten or mares equity through the
use of repurchase agreement financing. We antecippatt we may deploy, on a debt-to-equity basigpupn times leverage on
our Agency RMBS assets and up to two times on onrAgency RMBS assets. However, there is no spdaifiit on the
amount of leverage that we may use.

Leverage will magnify both the gains and the lossfesur positions. Leverage will increase our ratuas long as we earn a
greater return on investments purchased with bardofunds than our cost of borrowing such funds. e\, if we use
leverage to acquire an asset and the value ofstfet decreases, the leverage will increase owrdoEwven if the asset increases
in value, if the asset fails to earn a return #wptals or exceeds our cost of borrowing, the leyeraill decrease our returns.

We may be required to post large amounts of casloliegeral or margin to secure our leveraged ot In the event of a
sudden, precipitous drop in value of our financgskss, we might not be able to liquidate assetktyuenough to repay our
borrowings, further magnifying losses. Even a srdadrease in the value of a leveraged asset majreass to post additional
margin or cash collateral. This may decrease thh agailable to us for distributions to stockhotder

We depend on repurchase agreements and other cffaditities to execute our business plan and ouatlrility to access
funding through these sources could have a matedalverse effect on our results of operations, firddal condition and
business.

Our ability to purchase and hold assets is affelbiedur ability to secure repurchase agreementotret credit facilities on
acceptable terms. We currently have master repsechgreements in place with several counterpatidsve expect to execute
additional master repurchase agreements, but wpreaide no assurance that lenders will be willimgable to provide us with
sufficient financing through the repurchase marketstherwise. In addition, because repurchaseeaggats are short-term
commitments of capital, changes in conditions mrépurchase markets may make it more difficultfoto secure continued
financing. During certain periods of a credit cydenders may lose their ability or curtail theitlimgness to provide financing.
If we are not able to arrange for replacement fiir@gnon acceptable terms, or if we default on mwenants or are otherwise
unable to access funds under any of our masteraiease agreements, we may have to curtail our asgatsition activities
and/or dispose of assets.

It is possible that the lenders that provide u$iitancing could experience changes in their ghiti advance funds to us,
independent of our performance or the value ofasgets. If major market participants exit the bessnit could further
adversely affect the marketability of RMBS and otligancial assets in which we invest, and thisldaegatively impact the
value of our assets, thus reducing our net boakevadturthermore, if many of our lenders are unmgllor unable to provide us
with financing, we could be forced to sell asseltewprices are depressed. In addition, if the eggny) capital requirements
imposed on our lenders change, they may be reqtarsignificantly increase the cost of the finamcthat they provide to us.
Our lenders also may revise their eligibility regunents for the types of assets they are willinfintance or the terms of such
financings, based on, among other factors, thelatgy environment and their management of percknsk. Moreover, the
amount of financing we receive under our repurcla@gseements will be directly related to the lendemtuation of the assets
that secure the outstanding borrowings. Typicaélpurchase agreements grant the respective lemeleight to reevaluate the
market value of the assets that secure outstafdimgwings at any time. If a lender determines thatvalue of the assets has
decreased, it
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has the right to initiate a margin call. A margailevould require us to transfer additional assetsuch lender or to repay a
portion of the outstanding borrowings. Any such gmarcall could have a material adverse effect anresults of operations,
financial condition, business, liquidity and alyiltb make distributions to stockholders, and causldse the value of our
common stock or warrants to decline. We may besfibto sell assets at significantly depressed pt@eseet margin calls and
to maintain adequate liquidity, which could causeaiincur losses. Moreover, to the extent thativeeforced to sell assets
because of changes in market conditions, other ehg@deticipants may face similar pressures, whalkictexacerbate a difficult
market environment and which could result in sigaifitly greater losses on our sale of such adsets extreme case of
market duress, a market may not exist for certhuo assets at any price.

If a counterparty to a repurchase agreement defautin its obligation to resell the underlying sectyriback to us at the
end of the purchase agreement term, or if the vahfehe underlying security has declined as of teed of that term, or if we
default on our obligations under the repurchase agment, we will incur losses on the repurchase agnent.

When we enter into repurchase agreements, weesritiies to lenders (i.e., repurchase agreementtegarties) and
receive cash from the lenders. The lenders argatieldl to resell the same securities back to useatrnd of the term of the
repurchase agreement. Because the cash that weeréroen the lender when we initially sell the sgtias to the lender is less
than the value of those securities (the differdaiag the “haircut”), if the lender defaults onadtsligation to resell the same
securities back to us, we would incur a loss onréipeirchase agreement equal to the amount of fhrmuhéassuming there was
no change in the value of the securities). We waldd incur losses on a repurchase agreement viatine of the underlying
securities has declined as of the end of the réjasee agreement term, because we would have tcchegner the securities for
their initial value but would receive securitiesnitoless than that amount. Further, if we defanlbar obligations under a
repurchase agreement, the lender will be ablertoitate the repurchase agreement and cease entgorany other repurchase
agreements with us. Typically, our repurchase agesgs contain cross-default provisions, so thatdéfault occurs under any
repurchase agreement, the lender can also dectifaalt with respect to all other repurchase agezgs with us. If a default
occurs under any of our repurchase agreements emdler terminates one or more of its repurchaseeagents, we may need
to enter into replacement repurchase agreemertisifierent lenders. There can be no assurancevdatill be successful in
entering into such replacement repurchase agresmarthe same terms as the repurchase agreemaintgetie terminated or at
all. Any losses that we incur on our repurchaseegents could adversely affect our earnings argldhucash available for
distribution to stockholders.

An increase in our borrowing costs relative to th@erest that we receive on our leveraged assety adversely affect our
profitability and our cash available for distributin to stockholders.

As our repurchase agreements and other short-temmavbings mature, we must enter into new borrowitigsl other
sources of liquidity or sell assets. An increasshart-term interest rates at the time that we seekter into new borrowings
would reduce the spread between the returns oasaats and the cost of our borrowings. This wodleesely affect the
returns on our assets, which might reduce earr@ngdsin turn, cash available for distribution tocktholders.

Our business model depends in part upon the contimquviability of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, or siitar
institutions, and any significant changes to thestructure or creditworthiness could have an adveisgact on us.

In the wake of the financial turmoil that begar2B07, Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac have become tinéndat, and in
some cases the only, source of mortgage finanaitigei U.S. The continued flow of mortgage-backexnisties from these
government-sponsored entities, or GSES, suppostéhdir guarantees against borrower defaults,dergfal to the operation of
the mortgage markets in their current form, andieduo our business model. The U.S Congress hasumted an intention to
consider the elimination or restructuring of th€&®Es, and there can be no assurance of the cotnimaéd Fannie Mae and
Freddie Mac as currently constituted and operaieg.significant changes to the structure of theS&E& could have an adverse
impact on us. In December 2009 the U.S. Governmmamimitted virtually unlimited capital to ensure tiability of Fannie
Mae and Freddie Mac into 2012, however there cambessurance that such capital will always belavig, or that the
Agencies will always honor their guarantees anémotligations.
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If these GSEs fail to honor their guarantees, tlaevof any Agency RMBS assets that we hold woeldide which would
materially adversely affect our business, operatamd financial condition.

We are highly dependent on information systems aystems failures could significantly disrupt our bimess, which
may, in turn, negatively affect the market price ofir common stock or warrants and our ability to paividends.

Our business is highly dependent on communicatimasinformation systems of PRCM Advisers LLC andeFRiver. Any
failure or interruption of the systems of PRCM Askfis LLC or Pine River could cause delays or giheblems in our trading
activities, which could have a material adverse@fbn our financial results and negatively afteetmarket price of our
common stock or warrants and our ability to payid#nds to stockholders.

We enter into hedging transactions that expose asontingent liabilities in the future, which maydversely affect our
financial results or cash available for distributioto stockholders.

We engage in hedging transactions intended to healgeus risks to our portfolio, including the expoe to adverse
changes in interest rates. Our hedging activityegan scope based on, among other things, thé denkevolatility of interest
rates, the type of assets held and other changamganhconditions. Although these transactions atienided to reduce our
exposure to various risks, hedging may fail to @cobr could adversely affect us because, amorey things:

* hedging can be expensive, particularly durindquer of volatile or rapidly changing interest rates
* available hedges may not correspond directly withrisks for which protection is sought;
* the duration of the hedge may not match the thrradf the related liability;

* the amount of income that a REIT may earn frontade hedging transactions (other than throughtiexREIT
subsidiaries, or TRS’s) is limited by U.S. fedéralome tax provisions governing REITS;

« the credit quality of a hedging counterparty nhaydowngraded to such an extent that it impairsability to sell or
assign our side of the hedging transaction; and

« the hedging counterparty may default on its dil@n to pay.

Subject to maintaining our qualification as a REHere is no limitation on the hedging transactithrag we may undertake.
Our hedging transactions could require us to famgd cash payments in certain circumstaneeg.( the early termination of
the hedging instrument caused by an event of defawther early termination event, or a demanda lopunterparty that we
make increased margin payments). Our ability talfthese obligations will depend on the liquidityoofr assets and access to
capital at the time. The need to fund these obtigatcould adversely impact our financial conditibarther, hedging
transactions, which are intended to limit losseay mctually result in losses, which would adversdfgct our earnings and
could in turn reduce cash available for distribatio stockholders.

Hedging instruments involve risk because they oftennot traded on regulated exchanges, guarabiead exchange or its
clearinghouse, or regulated by any U.S. or forgigmernmental authorities. Consequently, there neagdrequirements with
respect to record keeping, financial responsibditgegregation of customer funds and positionghEumore, the
enforceability of agreements underlying hedgingdextions may depend on compliance with applicstalieitory and
commodity and other regulatory requirements angedding on the identity of the counterparty, aggiie international
requirements. The business failure of a hedgingeparty will most likely result in its default.dfault by a hedging
counterparty may result in the loss of unrealizedfifs and force us to cover our commitments, i ,aat the then current market
price. Although generally we seek to reserve tgbtrio terminate our hedging positions, it may alatays be possible to
dispose of or close out a hedging position withtbatconsent of the hedging counterparty and we moape able to enter into
an offsetting contract in order to cover our rigke cannot assure you that a liquid secondary maritetxist for hedging
instruments purchased or sold, and we may be mdjtir maintain a position until exercise or exparatwhich could result in
losses.
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Our results may experience greater fluctuations gt electing hedge accounting treatment on the datives that we
enter into.

We have elected to not qualify for hedge accourttiegtment under ASC 81Bgrivatives and Hedgindor our current
derivative instruments. The economics of our dérreahedging transactions are not affected byeahastion; however, our
GAAP earnings may be subject to greater fluctuativom period to period as a result of this accimgntreatment for changes
in fair value of certain interest rate swap agreser for the accounting of the underlying hedgsskets or liabilities in our
financial statements, if it does not necessarilyom#he accounting used for interest rate swapesigeats.

We have limited experience in making critical acasting estimates, and our financial statements mag tmaterially
affected if our estimates prove to be inaccurate.

Financial statements prepared in accordance witARsequire the use of estimates, judgments anchgssens that affect
the reported amounts. Different estimates, judgsmantl assumptions reasonably could be used thad Wwaue a material
effect on the financial statements, and chang#seise estimates, judgments and assumptions ahgtiikeccur from time to
time. Significant areas of accounting requiring éipplication of management’s judgment include assgshe adequacy of the
allowance for loan losses and determining thevialne of investment securities. These estimatelgments and assumptions
are inherently uncertain, and, if they prove taMseng, then we face the risk that charges to incafifidbe required. In
addition, because we have limited operating hisitoigome of these areas and limited experienceakimg these estimates,
judgments and assumptions, the risk of future aeatg income may be greater than if we had moreréxqce in these areas.
Any such charges could significantly harm our bas#) financial condition, results of operations #elprice of our securities.
See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Fiigu@ondition and Results of Operations — Critiéacounting Policies”
for a discussion of the accounting estimates, juslgsiand assumptions that we believe are the mtsaktto an understanding
of our business, financial condition and resultspdrations.

Declines in the market values of our assets mayeadely affect our periodic reported results and diteavailability,
which may reduce earnings and, in turn, cash avdila for distribution to stockholders.

A substantial portion of our assets are classiid@@ccounting purposes as “available-for-sale.&a@es in the market
values of those assets will be directly chargecdredited to stockholders’ equity. As a result, elide in values may reduce our
book value. Moreover, if the decline in value ofeailable-for-sale security is other than tempgrauch decline will reduce
earnings.

A decline in the market value of our assets mayeeshly affect us, particularly in instances wheeshave borrowed money
based on the market value of those assets. If Hikanvalue of those assets declines, the lendgretpire us to post
additional collateral to support the loan. If we anable to post the additional collateral, we wdwdve to sell the assets at a
time when we might not otherwise choose to do stedAiction in credit available may reduce our eaysiand, in turn, cash
available for distribution to stockholders.

Changes in accounting treatment may adversely affear profitability.

In February 2008, the Financial Accounting Stangd@dard, or FASB, issued final guidance regardirgaccounting and
financial statement presentation for transactibas involve the acquisition of RMBS, residentialmgage loans and other
financial assets from a counterparty and the sulesgdinancing of these securities through repwsetagreements with the
same counterparty. If we do not meet the criteniden the final guidance to account for the trarisaston a gross basis, the
accounting treatment would not affect the econoridbese transactions, but would affect how tliemesactions are reported
on our financial statements. If we are not abledmply with the criteria under this final guidarfoe same party transactions,
we would be precluded from presenting RMBS, redidemortgage loans and other financial assetstl@delated financings,
as well as the related interest income and intepgsénse, on a gross basis on our financial statsmastead, we would be
required to account for the purchase commitmentraladed repurchase agreement on a net basis eord r& forward
commitment to purchase RMBS, residential mortgagas$ and other financial assets as a derivatiteiment. Such forward
commitments would be recorded at fair value withsaguent changes in fair value recognized in egsniddditionally, we
would record the cash
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portion of our interest in RMBS, residential moggdoans and other financial assets as a mortgdgted receivable from the
counterparty on our balance sheet. Although we @vaot expect this change in presentation to hawaterial impact on net
income, it could have an adverse impact on ouraijmers. It could have an impact on our abilityriolude certain RMBS,
residential mortgage loans and other financialtagagrchased and simultaneously financed fromdhgescounterparty as
qualifying real estate interests or real estatateel assets used to qualify under the exemption fegistration as an investment
company under the 1940 Act. It could also limit opportunities as we may need to limit our purchafeRMBS, residential
mortgage loans and other financial assets thaiamgltaneously financed with the same counterparty.

Risks Related to our Management and Relationship wh PRCM Advisers LLC and Pine River

We are dependent on PRCM Advisers LLC and Pine Rased may not find a suitable replacement if we BRCM
Advisers LLC terminates the management agreement.

We have no employees and no separate facilitisgedd, we are completely reliant for these ressuoePRCM Advisers
LLC, which has significant discretion as to the lerpentation and execution of our business straeayie risk management
practices. PRCM Advisers LLC may not have suffiti@ccess to Pine River's employees, systems aildiéscin order to
comply with its obligations under the managememeéagent. We are also subject to the risk that PR@Msers LLC will
terminate the management agreement and that rabkuieplacement will be found.

PRCM Advisers LLC is only contractually committexiderve Two Harbors until October 28, 2012. Theezathe
management agreement is renewable on an annugj pesiided, however, that PRCM Advisers LLC mayni@ate the
management agreement annually upon 180 days’ poiice. If the management agreement is terminatdda suitable
replacement is found to manage Two Harbors, we moape able to execute our business plan.

We will have no recourse to Pine River if it doestriulfill its obligations under the shared facilies and services
agreement.

Neither we nor PRCM Advisers LLC has any employaeseparate facilities. As a result, PRCM Adviddr€ has entered
into a shared facilities and services agreemett Riite River pursuant to which PRCM Advisers LLQl we provided with the
personnel, services and resources necessary foiPRIRisers LLC to perform its obligations and respibilities under the
management agreement in exchange for certain aspagable by PRCM Advisers LLC. Because we areupatrty to the
shared facilities and services agreement, we willave any recourse to Pine River if it does nilffits obligations under the
shared facilities and services agreement, or i€ River and PRCM Advisers choose to amend or tetithe shared facilities
and services agreement.

There are conflicts of interest in our relationshiwith Pine River and its affiliates, including PRCMadvisers LLC, which
could result in decisions that are not in the bésterests of our stockholders.

We are subject to conflicts of interest arising aubur relationship with Pine River and its affiiés, including PRCM
Advisers LLC. PRCM Advisers LLC is wholly-owned Byne River. Each of Brian Taylor (the Chairman wafoTHarbors’
Board of Directors), Thomas Siering (a Directord éime Chief Executive Officer and President of Tilarbors), Steven Kuhn
(the Co-Chief Investment Officer of Two Harborsgareff Stolt (the Chief Financial Officer of Two Hrs) is a partner and
owner of equity interests in Pine River. All of aather executive officers are employees or partoBRine River. In addition,
Mark Ein (the non-executive Vice Chairman) ownsraarest in CLA Founders LLC, which, in consideoatior services to be
provided to PRCM Advisers LLC under a sub-managdragreement, is entitled to receive a percentagleeofnanagement fee
earned by PRCM Advisers LLC, and an affiliate of isi an investor in a private fund for which PineeR serves as investment
manager. As a result, the management agreemenPRIGM Advisers LLC was negotiated between relatatigs, and its
terms, including fees payable to PRCM Advisers Lh@ay not be as favorable to us as if they had begotiated with an
unaffiliated third party. In addition, we may cheasot to enforce, or to enforce less vigorously,ragghts under the
management agreement because of our desire toaimaintr ongoing relationship with PRCM Advisers LLC
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The management agreement with PRCM Advisers LLG da¢ prevent PRCM Advisers LLC and its affiliafesm
engaging in additional management or investmenbuppities. Pine River and its affiliates, inclugiRRCM Advisers LLC,
engage in additional management or investment dppidies that have overlapping objectives witharsj thus face conflicts in
the allocation of resources between us, any othedd they manage and for their own accounts. Aatditly, the ability of
PRCM Advisers LLC and Pine River and their respectifficers and employees to engage in other bssiaetivities reduces
the time PRCM Advisers LLC spends managing Two HebOur executive officers and the employees cEMRAdvisers
LLC and Pine River do not spend all of their timarmaging Two Harbors. Our executive officers andaimployees of PRCM
Advisers LLC and Pine River allocate some, or aemialt portion, of their time to other businessed adativities. None of these
individuals is required to devote a specific amaafrtime to Two Harbors’ affairs. Accordingly, wempete with Pine River,
its existing funds, investment vehicles, other uess and possibly other entities in the futuretti@rtime and attention of these
officers.

We may enter into additional transactions with FRier or its affiliates. In particular, we may phase assets from Pine
River or its affiliates or make co-purchases aldagy®ine River or its affiliates. These transadiamy not be the result of
arm’s length negotiations and may involve conflim$ween our interests and the interests of PimerRind/or its affiliates.
There can be no assurance that any proceduraktponte will be sufficient to assure that these semtions will be made on
terms that will be at least as favorable to usasd that would have been obtained in an arm’shetngnsaction.

We will compete with current and future investmesttities affiliated with Pine River for access thea benefits that our
relationship with Pine River provides to Two Harbgrincluding access to investment opportunities.

There are conflicts of interest in allocating inveent opportunities among Two Harbors and othed$umvestment
vehicles and ventures managed by Pine River. Tiexsignificant overlap in the assets and investragategies of Two
Harbors and Pine River’s private funds, and manyhefsame trading and investment personnel pragdéces to both entities.
Further, Pine River and its affiliates may in theufe form additional funds or sponsor additiomaieistment vehicles and
ventures that have overlapping objectives with Hesbors and therefore may compete with us for itnaeat opportunities
and Pine River resources. It is the written pobyine River and PRCM Advisers LLC to allocategstment opportunities on
a fair and equitable basis among all entities foiclv they provide investment management servicesudder, we cannot assure
you that Pine River and PRCM Advisers LLC will alygaallocate every investment opportunity in a manhat is
advantageous for us; indeed, we may expect thdaithand equitable allocation of investment oppoities will at times result
in our receiving only a portion of, or none of, teém investment opportunities.

The loss of our access to Pine River’s investmermtfgssionals and principals may adversely affect @bility to achieve
our investment objectives.

We depend on PRCM Advisers LLC’s access, throughased facilities and services agreement, to thesiment
professionals and principals of Pine River anditifiermation and origination opportunities generabgdPine River’s
investment professionals and principals duringniienal course of their investment and portfolio agement activities. These
investment professionals and principals evaluatgptiate, structure, close and monitor our investsiand our financing
activities and we depend on their continued senvibe departure of a significant number of the gtneent professionals or
principals of Pine River could have a material adge=ffect on our ability to achieve our investmalnjectives. In addition, we
cannot assure you that PRCM Advisers LLC will remBivo Harbors’ manager or that we will continuéhttve access to Pine
River’s investment professionals or principalsterimformation and asset origination opportunities.

PRCM Advisers LLC, Pine River and our executiveio#irs have limited experience managing a public queny and as a
result we may be unable to manage our public refrgtrequirements.

Neither PRCM Advisers LLC nor Pine River has presiy managed the affairs of a publicly-listed compaAlthough
certain of our directors and officers have pubbimpany experience, others do not, and they havpregtously served together
in the management of any public company. Managewieaipublic
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company requires particular skills in areas suchaagrnance, accounting, financial reporting, inoegelations, systems,
controls and regulatory compliance. Our relativexjerience in these areas increases the risk toHasoors that management
will fail to comply with one or more requirementdated to Two Harbors’ public company status. Sadhre could have
materially adverse impacts on the price and liguidf Two Harbors’ securities.

PRCM Advisers LLC has limited experience in managia REIT, which may hinder its ability to achievaupinvestment
objectives or result in loss of our qualificatiorsaa REIT.

The REIT rules and regulations are highly technécal complex, and the failure to comply with thedes and regulations
could prevent us from qualifying as a REIT or cofdrte us to pay unexpected taxes and penaltieSMPRdvisers LLC has
limited experience in managing a portfolio of asaetder these complex rules and regulations. Befh@relosing of the merger
transaction PRCM Advisers LLC’s and Pine River'aafrs and employees had no prior experience opgratREIT and
operating a business in compliance with the nuneetechnical restrictions and limitations set farththe Code or the 1940 Act
applicable to REITs. The limited experience maydeinour ability to achieve our investment objecioe may result in loss of
our qualification as a REIT.

Our board of directors has approved very broad istraent guidelines for Two Harbors and will not re or approve
each investment decision made by PRCM Advisers LLC.

Our board of directors periodically reviews our@stment guidelines and our investment portfoliodnés not review or
approve specific investments. PRCM Advisers LLC dpast latitude within the broad parameters ofiouestment guidelines
in determining our investments and investmentagias, which could result in investment returng #na substantially below
expectations or that result in material losses.

The manner of determining the management fee may pmwvide sufficient incentive to PRCM Advisers LG maximize
risk-adjusted returns on our investment portfoliebause it is based on our stockholders’ equity aod on our financial
performance.

PRCM Advisers LLC is entitled to receive a manageifiee that is based on our stockholders’ equithatnd of each
quarter, regardless of our financial performanascakdingly, significant management fees will be gdalg to PRCM Advisers
LLC even if we have a net loss during a quartetCRRAdvisers LLC’s right to such compensation may pvide sufficient
incentive to PRCM Advisers LLC to devote its timmedaeffort to maximize risk-adjusted returns on imwestment portfolio,
which could, in turn, adversely affect our finaheisults. Further, the management fee structuresgPRCM Advisers LLC the
incentive to maximize stockholders’ equity by thsuance of new common stock or the retention sfieg equity, regardless
of the effect of these actions on existing stoc&bns. In other words, the management fee structuwvards PRCM Advisers
LLC primarily based on the size of Two Harbors, @oedon our returns to stockholders.

The termination of the management agreement maydiféicult and costly, which may adversely affect oinclination to
end our relationship with PRCM Advisers LLC.

Termination of the management agreement with PRG@Migers LLC without cause is difficult and cosflhe term
“cause” is limited to certain specifically describeércumstances. The management agreement praviggsn the absence of
cause, we may only terminate it after October 2822 upon the vote of the vote of at least twoethiof all of our independent
directors or by a vote of the holders of a majooityhe outstanding shares of our common stock.ithatdlly, upon a
termination by Two Harbors without cause (or updaraiination by PRCM Advisers LLC due to our maikhreach), the
management agreement requires us to pay PRCM Aduis€ a termination payment equal to three tinmessum of the
annual management fee received by PRCM Advisers di@g the 24-month period before such terminatoahculated as of
the end of the most recently completed fiscal guraiithis provision increases the effective costdmf terminating our
relationship with PRCM Advisers LLC, even if we ie®ke that PRCM Advisers LLC’s performance is ndisfactory.

23




TABLE OF CONTENTS

PRCM Advisers LLC’s and Pine River’s liability isnhited under the management agreement, and we hayeed to
indemnify PRCM Advisers LLC and its affiliates aratlvisers, including Pine River, against certain ligities. As a result, we
could experience poor performance or losses for @hPRCM Advisers LLC and Pine River would not bebie.

Pursuant to the management agreement, PRCM Ad\it€rsioes not assume any responsibility other thanender the
services called for thereunder and will not be oesjble for any action of our board of directorgéatlowing or declining to
follow its advice or recommendations. PRCM Advisel€ and its officers, stockholders, members, mansgpersonnel and
directors, any person controlling or controlledRRRCM Advisers LLC and any person providing sub-sdm services to
PRCM Advisers LLC will not be liable to Two Harboemy of our subsidiaries, any of our directoregckholders or partners or
any subsidiary’s stockholders, members or partfogracts or omissions performed in accordance witpursuant to the
management agreement, except by reason of actstating reckless disregard of PRCM Advisers LL@Iigties under the
management agreement which has a material adviéese @n Two Harbors, willful misconduct or grossghigence, as
determined by a final non-appealable order of atamfucompetent jurisdiction. We have agreed teimdify PRCM Advisers
LLC and its affiliates and sub-advisers, includifige River, with respect to all expenses, lossamagjes, liabilities, demands,
charges and claims arising from acts or omissidssich indemnified parties not constituting reckldsregard of PRCM
Advisers LLC’s duties under the management agreembich has a material adverse effect on Two Harbwillful
misconduct or gross negligence. As a result, iewjgerience poor performance or losses, PRCM Advise€ would not be
liable.

Risks Related To Our Assets
We may not realize gains or income from our assets.

We seek to generate current income and capitakaggtion for our stockholders. However, the asfetswe acquire may
not appreciate in value and, in fact, may declmealue, and the securities that we acquire magrapce defaults of interest
and/or principal payments. Accordingly, we may betable to realize gains or income from our asgetg.gains that we do
realize may not be sufficient to offset other Ies®at we experience. Any income that we realizg nwd be sufficient to offset
our expenses.

Changes in mortgage prepayment rates may adverafBct the value of our assets.

The value of our RMBS assets is affected by premmgmates on mortgage loans, and our investmeategly includes
making investments based on our expectations regppilepayment rates. Typically, the value of atgege-backed security
includes market assumptions regarding the speetiiah the underlying mortgages will be prepaid.tEathan expected
prepayments could adversely affect our profitagiiibcluding in the following ways:

« We may purchase RMBS that have a higher intea¢stthan the market interest rate at the timexithange for this
higher interest rate, we may pay a premium ovep#revalue to acquire the security. In accordanite @AAP, we ma
amortize this premium over the estimated term efRIMBS. If the RMBS is prepaid in whole or in parior to its
maturity date, however, we may be required to egpehe premium that was prepaid at the time optepayment.

e A substantial portion of our adjustable-rate RMB8y bear interest rates that are lower than thiyrindexed rates,
which are equivalent to the applicable index rdtis p margin. If an adjustable-rate RMBS is prepmidr to or soon
after the time of adjustment to a fully-indexeceratre will have held that RMBS while it was leastffiable and lost
the opportunity to receive interest at the fullgdeésed rate over the remainder of its expected life.

e If we are unable to acquire new RMBS similarite prepaid RMBS, our financial condition, result®peration and
cash flow would suffer.

Prepayment rates that are faster than anticipatgdimerease or decrease the value of a securipgratng on the type of
security and the price paid to acquire the secufitgpayment rates may be affected by a numberctdifs including the
availability of mortgage credit, the relative ecario vitality of the area in which the related prapes are located, the average
remaining life of the loans, the average size ef th
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remaining loans, the servicing of the mortgage $o@ossible changes in tax laws, other opportuniteinvestment,
homeowner mobility and other economic, social, geplgic, demographic and legal factors. Consequesiish prepayment
rates cannot be predicted with any certainty. Ikingpinvestment decisions, we depend on certainrapsons based upon
historical trends with respect to the relationdbéween interest rates and prepayments under nonar&kt conditions. If the
recent dislocations in the residential mortgagekeiaor other developments change the way that praeat trends have
historically responded to interest rate changesability to (1) assess the market value of taggseets, (2) implement hedging
strategies and (3) implement techniques to hedgeagment risks would be significantly affected, ethcould materially
adversely affect our financial position and resafteperations. If we make erroneous assumptiogarding prepayment rates,
we may experience significant investment losses.

A prolonged economic slowdown, a lengthy or seveeession or declining real estate values could arpur assets and
harm our operations.

The risks associated with our business are momersauring periods of economic slowdown or recessspecially if these
periods are accompanied by declining real estdteesaThe ability of a borrower to repay a loanused by a residential
property typically is dependent upon the incomassets of the borrower. During an economic slowdammemployment rises
and increasing numbers of borrowers have difficirtynaking payments on their debts, including ontgege loans. When a
recession is combined with declining real estatees as has been the case in the recessiondhiidsin 2008, defaults on
mortgages may increase dramatically.

Owners of Agency RMBS are protected from the risllefault on the underlying mortgages by guarantess Fannie
Mae, Freddie Mac or, in the case of the Ginnie Mlae U.S. Government. However, we also acquire Agency RMBS,
which are backed by residential real property lutontrast to Agency RMBS, the principal and ietgmpayments are not
guaranteed by GSEs or the U.S. Government. OuAgemcy RMBS investments are therefore particuladgsitive to
recessions and declining real estate values.

In the event of a default on a mortgage underlgmpn-Agency RMBS in our portfolio, we bear thé i loss as a result
of the potential deficiency between the value efd¢bllateral and the debt owed on the mortgage/edisas the costs and delays
of foreclosure or other remedies, the costs of taaimg and ultimately selling a property afterdolosure.

Any sustained period of increased payment delingesndefaults, foreclosures or losses on our ngerdy RMBS could
adversely affect our revenues, results of operatifinancial condition, business prospects andtald make distributions to
stockholders.

We acquire RMBS collateralized by subprime mortgdgans, which are subject to increased risks.

Among other assets, we acquire RMBS backed byteodibpools of subprime mortgage loans, which aoetgage loans
that have been originated using underwriting stedglthat are less conservative than those usedderwriting prime mortgage
loans (mortgage loans that generally conform to @&derwriting guidelines) and Alt-A mortgage logn®ortgage loans made
to borrowers whose qualifying mortgage charactegsto not conform to GSE underwriting guidelines generally allow
homeowners to qualify for a mortgage loan with tlior alternate forms of documentation). Thesetmtandards include
mortgage loans made to borrowers having imperfethpaired credit histories, mortgage loans whheeadmount of the loan at
origination is 80% or more of the value of the rgage property, mortgage loans made to borrowefsloit credit scores,
mortgage loans made to borrowers who have othédrtbabrepresents a large portion of their income mortgage loans made
to borrowers whose income is not required to belased or verified. Due to economic conditions)uding increased interest
rates and lower home prices, as well as aggrebsiding practices, subprime mortgage loans havedent periods
experienced increased rates of delinquency, fosaectn bankruptcy and loss, and they are likelyorttioue to experience
delinquency, foreclosure, bankruptcy and loss rétasmay be substantially higher, than those ezpeed by mortgage loans
underwritten in a more traditional manner. In adqgj these assets, we endeavor to factor the fiklsees on the underlying
mortgages into the purchase price of the assef lfinderestimate those losses, however, the peafarenof RMBS backed by
subprime mortgage loans that we acquire could beradly affected, which could adversely impactmsults of operations,
financial condition and business.
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Our portfolio of assets may be concentrated in terof credit risk.

Although as a general policy we seek to acquireteid a diverse portfolio of assets, we are notiiregl to observe specific
diversification criteria, except as may be settfantthe investment guidelines adopted by our bofdirectors. Therefore, our
asset portfolio may at times be concentrated itageproperty types that are subject to higher oisforeclosure, or secured by
properties concentrated in a limited number of geplgic locations. To the extent that our portfaéi@oncentrated in any one
region or type of security, downturns relating gaiig to such region or type of security may resultiefaults on a number of
our assets within a short time period, which mauce our net income and the value of our sharesaants and accordingly
reduce our ability to pay dividends to our stocklens. The portfolio may contain other concentratiofrisk, and we may fail
to identify, detect or hedge against those risksuliting in large or unexpected losses.

Our subordinated RMBS assets may be in the “firgs$” position, subjecting us to greater risk of k&s.

We invest in certain tranches of RMBS that are amititled to a portion of the principal and inténeayments made on
mortgage loans underlying the securities issuetthéyrust. In general, losses on a mortgage loglnded in such a trust will be
borne first by the equity holder of the issuingstruand then by the “first loss” subordinated sigumolder and then by the
“second loss” mezzanine holder. We may acquirerg@siat every level of such a trust, from theiggbolder to the most
senior tranche. In the event of default and theaagtion of any classes of securities junior to ¢hekich we acquire, our
securities will suffer losses as well. In additidnye overvalue the underlying mortgage portfobo,if the values subsequently
decline and, as a result, less collateral is ailto satisfy interest and principal payments du¢he related RMBS, the
securities which we acquire may effectively becdheefirst loss” position behind the more seniocwsgties, which may result
in significant losses. The prices of lower crediglity securities are generally less sensitiventerest rate changes than more
highly rated securities, but more sensitive to aslveconomic downturns or individual issuer develepts. A projection of an
economic downturn could cause a decline in theepfdower credit quality securities because thiétalof obligors of
mortgages underlying RMBS to make principal andriest payments may be impaired. In such eventijiregisredit support in
the securitization structure may be insufficienptotect us against loss of our principal on theesaurities.

Increases in interest rates could adversely affée value of our assets and cause our interest ergeeto increase, which
could result in reduced earnings or losses and nigely affect our profitability as well as the castvailable for distribution
to stockholders.

Our operating results will depend in large partlmndifference between the income from our assetsof credit losses, and
financing costs. We anticipate that, in many caesincome from our assets will respond more sidwlinterest rate
fluctuations than the cost of our borrowings. Capsmtly, changes in interest rates, particulartyristerm interest rates, may
significantly influence our financial results.

Interest rates are highly sensitive to many fa¢ioduding governmental monetary and tax policégsnestic and
international economic and political consideratiansl other factors beyond our control. Interest flakctuations present a
variety of risks, including the risk of a narrowinfthe difference between asset yields and borrgwates, flattening or
inversion of the yield curve and fluctuating prepent rates.

In a normal yield curve environment, fixed inconssets, including many RMBS, decline in value iéneist rates increase.
If long-term rates increased significantly, notyowlill the market value of these assets be expectel@cline, but the duration
and weighted-average life of the assets could asgas well because borrowers are less likelyapay mortgages. Further, an
increase in short-term interest rates would ineréhs rate of interest payable on any repurchaszagents required to finance
these securities.

We endeavor to hedge our exposure to changesarestirates, but there can be no assurances thla¢dges will be
successful, or that we will be able to enter inton@intain such hedges. As a result, interestflateuations can cause
significant losses, reductions in income, and ktiins on our cash available for distribution tmckholders.
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An increase in interest rates may cause a decrdasbe volume of certain of our target assets, whicould adversely
affect our ability to acquire target assets thattiséy our investment objectives and to generateame and pay dividends.

Rising interest rates generally reduce the demanchbrtgage loans due to the higher cost of bomgwA reduction in the
volume of mortgage loans originated may affectwbleme of target assets available to us, whichadadbversely affect our
ability to acquire assets that satisfy our investhodjectives. Rising interest rates may also causaarget assets that were
issued prior to an interest rate increase to pmyidlds that are below prevailing market interagts. If rising interest rates
cause us to be unable to acquire a sufficient velafrour target assets with a yield that is abauweborrowing cost, our ability
to satisfy our investment objectives and to gemeratome and pay dividends may be materially avésely affected.

The assets in our portfolio are recorded at fairlua, however there may be substantial uncertaing/ta the value of
certain assets.

Some of the assets in our portfolio are not puplicided. The fair value of securities and otheetsthat are not publicly
traded may not be readily determinable. We valesdlassets quarterly at fair value, as determmaddordance with ASC
820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosuraghich may include unobservable inputs. Becaushk saluations are
subjective, the fair value of certain of our asse#y fluctuate over short periods of time and atedninations of fair value
may differ materially from the values that would/badeen used if a ready market for these secuekissed. The value of our
common stock or warrants could be adversely afteifteur determinations regarding the fair valudrafse assets are
materially higher than the values that we ultimateklize upon their disposal.

Mortgage loan modification programs and future legiative action may adversely affect the value aidahe returns on,
the assets that we acquire.

The U.S. Government, through the Federal Resdmeer-éderal Housing Administration and the Fedesdd3it Insurance
Corporation, has commenced implementation of progrdesigned to provide homeowners with assistanagdiding
residential mortgage loan foreclosures. The prinpaogram that has been initiated is the Home Atibid Modification
Program, or HAMP, which seeks to provide reliehtomeowners whose mortgages are in foreclosure ughrdanuary 2010,
116,000 mortgages had been permanently modifiedruddAMP, 76,000 more were near completion, ovef@,000
homeowners had started trial modifications, andin€a300,000 offers for trial modifications haddmeextended to
homeowners. The programs may involve, among ottieg$, the modification of mortgage loans to rediheeprincipal amount
of the loans or the rate of interest payable orldhas, or to extend the payment terms of the loanaddition, some members
of Congress have indicated support for additioegidlative relief for homeowners, including an adrent of the bankruptcy
laws to permit the modification of mortgage loandankruptcy proceedings. Loan modifications areetig&ely to be used
when borrowers are less able to refinance orIself homes due to market conditions, and when therpial recovery from a
foreclosure is reduced due to lower property valuean modifications may lead to fewer foreclosusesl reduce the losses on
non-Agency RMBS arising from foreclosures, howdean modifications may also result in significa@tiuctions in cash flows
to the holders of the RMBS. We attempt to factathia likelihood and potential consequences of lmadification programs in
making our investment decisions, however we caasastire you that our analysis will be correct. Assallt, loan modification
programs, as well as future legislative or reguiattions that result in the modification of oatsfing mortgage loans may
adversely affect the value of, and the returnoon assets.

Risks Related to Two Harbors’ Organization and Stricture
Certain provisions of Maryland law could inhibit cdnges in control.

Certain provisions of the Maryland General Corporataw, or the MGCL, may have the effect of dategra third party
from making a proposal to acquire us or of impedirghange in control under circumstances that wibercould provide the
holders of shares of our common stock with the ojpity to realize a premium over the then-prewgilimarket price of such
shares.

We are subject to the “business combination” pionis of the MGCL that, subject to limitations, pitsihcertain business
combinations (including a merger, consolidatiorgrshexchange, or, in circumstances
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specified in the statute, an asset transfer oarsseior reclassification of equity securities) etw Two Harbors and an
“interested stockholder” (defined generally as payson who beneficially owns 10% or more of ountbatstanding voting
stock or an affiliate or associate of Two Harbolsowat any time within the two-year period immeehatprior to the date in
question, was the beneficial owner of 10% or mdrine voting power of our then outstanding stoakao affiliate thereof for
five years after the most recent date on whictstbhekholder becomes an interested stockholderr &ftefive-year prohibition,
any business combination between Two Harbors andtarested stockholder generally must be recomeibgt our board of
directors and approved by the affirmative votetdéast (1) 80% of the votes entitled to be cashdigers of outstanding shares
of our voting stock; and (2) two-thirds of the v@&ntitled to be cast by holders of voting stockhefcorporation other than
shares held by the interested stockholder with wbhomith whose affiliate the business combinati®itoi be effected or held by
an affiliate or associate of the interested stottkdo These super-majority vote requirements daapply if our common
stockholders receive a minimum price, as definedtuMaryland law, for their shares in the form a$k or other consideration
in the same form as previously paid by the intexstockholder for its shares. These provisiorth®@MGCL do not apply to
business combinations that are approved or exenigtedboard of directors prior to the time thatititerested stockholder
becomes an interested stockholder. Pursuant tstdiigte, our board of directors has by resoluti@ngted business
combinations (1) between Two Harbors and any persavided that such business combination is éipgiroved by our board
of directors (including a majority of Two Harbouditectors who are not affiliates or associatesushgperson) and (2) between
Two Harbors and Pine River or its affiliates. Cansntly, the five-year prohibition and the superarity vote requirements
will not apply to business combinations between Hesbors and any person. As a result, any persctuding Pine River,
may be able to enter into business combinations Wito Harbors that may not be in the best interestir stockholders,
without compliance with the super-majority vote uggments and the other provisions of the statute.

The “control share” provisions of the MGCL provitfet “control shares” of a Maryland corporationf{ded as voting
shares of stock which, if aggregated with all otsfeares of stock owned by the acquirer or in rasplaehich the acquirer is
able to exercise or direct the exercise of voting/gr (except solely by virtue of a revocable proxyyuld entitle the acquirer to
exercise one of three increasing ranges of votowgep in electing directors) acquired in a “consbhre acquisition” (defined as
the direct or indirect acquisition of ownershipcontrol of “control shares”) have no voting rigletecept to the extent approved
by Two Harbors’ stockholders by the affirmative ol at least two-thirds of all the votes entittedbe cast on the matter,
excluding votes entitled to be cast by the acquif@ontrol shares, Two Harbors’ officers and emngpks who are also our
directors. Our bylaws contain a provision exempfitogn the control share acquisition statute any ahecquisitions by any
person of shares of our stock. There can be noasseithat this provision will not be amended aniglated at any time in the
future.

The “unsolicited takeover” provisions of the MGClTit(e 3, Subtitle 8 of the MGCL) permit our boarfidirectors, without
stockholder approval and regardless of what isecully provided in our charter or bylaws, to impletntakeover defenses,
some of which (for example, a classified board)d@enot currently have. These provisions may hageeffect of inhibiting a
third party from making an acquisition proposal Tavo Harbors or of delaying, deferring or prevegtanchange in control of
Two Harbors under circumstances that otherwisedcprdvide the holders of shares of our common stdgthk the opportunity
to realize a premium over the then current markieepOur charter contains a provision whereby Hesbors has elected to be
subject to the provisions of Title 3, Subtitle 8tlké MGCL relating to the filling of vacancies da board of directors.

Our authorized but unissued shares of common aneferred stock and the ownership limitations contaihin our
charter may prevent a change in control.

Our charter authorizes Two Harbors to issue adtitiauthorized but unissued shares of common derpeel stock. In
addition, our board of directors may, with the awai of a majority of the entire board and withetgckholder approval,
amend our charter to increase or decrease thegadgreumber of shares of our stock or the numbehaffes of stock of any
class or series that Two Harbors has the authtriigsue and classify or reclassify any unissue@deshof common or preferred
stock and set the terms of the classified or rsiflad shares. As a result, our board may estahliséries of shares of common
or preferred
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stock that could delay or prevent a transactioa cnange in control that might involve a premiunecgfor shares of our
common stock or otherwise be in the best interafsssockholders.

In addition, our charter contains restrictions ting the ownership and transfer of shares of oanroon stock and other
outstanding shares of capital stock. The relevactians of our charter provide that, subject taaierexceptions, ownership of
shares of our common stock by any person is lintie218% by value or by number of shares, whichéverore restrictive, of
our outstanding shares of common stock (the conshanre ownership limit), and no more than 9.8% Hyevar number of
shares, whichever is more restrictive, of our @utding capital stock (the aggregate share ownelishif). The common share
ownership limit and the aggregate share ownerstiip &re collectively referred to herein as the faxship limits.” These
charter provisions will restrict the ability of mens to purchase shares in excess of the relewargrship limits.

Our charter contains provisions that make removdlaur directors difficult, which could make it diftult for
stockholders to effect changes in management.

Our charter provides that, subject to the rightarof series of preferred stock, a director mayelneoved only by the
affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of all thietes entitled to be cast generally in the electibdirectors. Our charter and
bylaws provide that vacancies generally may bedilbnly by a majority of the remaining directorifice, even if less than a
guorum. These requirements make it more diffiauithange management by removing and replacingtdiseand may prevent
a change in control that is in the best intereSstarkholders.

Our rights and stockholders’ rights to take actiaygainst directors and officers are limited, whicloald limit recourse in
the event of actions not in the best interests twickholders.

As permitted by Maryland law, our charter elimirgatie liability of its directors and officers to dwWarbors and its
stockholders for money damages, except for lighi#sulting from:

« actual receipt of an improper benefit or prdfinhoney, property or services; or

« afinal judgment based upon a finding of actind deliberate dishonesty by the director or offitet was material to
the cause of action adjudicated.

In addition, pursuant to our charter we have agoeedractually to indemnify our present and formigectors and officers
for actions taken by them in those capacities ¢ontlaximum extent permitted by Maryland law. Furtleer bylaws require us
to indemnify each present or former director oragff, to the maximum extent permitted by Marylaaa ,|who is made, or
threatened to be made, a party to any proceedicauise of his or her service to Two Harbors. As patiiese indemnification
obligations, we may be obligated to fund the dederwsts incurred by our directors and officers.

Tax Risks

Ouir failure to qualify as a REIT would subject u®tU.S. federal income tax and potentially increasstdte and local
taxes, which would reduce the amount of cash avhl&for distribution to its stockholders.

We have been organized and intend to operate iaraer that will enable us to qualify as a REITW{o8. federal income
tax purposes commencing with our taxable year gnBiecember 31, 2009. We have not requested andtdotand to request
a ruling from the Internal Revenue Service (theSTRthat we qualify as a REIT. The U.S. federalbime tax laws governing
REITs are complex, and judicial and administratiterpretations of the U.S. federal income tax lawserning REIT
qualification are limited. To qualify as a REIT, waust meet, on an ongoing basis, various testsaggpthe nature of our
assets and income, the ownership of our outstaratiages, and the amount of our distributions. Megeonew legislation,
court decisions or administrative guidance, in ezade possibly with retroactive effect, may makaadte difficult or
impossible for us to qualify as a REIT. Thus, while intend to operate so that we will qualify @B T, given the highly
complex nature of the rules governing REITs, thgaimg importance of factual determinations, andgbssibility of future
changes in our circumstances, no assurance canéethat we will so qualify for any particular yedhese considerations
also might restrict the types of assets that weacapire in the future.
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If we fail to qualify as a REIT in any taxable yeand do not qualify for certain statutory reliebyisions, we would be
required to pay U.S. federal income tax on our liéxancome, and distributions to our stockholdeasild not be deductible by
us in determining our taxable income. In such & ca® might need to borrow money or sell assetsder to pay taxes. Our
payment of income tax would decrease the amouimicoime available for distribution to stockholddfarthermore, if we fail to
maintain our qualification as a REIT, we no long@uld be required to distribute substantially dlbar net taxable income to
stockholders. In addition, unless we were eligfblecertain statutory relief provisions, we coulat ne-elect to qualify as a
REIT until the fifth calendar year following theamin which we failed to qualify.

Complying with REIT requirements may cause us tadgo otherwise attractive investment opportunit@sfinancing or
hedging strategies.

To qualify as a REIT for U.S. federal income taxgmses, we must continually satisfy various tesggrding the sources of
our income, the nature and diversification of csseds, the amounts we distribute to stockholdetdtza ownership of our
stock. To meet these tests, we may be requireatégd investments we might otherwise make. We neaeuired to make
distributions to stockholders at disadvantageausdior when we do not have funds readily availdi€istribution, and may
be unable to pursue investments that would be wikeradvantageous to us in order to satisfy thecgoof income or asset
diversification requirements for qualifying as alREThus, compliance with the REIT requirements rhayder our investment
performance.

Complying with REIT requirements may force us tgliidate otherwise profitable assets.

To qualify as a REIT, we must ensure that at titeadreach calendar quarter, at least 75% of theevaf our assets consists
of cash, cash items, government securities andjciatsid real estate assets, including certain ngetigsans and shares in other
REITs. Subject to certain exceptions, our ownersffiigecurities, other than government securitiessaturities that constitute
real estate assets, generally cannot include rhare10% of the outstanding voting securities of amg issuer or more than
10% of the total value of the outstanding seclgitifany one issuer. In addition, in general, neariban 5% of the value of our
assets, other than government securities and siesuhiat constitute real estate assets, can ¢aigslse securities of any one
issuer, and no more than 25% of the value of dat s2curities can be represented by securitien®for more TRS’s. If we fail
to comply with these requirements at the end ofeaigndar quarter after the first calendar qudatewhich we qualify as a
REIT, we must generally correct such failure witBhdays after the end of the calendar quartevaaldosing our REIT
qualification. As a result, we may be requirediquidate otherwise profitable assets prematurehjictvcould reduce our return
on assets, which could adversely affect returrsddokholders.

Potential characterization of distributions or gaion sale may be treated as unrelated business tixaitome to tax
exempt investors.

If (i) all or a portion of our assets are subjecthe rules relating to taxable mortgage poolsw@ are a “pension held
REIT,” (iii) a tax exempt stockholder has incur@ebt to purchase or hold our common stock, onf@)purchase residual
REMIC interests that generate “excess inclusionrime,” then a portion of the distributions to andthie case of a stockholder
described in clause (iii), gains realized on tHe shcommon stock by such tax exempt stockholday be subject to U.S.
federal income tax as unrelated business taxaberie under the Code.

Complying with REIT requirements may limit our alify to hedge effectively.

The REIT provisions of the Code may limit our alyilio hedge our assets and operations. Under firesesions, on an
annual basis we must derive 75% of our gross indoome real estate assets, and 95% of our inconme feal estate assets and
certain other qualifying income sources, in ordemiintain our REIT status. Any income that we gateefrom transactions
intended to hedge our interest rate and curreskg will generally be excluded from gross incomepierposes of the 75% and
95% gross income tests if the instrument hedgesdst rate risk or foreign currency exposure dailliges used to carry or
acquire real estate or income or gain that wouldu=ifying income under the 75% or 95% gross inedasts, and such
instrument is properly identified under applicableasury regulations. In addition, any income frotimer hedges would
generally constitute non-qualifying income for posps of both the 75% and 95% gross income
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tests. As a result of these rules, we may havienit dur use of hedging techniques that might athise be advantageous, which
could result in greater risks associated with ggerate or other changes than we would othenmisgr i

The failure of a loan subject to a repurchase agneent to qualify as a real estate asset would adelraffect our ability
to qualify as a REIT.

We may enter into repurchase agreements under wiaahill nominally sell certain of our loan asstdsa counterparty and
simultaneously enter into an agreement to repuecttassold assets. We believe that we will be ébfdr U.S. federal income
tax purposes as the owner of the loan assetsrén#tt@subject of any such agreement notwithstanitiiat such agreements
may transfer record ownership of the assets tedhaterparty during the term of the agreemens ftassible, however, that the
IRS could assert that we did not own the loan aghating the term of the repurchase agreementhiohacase we could fail to
qualify as a REIT.

REIT distribution requirements could adversely affeour ability to execute our business plan and magjuire us to
incur debt, sell assets or take other actions tokaauch distributions.

In order to qualify as a REIT, we must distributestockholders, each calendar year, at least 908aroREIT taxable
income (including certain items of hon-cash incondetermined without regard to the deduction feid#nds paid and
excluding net capital gain. To the extent that ats$y the 90% distribution requirement, but distite less than 100% of our
taxable income, we will be subject to U.S. fedemporate income tax on our undistributed incomeddition, we will incur a
4% nondeductible excise tax on the amount, if &gywhich our distributions in any calendar yearlass than a minimum
amount specified under U.S. federal income tax law.

We intend to distribute our net income to stockkaddn a manner intended to satisfy the 90% digtiob requirement and
to avoid both corporate income tax and the 4% nduackible excise tax. Our taxable income may sullistinexceed our net
income as determined by GAAP or differences innigribetween the recognition of taxable income ardattual receipt of
cash may occur in which case we may have taxabtame in excess of cash flow from our operatingvitess. In such event,
we may generate less cash flow than taxable indoragarticular year and find it difficult or impsible to meet the REIT
distribution requirements in certain circumstan¢desuch circumstances, in order to satisfy th&idistion requirement and to
avoid U.S. federal corporate income tax and thend¥deductible excise tax in that year, we may heired to: (i) sell assets
in adverse market conditions, (i) borrow on unfaalde terms, (iii) distribute amounts that woulderwise be invested in
future acquisitions, capital expenditures or repaynof debt or (iv) make a taxable distributioroaf shares as part of a
distribution in which stockholders may elect toa®e shares or (subject to a limit measured as@eptage of the total
distribution) cash, in order to comply with the RHistribution requirements. Thus, compliance wtiite REIT distribution
requirements may require us to take actions thgtmoaotherwise be advisable given existing macdeetditions and hinder our
ability to grow, which could adversely affect thelwe of our common stock or warrants.

Even if we qualify as a REIT, we may be requiredday certain taxes.

Even if we qualify for taxation as a REIT, we maydubject to certain U.S. federal, state and lzoas on our income and
assets, including taxes on any undistributed incdaeneon income from some activities conducted sesalt of a foreclosure,
and state or local income, franchise, propertyteausfer taxes, including mortgage recording takeaddition, we will hold
some of our assets through taxable subsidiary catipas, including Capitol and other TRS’s. Capéot any other TRS'’s or
other taxable corporations in which we own an edewill be subject to U.S. federal, state andlloogporate taxes. Payment of
these taxes generally would reduce our cash flatla@ amount available to distribute to stockhadder

Our ability to invest in and dispose of “to be anmeced” securities could be limited by our REIT qufitation, and we
could fail to qualify as a REIT as a result of thesnvestments.

We may purchase Agency RMBS through TBAs, or dalidirtransactions. In certain instances, rathanttake delivery of
the Agency RMBS subject to a TBA, we may disposthefTBA through a dollar roll
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transaction in which we agree to purchase siméausties in the future at a predetermined pricetberwise, which may result
in the recognition of income or gains. We will agnbfor dollar roll transactions as purchases atelss The law is unclear
regarding whether TBAs will be qualifying assetstfe 75% asset test and whether income and gaimsdispositions of
TBAs will be qualifying income for the 75% grossome test.

Unless we are advised by counsel that TBAs shoeiltldated as qualifying assets for purposes of 86 asset test, we will
limit our investment in TBAs and any other non-dfyathg assets to no more than 25% of our total @satthe end of any
calendar quarter. Furthermore, until we are advigedounsel that income and gains from the dispwsif TBAs should be
treated as qualifying income for purposes of th# gsoss income test, we will limit our gains fromspbsitions of TBAs and
any other non-qualifying income to no more than 25%ur total gross income for each calendar y&acordingly, our ability
to purchase Agency RMBS through TBAs and to disppdSEBAS, through dollar roll transactions or otivése, could be
limited.

Moreover, even if we are advised by counsel thad3Bhould be treated as qualifying assets or tiate and gains from
dispositions of TBAs should be treated as qualdyimcome, it is possible that the IRS could sudtdiystake the position that
such assets are not qualifying assets and suclma@not qualifying income. In that event, we cbioé subject to a penalty tax
or could fail to qualify as a REIT if (i) the valwé our TBAS, together with our non-qualifying atsstor the 75% asset test,
exceeded 25% of our gross assets at the end afaderydar quarter, or (ii) our income and gains ftomdisposition of TBAs,
together with our non-qualifying income for the 786ss income test, exceeded 25% of our gross iadonmany taxable year.

Although our use of TRS’s may be able to partiafhitigate the impact of meeting the requirements fqualification as a
REIT, our ownership of and relationship with our T®s is limited and a failure to comply with the liils would jeopardize
our REIT qualification and may result in the applation of a 100% excise tax.

A REIT may own up to 100% of the stock of one oren®RS’s. Other than certain activities relatindgadging and
healthcare facilities, a TRS generally may engaginy business and may hold assets and earn intateould not be
qualifying assets or income if held or earned diyday a REIT. Overall, no more than 25% of theueabf a REIT’s assets may
consist of stock or securities of one or more TRB'sddition, the TRS rules limit the deductibyilaf interest paid or accrued
by a TRS to its parent REIT to assure that the |BRSibject to an appropriate level of corporatatiax. The rules also impose
a 100% excise tax on certain transactions betwdd@Sand its parent REIT that are not conductedroarm’s-length basis.

Capitol and other TRS’s that we may form will paySUfederal, state and local income tax on theahée income, and their
after-tax net income will be available for distrilan to Two Harbors but are not required to beritisted to Two Harbors. We
anticipate that the aggregate value of the seeariif our TRS’s will be less than 25% of the vadfieur total assets (including
our TRS securities). Furthermore, we intend to noorihe value of our respective investments inTRE’s for the purpose of
ensuring compliance with TRS ownership limitatiomsaddition, we will review all of our transact®mwith TRS’s to ensure
that they are entered into on arm’s-length ternsvtmd incurring the 100% excise tax described ab@here can be no
assurance, however, that we will be able to comyitly the 25% limitation or to avoid application thie 100% excise tax
discussed above.

We may be required to report taxable income witlspect to certain of our investments in excess @& #tonomic income
we ultimately realize from them.

We may acquire interests in debt instruments irstteondary market for less than their face amdure.discount at which
such interests in debt instruments are acquirednefégct doubts about their ultimate collectabilither than current market
interest rates. The amount of such discount willentheless generally be treated as “market dis€dant).S. federal income
tax purposes. Market discount on a debt instruraeatues based generally on the assumption thiattate payments on the
debt instrument will be made. Accrued market disitasi reported as income when, and to the extextf #my payment of
principal of the debt instrument is made. In theecaf residential mortgage loans, principal paysan¢ ordinarily made
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monthly, and consequently, accrued market discowayt have to be included in income each month teifiebt instrument
were assured of ultimately being collected in fiillve collect less on a debt instrument than itechase price plus the market
discount we had previously reported as income, &g not be able to benefit from any offsetting Idesgluction in a subsequent
taxable year.

Similarly, some of the mortgage-backed securitias tve purchase will likely have been issued witginal issue discount,
or OID. We will be required to report such OID bagm a constant yield method and income will actrased on the
assumption that all future projected payments dusuch mortgage-backed securities will be madsudh mortgage-backed
securities turn out not to be fully collectible, afifisetting loss deduction will become availabldydn the later year in which
uncollectability is provable.

Finally, in the event that any debt instrumentsnortgage-backed securities acquired by us aregigdint as to mandatory
principal and interest payments, or in the evembr@ower with respect to a particular debt instratrecquired by us encounters
financial difficulty rendering it unable to pay td interest as due, we may nonetheless be redoitahtinue to recognize the
unpaid interest as taxable income as it accruespitdedoubt as to its ultimate collectability. Sanly, we may be required to
accrue interest income with respect to subordimaiggage-backed securities at their stated rat@rdégss of whether
corresponding cash payments are received or angabdfly collectible. In each case, while we wouldyeneral ultimately have
an offsetting loss deduction available to us whahsnterest was determined to be uncollectible;utility of that deduction
would depend on our having taxable income in thegrlyear or thereafter.

Dividends payable by REITs generally do not quality the reduced tax rates on dividend income froegular
corporations, which could adversely affect the valof our shares or warrants.

Legislation enacted in 2003 generally reduces taeimum U.S. federal income tax rate for dividendggble to domestic
stockholders that are individuals, trusts and estad 15% through 2010. Dividends payable by REibsyever, are generally
not eligible for the reduced rates. Although theueed U.S. federal income tax rate applicable v@dnd income from regular
corporate dividends does not adversely affectakation of REITs or dividends paid by REITs, therenfavorable rates
applicable to regular corporate dividends couldsedunvestors who are individuals, trusts and estat@erceive investments in
REITs to be relatively less attractive than investis in the stocks of non-REIT corporations that gigidends, which could
adversely affect the value of the shares of RER®uUding Two Harbors’ shares. Also, to the extidsait tax rates change after
2010, the attractiveness of an investment in oareshmay decrease, which could adversely affeatdhue of our securities.

We may be subject to adverse legislative or requiatax changes that could reduce the market priafeour shares or
warrants.

At any time, the U.S. federal income tax laws gulations governing REITs or the administrativeeiptetations of those
laws or regulations may be changed, possibly vétioactive effect. We cannot predict if or when aew U.S. federal income
tax law, regulation or administrative interpretatior any amendment to any existing U.S. fedeanme tax law, regulation or
administrative interpretation, will be adopted, prdgated or become effective or whether any suesh fagulation or
interpretation may take effect retroactively. Wel aur stockholders or warrantholders could be axblgraffected by any such
change in, or any new, U.S. federal income tax tagulation or administrative interpretation.

Risks Related to Our Securities

Future issuances and sales of shares of our comnstock may depress the market price of our commarcktor
warrants or have adverse consequences for our shadéers or warrantholders.

Our charter provides that we may issue up to 4800l shares of common stock. As of the date effilimg, 13,379,209
shares of common stock were issued and outstamaic@3,249,000 warrants to purchase up to 33,28%0Bares of common
stock were issued and outstanding. Our 2009 e@qagntive plan provides for grants of restrictedhoaon stock and other
equity-based awards, subject to a ceiling of 20D giares available for issuance under the placommection with the closing
of the merger with Capitol, we granted 22,159 shafeestricted common stock to our independemtotiirs pursuant to the
2009 equity incentive plan.
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We cannot predict the effect, if any, of futurauiasces or sales of our common stock on the marlat pf our common
stock or warrants. Sales of substantial amount®wfmon stock or the perception that such saleslamdur may adversely
affect the prevailing market price for our commawc& or warrants.

Also, we may issue additional shares in subsequdritc offerings or private placements to acquieairassets or for other
purposes. We are not required to offer any suctesha existing stockholders on a preemptive basisrefore, it may not be
possible for existing stockholders to participatsuch future share issuances, which may dilutexising stockholders’
interests.

We have not established a minimum distribution pagmt level and we cannot assure you of our abilibyday
distributions in the future.

We intend to pay quarterly distributions and to mdistributions to our stockholders in an amouchsihat we distribute
all or substantially all of our REIT taxable incotimeeach year, subject to certain adjustments. e mot established a
minimum distribution payment level and our abilitypay distributions may be adversely affected Iyiaber of factors,
including the risk factors described herein. Aitdbutions will be made, subject to Maryland lawthe discretion of our board
of directors and will depend on our earnings, auericial condition, any debt covenants, maintenarfi@r REIT qualification
and other factors as our board of directors mayndetevant from time to time. We cannot assure thaiti we will achieve
results that will allow us to make a specified levfecash distributions.

Our warrants may be exercised in the future, whialould increase the number of shares eligible fortdiwe resale in the
public market.

Outstanding redeemable warrants to purchase aegafgrof 26,249,000 shares of our common stockgiss connection
with the conversion, pursuant to the merger, of@hgitol warrants issued in Capitol’s initial pubtiffering) and warrants to
purchase an aggregate of 7,000,000 shares of corstock (issued in connection with the conversiamspant to the merger,
of the warrants sold to Capitol’s officers, direstand stockholders prior to Capitol’s initial pighdffering simultaneously with
the consummation of such initial public offeringg &urrently exercisable at an exercise price @1 per share. The warrant
exercise price may be lowered under certain cirtantes, including, among others, in our sole digmet any time prior to
the expiration date of the warrants for a periodaifless than ten business days; provided, howtharany such reduction
shall be identical in percentage terms among ahefwarrants. These warrants likely will be exsediif the market price of the
shares of our common stock equals or exceeds tirantaxercise price. Therefore, as long as wasnarhain outstanding,
there will be a drag on any increase in the prioeuo common stock in excess of the warrant exerpigce. To the extent such
warrants are exercised, additional shares of ommeoon stock will be issued, which would dilute thenership of existing
stockholders. Further, if these warrants are egedcat any time in the future at a price lower ttenbook value per share of
our common stock, existing stockholders could sudtéstantial dilution of their investment, whidlution could increase in
the event the warrant exercise price is loweredliti@hally, if we were to lower the exercise prioethe near future, the
likelihood of this dilution could be accelerated.

Our stock or warrant price could fluctuate and calicause you to lose a significant part of your irstment.

The market price of our securities may be influehlog many factors, some of which are beyond outrogrincluding those
described above and the following:

e changes in financial estimates by analysts;

« fluctuations in our quarterly financial resultstbe quarterly financial results of companies pered to be similar to us;
e general economic conditions;

« changes in market valuations of similar compgnies

e regulatory developments in the United States; and

* additions or departures of key personnel at Riwer.
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Resulting fluctuations in our stock or warrant praould cause you to lose a significant part ofryouestment.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None

Iltem 2. Properties

We do not own any real property. Our executive athahinistrative office is located at 601 CarlsonkRay, Suite 330,
Minnetonka, Minnesota 55305, telephone (612) 2383338Ve also utilize an office at 590 Madison AvenBeite 3703, New
York, NY 10021, which primarily supports our invesint operations. We share these office spacesPiith River in
accordance with the shared facilities and senaggsement between PRCM Advisers LLC and Pine River.

Iltem 3. Legal Proceedings

As of the date of this filing, we are not partyatioy litigation or legal proceedings, or to the besbur knowledge, any
threatened litigation or legal proceedings, whinlgur opinion, individually or in the aggregateowid have a material adverse
effect on our results of operations or financiatdition.

Item 4. Reserved
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PART Il
Item 5.Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stokholder Matters, and Issuer Purchases of Equity Serities
Market Information

Prior to the consummation of the merger with CdpmitoOctober 28, 2009, there had been no publdingamarket for our
common stock or warrants. Following the completiéthe merger, our common stock and warrants haea kisted on the
NYSE Amex under the symbols “TWO” and “TWO.WS,” pestively. As of December 31, 2009, and as of tite df this
filing, 13,379,209 shares of common stock and 3B @0 warrants were issued and outstanding.

The following table shows the high and low saldésgqw per the New York Exchange composite tape doicommon stock
and warrants on the NYSE Amex during the calendartgr ended December 31, 2009:

Quarter Ended Common Stock Warrants
High Low High Low
December 31, 2009 $101C $ 87C $ 078 $ 0.4

Holders

As of February 26, 2010, we had 1 registered haderapproximately 594 beneficial owners of our own stock, and we
had 14 registered holders and approximately 32@fizal owners of our warrants. Such informatiorsvedotained through our
registrar and transfer agent, based on the resfudtdroker search.

Dividends

On December 21, 2009, we declared a quarterly eindcbf $0.26 per share of common stock for thetfoguarter of 2009,
our first dividend since becoming an operating campon October 28, 2009.

All dividend distributions are made with the autlzation of the board of directors at its discretard will depend on such
items as our REIT taxable earnings, financial ctionlj maintenance of REIT status, and other fadtwaisthe board of directors
may deem relevant from time to time. The holderswwfcommon stock share proportionally on a pereshasis in all declared
dividends on common stock. We intend to pay quigrthvidends and intend to distribute to our stoaklers as dividends at
least 90% of our REIT taxable income.

We have not established a minimum payout levebforcommon stock. See Item 1A, “Risk Factors”, #ath 7,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahditions and Results of Operations”, of this Aalneport on Form 10-
K, for information regarding the sources of fundedi for dividends and for a discussion of factdrsny, which may adversely
affect our ability to pay dividends at the sameelem 2010 and thereafter.

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

We have adopted an equity incentive plan in 200 dvide incentive compensation to attract andmegaalified directors,
officers, advisors, consultants and other persgmmelliding PRCM Advisers LLC and affiliates andg@nnel of PRCM
Advisers LLC and its affiliates, and any joint verg affiliates of ours. The 2009 equity incentivarpis administered by the
compensation committee of our board of directolse Z009 equity incentive plan permits the granthgestricted shares of
common stock, phantom shares, dividend equivaights and other equity-based awards. For a detd#sdription of the 2009
equity incentive plan, see Note 11 Equity Incentive Plaof the consolidated financial statements includeden Item 8 of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

On October 28, 2009, we granted 22,159 sharesstifated common stock to our independent diregarsuant to our
2009 equity incentive plan. The estimated fair eadfithese awards was $9.59 per share, based clo#ieg price of Capitol's
common stock on the NYSE Amex on such date. Thetgnaill vest in three annual installments commegan the date of the
grant, as long as such director is serving as aedtmamber on the vesting date. Such grants wemagxiom the registration
requirements of the Securities Act pursuant toiSeet(2) thereof.
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The following table presents certain informatiomatour equity compensation plans as of Decembg2®19:

Number of securities
remaining available for
future issuance under

Number of securities equity compensation
to be issued upon Weighted-average plans (excluding
exercise of exercise price of securities reflected in
outstanding equity outstanding equity the first column of this
Plan Category based share awards based share awards table)
Equity compensation plans approve
by stockholders 22,15¢ % 9.5¢ 177,84:
Equity compensation plans not
approved by stockholders — — —
Total 22,15¢  $ 9.5¢ 177,84:

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use Bfoceeds

None.
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Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Aliated Purchasers

The following table includes information about reghases of the common stock of Capitol in connaatiih the closing of
the merger agreement with Capitol:

Maximum
Total number number (or
of shares approximate
purchased as dollar value) of
part of shares that may
Total publicly yet be
number of Average announced purchased
shares price paid plans or under the plans
Period purchased per share programs or programs
Month #1
(Fiscal month beginning October 1, 20C
and ending October 31, 2009) 5,994,66. $ 9.87 — —
Month #2

(Fiscal month beginning November 1,
2009 and ending November 30, 2009) — — — —

Month #3
(Fiscal month beginning December 1,
2009 and ending December 31, 2009) — — — —

In addition to the foregoing, on October 28, 2G83%;0nnection with the merger transaction with @alp{a) 6,875,130
shares of Capitol common stock were converted $b parsuant to the merger agreement for a total gagment of
$67,857,533, and (b) 6,562,257 shares of Capitoincon stock owned by Capitol’s founders were cardeMWe did not have
any publicly announced repurchase program for shafreur common stock during the periods noteddidahot repurchase any
shares of our common stock.

The following graph compares the shareholder’s dative total return, assuming $100 invested at Bet@8, 2009 (the
date of our merger), with all reinvestment of damds, as if such amounts had been invested ioufitommon stock; (ii) the
stocks included in the Standard and Poor’s 500kStaiex (“S&P 500”); (iii) the stocks included ihg NAREIT Mortgage
REIT Index; and an index of selected issuers inTawo Harbors REIT Peer group, composed of Amer{capital Agency
Corp., Annaly Capital Management, Inc., Annworthridage Asset Corporation, Capstead Mortgage Catipara&Chimera
Investment Corporation, Cypress Sharpridge Investspénc., Hatteras Financial Corp., Invesco Maggy&apital Inc., MFA
Mortgage Investments, Inc., PennyMac Mortgage lmaeat Trust, and Redwood Trust, Inc.

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
Among Two Harbors Investment Corp., S&P 500, NAREITMortgage
REIT Index and Two Harbors REIT Peer Group
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

Our selected financial data set forth below shdadead in conjunction with our consolidated firiahstatements and the
accompanying notes, included under Item 8 of thiaual Report on Form 10-K. Certain amounts for pperiods have been
reclassified to conform to the 2009 presentation.

At or for the

Period from
June 26, 2007
At or for the (inception)
Years Ended December 31, Detcherg"lub%hr -
2009™ 2008 2007W
Operating Data:
Interest income $ 2,866,05 $ 4,442,22. $ 1,474,22
Interest expense 131,51( — —
Net interest income 2,734,54. 4,442,22. 1,474,22
Other income:
Gain on sale of investment securities, net 335,96t — —
Unrealized gain on interest rate swap agreements 363,66¢ — —
Total other income 699,63. — —
Expenses:
Management fees 325,65 — —
Operating expenses:
Costs associated with business combination 9,572,21 — —
Costs associated with Capitol as a developmeng:
company 1,346,74 1,059,60! 140,99¢
Other operating expenses 1,252,37 — —
Total expenses 12,496,99 1,059,601 140,99¢
Net (loss) income before income taxes (9,062,82) 3,382,611 1,333,22.
Benefit from (provision for) income taxes 318,29: (1,088,08) (618,649
Net (loss) income $ (8,744,53) $ 2,29453. $ 714,57
Accretion of Trust Account income relating to conm
stock subject to possible conversion (92,877 (235,70¢) —
Net (loss) income attributable to other common
stockholders $ (8,837,40) $ 2,058,82 $ 714,57
Basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share $ (039 ¢ 008 $ 0.0¢
Dividends declared per common share $ 02¢ $ — $ =
Basic and diluted weighted average shares outstgn 22,941,72 24,936,55 11,602,78
Balance Sheet Data:
Available-for-sale securities $494,464,86 % — $ —
Total assets 538,365,40 262,095,13 260,303,89
Repurchase agreements 411,892,51 — —
Total stockholders’ equity 121,720,76 184,161,89 182,103,06



(1) Capitol, the accounting acquirer in the memganpleted on October 28, 2009 was formed on Jun2®% as a
development stage company. As such, our resultp@fations are presented for only the periodsostt &bove.
Comparability of the financial data is affectedthg merger with Capitol.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis should bel imaconjunction with the consolidated financiatsiments and
accompanying notes of this Form 10-K.

General
We are a recently formed REIT that focuses on itivgsn, financing and managing RMBS.

Our objective is to provide attractive risk-adjubteturns to our investors over the long term, grily through dividends
and secondarily through capital appreciation. Wernid to acquire and manage a portfolio of mortgaaeked securities,
focusing on security selection and the relativaigalf various sectors within the mortgage market.a&kk to invest in the
following asset classes:

« Agency RMBS.
¢« Non-Agency RMBS.
« Financial assets other than RMBS, comprising @gprately 5% to 10% of the portfolio.

We are externally managed and advised by PRCM AdvisLC, a subsidiary of Pine River. We expectdpldy moderate
leverage as part of our investment strategy, thrpugth respect to Agency RMBS, short-term borraygistructured as
repurchase agreements, and with respect to none&dgeIBS, through both repurchase agreements arat athailable private
funding sources.

We are a Maryland corporation that commenced ojpeiatipon completion of the merger transaction W@igpitol on
October 28, 2009. We intend to elect and qualifgddaxed as a REIT for U.S. federal income taygses, commencing with
our taxable period ended December 31, 2009. Werglnwiill not be subject to U.S. federal incoma&da on our taxable
income to the extent that we annually distribut@fbur net taxable income to stockholders andntaé our intended
qualification as a REIT. We also intend to opemiebusiness in a manner that will permit us tontan our exemption from
registration under the 1940 Act.

Overview
Our 2009 efforts were focused on three strategjeabives that we believe position us for long tesumecess.

» Deploying capital efficientl. After completion of the merger transaction, objective was to deploy capital rapidly
prudently, focusing on assets with attractive aslisted returns. We believe we have accomplidhisedybal: our
capital was substantially fully invested as of Draber 2009.

« Managing a portfolio to generate attractive returmgh balanced risk. Our portfolio approach manages to a low level
of interest rate and mortgage spread duration ecuses on positive prepayment upside. Throughexsified portfolio
of Agency and non-Agency RMBS in combination widridative hedging instruments, we believe this bedal risk
within our portfolio is critical to providing antaactive return to our shareholders.

« Establishing systems and contr. We have focused on building effective systenmsa@mtrols in the areas of
operations, accounting, information technology eavestor relations. In 2009, we worked to buildcamated systems
and Sarbanes-Oxley compliant processes. We havenplished the essential aspects of this goal, athavork
continues in these areas. We have included in ®t&rof this Form 10-K management’s report on intéamantrols over
financial reporting.
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Factors Affecting our Operating Results

Our net interest income will include income fronr ®MBS portfolio and will reflect the amortizatiad purchase
premiums and accretion of purchase discounts. ifetdst income will fluctuate primarily as a resaflchanges in market
interest rates, our financing costs, and prepayse®ds on our assets. Interest rates, financstg anod prepayment rates vary
according to the type of investment, conditionthia financial markets, competition and other fagtaone of which can be
predicted with any certainty. Our operating resulitf also be affected by default rates and crésfises with respect to the
mortgage loans underlying our non-Agency RMBS.

Fair Value Measurement

ASC 820 defines fair value as the price that wdnddeceived to sell an asset or paid to transfiabdity in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the areasent date. It also establishes three levelsmftito be used when
measuring fair value:

Level 1 Inputs are quoted prices in active markets fortidahassets or liabilities as of the measurematd.d
Additionally, the entity must have the ability tocgss the active market and the quoted prices taenadjusted
by the entity.

Level 2 Inputs include quoted prices in active marketssforilar assets or liabilities; quoted prices incitnee markets for
identical or similar assets or liabilities; or inpuhat are observable or can be corroborated bgrebble market
data by correlation or other means for substagtthal full-term of the assets or liabilities.

Level 3 Unobservable inputs are supported by little or rewkmt activity. The unobservable inputs represent
managemens best assumptions of how market participants wprittk the assets and liabilities. Generally, Lt
3 assets and liabilities are valued using pricirglets, discounted cash flow methodologies, or simtéchnique
that require significant judgment or estimation.

We follow the fair value hierarchy set forth abanerder to prioritize the data utilized to measftaie value. We strive to
obtain quoted market prices in active markets (L&vaputs). If Level 1 inputs are not availableg will attempt to obtain
Level 2 inputs, observable market prices in inactivarkets or derive the fair value measuremengusiiservable market prices
for similar assets or liabilities. When neither et nor Level 2 inputs are available, we use L&viglputs and independent
pricing service models to estimate fair value mezsents. At December 31, 2009, approximately 9108%tal assets, or
$494.8 million, consisted of financial instrumergsorded at fair value. Approximately 0.4% of ta@akets, or $2.1 million of
the assets reported at fair value were valued usingl 3 inputs. See Note 7 to the Consolidate@mdéral Statements, included
in Item 8 of this Form 10-K, for descriptions oflwation methodologies used to measure materiatsaase liabilities at fair
value and details of the valuation models, key igpa those models and significant assumptionzedil

A significant portion of our assets and liabilitex® at fair value and therefore our consolidatddrize sheet and income
statement are significantly affected by fluctuasiam market prices. Although we execute variougghegistrategies to mitigate
our exposure to changes in fair value, we canrilyt @liminate our exposure to volatility causedfhyctuations in market
prices. Starting in 2007, markets for asset-badlesdrities, including RMBS, have experienced setd&lecations. While these
market disruptions continue, our assets and liasliwill be subject to valuation adjustment aslwaslchanges in the inputs we
use to measure fair value.

For the three and twelve months ended Decembet(®B, our interest rate swap agreement accountadrading
instrument favorably impacted our financial resultse derivative change in fair value was a restihcreased LIBOR and
corresponding counterparty borrowing rates at titead the fiscal year. Any temporary change infdievalue of our available-
for-sale real estate securities is recorded asrgonent of accumulated other comprehensive incordadaes not impact our
earnings.
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We have numerous internal controls in place to kekure the appropriateness of fair value measunsim@ignificant fair
value measures are subject to detailed analytiasagement review and approval. Our entire assébfioris priced by third-
party brokers at the “bid side” of the market, amdy independent pricing providers. We strive lbdain multiple market data
points for each valuation. By utilizing “bid sidgficing, certain assets, especially the most reperthases, may realize a
markdown due to the “bid-offer” spread. To the extihat this occurs, any economic effect of thisildde reflected in
accumulated other comprehensive income. Furthebagk test the fair value measurements providetthéyricing providers
against actual performance. We also monitor theketdor recent trades, market surveys, or othekatanformation that may
be used to benchmark pricing provider inputs.

Considerable judgment is used in forming conclusiand estimating inputs to our Level 3 fair valugasurements. Level 3
inputs such as interest rate movements, prepayrspa&gs, credit losses and discount rates areeinthedifficult to estimate.
Changes to these inputs can have a significanttadfefair value measurements. Accordingly, ouinestes of fair value are not
necessarily indicative of the amounts that woulddadized on the ultimate sale or exchange.

Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accacdamith GAAP requires us to make certain judgments assumptions,
based on information available at the time of aepgration of the financial statements, in detemmgiraccounting estimates
used in preparation of the statements. Our sigmfi@ccounting policies are described in Note théoconsolidated financial
statements, included under Item 8 of this Annugld®eon Form 10-K.

Accounting estimates are considered critical iféB#mate requires us to make assumptions abotemm#hat were highly
uncertain at the time the accounting estimate wadenand if different estimates reasonably couléhmen used in the
reporting period or changes in the accounting edgrare reasonably likely to occur from periodedqd that would have a
material impact on our financial condition, reswafoperations or cash flows.

Classification of Investment Securities and Valuatis of Financial Instruments

Our RMBS investments consist primarily of Agency B$land non-Agency RMBS that we classify as avadldbi-sale.
Our RMBS classified as available-for-sale are edrat their fair value, with changes in fair vateeorded through
accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss)n@oaent of stockholders’ equity, rather than thioegrnings. We do not
intend to hold any of our investment securitiestfading purposes; however, if our securities wiassified as trading
securities, there could be substantially greatéatiity in our earnings, as changes in the faiueaof securities classified as
trading are recorded through earnings.

When the estimated fair value of an available-fle-security is less than amortized cost, we censidether there is an
other-than-temporary impairment in the value ofgbeurity is required to be recognized in the stete of operations. The
determination of whether a security is other-themyorarily impaired involves judgments and assuomgtibbased on subjective
and objective factors. Consideration is given tethlbr we (1) have the intent to sell the investnsecurities, (2) are more
likely than not to be required to sell the investingecurities before recovery, or (3) do not expececover the entire
amortized cost basis of the investment securitie@stments with unrealized losses are not consitether-than-temporarily
impaired if we have the ability and intent to htié investments for a period of time, to maturityécessary, sufficient for a
forecasted market price recovery up to or beyomrdathortized cost basis of the investments. If gmainment is determined to
be solely driven by the inability to fully recoviére entire amortized cost basis over the remailifie@f the security, the
security is further analyzed for credit loss (tliffedence between the present value of cash flowpgeted to be collected and
the amortized cost basis). The credit loss, if @then recognized in the statement of operatiohile the balance of
impairment related to other factors is recognizedther comprehensive income.

The methods used by us to estimate fair value maguee a fair value calculation that may not bedative of net
realizable value or reflective of future fair vadué&urthermore, while we believe that our valuatitethods are appropriate and
consistent with other market participants, the afsgifferent
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methodologies, or assumptions, to determine thiesédile of certain financial instruments could tegua different estimate of
fair value at the reporting date. We use inputs @@ current as of the measurement date, whipkriiods of market
dislocation, may have reduced price transparency.

Interest Income Recognition

Our interest income on our Agency RMBS and non-AgaeRMBS is accrued based on the actual couporaratehe
outstanding principal balance of such securitiesnffums and discounts are amortized or accretedritgrest income over the
lives of the securities using the effective yieldthrod, as adjusted for actual prepayments.

Our interest income on our non-Agency RMBS seasitated below AA, including unrated securitieseisognized in
accordance with estimated cash flows. Cash floas fa security are estimated applying assumptioaed tesdetermine the fair
value of such security and the excess of the futash flows over the investment are recognizedtasdst income under the
effective yield method. We review and, if appropejanake adjustments to our cash flow projectidrisast quarterly and
monitor these projections based on input and aisalgseived from external sources, internal modeig, our judgment about
interest rates, prepayment rates, the timing ansbatof credit losses, and other factors. Changesash flows from those
originally projected, or from those estimated &t lgsst evaluation, may result in a prospective ghdn interest income
recognized on, or the carrying value of, such dtear

For non-Agency securities purchased at a discoumgficcount for differences between contractual dagls and cash
flows expected to be collected from our initial @tment in debt securities acquired if those diffiees are attributable, at least
in part, to credit quality. We limit the yield thatay be accreted (accretable yield) to the exckar estimate of undiscounted
expected principal, interest, and other cash flzash flows expected at acquisition to be collécte@r the initial investment.
The excess of contractual cash flows over cashsflexpected to be collected (nonaccretable differemadesignated credit
reserve) is not recognized as an adjustment o yiess accrual, or valuation allowance. Subsequentases in cash flows
expected to be collected is recognized prospegtihebugh adjustment of the yield over the remajrife of the security.
Decreases in cash flows expected to be colleceedeangnized as an impairment.

Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedging Actities

We apply the provisions of ASC 815e¢rivatives and Hedgingwhich requires an entity to recognize all deiiwed as
either assets or liabilities in the balance shasetsto measure those instruments at fair value faihgalue adjustments of our
current derivative instruments affect net incomé¢hashedge for accounting purposes is being treseth economic, or trading,
hedge and not as a qualifying hedging instrument.

Derivatives are used for hedging purposes ratlar sipeculation. We rely on internal models corrateat by quotations
from a third party to determine these fair valuésur hedging activities do not achieve their degiresults, our reported
earnings may be adversely affected.

Income Taxes

Our financial results are generally not expectekflect provisions for current or deferred incotages, except for those
taxable benefits or provisions recognized by oxaliée REIT subsidiary. We plan to operate in a nearinat will allow us to
qualify for taxation as a REIT. As a result of @xpected REIT qualification, we do not generallpeot to pay U.S. federal
corporate level taxes. Many of the REIT requireraghbwever, are highly technical and complex. Ifwmeze to fail to meet the
REIT requirements, we would be subject to U.S. feljstate and local income taxes.

Market Conditions and Outlook

The 2009 calendar year experienced numerous regyldtvelopments in an effort to stabilize econoaanditions and
increase liquidity in the financial markets. Thestions were in response to the significant advelsmges in the financial
markets beginning in 2007 and continuing into 20&8ich included housing market contractions, crediicerns and a
reduction in the source of available liquidity hetcapital markets. Certain of these regulatoripasthave on-going impact on
the valuations and expected returns of our RMB%qlar. These regulatory developments include:
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« In December 2009, the US Treasury announced amament to the GSE Preferred Stock Purchase Progtam
amendment primarily addresses the allowable pastiites of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, and remgras for
shrinking their asset size. The US Treasury annedititat it would provide unlimited capital to Familae and Fredd
Mac into 2012 to ensure their solvency and viahilitut the long-term prospects of these entitiagidear. To the
extent that the role of Fannie Mae and Freddie Maimvestors in Agency RMBS diminishes over timhepuld affect
the value of all RMBS, negatively impacting theuabf the assets held in our portfolio, increashegrealized yields ¢
Agency RMBS, or both.

< In an attempt to lower mortgage rates and enadalimwers to refinance and lower mortgage paymamtsdpvember
2008 the Federal Reserve initiated an Agency RM&$hase program, which now provides for purchasep ¢o
$1.25 trillion. The program is scheduled to be clatga by March 31, 2010. If the Federal Reserves dme extend its
purchase program past March 31, 2010, it is possitat opportunities in Agency RMBS may become natiractive.
However, we are unable to predict whether or whenldS Treasury or the Federal Reserve will makiiaéur
interventions in the Agency RMBS markets, or winapact, if any, such actions could have on the RmiBkets, the
securities we hold, our business, results of omeraiand financial condition.

* In March 2009, the U.S. Treasury, the Federald3#pnsurance Corporation and the Federal Resemeunced the
creation of the Public-Private Investment ProgranRPIP. This program involves the government itimgsalongside
and providing financing for the purchases of noreAgy RMBS and commercial mortgage backed seculitiertain
newly-formed investment partnerships. In July 2G68, Treasury announced that it will invest up 30 $illion in
equity and debt issued by public and private inmesit funds, or PPIFs, and announced that it hadt®el nine asset
managers to manage these PPIFs. So far the PRJRprdias not had a significant impact on the RMEBkets, but
the PPIFs can be expected to increase the conopefiiti senior RMBS assets, which could cause pofésese assets
to rise. Higher prices may result in lower effeetiields on assets that we may consider for puechad also
potentially higher values for our existing SenidviBS portfolio.

e The U.S. Government has encouraged programsrabig provide homeowners with assistance in angidésidential
mortgage loan foreclosures, including the Home Afédble Mortgage Modification Program, or HAMP, argarther
programs. These homeowner assistance programswalyé the modification of mortgage loans to redtreeprincipe
amount of the loans (through forbearance and/@ifeness) or the rate of interest payable on thedpor may extend
the payment terms of the loans. They may also ditmstreamlined financing, thus increasing prepests, or for a
delay in foreclosures, thus potentially altering timing and amount of cash flows to certain séi@giIn general, these
homeowner assistance programs, as well as futgigldéve or regulatory actions, may affect theweabf, and the
returns on, our RMBS portfolio. To the extent ttieise programs are successful and fewer borroveéasiltion their
mortgage obligations, the actual default rateszedlon our non-Agency RMBS may be less than tlfieudte
assumptions made by us at the purchase of suctAgeney RMBS. This could cause the realized yield®or non-
Agency RMBS portfolio to be higher than expectetirat of purchase. Conversely, if these prograrad te forced
reductions in principal, all affected RMBS coulcctEase in value.

e On February 10, 2010, Fannie Mae announcedtisiito increase significantly its purchases ofrdglent loans from
its single-family RMBS trusts. Under its single-flgnRMBS trust documents, Fannie Mae has the optiopurchase,
from its RMBS trusts, loans that are delinquent fmumore consecutive monthly payments. Additionalh the same
day, Freddie Mac announced that it will purchadesgantially all mortgage loans delinquent 120 datysiore from its
related fixed-rate and adjustable-rate mortgagédiaation Certificate securities. We expect a fggle impact on our
portfolios as a result of these announcements.
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We believe our blended Agency and non-Agency girase and our trading expertise, will allow us &vigate the dynamic
characteristics of the RMBS environment while thasé any future regulatory efforts take shape. ktpai diversified portfolio
allows us to balance risks, most specifically th&atility and impacts generated by uncertaintyniteiest rates, changes in
prepayments, increases in homeowner defaults ame lpoice depreciation, which may result in eitheeduced or increased
cost of funds.

Risk-adjusted returns in our Agency RMBS portfolitl decline if we are required to pay higher puaisk premiums due to
lower interest rates or additional liquidity in thearket (including liquidity from the Federal Reg&s purchases of Agency
RMBS). Returns are also affected by the possihilftyising interest rates. We expect that the nitgjaf our assets will remain
in whole-pool Agency RMBS, due to the long-terntattiveness of the asset class and the need terpeesur exemption
under the 1940 Act. Interest-only Agency securitils® provide a complementary investment and riskagement solution to
our principal and interest Agency bond investments.

The substantial fear in the non-Agency RMBS maaket lack of liquidity which drove price declineslate 2008 and 2009
created an investment opportunity which has attchatsubstantial amount of new capital to the se€tas new pool of capital
and other potential factors, such as the futurdahibity of leverage from the government’s PPIBntributed to the upward
movement in RMBS prices during the last half of 20@hich generally has reduced the potential restfmn non-Agency
RMBS bonds. However, consistent with our Agencytfptio strategy, we believe the marketplace corgmto offer targeted
opportunities as the markets contract and expattdtive development of various government programs.

The following table provides the carrying valueooir portfolio by product type:
As of December 31, 2009

Agency Bonds

Fixed Rate Bonds $112,378,74 22.71%

Hybrid ARMs 305,441,27 61.8%
Total Agency 417,820,01 84.5%

Non-Agency Bonds

Senior Bonds 54,091,62 10.%

Mezzanine Bonds 22,553,22 4.€%
Total Non-Agency 76,644,85 15.5%
Total $494,464,86

Prepayment speeds and volatility due to interesesa

The initiation of HAMP-related buyouts has led mamalysts to expect a significant increase in preynts speeds,
however we take a contrarian view. We do not expeasing prices to fully stabilize in 2010 and tltismbined with stagnant
unemployment rates, housing inventory increasedtangotential end of government support, lead® @xpect that there will
not be a significant increase in prepayment spge@810. Nonetheless, we believe our portfolio apph is well positioned to
respond to a variety of market scenarios.

Although we are unable to predict the movemenhiarest rates in 2010 and beyond, our blended Agand non-Agency
portfolio strategy is intended to generate attvactiields with a low level of sensitivity to yietdirve, prepayments and interest
rate cycles. Our portfolio has a mixture of fixedlaybrid/adjustable rate terms, which we use toaga interest rate risk.

Our Agency bond portfolio is subject to inhererggayment risk: generally, a decline in interestsahat lead to rising
prepayment speeds will cause the market value oihterest-only securities to deteriorate, but wdlise the market value of
our fixed coupon Agency pools to increase. Therisegelationship occurs when interest rates ineraas prepayments slow.
In the fourth quarter of 2009, we executed on getid bond purchase strategy to reduce this pregratyon interest rate risk,
which included bonds with explicit prepayment poditen and seasoned bonds reflecting less prepayns&due to previously
experienced high levels of refinancing.
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The following table provides the carrying valueoof agency bond portfolio by vintage and prepaynpeotection:
As of December 31, 2009

Fixed Rate Hybrid ARMs Total Agency RMBS
Pre-pay lock-out or penalty-based $ 64,00450 $ 47,682,26 $ 111,686,77
Pre-2002 vintages 31,343,55 32,766,13 64,109,69
2002 — 2005 vintages 12,330,48 157,289,83 169,620,31
2006 and subsequent vintages 4,700,19 67,703,03 72,403,23
Total $112,378,74 $305,441,27 $ 417,820,01

We are offsetting a portion of the Agency expogarprepayment speeds through our non-Agency p@tfGlur non-
Agency bond yields are expected to increase ifgyagent rates on such assets exceed our prepayssemptions. To the
extent that prepayment speeds increase due to eweromic factors, we expect to benefit from théditsghio recognize the
income from the heavily discounted bond prices ginaicipally arose from credit or payment defaxipectations.

The following table provides discount informatiom @ur non-Agency bond portfolio:
As of December 31, 2009

Senior Mezzanine Total
Face Value $110,687,78 $55,892,52  $166,580,30
Unamortized discount
Designated credit reserve (22,709,99) (27,476,62) (50,186,62)
Unamortized net discount (34,420,20) (6,629,53) (41,049,73)

Amortized Cost $ 53,557,58 $ 21,786,36 $ 75,343,94

Credit losses

Although our Agency portfolio is supported by UGvernment agency and federally chartered cormrafuarantees of
payment of principal and interest, we are expoeaztedit risk in our non-Agency RMBS portfolio. Hewer, the credit support
built into RMBS deal structures is designed to fufea level of protection from potential creditdes. In addition, the
discounted purchase prices paid on our non-AgeMdBRassets provide additional insulation from créases in the event
we receive less than 100% of par on such asset&wleate credit risk on our non-Agency investmémtsugh a
comprehensive selection process, which is predamiinbocused on quantifying and pricing credit ri¥ke review our non-
Agency RMBS based on quantitative and qualitativalysis of the risk-adjusted returns on such inmesits. We evaluate each
investment’s credit risk through our initial modwiand scenario analysis and through on-going assetillance. At purchase,
we estimate the portion of the discount we do mpeet to recover and factor that into our expegiettl and accretion
methodology. Nevertheless, unanticipated credgdsesould occur, adversely impacting our operagsglts.

Counterparty exposure and leverage ratio

We monitor counterparty exposure in our broker kireand lending counterparties on a daily basis. @oker and
banking counterparties represent several well abigeid organizations and we attempt to manage ash balances across these
organizations to reduce our exposure to a singlateoparty.

In relation to our lending counterparties, we hamtered into repurchase agreements with six couentiées as of December
31, 2009 and we are in negotiations with sevetastto further diversify our relationships. Asiicember 31, 2009, we had a
debt to equity ratio of 3.4 times which support bybrid portfolio investment strategy. As of DecaamB1, 2009, we had
approximately $49.6 million of unpledged non-Agesegurities and an overall estimated unused bongwépacity of
approximately $29.8 million. If borrowing rates armllateral requirements change in 2010, we aréipoed to adjust to higher
interest rates with less earnings volatility thamare levered organization.
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Summary of Results of Operations and Financial Conition

Our reported GAAP net loss attributable to commizarsholders was $8.8 million ($0.39 per sharep@ii9 as compared to
a GAAP net income attributable to common sharetreldé$2.1 million ($0.08 per share) for 2008. @AAP book value per
diluted common share was $9.08 at December 31,,200@icrease from $7.39 book value per commoreshiaDecember 31,
2008.

Our results for 2009 reflect the costs associatigul tve merger transaction of $9.6 million and sastsociated with Capitol
as a development stage company prior to the mé@esaction of $1.3 million. Excluding these merggansaction and
development stage company costs, net of a reduictitax benefits of $0.4 million, we would have ogfed a GAAP net
income for 2009 of $1.7 million. We believe thisssR@AAP financial measure is useful because theuebed costs will not be
incurred on a going forward basis.

Our results for 2008 and 2007 represent the histbresults of Capitol as a development stage cagnpéth no operations.
The net income for 2008 and 2007 of $2.1 milliod &3.7 million, respectively, reflected interestmoney market funds.

The following table presents the components ofr@ir(loss) income for 2009, 2008 and for the pefioth June 26, 2007
(inception) through December 31, 2007.

Period from
June 26, 2007
(inception)
Years Ended December 31, through
December 31,
2009 2008 2007
Interest income $ 2,866,05. $ 4,442,22. $ 1,474,22
Interest expense 131,51( — —
Net interest income 2,734,54. 4,442,22. 1,474,22
Other income:
Gain on sale of investment securities, net 335,96¢ — —
Unrealized gain on interest rate swap agreements 363,66¢ — —
Total other income 699,63. — —
Expenses:
Management fees 325,65 — —
Operating expenses:
Costs associated with business combination 9,572,21i — —
Costs associated with Capitol as a developmené stag
company 1,346,74 1,059,60! 140,99¢
Other operating expenses 1,252,37 — —
Total expenses 12,496,99 1,059,60! 140,99¢
Net (loss) income before income taxes (9,062,82) 3,382,611 1,333,22.
Benefit from (provision for) income taxes 318,29: (1,088,08) (618,64
Net (loss) income $(8,74453) $ 2,294,553 $ 714,57
Accretion of Trust Account income relating to commo
stock subject to possible conversion (92,877 (235,70¢) —
Net (loss) income attributable to other common
stockholders $(8,837,40) $ 2,058,827 $ 714,57
Basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share $ 039 % 0.0¢ $ 0.0€

Dividends declared per common share $ 026 $ — 3 —

Basic and diluted weighted average shares outstgndi 22,941,72 24,936,55 11,602,78
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Results of Operations

The following analysis principally focuses on tlesults generated in 2009, as our operations ditbegith until the
completion of the merger transaction in late Oct@899. However, the analysis will also include 2@Md 2007 results, where
appropriate, which consists of Capitol's operatiaas development stage company.

Interest Income and Average Earning Assets Yield

For the three and twelve months ended Decembet(®B, we recognized $2.8 million of interest incdineen our Agency
and non-Agency RMBS portfolio. As of December 3002, our available-for-sale securities portfoliateerage days held was
approximately 37 days, with our non-Agency highietding assets average days held of approximatlga¥s. This shortened
investment period resulted in an average amortnst of securities of approximately $181.4 millfon the quarter ended
December 31, 2009. The annualized net yield oratleeage amortized cost of our portfolio was appnately 6.2%.

For the three and twelve months ended Decembet(®B, we recognized $1.2 million of net premium amation on our
Agency RMBS, including our interest-only securitiéhis resulted in an overall net asset yield gfragimately 4.4% on our
Agency RMBS. For the three and twelve months ergieckmber 31, 2009, we recognized $0.6 million afetion income
from the discounts on our non-Agency portfolio tésg in an overall net yield of approximately 1%62

The following tables present the components ofiidteyield earned by investment type on our RMBSfplio as a
percentage of our average amortized cost of sezsurit

Three months ended December 31, 2009

Agency Non-Agency  Whole Portfolio

(Ratios for the quarter have been annualized)

Gross Yield/Stated Coupon 7.4% 6.S% 7.2%
Net accretion/amortization of discount/premi (3.0% 9.2% (1.2)%
Net Yield 4.4% 16.2% 6.2%

(1) These yields have not been adjusted for codelafy and cost to carry purchase premiums

(2) Prior to October 28, 2009, the Company was\weld@ment stage company without operations, thezefmmparative
periods are not applicable.

The following table provides the components ofliest income and net asset yield detail by investriyge on our RMBS
portfolio:

Three months ended December 31, 2009

Net (Premium
Amortization)/

Average Discount
Amortized Cost Coupon Interest Accretion Interest Income Net Asset Yield
Agency $ 15456159 $ 2,861,12 $(1,151,08) $ 1,710,04 4.4%
Non-Agency 26,874,91 463,47( 622,60( 1,086,07! 16.2%
Total $181,436,51 $ 3,32459. $ (528,48) $ 2,796,11 6.2%

Our cash and cash equivalents interest incoménéotvielve months ended December 31, 2009 was pélhgigenerated by
Capitol prior to the merger transaction, and regslih annual interest income of $69,940 or appratity 0.00% vyield.
Subsequent to the merger transaction, our princigsth balances with our primary brokers are heldvinyielding overnight
money market accounts due to the significant deer@amarket interest rates. Additional cash depase held in non-interest
bearing accounts to support our daily operations.®@erall cash balances are managed relativertmweesting, financing and
operating requirements, investment opportunitiesaticipated market conditions.

48







TABLE OF CONTENTS

Prior to the completion of the merger transactit2009 and for the comparative period 2008 andhemperiod from June
26, 2007 (inception) through December 31, 2007 Gbmpany’s principal assets were held in trustiamdsted in the Merrill
Lynch Treasury Fund, an institutional money marketual fund that invests all of its assets in diadigations of the U.S.
Treasury. Prior to the merger transaction in 2008 effective annualized interest rate payablewnrovestment was
approximately 0.00%. At December 31, 2008, theotiffe annualized interest rate payable on our iimrest was
approximately 0.34%.

Interest Expense and the Cost of Funds

For the three and twelve months ended Decembe2(®IB, we recognized $131,510 in interest expensmioborrowed
funds. For the three month period, our averageauisng balance under repurchase agreements wesxapptely $146.0
million, which was primarily funding our Agency RMBportfolio. Our leverage ratio of 3.4 times aPefcember 31, 2009 and
low LIBOR rates, resulted in an average cost ofifuof 0.4% on an annualized basis.

Net Interest Income

For the three and twelve months ended Decembe2(BIB, our net interest income on our availables@e, or AFS,
portfolio, was $2.7 million resulting in a net inést spread of approximately 5.8%. The favorabtémerest rate spread was
largely driven by our low cost of funds due to IbMBOR rates.

The following table provides the interest income ampense incurred in the three months ended Demedilh 2009:

Three months ended December 31, 2069

Agency Non-Agency Total

(Percentages for the quarter have been annualized)

Average Available-for-Sale Securities HéWl  $154,561,59  $26,874,91  $181,436,51

Total Interest Income $ 1,710,04. $ 1,086,07! $ 2,796,11.
Yield on Average Investment Securities 4.4% 16.2% 6.2%
Average Balance of Repurchase Agreemen $143,678,31 $ 2,292,55! $145,970,86
Total Interest Expense $ 119,83 $ 11,67% $ 131,51
Average Cost of Fund® 0.2% 2.0% 0.4%
Net Interest Incom $ 1,590,21 $ 1,074,39: $ 2,664,60:
Net Interest Rate Sprei 4.1% 14.2% 5.8%

(1) Excludes change in realized and unrealizedsgéisses)
(2) Cost of funds by investment type is basedtwdfunderlying investment type of the AFS assigrsedadlateral.

(3) Prior to October 28, 2009, the Company was\weld@ment stage company without operations, thezefmmparative
periods are not applicable.

Gain on Sale of Investment Securities, Net

For the three and twelve months ended Decembet(®B, we sold AFS securities with a carrying valfi$2.5 million for
a net gain of $0.3 million. We do not expect td askets on a frequent basis, but may sell asse¢stiocate capital into new
assets that our management believes might havethitgk-adjusted returns.

Each quarter, we review each of our securitiesterthine if an other-than-temporary impairment geavould be
necessary. For the periods ended December 31, 2008,and 2007, we did not recognize any losses fiher-than-
temporary impairments.

Unrealized Gain on Interest Rate Swap Agreements

Included in our results was the recognition of a$aillion net unrealized gain on our interest rat@p agreement that was
accounted as a trading instrument. During the Foquarter of 2009, we elected to enter into a $h0llon notional interest rate
swap agreement to hedge a portion of our inteatstrisk on our
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short-term repurchase agreements, effectively ksitafg a fixed rate of 1.168% over a two year périThe increase in the
two-year swap rate at the end of 2009 resulteterfavorable results for the three and twelve mostided December 31,

2009.
Expenses

Management Fees

We incurred management fees of $325,654 for threethnd twelve months ended December 31, 2009, wanichayable to
PRMC Advisors LLC under our management agreement.

Operating Expenses

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2009ew@gnized $12.2 million of operating expenses.tkRertwelve months
ended December 31, 2008 and for the period frore 2dn 2007 (inception) through December 31, 20@&7reeognized $1.1
million and $0.1 million, respectively, of operajiexpenses.

Our results for 2009 reflect the costs associatiétl tve merger transaction of $9.6 million and satsociated with Capitol
as a development stage company prior to the mé@esaction of $1.3 million. Excluding these mergansaction and
development stage company costs, we incurred apgratpenses of $1.3 million for the three and tw@ahonths ended
December 31, 2009. We believe this non-GAAP finalhtieasure is useful because the excluded codtsavibe incurred on a
going forward basis. Our results for 2008 and 2@present the historical results of Capitol as\ettgpment stage company
with no operations. The operating expenses for 2082007 of $1.1 million and $0.1 million, respeely, reflected
organizational costs as the development stage agyrparsued a business combination.

The following table provides operating expensea percentage of average equity for the annual aadeyly periods
presented:

Operating
Total Operating Expenses/Average
Expenses Equity

(Ratios for the quarter have
been annualized)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2009 $ 12,171,34 7.1%
For the Year Ended December 31, 2008 $ 1,059,60! 0.€%
For the Year Ended December 31, 2007 $ 140,99¢ 0.2%
For the Quarter Ended December 31, 2009 $ 9,424,93 27.2%
For the Quarter Ended September 30, 2009 $ 1,040,301 2.2%
For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2009 $ 1,385,70 3.C%
For the Quarter Ended March 31, 2009 $ 320,40: 0.7%

(1) Prior to October 28, 2009, the Company wasweld@ment stage company without operations.

The following table provides adjusted operatingenges as a percentage of average equity for the thonths ended
December 31, 2009:

Three months

ended Operating
December 31, Expenses/Average
2009: Equity

(Ratios for the quarter have
been annualized)

Total operating expenses $ 9,424,93 27.5%
Less: Costs associated with business combination (7,965,78) -23.1%
Less: Costs associated with Capitol as a developstage compar (206,799 -0.€%

Adjusted total operating expenses $ 1,252,35. 3.6%




(1) Prior to October 28, 2009, the Company was\eld@ment stage company without operations.
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Our adjusted operating expenses as a percentayefge equity for the three months ended DeceBhe2009 was 3.6%.
We believe this non-GAAP financial measure is usleicause the excluded costs will not be incurred going forward basis.
We expect an annualized expense ratio ranging &@&%¥ to 3.2% in 2010 based on our current busimestel and equity base.

Income Taxes

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2009¢ew@gnized current federal tax benefits of $0.4iamilresulting from
the available-carry-back of net losses of $1.3iamlbf our taxable REIT subsidiary. Offsetting therent federal tax benefits,
we have recognized $0.1 million of deferred taxemge related to the unrealized income on our isteate swap agreement
held in our taxable REIT subsidiary. We currenti{end to distribute 100% of our REIT taxable incorad therefore we have
not recognized any further federal or state tawigions. Our resulting effective tax rate was appmately negative 4%.

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2008 @rithé period from June 26, 2007 (inception) thiolgcember 31,
2007, we recognized federal tax provisions of $iillion and $0.6 million with effective tax rate$ 82% and 46%,
respectively. The 2007 federal tax rate was higlwerto additional federal tax due to personal Imgjdiompany status.

Financial Condition

Available-for-Sale Securities, at Fair Value
Agency RMBS

Our Agency RMBS portfolio is comprised of adjustatdte and fixed rate mortgage-backed securitiekdabby single-
family and multi-family mortgage loans. All of odgency RMBS were Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac mortgags-through
certificates or collateralized mortgage obligatitimst carry an implied “AAA” rating, or Ginnie Maaortgage pass-through
certificates, which are backed by the guarantabedt).S. Government. The majority of these seasitionsist of whole pools
in which we own all of the investment interestshia securities.

The table below summarizes certain characterisficgir Agency available-for-sale securities at Deber 31, 2009:

Weighted

Weighted
Average
Unrealized Average Purchase

Principal/ Net Discount/  Amortized Unrealized Carrying Coupon
Current Face Premium Cost Gain Loss Value Rate Price

Principal and interest
securities
Fixed $ 93,760,62 $ 4,258,500 $ 98,019,12 $ — $(1,690,69) $ 96,328,43 52% $ 104.6:
Hybrid/ARM 292,332,35 14,276,600 306,608,95 119,61: (1,287,30) 305,441,27 4.37% $ 104.9:
Total P&I

Securities $386,092,97 $ 18,535,10 $404,628,08 $ 119,61: $(2,977,99) $401,769,70 4.5t% $ 104.8¢
Interest-only securitie:
Fixed 148,785,87 (133,343,31) 15,442 ,56 962,33 (354,58)) 16,050,31 551% $ 10.7¢
Total $534,878,85 $(114,808,21) $420,070,64 $1,081,94 $(3,332,57) $417,820,01

Our three-month average prepayment rate, or CRs®reenced during the fourth quarter of 2009 by A;yeRMBS owned
by us as of December 31, 2009, on an annualizad, lveas 12.0%.

The following table summarizes months to re-setattaristics for our floating or adjustable rateeAgy RMBS mortgage
portfolio at December 31, 2009:

Carrying Value

0 — 12 months $116,667,70
13 — 36 months 147,814,17
37 — 60 months 5,538,96:
Greater than 60 months 35,420,43

Total $305,441,27
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Non-Agency RMBS

Our non-Agency RMBS portfolio is comprised of serand mezzanine tranches of mortgage-backed siesuithe
following table provides investment information oar non-Agency RMBS as of December 31, 2009:

Credit
Accretable Reserve
Principal/ Purchase Purchase Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Carrying
Current Face Discount Discount Cost Gain Loss Value
Senior $110,687,78 $(34,420,20) $(22,709,99) $53,557,58 $ 1,007,36! $ (473,31) $ 54,091,62
Mezzanine 55,892,52 (6,629,53) (27,476,62) 21,786,36 1,012,97. (246,119 22,553,22
Total $166,580,30 $(41,049,73) $(50,186,62) $ 75,343,994 $ 2,020,33 $ (719,43) $ 76,644,85

The following tables present certain informatioaided by investment type and their respective dgdey loan
characteristics for our senior and mezzanine noersyg RMBS, excluding our non-Agency interest-ordytfolio, at December
31, 2009:

Non-Agency RMBS Characteristics

Senior Mezzanine Total

Bonds Bonds Bonds
Carrying Value $53,646,12  $22,553,22  $76,199,34
% of Non-Agency Portfolio 70.4% 29.€% 100.(%
Average Price $ 55.1¢ % 403t $ 49.77
Average Coupon 3.€% 2.8% 3.2%
Average Fixed Coupon 5.€% 5.8% 5.€%
Average Floating Coupon 1.C% 1.C% 1.C%
Average Hybrid Coupon 5.5% 5.€% 5.€%
Collateral Attributes
Avg Loan Age (months) 50 57 52
Avg Original Loan-to-Value 75% 70% 73%
Avg Original FICO®) 68¢ 722 69¢
Current Performance
60+ day delinquencies 26% 16% 23%
Average credit enhanceméft 13.1% 11.7% 12.7%
3-Month CPR®) 13.9% 18.(% 15.1%

(1) Fair Isaac Corporation, or FICO represents #ggage industry accepted credit score of a borrower

(2) Average credit enhancement remaining on ourAgency RMBS portfolio, which is the average amoofprotection
available to absorb future credit losses due tawef on the underlying collateral.

(3) 3-Month CPR is reflective of the prepayment speetherunderlying securitization; however, it does metessarily indica
the proceeds received on our investment trancloeeRds received for each security are dependethiegoosition of the
individual security within the structure of eacrate
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Non-Agency RMBS Characteristics

Senior Bonds Mezzanine Bonds Total
% of
% of % of Non-
Senior Mezzanine Agency
Loan Type Carrying Value Bonds Carrying Value Bonds Carrying Value Portfolio
Prime $ 8,607,54 16.(% $ 10,247,88 45.% $ 18,855,42 24.1%
Alt-A 28,153,54 52.5% 6,123,31! 27.2% 34,276,85 45.(%
POA 4,838,05. 9.C% 6,182,03. 27.2% 11,020,08 14.5%
Subprime 12,046,98 22.5% — 0.C% 12,046,98 15.8%
$ 53,646,12 10(% $ 22,553,22 10% $ 76,199,34 100.(%
Non-Agency RMBS Characteristics
Senior Bonds Mezzanine Bonds Total
% of
% of % of Non-
Senior Mezzanine Agency
Coupon Type Carrying Value Bonds Carrying Value Bonds Carrying Value Portfolio
Fixed Rate $ 33,493,92 62.2% $ 7,856,66! 34.8% $ 41,350,58 54.2%
Hybrid or Floating 20,152,20 37.€% 14,696,55 65.2% 34,848,75 45.71%
$ 53,646,12 10% $ 22,553,22 100% $ 76,199,34 100.(%
Non-Agency RMBS Characteristics
Senior Bonds Mezzanine Bonds Total
% of
% of % of Non-
Senior Mezzanine Agency
Loan Origination Year Carrying Value Bonds Carrying Value Bonds Carrying Value Portfolio
2006+ $ 24,019,58 44.89% $ 5,086,53 22.6% $ 29,106,12 38.2%
2002 — 2005 29,048,27 54.1% 17,262,22 76.5% 46,310,50 60.£%
pre-2002 578,26. 1.1% 204,45t 0.€% 782,72 1.C%
$ 76,199,34 100.(%

$ 53,646,12 10(%  $ 22,553,22 10(%

The underlying mortgage loans collateralizing oom+\gency RMBS are located across the United States following
table presents the five largest geographic conatois of the mortgages collateralizing these RMBBecember 31, 2009:

% of

Carrying non-Agency
Value RMBS
California $28,860,97 37.1%
Florida 7,589,28. 9.%
New York 4,006,836 5.2%
Texas 2,681,03 3.5%
Arizona 2,555,56! 3.2%
$45,693,71 59.6%

Repurchase Agreements

Our borrowings consist entirely of repurchase agesgs collateralized by our pledge of availabledale securities and
certain cash balances. All of our Agency RMBS angantly pledged as collateral, however, only aiparof our non-Agency
RMBS has been pledged, and as of December 31,&@08verage ratio (i.e., our debt to equity rati@s 3.4:1.0. We believe
our leverage ratio provides unused borrowing caparid thus improves our liquidity and the strengftiour balance sheet.
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For the year ended December 31, 2009, the termatarity of our borrowings ranged from seven dayswer five months.
The weighted average original term to maturity of borrowings was 90 days at December 31, 200®e&&ember 31, 2009,
the weighted average cost of funds for all our repase agreements was 0.4%.

Equity

As of December 31, 2009, our stockholder’s equiag $121.7 million and our diluted book value pearshwas $9.08. As
of December 31, 2008, our stockholder’s equity §584.2 million. The large decrease was principdilg to the conversion of
shares to cash and the repurchase of shares byCappart of the merger transaction complete@otober 28, 2009.
Immediately thereafter, we estimated our stockhtddeguity to be $124.6 million and our book vaher share to be $9.30.
The subsequent reduction in book value is pringihiven by net income during the period from ttede of merger to
December 31, 2009 of approximately $1.7 milliorg theclaration of dividends of $3.5 million repretsgg our taxable income
and unrealized losses in accumulated other compsaleincome of $1.0 million. Taxable net incomehia REIT was higher
than GAAP net income by approximately $5.5 milleure to non-deductible merger transaction expemsteiREIT of $3.3
million, higher net accretion of discount to tav@biterest income $1.2 million, and the stock cosies proceeds from the
merger transaction being treated as dividendsmiiregs from Capitol to us of $1.0 million.

The following table provides details of our changestockholder’s equity from the date of the mergansaction through
December 31, 2009:

Book Value

per Share
(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) Book Value (diluted basis)
Stockholder’s equity at merger completion $12463: $  9.3C
Postmerger activities
GAAP net income, net of tax 1,67¢ 0.1z
Other comprehensive income (950 (0.07)
Dividend declaration (3,489 (0.26)
Other (155) (0.02)
Stockholder’s equity at December 31, 2009 $121,72. $  9.0¢

GAAP to Taxable Income

The following table provides reconciliation of cBAAP loss to our taxable income (loss) split betwear REIT and
taxable REIT subsidiary for the year ended Decerthe2009:

(dollars in millions) TRS REIT Consolidated
GAAP net loss, pre-tax $ (7.2 $ (19 $ (9
Permanent difference

Capitol dividend of E&P — 1.C 0
Non-deductible business combination expenses 6.3 3.2 9.€

Temporary differences

Net accretion of OID and market discol — 1.2 1.2
Unrealized gain on interest rate swap agreement (0.9 — (0.4
Taxable (loss) income $ (1.3 $ 3€ $ 2.3
Dividend declaration deduction (3.5 (3.5
Taxable (loss) income post-dividend deduction $ (1.9 $ 0.1 $ @12

The permanent tax differences are non-recurringnpeent tax differences that were recorded in 2088se items will not
impact future dividend declarations and/or boolueah 2010 and beyond. Temporary differences aneipally timing
differences between GAAP and tax accounting, whithadjust over the course of the RMBS'’s term amdit time of sale of
the RMBS in the future.
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Change in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

With our accounting treatment for available-foresaécurities, unrealized fluctuations in the maviedties of securities do
not impact our GAAP or taxable income but are r@éogd on our balance sheet as a change in stoad'®keuity under
“accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss).aAssult of this fair value accounting throughcktwlder’'s equity, we
expect our net income to have less significant@latons and result in less GAAP to taxable incdiméng differences, than if
the portfolio were accounted as trading instruments

Dividends

On December 21, 2009, we declared a quarterly eindcbf $0.26 per share of common stock for thetfoguarter of 2009,
our first dividend since becoming an operating camypon October 28, 2009. As a REIT, we are requetistribute 90% of
our taxable income to stockholders, subject tcagedistribution requirements. Our board of direstior the fiscal year ended
2009 has elected to distribute the majority of mxable income to avoid U.S. Federal Income ta&essuch, temporary
differences between GAAP and taxable income caergés deterioration in book value on a permanetitamporary basis as
taxable income is distributed that has not beenezhfor GAAP purposes.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our liquidity and capital resources are managedfaretast on a daily basis to principally ensuid the have sufficient
liquidity to absorb market events that could negdyi impact collateral valuations and result in giarcalls and the flexibility
to proactively manage our portfolio to take advgataf market opportunities.

Our principal sources of cash consist of borrowingder repurchase agreements, payments of priraighinterest we
receive on our RMBS portfolio, cash generated foamoperating results and, depending on future etaréinditions, proceeds
from capital market transactions. We typically agash to repay principal and interest on our repaselagreements, to purchase
RMBS, to make dividend payments on our capitallstaad to fund our operations.

To the extent that we raise additional equity edgitrough capital market transactions, we antieipsing cash proceeds
from such transactions to purchase additional RMB& for other general corporate purposes. Therdearo assurance,
however, that we will be able to raise additiorgaliey capital at any particular time or on any faar terms. Credit Suisse
Securities (USA) LLC and the underwriters in Calstaitial public offering have certain rights participate in any future
securities offerings by us.

As of December 31, 2009, we hold $26.1 million &slt and cash equivalents available to support penations, $494.5
million of available-for-sale securities held air fealue and $411.9 million of outstanding debthe form of repurchase
agreements. As of December 31, 2009, our debtityecptio was 3.4:1.0. As of December 31, 2009 had approximately
$49.6 million of pledged non-Agency securities amdoverall estimated unused borrowing capacityppfaximately $29.8
million. If borrowing rates and collateral requirenis change in 2010, we are positioned to adjusigteer interest rates with
less earnings volatility than a more leveraged mirgion.

Our on-going sources of financing are expectedetthbough repurchase agreements. We plan to finauncassets with a
moderate amount of leverage, the level of which rey based upon the particular characteristicauofportfolio and on
market conditions. We may deploy, on a debt-totyduasis, up to ten times leverage on our AgencyBSMssets. We also
deploy some leverage on our non-Agency RMBS as#ititing repurchase agreements as the sourcaanding. Also, we
may increase our use of leverage for non-Agency BNiBconjunction with financings that may be avalgaunder programs
established by the U.S. Government. However, dseoflate hereof, the government has suspendeatiitef plans to expand
the Federal Reserve System’s Term Asset-BackediBesu.oan Facility program, or TALF, to includévBS and the PPIP
Legacy Loans Program is not available to us attiims.

Under our repurchase agreements, we are requingedge additional assets as collateral to ourrefase agreement
counterparties (lenders) when the estimated fdirevaf the existing pledged collateral under sugteeaments declines and such
lenders, through a margin call, demand addition8ateral. Lenders generally make margin calls bseaf a perceived decline
in the value of our assets collateralizing the
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repurchase agreements. This may occur followingrtbethly principal reduction of assets due to scletlamortization and
prepayments on the underlying mortgages, or masaheed by changes in market interest rates, aipedcgecline in the
market value of the investments and other marlabfa. To cover a margin call, we may pledge addéi securities or cash.

At maturity, any cash on deposit as collateralesagally applied against the repurchase agreenadsmde, thereby reducing the
amount borrowed. Should the value of our assetdesuy decrease, significant margin calls on ouurelpase agreements could
result, causing an adverse change in our liqujglitsition.

The following table summarizes assets at carryalgesthat are pledged or restricted as collateralfe future payment
obligations of repurchase agreements.

December 31, December 31,

2009 2008
Available-for-Sale Securities $444,833,06 $ =
Restricted Cash 913,04¢ —
Due from counterparties 1,736,95: —
Total $447,483,06 $ —

While we generally intend to hold our target asassttong-term investments, we may sell certainuofiovestment securities
in order to manage our interest rate risk and ditfqpineeds, meet other operating objectives angtadamarket conditions. We
cannot predict the timing and impact of future sa&investment securities, if any. Because mamyuofinvestment securities
are generally financed with repurchase agreemantsmay be financed with credit facilities (inchgiterm loans and
revolving facilities) and borrowings under prograessablished by the U.S. Government, a signifigantion of the proceeds
from sales of our investment securities (if anygpayments and scheduled amortization are usexpary thalances under these
financing sources.

The following table provides the maturities of eepurchase agreements as of December 31, 2009.

December 31,

2009
Within 30 days $ 207,050,23
30 to 59 days —
60 to 89 days —
90 to 119 days —
Over 120 days 204,842,27

Total $ 411,892,51

For the twelve-months ended December 31, 2009y oastricted cash balance increased from $2.8amitlh $26.1 million.
The cash movements can be summarized by the folgpwi

e Cash flows from operating activitiesi-or the twelve months ended December 31, 200&atipg activities reduced our
cash balances by approximately $16.2 million. Theary driver of this reduction was $10.9 milliohaperating
expenses incurred as part of the merger transaatidrassociated activities of Capitol as a devetogratage company.
Unlike an initial public offering, the costs of apgimately $9.6 million associated with the mergansaction were
recorded in the income statement and reflectec aparating activity of Capitol because the Compmaayistence was
for the purposes of completing a business comhinair similar transaction.

« Cash flows from investing activitiesFor the twelve months ended December 31, 2008sting activities reduced our
cash balances by approximately $245.3 million. fidtiction was driven by the purchase of our RMB®&fplio in the
last quarter of 2009.

« Cash flows from financing activitiesFor the twelve months ended December 31, 2008né&ing activities increased
our cash balance by approximately $284.9 milliuliéng from the net borrowings under repurchaseagents to
fund a portion of our RMBS portfolio, which was sdt by payments to Capitol shareholders who dicadticipate in
the business combination.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no obligations, assets or liabilities whickuld be considered off-balance sheet arrangeméfesio not
participate in transactions that create relatigushiith unconsolidated entities or financial parshés, often referred to as
variable interest entities, which would have bestatdished for the purpose of facilitating off-bade sheet arrangements.

Aggregate Contractual Obligations

As of December 31, 2009, we do not have any long-tiebt, capital lease obligations, operating leddigations or long-
term liabilities.

Subsequent to the merger transaction, we havelisbitha number of master repurchase agreemerntuainterparties
and we expect to execute additional master repaechgreements. These repurchase agreements areesmowvith maturities
of less than one year.

We have entered into a management agreement witivP&dvisers LLC, pursuant to which PRCM AdvisersQlis
entitled to receive a management fee and the resement of certain expenses from us. We reimbur&&MPAdvisers LLC
for (i) our allocable share of the compensatiorfiigi PRCM Advisers LLC to its personnel servingas principal financial
officer and general counsel and personnel emplbyddRCM Advisers LLC as in-house legal, tax, ac¢imgn consulting,
auditing, administrative, information technologglwation, computer programming and developmentui-office resources
to us, and (ii) any amounts for personnel of PRC8#i8ers LLC’s affiliates arising under a sharedlitiees and services
agreement.

We are party to contracts that contain a varietyndémnification obligations, principally with breks, underwriters and
counterparties to repurchase agreements. The maxipotential future payment amount we could be megiutio pay under
these indemnification obligations may be unlimited.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

Refer to Note 2 of the Notes to the Consolidatedrftial Statements included in ltem 8 of this FAG¥K.

Inflation

Substantially all of our assets and liabilities financial in nature. As a result, changes in iegérates and other factors
impact our performance far more than does inflatur financial statements are prepared in accasaith GAAP and
dividends are based upon net ordinary income a&sileaéd for tax purposes; in each case, our resfiliperations and reported
assets, liabilities and equity are measured wigreace to historical cost or fair value withouhsilering inflation.

Other Matters

We intend to conduct our business so as to maiotaiexempt status under, and not to become reglet an investment
company for purposes of the 1940 Act. If we fallednaintain our exempt status under the 1940 Adttaatame regulated as
an investment company, our ability to, among othergs, use leverage would be substantially redacet] as a result, we
would be unable to conduct our business as desciildeem 1 — Business — Other Business — Regulafititis Form 10-K.
Accordingly, we monitor our compliance with botleth5% Test and the 80% Tests of the 1940 Act ierai@ maintain our
exempt status. As of December 31, 2009, we deteftimat we were in maintained compliance with ibéh55% Test and the
80% Test requirements.

We calculate that at least 75% of our assets wemtfigd REIT assets, as defined in the Code fergériod ended
December 31, 2009. We also calculate that our eveualifies for the 75% source of income testfandhe 95% source of
income test rules for the period ended Decembe2@19. Consequently, we met the REIT income anetdssts. We also met
all REIT requirements regarding the ownership af@mmon stock and the distribution of our net meo Therefore, for the
period ended December 31, 2009, we believe thajuaéfied as a REIT under the Code.
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Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures &dout Market Risk

We seek to manage our risks related to the crediity of our assets, interest rates, liquidityggayment speeds and market
value while seeking to provide an opportunity tmckholders to realize attractive risk-adjusted metithrough ownership of our
capital stock. Although we do not seek to avoiét dempletely, we believe that risk can be quardifimm historical experience
and we seek to actively manage our risk levelgdeioto earn sufficient compensation to justify tis&s we undertake and to
maintain capital levels consistent with taking stieks.

To reduce the risks to our portfolio, we employtfmio-wide and security-specific risk measuremantl management
processes in our daily operations. PRCM Adviser€slrisk management tools include software andisesMicensed or
purchased from third parties, in addition to pretaiy software and analytical methods developeBibg River. There can be
no guarantee that these tools will protect us froanket risks.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rates are highly sensitive to many fa¢ioduding fiscal and monetary policies and doneestd international
economic and political considerations, as welltheofactors beyond our control. We are subjeatt@rest rate risk in
connection with our assets and related financidgations. Subject to maintaining our qualificatias a REIT, we engage in a
variety of interest rate management techniquesstel to mitigate the influence of interest ratenges on the values of our
assets.

We utilize interest-only securities as well as dative financial instruments, currently limiteditderest rate swaps as of
December 31, 2009, to hedge the interest rateasskciated with our portfolio. We seek to hedgerast rate risk with respect
to both the fixed income nature of our assets hedihancing of our portfolio. In hedging intereates with respect to our fixed
income assets, we seek to reduce the risk of lassé®e value of our investments that may resalnfchanges in interest rates
in the broader markets. In utilizing interest fagelges with respect to our financing, we seek frawve risk-adjusted returns
and, where possible, to obtain a favorable spreadden the yield on our assets and the cost dimamcing. We rely on
PRCM Advisers LLC’s expertise to manage these risksur behalf. We implement part of our hedgingtegy through
Capitol, our TRS, which is subject to U.S. fedestdte and, if applicable, local income tax.

Interest Rate Effect on Net Interest Income

Our operating results depend in large part on ffees between the income earned on our assetsiandst of borrowing
and hedging activities. The costs associated wittborrowings are generally based on prevailingkeiginterest rates. During
a period of rising interest rates, our borrowingte@enerally will increase while the yields earnadur leveraged fixed-rate
RMBS will remain static. Moreover, interest rateaynmise at a faster pace than the yields earnexdioteveraged adjustable-
rate and hybrid RMBS. Both of these factors coeklit in a decline in our net interest spread atdnterest margin. The
severity of any such decline would depend on osetdgbility composition at the time, as well he imagnitude and duration
of the interest rate increase. Further, an incresaskort-term interest rates could also have aitinagimpact on the market
value of our target assets. If any of these eviemppen, we could experience a decrease in net moonimcur a net loss during
these periods, which could adversely affect ouridlify and results of operations.

Our hedging techniques are partly based on assiewvels$ of prepayments of our target assets. Ifgyaments are slower or
faster than assumed, the life of the investmeritheillonger or shorter, which would reduce theaffeness of any hedging
strategies we may use and may cause losses oitraashctions. Hedging strategies involving theafsgerivative securities
are highly complex and may produce volatile returns

We acquire adjustable-rate and hybrid RMBS. Thesassets in which the underlying mortgages ariedilp subject to
periodic and lifetime interest rate caps and flpadsich limit the amount by which the security’sdérest yield may change
during any given period. However, our borrowingtsegaursuant to our financing agreements are ngesuto similar
restrictions. Therefore, in a period of increadimgrest rates, interest rate costs on our borrgsvaould increase without
limitation, while the interest-rate yields on our
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adjustable-rate and hybrid RMBS would effectivetylimnited by caps. This issue will be magnifiedtie extent we acquire
adjustable-rate and hybrid RMBS that are not baseghortgages that are fully indexed. In additiatjustable-rate and hybrid
RMBS may be subject to periodic payment caps #eilt in some portion of the interest being deftard added to the
principal outstanding. If this happens, we coultkree less cash income on such assets than we weattito pay for interest
costs on our related borrowings. These factorscclmver our net interest income or cause a netdasisg periods of rising
interest rates, which would harm our financial dtind, cash flows and results of operations.

Interest Rate Mismatch Risk

We fund the majority of our adjustable-rate andrityidgency RMBS assets with borrowings that aresdasn LIBOR,
while the interest rates on these assets may lea@acto other index rates, such as the one-yeast@uriMaturity Treasury
index, or CMT, the Monthly Treasury Average index MTA, or the 11" District Cost of Funds Index, or COFI. Accordingly,
any increase in LIBOR relative to these indices meylt in an increase in our borrowing costs ithaibt matched by a
corresponding increase in the interest earningbese assets. Any such interest rate index misncateld adversely affect our
profitability, which may negatively impact distritions to our stockholders. To mitigate interesé raismatches, we utilize the
hedging strategies discussed above.

The following table provides the indices of ourighte rate assets as of December 31, 2009, bastedabmotional amount
of bonds.

Index Type Floating Hybrid* Total Index Percentage
CMT $ 107,667,72 $ 124,833,29 $ 232,501,02 62%
LIBOR 74,452,69. 40,014,20 114,466,89 31%
Other** 6,521,54! 18,385,16 24,906,71 7%

Total $ 188,641,96 $183,232,66 $ 371,874,62 10C%

* Hybrid amounts reflect those assets with gretitan 12 months to reset
** Other-includes COFI, MTA and other indices

Our analysis of risks is based on PRCM Advisers ldn@ its affiliates’ experience, estimates, modeld assumptions.
These analyses rely on models which utilize estmaf fair value and interest rate sensitivity. usdteconomic conditions or
implementation of decisions by PRCM Advisers LLCynpaoduce results that differ significantly fronetestimates and
assumptions used in our models.

We use a variety of recognized industry modelsyelsas proprietary models, to perform sensitiatalyses which are
derived from primary assumptions for prepaymerggatliscount rates and credit losses. The primgsynaption used in this
model is implied market volatility of interest ratélhe information presented in the following iet&rsensitivity table projects
the potential impact of sudden parallel changestarest rates on our financial results and finahoondition, over the next 12
months based on our interest sensitive financ&tiuments at December 31, 2009.

All changes in value are measured as the changetfie December 31, 2009 financial position. Alljpobed changes in
annualized net interest income are measured ahtdrmge from the projected annualized net intenestime based off current
performance returns.
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Interest Rate Sensitivity Table
-100 bps -50 bps +50 bps +100 bps

Change in value of financial position:
Available-for-sale securities, at fair value $1,471,04  $1,427,090 $(2,493,24) $(5,677,70)

As a % of December 31, 2009 equity 1.2% 1.2% -2.0% -4.7%
Derivative Assets $(1,790,00) $ (903,000 $ 728,000 $ 1,444,00
As a % of December 31, 2009 equity -1.5% -0.7% 0.6% 1.2%
Repurchase Agreements $ (404,96f) $ (404,960 $ 512,55¢ $ 1,025,101
As a % of December 31, 2009 equity -0.3% -0.3% 0.4% 0.8%
Total Net Assets $ (723,92) $ 119,12t $(1,252,68) $ (3,208,59)
As a % of December 31, 2009 equity -0.6% 0.1% -1.0% -2.6%
-100 bp: -50 bp: +50 bp: +100 bp:
Change in annualized net interestincome: $ 515,747 $ 257,87: (768,18) $ (1,536,36)
% change in net interest income 2% 1% -4% -T%

The available-for-sale securities, at fair value)uded in the interest rate sensitivity table ‘fofpa in value of financial
position” were limited to Agency RMBS. Due to owomAgency RMBS's significantly discounted priceslamderlying credit
risks, we believe our non-Agency RMBS’s valuatisrinherently de-sensitized to changes in inteassr As such, we cannot
project the impact to these financial instrumemid excluded these RMBS from the interest rate Seitgianalysis. These non-
Agency RMBS have been included in the “change imuafized net interest income” analysis.

Certain assumptions have been made in connectitrnting calculation of the information set forthtlire foregoing interest
rate sensitivity table and, as such, there camb&seurance that assumed events will occur oothat events will not occur
that would affect the outcomes. The base inteegstgcenario assumes interest rates at Decemb20@4., The analysis
presented utilizes assumptions and estimates lmasathnagement’s judgment and experience. Furthermdiile we generally
expect to retain such assets and the associatrdshtate risk to maturity, future purchases abelssof assets could materially
change our interest rate risk profile. It shouldspecifically noted that the information set foirttthe interest rate sensitivity
table and all related disclosure constitutes fodalaoking statements within the meaning of Secfi@A of the 1933 Act and
Section 21E of the 1934 Act. Actual results couifted significantly from those estimated in the égoing interest rate
sensitivity table.

The interest rate sensitivity table quantifies ploéential changes in net interest income and patf@lue, which includes
the value of swaps, should interest rates immegtiateange. The interest rate sensitivity table gnés the estimated impact of
interest rates instantaneously rising 50 and 18G&hmoints, and falling 50 and 100 basis point® @&sh flows associated with
the portfolio of RMBS for each rate change aredaled based on assumptions, including prepaynpa@ds, yield on future
acquisitions, slope of the yield curve and sizéhefportfolio. Assumptions made on the interest s&nsitive liabilities, which
are assumed to relate to repurchase agreemertsjéremticipated interest rates, collateral reguésts as a percent of the
repurchase agreement, amount and term of borrowing.

The change in annualized net interest income doemalude any benefit or detriment from fastestmwer prepayment
rates on our Agency premium bonds, non-Agency distbonds, and instruments that represent thegisit@ayments (but not
the principal) on a pool of mortgages, or Intef@sty bonds. We anticipate that faster prepaymee¢dsg in lower interest rate
scenarios will generate lower realized yields origy premium and Interest Only bonds and highdizezhyields on non-
Agency discount bonds. Similarly, we anticipatet lawer prepayment speeds in higher interestsedeaarios will generate
higher realized yields on Agency premium and Irge€@nly bonds and lower realized yields on non-Agetiscount bonds.
Although we have sought to construct the portfadidimit the effect of changes in prepayment spetdse can be no
assurance this will actually occur, and the redligield of the portfolio may be significantly difient than we anticipate in
changing interest rate scenarios.
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Given the low interest rates at December 31, 2@8@3applied a floor of 0% for all anticipated intstreates included in our
assumptions. Because of this floor, we anticiplad¢ any hypothetical interest rate shock decreasddihave a limited positive
impact on our funding costs; however, because prepats speeds are unaffected by this floor, we @xpat any increase in
our prepayment speeds (occurring as a result ofraesest rate decrease or otherwise) could ra@salh acceleration of our
premium amortization on Agency and Interest Onlgdspurchased at a premium, and accretion of dig@uour non-
Agency bonds purchased at a discount. As a rdmdguse this floor limits the positive impact of amterest rate decrease on
our funding costs, hypothetical interest rate deses could cause the fair value of our financetrirments and our net interest
income to decline.

Prepayment Risk

Prepayment risk is the risk that principal will tepaid at a different rate than anticipated. Aseeeive prepayments of
principal on our assets, premiums paid on suchtsssk be amortized against interest income. Inggal, an increase in
prepayment rates will accelerate the amortizatiopuochase premiums, thereby reducing the inténesime earned on the
assets. Conversely, discounts on such assets@mgeatinto interest income. In general, an inaréaprepayment rates will
accelerate the accretion of purchase discountelifiencreasing the interest income earned ongbeta.

Market Risk

Market Value Risk.Our available-for-sale securities are reflectetheir estimated fair value, with the differencveeen
amortized cost and estimated fair value refleategiccumulated other comprehensive income. The awdhfair value of these
securities fluctuates primarily due to changesiteriest rates and other factors. Generally, isiagiinterest rate environment,
we would expect the fair value of these securitiedecrease; conversely, in a decreasing intesigsenvironment, we would
expect the fair value of these securities to irmeeds market volatility increases or liquidity degses, the fair value of our
assets may be adversely impacted.

Real estate risk Residential RMBS and residential property valaessubject to volatility and may be affected agely
by a number of factors, including national, regicarad local economic conditions; local real estatrditions (such as an
oversupply of housing); changes or continued weskite specific industry segments; constructionityage and design;
demographic factors; and retroactive changes tdibgior similar codes. Decreases in property vahaeeluce the value of the
collateral for a mortgage loan and the potentiatpeds available to a borrower to repay the lodgtwcould also cause us to
suffer losses.

Credit Risk

We believe that our investment strategy will getigtieeep our risk to credit losses low to moder&tewever, we retain the
risk of potential credit losses on all of the loaimslerlying our non-Agency RMBS. With respect to nan-Agency RMBS that
are senior in the credit structure, credit supporttained in RMBS deal structures provide a le¥g@rotection from losses. We
seek to manage the remaining credit risk througtpogracquisition due diligence process, and byofamy assumed credit
losses into the purchase prices we pay for non-&g&MBS. In addition, with respect to any particukrget asset, PRCM
Advisers LLC's investment team evaluates relatigkuation, supply and demand trends, shape of gigldes, prepayment
rates, delinquency and default rates, recovenadbus sectors and vintage of collateral. Neveetbelunanticipated credit
losses could adversely affect our operating results
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
of Two Harbors Investment Corp.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeet of Two Harbors Investment Corp. (the Campas of
December 31, 2009, and the related consolidatéehstants of income (loss), stockholders’ equity emchprehensive (loss)
income, and cash flows for the year then endedsé financial statements are the responsibilithef@ompany’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢hizsancial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti@dé@nited
States). Those standards require that we plan aridrp the audit to obtain reasonable assurancetatitether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. Alit amcludes examining, on a test basis, evidenpparting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit ancludes assessing the accounting principled asd significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the lbfieencial statement presentation. We believe tha audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referedlbove present fairly, in all material respedts, ¢consolidated financial
position of Two Harbors Investment Corp. at Decendde 2009, and the consolidated results of itsaEns and its cash
flows for the year then ended, in conformity wittSUgenerally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States),
Two Harbor Investment Corp.’s internal control ofieancial reporting as of December 31, 2009, basedriteria established
in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issuedhry Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of thea@ivay Commission
and our report dated March 4, 2010 expressed amalifigd opinion thereon.

/s/ ERNST & Y OUNG LLP
Ernst & Young LLP

Minneapolis, Minnesota
March 4, 2010
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Audit Committee of the Board of Directorgslé@tockholders of
Capitol Acquisition Corp.

We have audited the accompanying balance sheedpifdC Acquisition Corp. (a development stage conypdthe
“Company”) as of December 31, 2008, and the relatattments of income, changes in stockholderstyeqand cash flows for
the year ended December 31, 2008, and for theg&om June 26, 2007 (inception) through DecemideRB07. These
financial statements are the responsibility of@menpany’s management. Our responsibility is to egpran opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting Oversigham8ioUnited
States). Those standards require that we plan aridrp the audit to obtain reasonable assurancetatitether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. Alit also includes examining, on a test basis, exddesupporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements, aisgp®e accounting principles used and signifiasiimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall fishistatement presentation. We believe that oditeuprovide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

The accompanying financial statements have begraprd assuming that the Company will continue @aiag concern. As
discussed in Note 1 to the financial statementsided in the December 31, 2008 Form 10-K of Cagimuisition Corp., the
Company’s certificate of incorporation provides foandatory liquidation of the Company in the ewbat the Company does
not consummate a business combination (as defpréaf)to November 8, 2009. This condition raisesubstantial doubt about
its ability to continue as a going concern. Managet's plans regarding these matters are describBidte 1 to the financial
statements included in the December 31, 2008 FOxiK @&f Capitol Acquisition Corp. The financial statents do not include
any adjustments that might result from the outcoffrithis uncertainty.

In our opinion, the financial statements referedlbove present fairly, in all material respedts, financial position of
Capitol Acquisition Corp. (a development stage camy, as of December 31, 2008, and the results afpierations and its
cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2008a@rttie period from June 26, 2007 (inception) tlyio December 31, 2007,
in conformity with United States generally accepaedounting principles.

/sl Marcum LLP
Marcum LLP
(formerly Marcum & Kliegman LLP)

Melville, New York
March 13, 2009
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TWO HARBORS INVESTMENT CORP.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, December 31,
2009 2008
ASSETS
Available-for-sale securities, at fair value $494,464,86  $ —
Cash and cash equivalents 26,104,88 2,778,14.
Cash held in Trust Account, interest and dividerabime available for taxe — 86,11¢
Total earning assets 520,569,74 2,864,25!
Restricted cash 8,913,04 259,132,31
Accrued interest receivable 2,579,69! —
Due from counterparties 4,877,46. —
Derivative assets, at fair value 363,66t —
Prepaid expenses 571,58: 50,29(
Prepaid tax asset 490,20t 48,26¢
Total Assets $538,365,40 $ 262,095,13
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Liabilities
Repurchase agreements $411,892,51 % =
Accrued interest payable 113,78t —
Deferred tax liabilities 123,64t —
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,030,34 193,55!
Dividends payable 3,484,35! —
Total liabilities 416,644,64 193,55!
Common stock, subject to possible conversion — 77,739,68
Stockholders’ Equity
Common stock, par value $0.0001 per share;
450,000,000 and 75,000,000 shares authorized,
respectively; 13,379,209 and 32,811,257 issued
and outstanding, respectively 1,34( 2,49¢
Additional paid-in capital 131,888,93 181,150,229
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (949,72 —
Cumulative (losses) earnings (5,735,42) 3,009,101
Cumulative distributions to stockholders (3,484,35)) —
Total stockholders’ equity 121,720,76 184,161,89
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $538,365,40 $ 262,095,13

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofél@msolidated financial statements.
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TWO HARBORS INVESTMENT CORP.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (LOSS)

Interest income
Available-for-sale securities
Cash and cash equivalents
Total interest income
Interest expense
Net interest income
Other income
Gain on sale of investment securities, net
Unrealized gain on interest rate swap agreements
Total other income
Expenses
Management fees
Operating expenses:
Costs associated with business combination

Costs associated with Capitol as a developmenéstag
company

Other operating expenses

Total expenses
Net (loss) income before income taxes
Benefit from (provision for) income taxes
Net (loss) income

Accretion of Trust Account income relating to commsiock
subject to possible conversion

Net (loss) income attributable to other common stddolders  $(8,837,40)

Basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share
Dividends declared per common share

Basic and diluted weighted average shares outstgndi

Period from

leiﬁ?:ezzpiioznc;m

Years Ended December 31, Detcher%ub%hr a1,

2009 2008 2007

$ 2,796,11. $ — 3 —
69,94( 4,442 ,22. 1,474,22
2,866,05! 4,442 22, 1,474,22
131,51( — —
2,734,54. 4,442 .22, 1,474,22
335,96t = =
363,66t — —
699,63: = =
325,65¢ = =
9,572,211 = =
1,346,74 1,059,601 140,99¢
1,252,37: — —
12,496,99 1,059,601 140,99¢
(9,062,82) 3,382,61 1,333,22

318,29 (1,088,08) (618,64
$(8,744,53) $ 2,294,553 $ 714,57
(92,872 (235,70¢) —
$ 2,058,82 $ 714,57
$ (039 % 006 $ 0.0¢
$ 0.2¢ % — $ —

22,941,722

24,936,55

11,602,78

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofél@msolidated financial statements.
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TWO HARBORS INVESTMENT CORP.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
AND COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME

Accumulated

Other Cumulative
Common Stock Additional Comprehensive Cumulative Distributions Total
Paid-in (Losses) to Stockholders’
Shares Amount Capital (Loss) Income Earnings Stockholders Equity
Balance, June 26, 2007 (inception) — 3 — $ —  $ — 3 — $ —
Common shares issued at inception at $0.0(

per share 7,187,501 71¢ 24,28 — — — 25,00(¢
Sale of 25,000,000 units, net of Underwriters

discount and offering expenses (includes

7,499,999 shares subject to possible

conversion) 25,000,00 2,50C 239,843,34 — — — 239,845,84
Exercise of Underwriters’ oveallotment, net o

Underwriters'discount and offering expen:

(includes 374,700 shares subject to possi

conversion) 1,249,00! 12t 12,021,50 — — — 12,021,62
Forfeiture of initial stockholders’ shares

pursuant to partial exercise of underwriter

over-allotment (625,24) (62) 62 — — — —
Proceeds subject to possible conversion of

7,874,699 shares — (78¢) (77,503,19) — — — (77,503,97)
Proceeds from issuance of sponsors’ warrar

at $1 per warrant — — 7,000,00! — — — 7,000,00!
Net income for the period from June 26, 2(

(inception) through December 31, 2007 — — — — 714,57 — 714,57:
Balance at December 31, 2007 32,811,25 2,49¢ 181,385,99 — 714,57 — 182,103,06
Accretion of trust account income relating to

common stock subject to possible conver: — — (235,70¢) — — — (235,70¢)
Net income — — — — 2,294,53: — 2,294,53:
Balance at December 31, 2008 32,811,25 2,49¢ 181,150,29 — 3,009,10 — 184,161,89
Accretion of trust account income relating to

common stock subject to possible conver: — — (92,877) — — (92,877
Initial capital issuance and contribution from

formation of Two Harbors Investment

Corporation 1,00( 1,00(
Cancellation of Capitol founders’ shares (6,562,25) 131 77,832,42 — — — 77,832,55
Shares converted to cash by Capitol

stockholders (6,875,13i) (687) (67,856,84) — — — (67,857,53)
Shares acquired by Capitol as part of forwar

sales agreements (5,994,66) (59¢) (59,166,70) — — — (59,167,30)
Net loss — — — — (8,744,53) — (8,744,53)
Net unrealized loss on availa-for-sale

securities — — — (949,729 — — (949,729
Total other comprehensive loss — — — (949,72 — — —
Total comprehensive loss — — — — — — (9,694,25))
Common dividends declared — — — — (3,484,35)) (3,484,35))
Non-cash equity award compensation — — 21,64« — — — 21,64+
Balance at December 31, 2009 13,379,200 $ 1,34C $131,888,93 $ (949,729) $ (5,73542) $ (3,484,35) $ 121,720,76



The accompanying notes are an integral part oféh@msolidated financial statements.
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TWO HARBORS INVESTMENT CORP.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Period from June

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

26, 2007
(inception)
Years Ended December 31, Det:er?nubger: -
2009 2008 2007
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net (loss) incom $ (8,74453) $ 2,29453 % 714,57:
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to meshoused in)
provided by operating activities:
Amortization of premiums and discounts net 528,48( — —
Gain on investment securities, net (335,96¢) — —
Equity based compensation expense 21,64« — —
Net change in:
Increase in accrued interest receivable (2,579,69) — —
Increase in deferred income taxes 123,64t — —
Due from counterparties (4,877,46) — —
Increase in fair value of derivative assets, net (363,66¢) — —
Increase in prepaid tax asset (441,93) (48,269 —
Increase in prepaid expenses (521,29)) (28,719 (21,577
Increase in accrued interest payable 113,78t — —
(Decrease)/increase in income taxes payable — (618,64%) 618,64¢
Increase in accrued expenses and other liabilities 836,78 115,85¢ 77,69¢
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activi (16,240,20) 1,714,76: 1,389,341
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Purchases of real estate securities availabledier-s (503,064,12) — —
Proceeds from sales of real estate securitiesadlaifor-sale 2,463,62. — —
Principal payments on real estate securities availfor-sale 4,993,39. — —
Net decrease (increase) in restricted cash 250,219,226 (785,68 (258,346,62)
Net decrease (increase) in cash held in trust atciderest and
dividend income available for working capital aadds 86,11¢ 1,388,10. (1,474,22)
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activi (245,301,72) 602,41 (259,820,84)

Net borrowings on repurchase agreements 411,892,51 — —
Common stock converted to cash at business conminat (67,857,53) — —
Common stock repurchases through forward salesagmnets (59,167,30) — —
Contribution of capital from Pine River into the t@pany 1,00( — —
Gross proceeds from initial public offering — — 250,000,00
Gross proceeds from exercise of underwriters’ @letment — — 12,490,00
Proceeds from notes payable, stockholders — — 95,00(
Repayment of notes payable, stockholders — — (95,000
Proceeds from issuance of stock to initial stocitbrd — — 25,00(
Proceeds from issuance of sponsors’ warrants — — 7,000,00!



public offering — (511) (10,622,02)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 284,868,67 (511) 258,892,98
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 23,326,73 2,316,66: 461,47"
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 2,778,14. 461,47" —
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 26,104,88 2,778,14. 461,47"
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid for interest $ 17,72: — —
Cash (received) paid for taxes $ — 1,794,57 —
Non-Cash Financing Activity:
Dividends declared but not paid at end of period $ 3,484,350 — —
Accrual for offering costs charged to additionaldpia capital $ — — 511
Cancellation of Capitol founders’ shares $ 77,925,42 — —
Accretion of trust account income relating to conmnstock subjet
to conversion $ (92,877) (235,709) —

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofélmmsolidated financial statements.
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TWO HARBORS INVESTMENT CORP.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Organization and Operations

Two Harbors Investment Corp. (the “Company”) is ariand corporation formed to invest primarily esidential
mortgage-backed securities. The Company is extgrmainaged and advised by PRCM Advisers LLC, aigidoy of Pine
River Capital Management L.P. (“Pine River”), alggbmulti-strategy asset management firm. The Catylgacommon stock
and warrants are listed on the NYSE Amex undestimebols “TWO” and “TWO.WS,” respectively.

The Company intends to elect and qualify to beda®a real estate investment trust (“REIT”) foglUederal income tax
purposes commencing with its initial taxable perodled December 31, 2009. As long as the Compaatifiga as a REIT, the
Company generally will not be subject to U.S. fedlé@ricome tax to the extent that the Company dhistes its taxable income to
its stockholders on an annual basis.

On June 11, 2009, the Company, Two Harbors Mergep.Ga wholly-owned subsidiary of the CompanyhePRiver and
Capitol Acquisition Corp. (“Capitol”) entered intomerger agreement, which, among other things,igedvfor the merger of
Capitol into Two Harbors Merger Corp., with Capibaing the surviving entity and becoming an indirelolly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

Capitol, a development stage company, was formetlior 26, 2007 as a publicly registered vehickffeect a merger,
capital stock exchange, asset acquisition or atimeitar business combination with an operating hess. On November 14,
2007, Capitol consummated its initial public offeyi(the “IPO”) and deposited $258,346,625 of netpeds into a trust
account (“Trust Account”), with such funds to bédia trust until the earlier of the completion ©&pitol’s initial business
combination or November 8, 2009.

The Company was formed solely to complete the midrgasaction with Capitol and, prior to such tirhad no material
assets or liabilities. On October 26, 2009, a nitgjaf Capitol’'s stockholders approved the proposestger transaction with
the Company, and the transaction closed on Oc®®e2009. As part of the merger transaction, cedéiCapitol’s officers,
directors and special advisors (the “Initial Stocklers”) surrendered their common stock to the Camydor no consideration,
and their shares were cancelled. At the closinfp@imerger transaction, certain holders of the comstock that was sold as
part of the IPO elected to convert their sharesagh, or sold their shares to Capitol, in each fase price equal to the per
share value of cash held in trust, or $9.87 peresht the closing, after deducting transactiont€esd expenses, and after
purchasing or converting to cash the shares of comstock of Capitol stockholders who did not etegparticipate in the
merger, the Company had approximately $124.0 milliocash available to fund investments and oparatiand a book value
of approximately $9.30 per share. The remainingittbgtockholders, and all Capitol warrant holderschanged their Capitol
shares and warrants for Company shares and wamamt®ne-for-one basis. The new shares and warbacame available to
be traded on the NYSE Amex as of October 29, 2088.Capitol shares and warrants were retired arregistered upon
completion of the merger. Capitol ceased beingv&ldpment stage company at the completion of theyene

Upon completion of the merger, Capitol was congddhe accounting acquirer, similar to a reversegere As the
surviving entity, Capitol’s financial informatios presented in these financial statements on aritigt carryover basis.

Note 2. Basis of Presentation and Significant Accating Policies

Consolidation and Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemietade the accounts of the Company and its wholiyied subsidiaries
after eliminating all intercompany balances andgetions. The consolidated financial statemente baen prepared as if the
Company had been in place for all periods preseiitieel accounting and reporting policies of the Camypconform to
accounting principles generally accepted in thetééhBtates of America (“GAAP”).
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TWO HARBORS INVESTMENT CORP.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 2. Basis of Presentation and Significant Accating Policies — (continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith GAAP requires us to make a number of siigaifit estimates.
These include estimates of fair value of certasetsand liabilities, amount and timing of credgdes, prepayment rates, the
period of time during which the Company anticipaasncrease in the fair values of real estatergt@usufficient to recover
unrealized losses in those securities, and othien&®s that affect the reported amounts of cedasets and liabilities as of the
date of the consolidated financial statements hadadported amounts of certain revenues and expelusimg the reported
period. It is likely that changes in these estimdteg., valuation changes due to supply and dejaedit performance,
prepayments, interest rates, or other reasonspudllr in the near term. The Company’s estimatesndrerently subjective in
nature and actual results could differ from itsreates and the differences may be material.

Investment Securities, at Fair Value

The Company invests primarily in mortgage passttghocertificates, collateralized mortgage obligasiand other
residential mortgage-backed securities represeimbegests in or obligations backed by pools of tg@ge loans (collectively
“RMBS") issued by Federal National Mortgage Asstioia (“Fannie Mae”), Federal Home Loan Mortgage fgwation
(“Freddie Mac”), and Government National Mortgageséciation (“GNMA”) (collectively, “the Agencies'T¢GSE’s").

Designation

The Company classifies its investment securitiemvadable-for-sale (“AFS”) investments. Althoughe Company
generally intends to hold most of its investmemrusities until maturity, it may, from time to timsell any of its investment
securities as part of its overall management géatsfolio. Accordingly, the Company classifies aflits investment securities
as AFS. All assets classified as AFS are repoitedtanated fair value, with unrealized gains argbés, excluding other than
temporary impairments, included in accumulated otloenprehensive income, a separate componentaftsitiers’ equity, on
an after-tax basis.

Determination of RMBS Fair Value

Fair value is determined under the guidance of 83 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (“ASC 820The
Company determines the fair value of its Agency RMiiased upon prices obtained from third-party pggroviders or broker
quotes received using bid price, which are bothmakindicative of market activity. In determinirgtfair value of its non-
Agency RMBS, management judgment is used to aaiair value that considers prices obtained frhirdtparty pricing
providers, broker quotes received and other appkcanarket data.

If listed price data is not available or insuffistethen fair value is based upon internally depetbmodels that are primarily
based on observable market-based inputs but athal® unobservable market data inputs. The Complasgifies these
securities as Level 3 assets. As of December 319,2D4% of the available-for-sale securities mdidfis categorized as Level
3.

The Company’s application of ASC 820 guidance ssaésed in further detail in Note 7 +air Value Measurementsf
these notes to the consolidated financial statesnent

Revenue Recognition, Premium Amortization and Distéccretion

Interest income on securities is accrued baseti®outstanding principal balance and their coni@lderms as prescribed
by codified guidance in ASC 32Dhvestments in Debt and Equity Securities (“ASC"B2@Premiums and discounts associated
with RMBS that are issued or guaranteed as to ip@hand/or interest by a federally chartered coaion, such as Fannie Mae
or Freddie Mac, or an agency of the U.S. Government
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such as Ginnie Mae (collectively, “Agency RMBS")damon-Agency RMBS rated AA and higher at the timpurchase, are
amortized into interest income over the life offssecurities using the effective yield method. Atization and adjustments to
premium amortization are made for actual prepayraetivity.

Interest income on the non-Agency RMBS that werelpased at a discount to par value and/or werd tzw AA at the
time of purchase is recognized based on the sgueitfective interest rate. The effective intenede on these securities is
based on the projected cash flows from each sgcurtich are estimated based on the Company’s eaten of current
information and events and include assumptionse@lto interest rates, prepayment rates and thiagiand amount of credit
losses. On at least a quarterly basis, the Compauigws and, if appropriate, makes adjustmenttstoash flow projections
based on input and analysis received from extamaices, internal models, and its judgment abdetést rates, prepayment
rates, the timing and amount of credit losses,ahdr factors. Changes in cash flows from thosgimaily projected, or from
those estimated at the last evaluation, may r@saliprospective change in the yield/interest inesetognized on such
securities. Actual maturities of the available-fale securities are affected by the contractuaklnf the associated mortgage
collateral, periodic payments of principal, andgagments of principal. Therefore actual maturitéavailable-for-sale
securities are generally shorter than stated cotuimhmaturities. Stated contractual maturitiesgaeerally greater than ten
years. There can be no assurance that the Compassusptions used to estimate future cash flovtlseocurrent period’s yield
for each asset would not change in the near temthttee change could be material.

Based on the projected cash flows from the Comangh-Agency RMBS purchased at a discount to paeya portion of
the purchase discount may be designated as cretiction against future credit losses and, theegfmay not be accreted into
interest income. The amount designated as crestibdint may be adjusted over time, based on thalgmtuformance of the
security, its underlying collateral, actual andjpocted cash flow from such collateral, economicditions and other factors. If
the performance of a security with a credit discasimore favorable than forecasted, a portiorhefamount designated as
credit discount may be accreted into interest ineawer time. Conversely, if the performance of@uséy with a credit
discount is less favorable than forecasted, additiamounts of the purchase discount may be desig@e credit discount, or
impairment charges and write-downs of such seesrtth a new cost basis could result.

Impairment

The Company evaluates its investment securities, quiarterly basis, to assess whether a declitieifair value of an
available-for-sale security below the Company’s gimed cost basis is an other-than-temporary inmpairt (“OTTI"). Based
on the codified guidance of ASC 320, the presefi¢@Td | is based upon a fair value decline beloveeusity’s amortized cost
basis and a corresponding adverse change in expexsé flows due to credit related factors as agton-credit factors, such
as changes in interest rates and market spreads 323 requires impairment to be considered otham-temporary if an entity
(i) intends to sell the security, (ii) will morekély than not be required to sell the security beforecovers in value, or (iii) does
not expect to recover the security’s amortized basis, even if the entity does not intend to thellsecurity. Under these
scenarios, the impairment is other-than-temporadythe full amount of impairment should be recogdizurrently in earnings
and the cost basis of the investment securityjisséed. However, if an entity does not intend tbtbe impaired debt security
and it is more likely than not that it will not bequired to sell before recovery, the OTTI showddsbparated into (i) the
estimated amount relating to credit loss (“creddfmponent), and (ii) the amount relating to allestfactors (“non-credit”
component). Only the estimated credit loss amaurgdognized currently in earnings, with the rerdairof the loss amount
recognized in other comprehensive income. The rdiffee between the new amortized cost basis anchifeflows expected to
be collected is accreted as interest income inrdeoze with the effective interest method.
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Balance Sheet Presentation

Investment securities transactions are recorddtietrade date. Purchases of newly-issued secuaiteerecorded when all
significant uncertainties regarding the charadiiesf the securities are removed, generally $hbefore settlement date.
Realized gains and losses on sales of investmeutiSes are determined on the first-in, first-¢tRIFO”) method.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash held in deasdunts and cash held in money market funds @vamight basis.
Restricted Cash

Restricted cash represents the Company’s cashbiieddunterparties as collateral against the Comipacurities, swaps
and/or repurchase agreements and the restrictéidipof the funds held in the Trust Account. Cashdtby counterparties as
collateral, which resides in non-interest beariogoaints, is not available to the Company for gdrargorate purposes, but
may be applied against amounts due to securitiem) ®r repurchase counterparties or returned t€tmpany when the
collateral requirements are exceeded or, at thanihaof the swap or repurchase agreement.

Accrued Interest Receivable

Accrued interest receivable represents interesighdue and payable to the Company. Cash inteyggnerally received
within thirty days of recording the receivable.

Due from Counterparties

Due from Counterparties includes cash held by apartties for payment of principal and interestipon settlement of
trade positions. Due from counterparties also ibetucash held by counterparties as collateral agtia Company’s swaps
and/or repurchase agreements but represents eoagessty and deemed unrestricted and a receivediethe counterparty as
of the balance sheet date.

Derivative Financial Instruments, at Fair Value

In accordance with codified guidance of ASC 815Derivatives and Hedgin(fASC 815"), all derivative financial
instruments, whether designated for hedging ralatigos or not, are recorded on the consolidateghibalsheet as assets or
liabilities and carried at fair value.

At the inception of a derivative contract, the Ca@myp determines whether the instrument will be pa# qualifying hedge
accounting relationship or whether the Company agttount for the contract as a trading instrumieoe to the volatility of the
credit markets and difficulty in effectively matalgi pricing or cash flows, the Company has eleatedetat all current derivative
contracts as trading instruments. The changedrindhue of derivatives accounted for as tradingimments are reported in the
consolidated statements of income (loss) as uaeghtjain on interest rate swap agreements, asctbas®@cts are hedging
interest rate risk associated with the Companypsireghase agreements.

The Company enters into interest rate derivativeregts for a variety of reasons, including minimgsignificant
fluctuations in earnings or market values on ceréaisets or liabilities that may be caused by obsnginterest rates. The
Company may, at times, enter into various forwamatiacts including short securities, Agency to-heaunced securities
(“TBAS"), options, futures, swaps, and caps. Duthnature of these instruments, they may ber@teivable/asset position or
a payable/liability position at the end of an agtiing period. Amounts payable to, and receivatdenfrthe same party under
contracts may be offset as long as the followingditions are met: (a) each of the two parties otlvesother determinable
amounts; (b) the reporting party has the rightffeat the amount owed with the amount owed by themparty; (c) the
reporting party intends to offset; and (d) the tighoffset is enforceable by law. If the aforenienéd conditions are not met,
amounts payable to and receivable from are preddaytethe Company on a gross basis in the conselidadlance sheet.
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The Company has provided specific disclosure reggrthe location and amounts of derivative instrataen the financial
statements and how derivative instruments andeglla¢dged items are accounted for. See Note Berivative Instruments
and Hedging Activitiesf these notes to the consolidated financial statem

Repurchase Agreements

The Company finances the acquisition of certaiitsoinvestment securities through the use of rdpase agreements. The
repurchase agreements are all short-term debthvebxigire within one year. Borrowings under repusehagreements generally
bear interest rates of a specified margin overmoath LIBOR and are generally uncommitted. The relpase agreements are
treated as collateralized financing transactiortsane carried at their contractual amounts, asifspeédn the respective
agreements.

Accrued Interest Payable

Accrued interest payable represents interest shéié and payable to third parties. Interest i2ggly paid within thirty
days to three months of recording the payable,dbapen the Company’s remittance requirements.

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Income recognition for GAAP and tax differ in céntaespects. These differences often reflect diffpaccounting
treatments for tax and GAAP, such as accountinglirount and premium amortization, credit losasset impairments,
recognition of certain operating expenses and iceviuation estimates. Some of these differencegeanporary in nature and
create timing mismatches between when taxable iedsrearned and the tax is paid versus when theRSiadome is
recognized and the tax provision is recorded. Sohtleese differences are permanent since certaomnie (or expense) may be
recorded for tax but not for GAAP (or vice-verdgahe such significant permanent difference is them@any’s ability as a REIT
to deduct dividends paid to shareholders as annsepi®r tax, but not for GAAP.

As a result of these differences, the Company raaggnize taxable income in periods prior or subsetjto when the
Company recognizes income for GAAP. When this cgcilte Company pays or defers the tax liability esihblishes a
deferred tax asset or deferred tax liability, resipely, for GAAP.

As the income is subsequently realized in futuméops under GAAP, the deferred tax asset is reaeghas an expense.
Alternatively, as the Company realizes the defetagdble income, the deferred tax liability is rgozed as a reduction to
taxable income. The Company’s deferred tax asset®aliabilities are primarily generated by difaces in GAAP and
taxable income at our taxable subsidiaries. GAA®tar differences in the REIT may create additiateferred tax assets to
the extent the Company does not distribute alisofaxable income.

Income Taxes

The Company intends to elect to be taxed as a REAEr the Internal Revenue Code (“Code”) and thieesponding
provisions of state law. To qualify as a REIT, @@mpany must distribute at least 90% of its anRHEIT taxable income to
shareholders (not including taxable income retainats taxable subsidiaries) within the time frag® forth in the tax code and
the Company must also meet certain other requiresnenaddition, because certain activities, iffpamed by the Company,
may cause the Company to earn income which is ualffging for the REIT gross income tests, the Camphas formed
taxable REIT subsidiaries, as defined in the Ctwlengage in such activities. These taxable REbEisliaries activities are
subject to income taxes as well as any REIT taxiagleme not distributed to shareholders.

The Company assesses its tax positions for all tgpepears and determines whether the Companyrhamaterial
unrecognized liabilities in accordance with ASC ,i@ome TaxesThe Company records these liabilities to the retxtee
Company deems them more likely than not to be neclirThe Company classifies interest and penaltiematerial uncertain
tax positions as interest expense and operatingresep respectively, in its consolidated statemenfi®ss) income.
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As of October 28, 2009 and the periods prior td tlae, Capitol’s operations were taxable as a dtim€ corporation and
subject to federal, state, and local income taxseth upon its taxable income (loss).

(Loss) Earnings Per Share

Basic (loss) earnings per share are computed hgiddgvnet (loss) income attributable to other comrstockholders by the
weighted average number of common shares outs@uddiring the period. Diluted (loss) earnings pexrstare computed by
dividing net (loss) income attributable to othenmgnon stockholders by the weighted average numbeominon shares and
potential common shares outstanding during theodeRotential common shares outstanding are caécllesing the treasury
stock method, which assumes that all dilutive comistock equivalents are exercised and the fundsrgesd by the exercises
are used to buy back outstanding common stockeaavthrage market price of the common stock dubingeéporting period. In
accordance with ASC 2@Barnings Per Shar€'ASC 260"), if there is a loss from continuing epdons, the common stock
equivalents are deemed anti-dilutive and dilutedg) earnings per share is calculated in the saamaen as basic (loss)
earnings per share.

Other Comprehensive (Loss) Income

Current period net unrealized gains and lossevaitadle-for-sale real estate securities are replogis components of
accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income ocansolidated statements of stockholders’ equity @mprehensive
(loss) income. Net unrealized gains and losse®ouriies held by our taxable subsidiaries thatreperted in accumulated
other comprehensive (loss) income are adjustethé®effects of taxation and may create deferrechsmets or liabilities.

The Company did not recognize other-than-tempadrapairments in its securities portfolio for the yeaded December
31, 2009.

Accretion of Trust Account Income Relating to Comi@tock Subject to Possible Conversion

The Company recorded accretion of the income eam#ite Trust Account relating to the common steakject to possible
conversion based on the excess of the earnindbdgreriod over the amount which is available taed for working capital
and taxes. Since 30% (less one share) of the sisare=d in the Capitol initial public offering wesabject to possible
conversion, the portion of the excess earningsa@le those shares are reflected on the balamet ab part of “Common stock
subject to possible conversion” and is deducteoh ffadditional paid-in capital.” The portion of tlexcess earnings is also
presented as a deduction from net income on thterS¢ats of Income (Loss) to appropriately refleet amount of net income
which would remain available to the common stocbaod who did not elect to convert their sharesaghcThe accretion of
income earned in the Trust Account relating todbmon stock subject to possible conversion wa$ 328 for the year
ended December 31, 2008. For the year ended Dece&hp2009, the accretion of income earned in thesfTAccount, prior to
the business combination was $92,872.

Equity Incentive Plan

The Company has adopted an equity incentive pl@&0@9 which provides incentive compensation taattand retain
qualified directors, officers, advisors, consultaand other personnel, including PRCM Advisers ldrd its affiliates. The
2009 equity incentive plan is administered by tompensation committee of the Company’s board @ftlirs. The 2009
equity incentive plan permits the granting of nestid shares of common stock, phantom shares,alidiéquivalent rights and
other equity-based awards.

The cost of equity awards is determined in accardamith ASC 718Compensation — Stock Compensafisx&C 718")
and amortized over the vesting term using an actelé method. Restricted stock granted in 200®teamployee directors
vests over a three-year period.
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Recently Issued and/or Adopted Accounting Standards
General Principles

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (ASC 10B).June 2009, the FASB issued The Accounting (&teds
Codification and the Hierarchy of Generally Accepfeccounting Principles (Codification) (the “Codifition”) which revises
the framework for selecting the accounting prinegplo be used in the preparation of financial statgs that are presented in
conformity with GAAP. The objective of the Codiftian is to establish the FASB Accounting StandaEdslification (“ASC")
as the source of authoritative accounting prinsipezognized by the FASB. In adopting the Codifagtall non-grandfathered,
non-SEC accounting literature not included in tlogi@cation is superseded and deemed non-authwgtathe Codification
required any references within the Company’s cadatgd financial statements to be modified from BASsues to ASC
references. However, in accordance with the FASBointing Standards Codification Notice to Constitagv 2.0), the
Company did not reference specific sections ofA8€ but used broad topic references. The Compaegent accounting
pronouncements section has been reformatted #ctéfle same organizational structure as the AS@adtopic references
will be updated with pending content as they aleased.

Assets

Investments in Debt and Equity Securities (ASC.320@w guidance was provided to make impairmentauid more
operational and to improve the presentation andassre of OTTI on debt and equity securities maficial statements. The
guidance revises the OTTI evaluation methodologgviBusly the analytical focus was on whether agany had the “intent
and ability to retain its investment in the segufitr a period of time sufficient to allow for amayticipated recovery in fair
value.” Now the focus is on whether a company @9 the intent to sell the investment securitiesis(Enore likely than not to
be required to sell the investment securities teefecovery, or (3) does not expect to recover tiieecamortized cost basis of
the investment securities. Further, the securignalyzed for credit loss (the difference betwdenpgresent value of cash flows
expected to be collected and the amortized cost)bdhe credit loss, if any, is then recognize@annings, while the balance of
impairment related to other factors is recognizedther comprehensive income. The adoption of A€ did not have a
material impact on the Company’s consolidated fim@rcondition or results of operations for the yeaded December 31,
20009.

Broad Transactions

Derivatives and Hedging (ASC 815Effective January 1, 2009, the FASB issued aoldiiti guidance attempting to improve
the transparency of financial reporting by mandathre provision of additional information about hderivative and hedging
activities affect an entity’s financial positiomancial performance and cash flows. This guidai@nged the disclosure
requirements for derivative instruments and hedgictiyities by requiring enhanced disclosure al§puhow and why an entity
uses derivative instruments, (2) how derivativérimaents and related hedged items are accountedrfdr(3) how derivative
instruments and related hedged items affect aty&nfinancial position, financial performance, acakh flows. To adhere to
this guidance, qualitative disclosures about objestand strategies for using derivatives, quantagalisclosures about fair
value amounts, gains and losses on derivativeuimgnts, and disclosures about credit risk-relatedicgent features in
derivative agreements must be made. This discldsamgework is intended to better convey the purpgdsterivative use in
terms of the risks that an entity is intending tanage. Because this ASC impacts the disclosur@ainithe accounting
treatment for derivative instruments and relatedijestems, the adoption of this ASC did not havéngmact on the Company’s
consolidated financial condition or results of gigms.

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (ASC 82@)response to the recent deterioration of tleeitmarkets, the
FASB issued additional guidance for determining ¥ailue when the volume and level of activity forasset or liability have
significantly decreased when compared with normaiket activity for
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the asset or liability (or similar assets or liélgk). The guidance gives specific factors to ea#d if there has been a decrease in
normal market activity and if so, provides a mettiody to analyze transactions or quoted pricesraakle necessary
adjustments to fair value. The objective is to datee the point within a range of fair value estiesthat is most representative
of fair value under current market conditions. Tielementation of this guidance did not have a m@ténpact on the manner

in which the Company estimates fair value. In AUQB09, the FASB provided further guidance regagdire fair value
measurement of liabilities. The guidance statesaltpioted price for the identical liability wheaded as an asset in an active
market is a Level 1 fair value measurement. Ifiakeie must be adjusted for factors specific tolitiglity, then the adjustment

to the quoted price of the asset shall renderahiesblue measurement of the liability a lower leveasurement. The adoption

of this ASC guidance did not have a material immacthe Company’s consolidated financial conditiomesults of operations

for the year ended December 31, 2009.

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (ASC 820h January 21, 2010, the FASB issued an ASdit, Value
Measurements and Disclosures (Topic 820): ImproWigglosures about Fair Value Measurementsch provides guidance
on how investment assets and liabilities are teaddeed and disclosed. Specifically, the amendmeaptires reporting entities to
disclose i) the input and valuation techniques ueadeasure fair value for both recurring and noaneng fair value
measurements, for Level 2 or Level 3 positionsréipsfers between all levels (including Level 1 aegel 2) will be required to
be disclosed on a gross basis (i.e. transfers aat be disclosed separately from transfers in)elkas the reason(s) for the
transfer and iii) purchases, sales, issuancesedtidraents must be shown on a gross basis in thel Berollforward rather than
as one net number. The effective date of the amentli® for interim and annual periods beginningralecember 15, 2009;
however, the requirement to provide the Level 3/dgtfor purchases, sales, issuances and settlEnoena gross basis will be
effective for interim and annual periods beginndtfiger December 15, 2010. At this time the Compamgvialuating the
implications of the amendment to ASC 820 and thgsict to the financial statements.

Financial Instruments (ASC 820)On April 9, 2009, the FASB issued guidance whiafuires disclosures about fair value
of financial instruments for interim reporting pEds as well as in annual financial statements.éffextive date of this
guidance is for interim reporting periods endinggafune 15, 2009 with early adoption permittedpfariods ending after March
15, 2009. Because this ASC impacts the disclosudenat the accounting treatment for financial instents, the adoption of
this ASC did not have an impact on the Companyfssobdated financial condition or results of operas.

Subsequent Events (ASC 855ASC 855 provides general standards governinguatow for and disclosure of events that
occur after the balance sheet date but befordrihadial statements are issued or are availabbe issued. ASC 855 also
provides guidance on the period after the balaheetsdate during which management of a reportitigyeshould evaluate
events or transactions that may occur for potengi@gnition or disclosure in the financial statetsethe circumstances under
which an entity should recognize events or tram@astoccurring after the balance sheet date ifinigscial statements and the
disclosures that an entity should make about ev@rransactions occurring after the balance stieet Because this ASC
impacts the disclosure and not the accountingrtreat for subsequent events, the adoption of thi§ 4@ not have an impact
on the Company’s consolidated financial conditiomesults of operations.

Transfers and Servicing (ASC 860)n February 2008, the FASB issued guidance adiahgsvhether transactions where
assets purchased from a particular counterpartfiaadced through a repurchase agreement withaime ounterparty can be
considered and accounted for as separate transsctioare required to be considered “linked” teantiosns and may be
considered derivatives. This guidance requireshases and subsequent financing through repurclgaseraents to be
considered linked transactions unless all of thievieng conditions apply: (1) the initial purchaaed the use of repurchase
agreements to finance the purchase are not camdithctontingent upon each other; (2) the repurefiencing entered into
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between the parties provides full recourse to thiesferee and the repurchase price is fixed; @Jittancial assets are readily
obtainable in the market; and (4) the financiatrinsent and the repurchase agreement are treatetked. The adoption of
this ASC did not have a material impact on the Canyfs consolidated financial condition or result®perations.

Note 3. Available-for-sale Securities, at Fair Vala

The following table presents our available-for-saleAFS, investment securities by collateral tyggch were carried at
their fair value:

December 31,

2009 2008
Mortgage-backed securities:
Agency
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation $255,669,01 $ —
Federal National Mortgage Association 155,729,38 —
Government National Mortgage Association 6,421,61! —
Non-agency 76,644,85 —
Total mortgage-backed securities $494,464,86 $ —

At December 31, 2009, the Company pledged invests®aurities with a carrying value of $444.8 mitljaespectively, as
collateral for repurchase agreements. See NoteR&purchase Agreements.

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company didhae¢ any securities purchased from and finance thit same
counterparty that did not meet the conditions oCA860, Transfers and Servicing

The following table presents the amortized cost@ardying value (which equals fair value) of AFSséties by collateral
type as of December 31, 2009:

Agency Non-agency Total
Face Value $534,878,85 $166,580,30 $ 701,459,16
Unamortized premium 18,535,10 — 18,535,10
Unamortized discount
Designated credit reserve — (50,186,62) (50,186,62)
Net, unamortized (133,343,31)  (41,049,73)  (174,393,05)
Amortized Cost 420,070,64 75,343,94 495,414,59
Gross unrealized gains 1,081,94 2,020,33! 3,102,28!
Gross unrealized losses (3,332,57) (719,439) (4,052,019
Carrying Value $417,820,01 $ 76,644,85 $494,464,86
The following table presents the carrying valué\B5 securities by interest and collateral typefd3axember 31, 2009:
Agency Non-agency Total
Adjustable Rate $305,441,27 $ 34,848,75 $ 340,290,02
Fixed Rate 112,378,74 41,796,09 154,174,83
Total $417,820,01 $ 76,644,85 $ 494,464,86

The Company did not hold any AFS securities asedfebnber 31, 2008.
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When the Company purchases a credit-sensitive BEGrisy at a significant discount to its face valiee Company often
does not amortize into income a significant portiéihis discount that the Company is entitleddmesince it does not expect
to collect it due to the inherent credit risk of thecurity. The Company may also record an OTTafportion of its investment
in the security to the extent the Company beligkas principal losses will exceed the discount. &hmunt of principal face
that the Company does not amortize into incomesighated as a credit reserve on the security, veitunamortized discounts
or premiums amortized into income over time ushginterest method in accordance with ASC 320.

The following table presents the changes for the yaded December 31, 2009, of the unamortizeddit@and designated
credit reserves on AFS securities.

Designated Unamortized
credit reserve net discount Total
Beginning balance at January 1, 2009 $ — 3 — 3 =
Accretion of net discount — 622,60( 622,60(
Realized credit losses 86,181 — 86,18’
Acquisitions (50,272,81) (46,225,69) (96,498,50)
Sales, calls, other — 4,553,35I 4,553,35!
Ending balance at December 31, 2009 $(50,186,62) $(41,049,73) $ (91,236,36)

The following table presents the components corimgrithe carrying value of AFS securities that wieran unrealized loss
position and not deemed to be other than tempygrianipaired as of December 31, 2009.

Unrealized Loss Position for:
Less than 12 Months

Gross Unrealized Estimated
Amortized Cost Losses Fair Value
December 31, 2009 $417,008,39 $ (4,052,019 $412,956,37

At December 31, 2009, the Company held 112 AFSriessy of which 61 were in an unrealized loss posi There were
no unrealized loss positions for twelve consecutiamths or longer due to the Company beginningperations in the fourth
quarter of 2009. At December 31, 2008, the Combeal¢t no AFS securities.

Evaluating AFS Securities for Other-than-Temporatynpairments

In 2009, the Company adopted the provisions of 83Cto evaluate AFS securities for OTTI. This ew#ilbn requires us
to determine whether there has been a significdverae quarterly change in the cash flow expectatior a security. The
Company also considers whether there has beemificagt adverse change in the regulatory and/onemic environment as
part of this analysis. For the year ended Decer@beP009, the Company did not recognize any othan-temporary
impairments on AFS securities in our consolidatatesnents of income (loss).

Gross Realized Gains and Losses

Gains and losses from the sale of AFS securitiesearorded as realized gains (losses) within dags) on sale of
investment securities, net in our consolidatedestants of income (loss). The following table présdine gross realized gains
and losses on sales and calls of AFS securitiethéoyears ended December 31, 2009, 2008, antdqydriod from June 26,
2007 (inception) through December 31, 2007.
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For the period from

Year Ended December 31, June 26, 2007
(inception) through
2009 2008 December 31, 2007
Gross realized gains — sales $ 335,96t $ —  $ —
Gross realized gains — calls — — —
Gross realized losses — sales — — —
Gross realized losses — calls — — —
Total realized gains (losses) on sales and calls, n $ 33596t $ — 3 —

Note 4. Restricted Cash

The following table presents the Company’s restdatash balances and the purposes of the balances:

December 31,

2009 2008
Restricted cash balances held by:
Broker counterparties for securities trading atyivi $ 8,000,000 $ =
Repurchase counterparties as restricted collateral 913,04 —
Trust account for business combination or similangaction —  259,132,31
Total $ 8,913,04i $259,132,31

As of December 31, 2009, the Company is requiraddmmtain certain cash balances with counterpatftiebroker activity
and collateral for the Company’s repurchase agreesrie non-interest bearing accounts.

As of December 31, 2008, the Company consideredetiteicted portion of the funds held in the TrAstount as being a
restricted asset. Since the acquisition of a bgsimeprincipally considered to be a long-term pagy with long-term assets
such as property and intangibles, typically beimgegor part of the acquired assets, the Companydpasted the funds
anticipated to be used in the acquisition as acwrent restricted asset.

Note 5. Accrued Interest Receivable

The following table presents the Company’s accinggtest receivable by collateral type:

December 31,

2009 2008
Accrued Interest Receivable:
Agency
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation $1,227,84 $ —
Federal National Mortgage Association 808,64 —
Government National Mortgage Association 128,46 —
Non-agency 414,73: —

Total Accrued Interest Receivable $2,579,69' $ —
The Company did not have any accrued interestvabkis as of December 31, 2008.

Note 6. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activites



The Company expects to enter into a variety ofvéd¢iie and non-derivative instruments in connectidth its risk
management activities. The Company'’s primary objedbr executing these derivatives and non-deinresinstruments is to
mitigate the Company’s economic exposure to fuewents that are outside its
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Note 6. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activites — (continued)

control. The Company'’s derivative financial instrembs are utilized principally to manage market egkl cash flow volatility
associated with interest rate risk (including aigged prepayment risk) related to certain assetdiahilities. As part of its risk
management activities, the Company may, at tinrggy énto various forward contracts including steeturities, agency to-be-
announced securities (“TBAS”), options, futuresapwand caps. Due to its limited operations in 20@dcurrent risk
management strategy, the Company has limited itsat®ve trading activity to interest rate swapegmnents. The Company has
additionally entered into a number of non-derivatinstruments to manage interest rate risk, prailgigh\gency interest-only
securities.

The following summarizes the Company’s significasset and liability classes, the risk exposuréifese classes, and the
Company’s risk management activities used to ntiigartain of these risks. The discussion williidd both derivative and
non-derivative instruments used as part of thesemanagement activities. While the Company usesdaoivative and
derivative instruments to achieve the Companyls mgnagement activities, it is possible that thiesguments will not
effectively mitigate all or a substantial portiohtbe Company’s market rate risk. In addition, @@mpany might elect at times
not to enter into certain hedging arrangementsiaféort to maintain compliance with REIT requireme

Interest Rate Sensitive Assets/Liabilities

Available-for-sale Securities— The Company’s investment securities are genesalbject to change in value when
mortgage rates decline or increase depending otypleeof investment. Rising mortgage rates generaBult in an increase in
slowing of refinancing activity, which slows prepagnts and results in a decline in the expectecevafiwur fixed-rate agency
pools. To mitigate the impact of this risk, the Gamy maintains a portfolio of financial instrumermsmarily fixed-rate
interest-only securities, which increase in vallewinterest rates increase. The primary objediv@ minimize the overall
risk of loss in the value of the investment se@sitiue to the change in fair value caused byestaate changes and their
interrelated impact on prepayments.

As of December 31, 2009, the Company had outstgrfdin value of $16.5 million of interest-only seities in place to
economically hedge its investment securities. Altilg derivative contracts were not entered intofd3ecember 31, 2009 to
hedge our investment securities, the Company migy aro derivative contracts to mitigate intenegte risk associated with
investment securities in the future.

Repurchase Agreements- The Company monitors its repurchase agreemehish are generally floating rate debt, in
relationship to the rate profile of its investmeaturities. When it is cost effective to do so,@menpany may enter into interest
rate arrangements to align the interest rate coitipo®f its investment securities and debt poitfel Typically, the significant
terms of the interest rate swaps match the ternttseofinderlying debt, resulting in an effective wersion of the rate of the
related repurchase agreement.

The Company has not applied hedge accounting twitent derivative portfolio held to mitigate timerest rate risk
associated with its debt portfolio. As of DecemBgr 2009, the Company had an outstanding contrigletanpositive fair value
of $0.4 million and outstanding notional of $10dlimn in place to economically hedge its debt baks The agreement
matures in December of 2011 and established a fikedest rate of 1.168%.

Foreign Currency Risk

In compliance with the Company’s REIT requiremetite, Company does not have exposure to foreignriigraded assets
or liabilities. As such, the Company is not subjecforeign currency risk.

Credit Risk

The Company has limited its exposure to creditdesm its Agency portfolio of investment securitigspurchasing
securities issued by government sponsored entitiecSSEs. The payment of principal and interest
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Note 6. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activites — (continued)

on the FHLMC, and FNMA mortgage-backed securitiesguaranteed by those respective agencies, anmhyimeent of
principal and interest on the GNMA mortgage-backedurities are backed by the full faith and creflthe U.S. Government.

For non-Agency investment securities, the Compamgeatly does not believe it is cost effective enbficial to the
Company’s REIT status to hedge credit risk with\dgive instruments, and accordingly, the Compaogsdnot hold derivative
instruments to specifically hedge credit risk. Hoee the Company has processes and controls ie pdamonitor, analyze,
manage and mitigate its credit risk with respectdn-Agency RMBS.

Derivative financial instruments contain an elemantredit risk if counterparties are unable to tibe terms of the
agreements. Credit risk associated with derivétiencial instruments is measured as the net reptaat cost should the
counterparties which owe the Company under corgrammnpletely fail to perform under the terms ofséheontracts, assuming
there are no recoveries of underlying collatersin@asured by the market value of the derivativanitial instruments. As
December 31, 2009, the market value of derivaiivartial instruments as an asset and liability pmsiwas $0.4 and $0.0
million, respectively.

The Company mitigates the credit risk exposureitihg the counterparties to those major banks farahcial institutions
that meet established credit guidelines and seekarsact with several different counterpartiesriger to reduce the
Company’s specific counterparty exposure. Additignsghe Company reduces credit risk on the majaoitits derivative
instruments by entering into agreements that petmaitloseout and netting of transactions withstw@e counterparty upon
occurrence of certain events. To further mitigaterisk of counterparty default, the Company mémstaollateral agreements
with certain of its counterparties. The agreemesnsiire both parties to maintain cash deposithéretvent the fair values of the
derivative financial instruments exceed establisheelsholds. The Company has not received cashsdsfimm counterparties
at December 31, 2009, respectively, for derivapiositions in an asset position to the Company.tmpany has placed cash
deposits of $1.0 million as of December 31, 2008doounts maintained by counterparties, however tdthe positive fair
value of the existing interest rate swap agreertmesiamount is not considered restricted as obtiance sheet date. The cash
deposits placed are included on the consolidatithba sheet in due from counterparties.

In accordance with ASC 815, as amended and inteighrthe Company records derivative financial insnts on its
consolidated balance sheet as assets or liabéititsr value. Changes in fair value are accoufdedepending on the use of
the derivative instruments and whether it qualif@shedge accounting treatment. Due to the vitatif the credit markets and
difficulty in effectively matching pricing or cadtows, the Company has elected to treat all curdemnivative contracts as
trading instruments. The changes in fair valueeshvéditives accounted for as trading instrumentgeperted in the consolidated
statements of income (loss) through unrealized gaimterest rate swap agreements.

Balance Sheet Presentation

The following table shows the gross fair value antdonal amounts of the Company’s derivative finahimstruments
treated as trading instruments as of December@®19 and 2008.

Derivative Assets Derivative Liabilities
Fair Value Notional Fair Value Notional
Interest rate swaps $ 363,66t $ 100,000,00 $ — % —

Total $ 363,66t $ 100,000,000 $ — 3 —

The Company did not enter into derivative contrast®f December 31, 2008.
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Income Statement Presentation

The following table summarizes the location and am@f gains and losses reported in the consolidstiement of
income on its derivative instruments.

Amount of
Gain/(Loss)
Recognize in
Income on
Derivatives
Trading Instruments Location of Gain/(Loss) Recognize in Income on Deratives 2009
Interest Rate Contracts
Investment securities Not applicable $ —
Repurchase agreements Unrealized gain on interest rate swap agreem 363,66¢
Foreign Exchange Contracts Not applicable —
Total $ 363,66t

The Company did not recognize derivative gain®sesés in the twelve months ended December 31, 2008or the period
ended from June 26, 2007 (inception) through Deeardl, 2007.

Note 7. Fair Value

Fair Value Measurements

ASC 820 defines fair value as the price that wdnddeceived to sell an asset or paid to transfiabdity in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the areawent date. ASC 820 clarifies that fair valuewtidtoe based on the
assumptions market participants would use wheringrian asset or liability and establishes a falu@dierarchy that prioritizes
the information used to develop those assumptiblns.fair value hierarchy gives the highest priotttyquoted prices available
in active markets (i.e. observable inputs) anddkeest priority to data lacking transparency (urobservable inputs).
Additionally, ASC 820 requires an entity to considé aspects of nonperformance risk, includingehéty’s own credit
standing, when measuring fair value of a liability.

ASC 820 establishes a three level hierarchy todeel when measuring and disclosing fair value. Atriiment’s
categorization within the fair value hierarchy &sbd on the lowest level of significant input tovilluation. Following is a
description of the three levels:

Level 1 Inputs are quoted prices in active markets fortidahassets or liabilities as of the measurematd.d
Additionally, the entity must have the ability tocgss the active market and the quoted prices taenadjusted
by the entity.

Level 2 Inputs include quoted prices in active marketssforilar assets or liabilities; quoted prices incitnee markets for
identical or similar assets or liabilities; or inpuhat are observable or can be corroborated bgrobble market
data by correlation or other means for substagtthal full-term of the assets or liabilities.

Level 3 Unobservable inputs are supported by little or rawkmt activity. The unobservable inputs represent
managemens$ best assumptions of how market participants wprittk the assets and liabilities. Generally, L
3 assets and liabilities are valued using pricirglets, discounted cash flow methodologies, or simtéchnique
that require significant judgment or estimation.

Following are descriptions of the valuation methHod@s used to measure material assets and liabitt fair value and
details of the valuation models, key inputs to tho®dels and significant assumptions utilized.
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Note 7. Fair Value — (continued)

Available for sale securities— The Company holds a portfolio of available falessecurities that are carried at fair value
in the consolidated balance sheet. Available ft sacurities are primarily comprised of Agency aod-Agency RMBS. The
Company determines the fair value of its Agency RdMiased upon prices obtained from third-party pgigiroviders or broker
quotes received using bid price, which are deemeéidative of market activity. In determining thérfealue of its non-Agency
RMBS, management judgment is used to arrive aw/&dire that considers prices obtained from thirtypgricing providers,
broker quotes received and other applicable matket. If observable market prices are not availablesufficient to
determine fair value due to principally illiquidity the marketplace then fair value is based uptermally developed models
that are primarily based on observable market-bagrds but also include unobservable market dgiats (including
prepayment speeds, delinquency levels, and ciestiek). The Company classified 99.6% and 0.4%aifadole for sale
securities reported at fair value as Level 2 angtL8, respectively, at December 31, 2009. Avaddbl sale securities account
for 99.9% of all assets reported at fair value eat&mber 31, 2009.

Derivative instruments — The Company may enter into a variety of derix@financial instruments as part of its hedging
strategies. The Company principally executes olerebunter (“OTC") derivative contracts, such derfiest rate swaps,
forward contracts, and listed derivatives thatrayeactively quoted. The Company uses internallyetiped models that are
widely accepted in the market to value these olverebunter derivative contracts. The specific teofithe contract are entered
into the model, as well as market observable inputh as interest rate forward curves and interpoleolatility assumptions.
As all significant inputs into these models are ketinbservable, the Company classified 100% otigrévative assets reported
at fair value as Level 2 at December 31, 2009.

The Company’s Risk Management Committee govermrgaactivity relating to derivative instrumenthiefCompany’s
policy is to minimize credit exposure related toeficial derivatives used for hedging, by limitihg hedge counterparties to
major banks, financial institutions, exchanges, jarihte investors who meet established capitalaedit guidelines, as well
as by limiting the amount of exposure to any indiixl counterparty.

The Company has netting arrangements in placeallitterivative counterparties pursuant to standgclmentation
developed by the International Swap and DerivatAgsociation, or ISDA. Additionally, both the Commyaand the
counterparty are required to post cash collateasétd upon the net underlying market value of the@my’s open positions
with the counterparty. Posting of cash collateypldally occurs daily, subject to certain dollargbholds. Due to the existence
of netting arrangements, as well as frequent cabateral posting at low posting thresholds, crediposure to the Company
and/or to the counterparty is considered materiaitjgated and based on the Company’s assessrhen,is no requirement
for any additional adjustment to derivative valaas specifically for credit.

Recurring Fair Value

The following table displays the assets and liibdimeasured at fair value on a recurring basis.Gompany often
economically hedges the fair value change of ei@sor liabilities with derivatives and other figgal instruments. The table
below displays the hedges separately from the hbilgms, and therefore does not directly displayithpact of the Company’s
risk management activities.

Recurring Fair Value Measurements
At December 31, 2009

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Available-for-sale securities $ —  $492,339,36 $ 2,125,500 $ 494,464,86
Derivative assets — 363,66t — 363,66t
Total assets $ — $492,703,02 $ 2,125,500 $ 494,828,53
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Note 7. Fair Value — (continued)
The Company did not have any assets or liabiliéesrded at fair value as of December 31, 2008.

The valuation of Level 3 instruments requires digant judgment by the third party pricing providend/or management.
The third party pricing providers and/or managentelyt on inputs such as market price quotationsifrearket makers (either
market or indicative levels), original transactjmice, recent transactions in the same or similsiriments and changes in
financial ratios or cash flows to determine failuea Level 3 instruments may also be discounte@flect illiquidity and/or
non-transferability, with the amount of such discbestimated by the third party pricing providethie absence of market
information. Assumptions used by the third partigipg provider due to lack of observable inputs magnificantly impact the
resulting fair value and therefore the Companyiaficial statements. The Company’s valuation coremiteviews all pricing
information received from a third party pricing pider. As part of this review, prices are compaagdinst other pricing or
input data points in the marketplace, along witkeiinal valuation expertise, to ensure the pricngeasonable. In addition, the
Company performs back-testing of pricing informatto validate price information and identify anygorg trends of a third
party price provider.

In determining fair value, third party pricing piders use various valuation approaches, includiagket and income
approaches. Inputs that are used in determining&dile of an instrument may include pricing infation, credit data,
volatility statistics, and other factors. In adalitj inputs can be either observable or unobservable

The availability of observable inputs can vary bgtiument and is affected by a wide variety ofdegtincluding, the type
of instrument, whether the instrument is new antdyet established in the marketplace and otheracheristics particular to the
instrument. The third party pricing provider useisgs and inputs that are current as of the measmedate, including during
periods of market dislocations. In periods of madkislocation, the availability of prices and inpuhay be reduced for many
instruments. This condition could cause an instnme be reclassified to or from various levelshivitthe fair value hierarchy.

Securities for which market quotations are readilgilable are valued at the bid price (in the addeng positions) or the
ask price (in the case of short positions) at theecof trading on the date as of which value temeined. Exchange traded
securities for which no bid or ask price is avdiadre valued at the last traded price.

OTC derivative contracts, including interest rat@gs, are valued by the Company using observapldsnsuch as
quotations received from the counterparty, dealetokers, whenever available and consideredulelian instances where
models are used, the value of an OTC derivativexddp upon the contractual terms of, and spec#iesrinherent in, the
instrument as well as the availability and relidpibf observable inputs. Such inputs include magkees for reference
securities, yield curves, credit curves, volatilitasures, prepayment rates and correlation ofiapals. Certain OTC
derivatives, such as swaps, have inputs which eaerglly be corroborated by market data and arefive classified within
Level 2.

Those OTC derivatives that have less liquidityanfhich inputs are unobservable are classifietiiwitevel 3. While the
valuations of these less liquid OTC derivatives mtljze some Level 1 and/or Level 2 inputs, théspanclude other
unobservable inputs which are considered signifitathe fair value determination.

The table below presents the reconciliation fooathe Company’s Level 3 assets and liabilitieasueged at fair value on a
recurring basis. The Level 3 items presented betay be hedged by derivatives and other financatiments that are
classified as Level 1 or Level 2. Thus, the tablelow do not fully reflect the impact of the Comparisk management
activities.
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Note 7. Fair Value — (continued)
Level 3 Recurring Fair Value Measurements

Year Ended December 31, 2009

Total Net Gains/
(Losses) Included in

Net Income Purchases, Net

January 1, Other Salesand  Transfers End of

2009 Realized Unrealized Comprehensive Settlements  Into/(Out Period
Level 3 Gains Gains of) Level 3 Fair

Fair Value (Losses) (Losses) Income Net Level 3 Value

Assets
Available-for-sale securiies ~ $ — % (9719 $ —  $ (19599@  $215481 $ —  $ 212550
Total assets $ —

$ (9710 $ — $ (19,599 $2154,81 $ — $ 212550

(a) Change in unrealized gains (losses) on avaifdytsale securities recorded in equity as accatadlother comprehensive
(loss) income.

Nonrecurring Fair Value

The Company may be required to measure certaitsasskabilities at fair value from time to tim€&hese periodic fair
value measures typically result from applicatiorceiftain impairment measures under GAAP. Thesesitgould constitute
nonrecurring fair value measures under ASC 82fA3ecember 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company didthaed any assets or
liabilities measured at fair value on a nonrecutasis.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

In accordance with ASC 820, the Company is requinedisclose the fair value of financial instrumeerioth assets and
liabilities recognized and not recognized in thasmlidated balance sheet, for which fair value lmaestimated.

The following describes the Company’s methods ftingating the fair value for financial instrumerescriptions are not
provided for those items that have zero balanced e current balance sheet date.

« Available-forsale securities, derivative assets and liabildi@srecurring fair value measurements; carryingevaiqual
fair value. See discussion of valuation methodsasstimptions withithe Fair Value Measuremenrggction of this
footnote.

e Cash and cash equivalents and restricted caahgg value approximates fair value because efsthort maturities of
these instruments.

e The carrying value of repurchase agreements appates fair value due to the maturities of lessitbne year of these
financial instruments. The Company’s repurchaseeamgents have floating rates based on an indexapdpsead. These
borrowings have been recently entered into andithdit spread is typically consistent with thosendaded in the
market. Accordingly, the interest rates on thesedwangs would be at market and thus carrying valosild
approximate fair value.

Note 8. Repurchase Agreements

The Company had outstanding $411.9 million of repase agreements with a weighted average borraategf 0.4%
excluding the effect of the Company’s interest matap, and weighted average remaining maturiti@afays as of December
31, 2009. As of December 31, 2008, the Companydichave debt outstanding.
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Note 8. Repurchase Agreements — (continued)

At December 31, 2009, the repurchase agreementthaddllowing remaining maturities:

December 31, December 31,
2009 2008

Within 30 days $207,050,23 $ =
30 to 59 days — —
60 to 89 days — —
90 to 119 days — —
Over 120 days 204,842,27 —
Total $411,89251 $ —

The following table summarizes assets at carryalge/that are pledged or restricted as collateralfe future payment
obligations of repurchase agreements:

December 31, December 31,

2009 2008
Available-for-Sale Securities $444,833,06 $ =
Restricted Cash 913,04¢ —
Due from counterparties 1,736,95: —
Total $447,483,06 $ —

The Company did not have any repurchase agreemeatsets pledged as of December 31, 2008.

Under the repurchase agreements, the respectigerlegtains the right to mark the underlying ceifat to fair value. A
reduction in the value of pledged assets wouldiregbhe Company to provide additional collaterafuord margin calls.

The following table summarizes certain charactessaf the Company’s repurchase agreements andareparty
concentration at December 31, 2009:

Amount Count’\::-?-tParty Percent of

Outstanding Exposure(l) Equity
Barclay’s Capital Inc. $ 233,480,49 $ 17,282,98 14%
Banc of America Securities LLC 16,251,00 10,865,50 9%
Cantor Fitzgerald & Co. 15,269,00 992,69: 1%
Goldman, Sachs & Co. 55,459,01 4,863,86 4%
J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. 45,229,00 1,781,23 1%
RBS Securities Inc. 46,204,00 1,970,57 2%
Total $411,892,51 $ 37,756,86

(1) Represents the net carrying value of the séesirsold under repurchase agreements to repurdhakealing accrued interest
plus any cash or assets on deposit to securepbectease obligation, over the amount of the remseHiability, including

accrued interest
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Note 9. Commitments and Contingencies
The following represent the material commitments eontingencies of the Company as of December 319:2

Management agreemenrt- The Company pays PRCM Advisers LLC a manageiigenéqual to 1.5% per annum,
calculated and payable quarterly in arrears, ofdbmpany’s stockholders’ equity. For purposes tdudating the management
fee, the Company’s stockholders’ equity means time sf the net proceeds from all issuances of thag2my’s equity
securities since inception (allocated opra ratadaily basis for such issuances during the fiscakigu of any such issuance),
plus the Company’s retained earnings at the erldeofnost recently completed calendar quarter (witkaking into account
any non-cash equity compensation expense incunredrient or prior periods), less any amount that@ompany pays for
repurchases of the Company’s common stock sin@ptian, and excluding any unrealized gains, lossegher items that do
not affect realized net income (regardless of wéesuch items are included in other comprehensieeme or loss, or in net
income). This amount will be adjusted to exclude-time events pursuant to changes in GAAP, andicenbn-cash items
after discussions between PRCM Advisers LLC andXbmpany’s independent directors and approval imaprity of the
Company’s independent directors. To the extenttasgmirment reduces the Company’s retained easrmatghe end of any
completed calendar quarter; it will reduce the ngenaent fee for such quarter. The Company'’s stodednsl equity for the
purposes of calculating the management fee coutstdmer than the amount of stockholders’ equitnshon the consolidated
financial statements. The initial term of the magragnt agreement expires on October 28, 2012, witimzatic, one-year
renewals at the end of the initial term and eadr yeereafter.

The Company reimburses PRCM Advisers LLC for (§ @ompany’s allocable share of the compensatiahipaPRCM
Advisers LLC to its personnel serving as the Comyfsaprincipal financial officer and general counaeld personnel employed
by PRCM Advisers LLC as in-house legal, tax, actimgn consulting, auditing, administrative, infortiza technology,
valuation, computer programming and developmenttaudk-office resources to the Company, and (ii) ampunts for
personnel of PRCM Advisers LLC'’s affiliates arisingder a shared facilities and services agreement.

Upon termination of the management agreement bZtdmepany without cause or by PRCM Advisers LLC tuthe
Company’s material breach of the management agmeteihe Company is required to pay a terminati@eneiqual to three times
the sum of the average annual base managemerdrigesdeory PRCM Advisers LLC during the 24-month paimmediately
preceding the date of termination, calculated ab@&nd of the most recently completed fiscal ggrior to the date of
termination.

Contingent liabilities— Certain fees payable pursuant to underwritiagal and financial advisory arrangements entered
into by the Company were deferred in lieu of certéghts to participate in future securities offeys by the Company. These
fees remain contingent on a future securities offeand are not recognized as a liability in thnaficial statements.

Operating leases and employment contraetsThe Company does not currently maintain an eféic directly employ
personnel. Instead the Company relies on the fiasiland resources of PRCM Advisers LLC to condoetCompany’s
operations. Expense reimbursements to PRCM AdvidgEsare made in cash on a quarterly basis follgwthre end of each
quarter.

Legal and regulatory— From time to time, the Company is subject taepttl liability under laws and government
regulations and various claims and legal actioissray in the ordinary course of business. Liakabtare established for legal
claims when payments associated with the claimerhegrobable and the costs can be reasonably éstinfehe actual costs
of resolving legal claims may be substantially leigbr lower than the amounts established for tlot@es. Based on
information currently available, management isawtre of any legal or regulatory claims that wcdwe a material effect on
the Company'’s consolidated financial statementstheckfore no accrual is required as of Decembge2GQ09.
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Note 10. Stockholders’ Equity
Common stock

On October 26, 2009, a majority of Capitol's stazklers approved the proposed merger transactidntivit Company, and
the transaction closed on October 28, 2009. Cagtitakholders, who approved the merger and eld¢otezimain shareholders,
and all Capitol warrant holders, exchanged thepit©ashares and warrants for Company shares andmta on a one-for-one
basis. The Capitol shares and warrants were raijped the merger completion.

A reconciliation of the common shares outstandings follows:

Number of
common shares
Common shares as a component of stockholders’yequit 24,936,55
Capitol's common shares subject to possible comwers 7,874,69!
Common shares outstanding as of January 1, 2009 32,811,25
Cancellation of Capitol Founders’ Shares (6,562,25)
Common shares converted to cash by Capitol stodkhsl (6,875,13))
Common shares acquired by Capitol as part of fahgate agreements (5,994,66)
Common shares outstanding as of December 31, 2009 13,379,20

After consummation of the transaction, the Complaaxy 13,379,209 shares of common stock outstandith@3,249,000
warrants outstanding.

As of December 31, 2009, the outstanding warraviigch can be converted into a share of common stack one-for-one
basis, had an exercise price of $11.00 per shatexpire on November 7, 2013. The warrant agreefimaiis a holder’s ability
to exercise warrants to ensure that such holdereficial ownership or constructive ownership (eBrekd in our charter) does
not exceed the restrictions contained in the chéinéting the ownership of shares of our commarcktfor purposes of
maintaining our REIT qualification.

Net income per share

For the year ended December 31, 2009, there wet®228hares of restricted stock issued that weamnsidered anti-dilutive
due to the net loss for the period and excludeah fitee diluted earnings per share calculation.

For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 200®atite period from June 26, 2007 (inception) tlylolecember 31,
2007, the Company has assumed that no warrantsieutxercised as the book value per share ofdhg@ny’s common
stock was below the strike price of the warrants thie warrants would be anti-dilutive.

Distributions to shareholders

During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Coyngaciared dividends representing ordinary incomeotmmon
shareholders totaling $3,484,356 or $0.26 per slo@nghich $3,478,595 was paid to shareholdersaoudry 26, 2010.
Approximately, $5,761 was not paid and remainedapbeyto holders of restricted stock in accordanite the vesting terms of
the 2009 equity incentive plan. See Note 11Eguity Incentive Plan

Note 11. Equity Incentive Plan

The Company has adopted an equity incentive pl&0@9 which provides incentive compensation taattand retain
qualified directors, officers, advisors, consulsand other personnel, including PRCM Advisers ldr@ affiliates and
personnel of PRCM Advisers LLC and its affiliataad any joint venture affiliates of the Company.
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Note 11. Equity Incentive Plan — (continued)

The 2009 equity incentive plan is administeredi®/¢ompensation committee. The compensation coesruftthe
Company’s board of directors, has the full autlyadtadminister and interpret the 2009 equity itienplan, to authorize the
granting of awards, to determine the eligibilitydifectors, officers, advisors, consultants aneéofrersonnel, including PRCM
Advisers LLC and affiliates and personnel of PRCHlvisers LLC and its affiliates, and any joint venataffiliates of the
Company, to receive an award, to determine the eumibshares of common stock to be covered by aaeind (subject to the
individual participant limitations provided in ti2909 equity incentive plan), to determine the tenpmevisions and conditions
of each award (which may not be inconsistent withterms of the 2009 equity incentive plan), taspribe the form of
instruments evidencing awards and to take any atti#ons and make all other determinations thd&é&ms necessary or
appropriate in connection with the 2009 equity imtee plan or the administration or interpretattbrreof. In connection with
this authority, the compensation committee may, mgrather things, establish performance goals thest ime met in order for
awards to be granted or to vest, or for the rdgiris on any such awards to lapse.

The Company’s 2009 equity incentive plan providesgrants of restricted common stock, phantom shaligidend
equivalent rights and other equity-based awardgestito a ceiling of 200,000 shares availableégsuance under the plan. The
plan allows for the Company’s board of directorgxpand the types of awards available under thetplanclude long-term
incentive plan (“LTIP”) units in the future. The mimum number of shares that may underlie awardsinone year to any
eligible person may not exceed 100,000. If an awsadted under the 2009 equity incentive plan egar terminates, the
shares subject to any portion of the award tharexpr terminates without having been exercisepldad, as the case may be,
will again become available for the issuance ofitimith| awards. Unless previously terminated by@uwenpany’s board of
directors, no new award may be granted under tB8 2Quity incentive plan after the tenth anniversdrthe date that such
plan was initially approved by the Company’s boafdirectors. No award may be granted under the g2my's 2009 equity
incentive plan to any person who, assuming paymkall awards held by such person, would own odéemed to own more
than 9.8% of the outstanding shares of the Comgatgrnmon stock.

On October 28, 2009, the Company granted 22,15@slud restricted common stock to its independ@ettbrs pursuant
to the 2009 equity incentive plan. The estimatédviaue of these awards was $9.59 per share, lasétk closing price of
Capitol’'s common stock on the NYSE Amex on sucleda@he grants will vest in three annual installrses@mmencing on the
date of the grant, as long as such director iSisgas a board member on the vesting date.

2009
Weighted
Average Grant
Date Fair
Shares Market Value
Outstanding at beginning of period — —
Granted 22,15¢ 9.5¢
Vested — —
Forfeited — —
Outstanding at End of Period 22,15¢  $ 9.5¢

For the year ended December 31, 2009, the Compaognized compensation costs related to restrattek of $21,644.

Note 12. Operating Expenses

Components of the Company’s operating expensatéoyears ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 atigef@eriod from
June 26, 2007 (inception) through December 31, 28@7presented in the following table.
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Note 12. Operating Expenses — (continued)

For the period
from June 26,
2007 (inception)
through
December 31,
2009 2008 2007

Costs associated with business combination $ (9,572,21) $ — % =

Costs associated with Capitol as a developmenéstag
company (1,346,74) (1,059,60i) (140,999

Other operating expenses:

Compensation and benefits (414,649 — —
Professional services (625,34Y — —
Data processing and other IT related (146,88) — —
Other — other operating expenses (65,500 — —
Total operating expenses $(12,171,34) $(1,059,60) $ (140,999

GAAP requires the direct costs of a business coatigin, such as transaction fees, due diligencecandulting services to
no longer be included in the measurement of thenbas acquired. Instead, these direct costs weognézed as expenses for
the period in which they were incurred and theisessreceived.

Note 13. Income Taxes

The Company intends to elect and qualify to bedaas®a real estate investment trust (“REIT”) urtlerCode for U.S.
federal income tax purposes, commencing with they@my’s taxable period ended December 31, 200®r&pas the
Company qualifies as a REIT, the Company genewgllynot be subject to U.S. federal income taxestsitiaxable income to
the extent it annually distributes its net taxabht@mme to stockholders and maintains its intendeadification as a REIT. The
majority of states also recognize the Company’sTRiEatus.

For the year ended December 31, 2009, the Compasydrided to distribute the majority of its incoamel retain only a
portion of the permanent difference between boaktarable income arising from Section 263(a) ofGloele pertaining to
costs associated with a business combination.

The following table summarizes the tax (benefifyision for the years ended December 31, 2009 868 and for the
period from June 26, 2007 (inception) through Deoen31, 2007:
For the period

from June 26,
2007 (inception)

through
December 31,
2009 2008 2007
Current tax (benefit) provision:
Federal $ (441,93) $ 1,088,08 $ 618,64
State — — —
Total current tax (benefit) provision (441,93) 1,088,08. 618,64¢
Deferred tax provision (benefit):
Taxable subsidiaries 123,64t — —
Total deferred tax provision (benefit) 123,64t — —

Total (Benefit from) Provision for Income Taxes  $ (318,29) $ 1,088,08 $ 618,64

The Company’s taxable income before dividend distions differed from our GAAP net (loss) incoménparily due to the



accounting for projected credit losses in our GAABognition of secondary market discount accreticome not
recognized for tax, a portion of the proceeds aeglin the merger transaction with Capitol whictreveeeated as dividends of
earnings and the non-deductible expenses assogidtethe merger transaction that were treatechaadgustment to capital for
tax purposes. These differences resulted in
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Note 13. Income Taxes — (continued)

net losses for GAAP during 2009, while taxable meoremained positive. In 2008 and 2007, the Compaity federal taxes
associated with its interest income as a developstage company.

The following is a reconciliation of the statutdederal and state rates to the effective rateghimperiods ended December
31, 2009, 2008, and 2007.

For the period from
June 26, 2007
(inception) through
2009 2008 December 31, 2007

Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent

Computed income tax
expense at federal rate $(3,081,35) (349% $ 1,150,08 34% $ 453,29 34%

State taxes, net of federa
benefit, if applicable — — — — — _

Differences in taxable
income from GAAP

(loss) income 4,011,84 44% (62,00¢) (2)% 165,35! 12%
Dividends paid deduction (1,248,77)) (14)% — — — —
Effective Tax Rate $ (318,29) 4% $1,088,08 32% $ 618,64 46%

The Company'’s consolidated balance sheet, as afbleer 31, 2009 and 2008, contains the followingenirand deferred
tax assets and liabilities:

2009 2008
Current tax
Federal prepaid income tax $ 490,20t % 48,26¢
State and local income tax payable — —
Deferred tax liabilities (123,649 —

$ 366,56( $ 48,26¢

As of December 31, 2009, the Company had recogriZederal income tax receivable associated wetfederal tax
benefits of $441,937 resulting from the availatderg-back of net losses of $1.0 million.

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, our taxable digvgs had net deferred tax liabilities as presegim the table below.

Deferred Tax Liabilities

December 31,

2009 2008
Unrealized gain on derivative asset $ 12364t $ —
Other — —
Total net deferred tax liabilities $ 123,64t $ —

Based on the Company’s evaluation, it has beenleded that there are no significant uncertain @sipns requiring
recognition in the Company’s financial statemefitee Company classifies interest and penalties denmahuncertain tax
positions as interest expense and operating expersgeectively, in its consolidated statementsiobime (loss). There were no
amounts accrued for penalties or interest as diidng the periods presented in these consolidatadcial statements. The
Company does not expect its unrecognized tax kgpadition to change during the next twelve monkianagement is
currently unaware of any issues under review thatccresult in significant payments, accruals oterial deviations from its



position.

91




TABLE OF CONTENTS

TWO HARBORS INVESTMENT CORP.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 13. Income Taxes — (continued)

As of December 31, 2009, the available-for-saleisges, at fair value, had a U.S. federal tax dasiapproximately $496.6
million.

Note 14. Related Party Transactions
The following summary provides disclosure of theenal transactions with affiliates of the Company.

In accordance with the management agreement wi@MPRdvisers LLC, the Company accrued $325,654 amaagement
fee to PRCM Advisers LLC as of December 31, 2008ictvrepresents approximately 1.5% of stockholdeqsity as defined
by the management agreement. In addition, the Coynpmbursed PRCM Advisers LLC for direct and edlted costs
incurred by PRCM Advisers LLC on behalf of the Camp. These direct and allocated costs, totalin§&884904, are included
accordingly in Note 12 —Operating Expenses.

On October 28, 2009, the Company granted 22,15@slwd restricted common stock to its independesttbrs pursuant
to the 2009 equity incentive plan. The estimatédvialue of these awards was $9.59 per share, bas#e closing price of
Capitol's common stock on the NYSE Amex on sucledahe grants will vest in three annual installrsesd@mmencing on the
date of the grant, as long as such director issgras a board member on the vesting date. The @oyecognized $21,644 of
compensation expense associated with the amoatizafithese shares over their respective vestinigge

In addition to the 33,249,000 publicly registerearmants, 9,906,918 non-registered warrants arefioelly owned by the
Capitol founders and Nisswa Acquisition Master Furtd, which is an investment fund managed by Rier. The Company
will not receive any reimbursement for future cassociated with the future registration and shtbase warrants and
associated common stock.

Note 15. Subsequent Events

Events subsequent to December 31, 2009 were egdltiabugh the date these financial statements issued.

92




TABLE OF CONTENTS

TWO HARBORS INVESTMENT CORP.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 16. Quarterly Financial Data — Unaudited

2009 Quarter Ended

Interest Income
Available-for-sale securities
Cash and cash equivalents

Total interest income

Interest Expense

Net Interest Income

Other Income
Gain on sale of investment securities, net

Unrealized gain on interest rate swap
agreements

Total Other Income
Expenses
Management fees
Operating expenses

Total Expenses

Net (loss) income before provision for
income taxes

Benefit from (provision for) income taxes

Net Loss

Accretion of Trust Account income relating

common stock subject to possible
conversion

Net loss attributable to other common
stockholders

Weighted average number of common sha
outstanding, excluding shares subject to

possible conversion — basic and diluted

Basic and diluted loss per share:

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31

$ — % —  $ — $ 2,796,111
48,24 7,18¢ 89C 13,61¢
48,24 7,18¢ 89C 2,809,73:

— — — 131,51(

48,24, 7,18¢ 89C 2,678,22.

— — — 335,96¢

— — — 363,66t

— — — 699,63.

— — — 325,65«
320,40: 1,385,70 1,040,30! 9,424,93.
320,40: 1,385,70 1,040,30! 9,750,58!
(272,159  (1,378,52)  (1,039,41) (6,372,73)
91,98 154,79¢ 119,48: (47,977

$ (180,169 $(1,223,72) $ (919,92) $ (6,420,71)
(30,837 (37,31) (24,729 —

$ (211,009 $(1,261,03) $ (944,65) $ (6,420,71)
24,936,55 24,936,55 24,936,55 16,935,31
$ (0.01) $ (0.05 $ (0.0 $ (0.3¢)
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Note 16. Quarterly Financial Data — Unaudited — (entinued)

2008 Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31

Interest Income
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2234800 $ 869,055 $ 956,75 $  381,60¢

Total interest income 2,234,80! 869,05: 956,75: 381,60¢
Expenses
Operating expenses 284,01. 266,75’ 225,56« 283,27

Total Expenses 284,01. 266,75’ 225,56« 283,27
Net (loss) income before provision for

income taxes 1,950,79 602,29t 731,18 98,33¢
Benefit from (provision for) income taxes (663,27°) (207,027 (182,55¢) (35,229
Net Income $ 1,287,521 $ 39526¢ $ 54863 $ 63,107
Accretion of Trust Account income relatin

to common stock subject to possible

conversion — — (143,271) (92,489
Net income (loss) attributable to other

common stockholders $ 1,287,521 $ 39526¢ $ 40541 $ (29,38)

Weighted average number of common sh
outstanding, excluding shares subject t
possible conversion — basic and dilutec  24,936,55 24,936,55 24,936,55 24,936,55

Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per shar $ 0.0t $ 0.0z $ 0.0z $ (0.00)
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Item 9. Changes and Disagreements with Accountants Accounting and Financial Disclosures

On October 30, 2009, the audit committee of therBaéd Directors of the Company engaged Ernst & YpuhP as the
principal accountant for Capitol. As a result of ferger, Capitol became a wholly-owned subsididtphe Company, for
which Ernst & Young LLP serves as the principalaogant, and consequently Marcum LLP formerly kn@srMarcum &
Kliegman LLP (“Marcum”) was effectively dismissedeither the Company’s nor Capitol's Boards of Diogs recommended
or approved such decision by the audit committegidver, the Company’s Board of Directors has detxhjto the audit
committee, which is comprised of all of the Compangdependent directors, the authority to engagependent certified
public accountants. Marcum’s report in respechefdudited financial statements of Capitol as afddeber 31, 2008 and 2007,
and for the year ended December 31, 2008 and égpehiods June 26, 2007 (inception) through Dece@beg2007 and 2008
included an explanatory paragraph relating to sutistl doubt about the ability of Capitol to continas a going concern as
described in Note 1 to such financial statementsirig Capitol's two most recent fiscal years angl $hbsequent interim
periods prior to October 30, 2009, neither the Canymor Capitol had any disagreements with Marcaramy matter of
accounting principle or practice, financial statetndisclosure or auditing scope or procedure.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

A review and evaluation was performed by the Corgjfsamanagement, including the Company’s Chief ExieeuOfficer
(the “CEQ") and Chief Financial Officer (the “CFQDf the effectiveness of the design and operaifache Company’s
disclosure controls and procedures (as such tedwefised in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) undeBtdwurities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended (“1934 Act”")) as of the enthefperiod covered by this annual report on ForaK1Based on that review
and evaluation, the CEO and CFO have concludediibaompany’s current disclosure controls and gutaces, as designed
and implemented, were effective. Notwithstanding fidbregoing, a control system, no matter how wetligned and operated,
can provide only reasonable, not absolute, asserduat it will detect or uncover failures withiretiCompany to disclose
material information otherwise required to be settf in the Company’s periodic reports.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

During the quarter ended December 31, 2009, thepgaosnimplemented new systems, processes and coimtrobnnection
with the merger transaction and the transformaticihe business into a mortgage REIT. The Compeamiewed the internal
controls implemented and has successfully testeéffiectiveness of the internal controls.
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Management’s Report On Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Management of the Company is responsible for a@stdbf and maintaining adequate internal contr@rdinancial
reporting for the Company. Internal control overaficial reporting is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) 48d-15(f) promulgated
under the 1934 Act as a process designed by, @ruhd supervision of, the Company’s principal exige and principal
financial officers and effected by the Company’saBh management and other personnel to providemebhfe assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reportingdthe preparation of financial statements for exdepurposes in accordance
with GAAP and includes those policies and procesltinat:

e pertain to the maintenance of records that isapable detail accurately and fairly reflect trensactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company;

e provide reasonable assurance that transactien®eorded as necessary to permit preparatiomafifial statements in
accordance with GAAP, and that receipts and experedi of the Company are being made only in accmelsvith
authorizations of management and directors of th@@ny; and

» provide reasonable assurance regarding preveatibmely detection of unauthorized acquisitiose wr disposition of
the Company'’s assets that could have a materettsdih the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or détisstatements.
Projections of any evaluation of effectivenessutnife periods are subject to the risks that contmdy become inadequate
because of changes in conditions or that the degfreempliance with the policies or procedures rdateriorate.

The Company’s management assessed the effectivehgmsCompany’s internal control over financiaporting as of
December 31, 2009. In making this assessment, ahgp@ny’s management used criteria set forth byCihramittee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commisiidnternal Control-Integrated Framework.

Based on its assessment, the Company’s managerl@vds that, as of December 31, 2009, the Compantérnal
control over financial reporting was effective bé&a those criteria.

The effectiveness of the Company’s internal contk@r financial reporting as of December 31, 2089 lbeen audited by
Ernst & Young LLP, an independent public accounfing, as stated in their report which appears inere

The Company’s independent auditors, Ernst & Youhg Lhave issued an attestation report on the éfégatss of the
Company’s internal control over financial reportifidpis report appears on pagjeof this annual report on Form 10-K.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Two Harbors Investment Corp.

We have audited Two Harbors Investment Corp. srivatecontrol over financial reporting as of DecemBg, 2009, based
on criteria established in Internal Control — Imtg@d Framework issued by the Committee of Spongddrganizations of the
Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). Two Hastdawestment Corp.’s management is responsiblmfontaining
effective internal control over financial reportjrand for its assessment of the effectivenesstefnal control over financial
reporting included in the accompanying Managemeré&port On Internal Control Over Financial Repagti@ur responsibility
is to express an opinion on the Company’s intecoatrol over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadwof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti@dé@nited
States). Those standards require that we plan aridrp the audit to obtain reasonable assurancetatitether effective
internal control over financial reporting was mained in all material respects. Our audit includbthining an understanding
of internal control over financial reporting, assiag the risk that a material weakness existsngsind evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal controkblasn the assessed risk, and performing such ptbeedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. Wevbdliat our audit provides a reasonable basisupbppinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogdiis a process designed to provide reasonableamesuregarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the prepaocat of financial statements for external purpogeadcordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company'’s intecoatrol over financial reporting includes thosgipies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records thate@sonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettiiansactions and dispositions
of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasenaddurance that transactions are recorded assagecés permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with gengdcepted accounting principles, and that receiptsexpenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance withogiztitions of management and directors of the caiyipand (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or tidetgction of unauthorized acquisition, use, opakition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on tlenéial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or d@étisstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectivenessutufe periods are subject to the risk that contmdy become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degfreompliance with the policies or procedures metgriorate.

In our opinion, Two Harbors Investment Corp. maimd, in all material respects, effective interoahtrol over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2009, based on theGCEOieria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States),
the consolidated balance sheet of Two Harbors tmest Corp. as of December 31, 2009, and the cetadasolidated
statements of income (loss), stockholders’ equity @@mprehensive (loss) income, and cash flowghyear then ended of
Two Harbors Investment Corp. and our report dateddi 4, 2010 expressed an unqualified opinion trere

/s/ ERNST & Y OUNG LLP
Ernst & Young LLP

Minneapolis, Minnesota
March 4, 2010
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Item 9A(T). Controls and Procedures
Although the registrant is neither a large accédetdiler nor an accelerated filer, it has eledtedomply with Item 9A.

Item 9B. Other Information

Capitol held a special meeting on October 26, Z00%he purpose of approving the proposed mergestaction between
Capitol and Two Harbors. The results of the meetege as follows:

The stockholders of Capitol approved the followamgendments to Capitol’'s amended and restatedicatéifof
incorporation, such amendments being necessanyaiolethe merger transaction to proceed:

To amend the second paragraph of Article Seventbvise the definition of a “business combinatidmallow Capitol to
complete the merger with Two Harbors Merger Corp.

To delete all references to “fair market value.”

To delete the second sentence of Section F ofl&reventh relating to Capitol obtaining approvatodisinterested
independent directors and obtaining a fairnessiopin

For 21,231,82
Against 8,747,68:
Abstain 980,47¢
Total 30,959,98

The stockholders of Capitol approved the AgreeraeadtPlan of Merger, dated as of June 11, 2009asded as of
August 17, 2009 and September 20, 2009, amongdapio Harbors Merger Corp., Two Harbors and FRiner.

For 23,324,74
Against 7,519,82i
Abstain 115,41¢
Total 30,959,98

The stockholders of Capitol approved the followiifferences between the charter of Two Harborstinkeffect following
the merger transaction and the amended and restéficate of incorporation of Capitol in effdotfore the merger
transaction:

The name of the new public entity will be “Two Harb Investment Corp.” as opposed to “Capitol Acitjois Corp.”

For 23,417,02
Against 6,537,88;
Abstain 1,005,071
Total 30,959,98

Two Harbors will have 450,000,000 authorized shafeommon stock and 50,000,000 authorized shdrpeeerred stock
and may increase or decrease such amounts wittomkhelder approval, as opposed to Capitol havis§00,000 authorized
shares of common stock and 1,000,000 authorize@slod preferred stock and being able to increasecrease such amounts

only with stockholder approval.

For 21,031,82
Against 8,923,08;
Abstain 1,005,071
Total 30,959,98
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Two Harbors’ corporate existence will be perpeasbpposed to Capitol’s corporate existence tettimgan November 8,

20009.
For 23,417,02
Against 6,537,88:
Abstain 1,005,071
Total 30,959,98
Two Harbors’ board of directors will not be clagsif as opposed to Capitol’s which is.
For 23,807,35
Against 6,147,55.
Abstain 1,005,071
Total 30,959,98

Two Harbors’ charter will not include the varioumypisions applicable only to specified purpose #sitjan corporations
that Capitol's amended and restated certificateadrporation contains.

For 23,417,02
Against 6,537,88:
Abstain 1,005,071
Total 30,959,98

Two Harbors’ charter will include a provision thaill assist Two Harbors in qualifying to be treatsla REIT commencing

with Two Harbors’ taxable year ending DecemberZ8]9, which provision is not included in Capitadismended and restated
certificate of incorporation; this provision wiltgvent stockholders or other persons from tranisigracquiring or holding Two
Harbors stock if, as a result, (a) Two Harborstktwill not be beneficially owned by 100 or moregmns, (b) more than 50%
of the value of the outstanding shares of stocklvéilowned, directly or indirectly, by five or femmdividuals (as defined in
the Internal Revenue Code to include certain eslifi(c) any person will own more than 9.8% in gabu in number of shares,
whichever is more restrictive, of Two Harbors conmstock, after applying certain attribution ruleslaubject to certain
exceptions, or (d) any person will own more thaB%,in value or in number of shares, whichever dgsenrestrictive, of Two
Harbors stock, after applying certain attributiofes and subject to certain exceptions.

For 23,417,02
Against 6,537,88;
Abstain 1,005,071
Total 30,959,98

Two Harbors’ charter will include a provision th@bvides that Two Harbors’ board of directors meyoke or otherwise
terminate Two Harbors’ REIT election, without apyaitbof Two Harbors’ stockholders, if it determirtést it is no longer in
Two Harbors’ best interests to continue to quadidya REIT, which provision is not included in Capi# amended and restated

certificate of incorporation.

For 23,417,02
Against 6,537,88:
Abstain 1,005,071
Total 30,959,98
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PART IlI

Items 10, 11, 12 and 13.

We hereby incorporate by reference information ireguby Part Ill (Items 10, 11, 12 and 13) of tAisnual Report from
Two Harbors definitive Proxy Statement for its 20%thual Meeting of Stockholders, which will be filevith the Securities
and Exchange Commission, pursuant to Regulation hdAlater than 120 days after the end of theafigear.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

We retained Ernst & Young LLP (E&Y) to audit ourrsmlidated financial statements for the year eridiecember 31,
2009. We also retained E&Y, as well as other actingrand consulting firms, to provide various otkervices in 2009.

The aggregate fee billed to us for professionalises performed by E&Y were as follows for the yeaded December 31,
20009:

Audit fees® $ 270,00(
Audit-related fee&) 146,90(
Tax fees® 122,00(

Total principal accountant fees $ 538,90(

(a) Audit Feespertain to the audit of our annual ConsolidatedRaial Statements, including review of the intefiimancial
statements contained in our Quarterly Report omFDB-Q for the third quarter of 2009, comfort ledtéo underwriters
in connection with our merger transaction and steglstration, attest services, consents to therpuaration of the E&Y
audit report in publicly filed documents and assise with and review of documents filed with theCSE

(b) Audit Related Feespertain to assurance and related services thataaliionally performed by the principal accountant
including accounting consultations and audits inn@xtion with proposed or consummated acquisitionesrnal control
reviews and consultation concerning financial actiog and reporting standards. A large portiornhefse expenses
appear in our 2009 Consolidated Statement of Opesatnder the financial line “Costs associatedh\witsiness
combination”.

(c) Tax Feespertain to services performed for tax complianoeluding REIT compliance, tax planning and tax adyi
including preparation of tax returns and claimsri&fund and tax-payment planning services. Taxmtanand advice
also includes assistance with tax audits and appaatl tax advice related to specific transactions.

(d) During 2009, there were no other fees billedskrvices provided by our independent registerddipaccounting firm
other than those set forth above.

The services performed by E&Y for the 2009 fisosdhy, subsequent to the merger transaction, weraggeved in
accordance with the pre-approval policy of our A@lhmmittee. This policy requires that all engagetiees and the terms
and scope of all auditing and non-auditing servimeseviewed and approved by the Audit Committeadwnance of their formal
initiation.

The firm of Marcum LLP (formerly Marcum & KliegmarLP) acted as our independent registered publioaating firm
for the fiscal year ended 2008. The following summary of fees paid to Marcum LLP for servicedlszad.

Audit fees $  85,00(
Audit-related fees —
Tax fees 7,70C
Total principal accountant fees $  92,70(

During 2008, there were no fees billed for servipevided by our independent registered public antiag firm other than
those set forth above.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
Documents filed as part of this report:
(1) Consolidated Financial Statements.

The consolidated financial statements of the Comptagether with the independent registered puddimounting firm’s
report thereon, are set forth on pagé&7 through [68] of this annual report on Form 10-K and are incogbed herein by
reference.

(2) Schedules to Consolidated Financial Statements:

All Consolidated Financial Statements schedulesrmodided have been omitted because they are éithpplicable or the
information required is provided in the CompanytnSolidated Financial Statements and Notes theretlided in Part Il,
Item 8, of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

(3) Exhibits:

The exhibits listed on the accompanying index dfibits are filed or incorporated by reference as phthis report.
Exhibit
Number Exhibit Index

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of Jun2dd9, by and among Capitol Acquisition Corp.,
Two Harbors Investment Corp., Two Harbors MergerpCand Pine River Capital Management
L.P. (incorporated by reference to Annex A filediwiPre Effective Amendment No. 4 to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-i¢ (Ro. 333-160199), which was filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on October@ 2&mendment No. 47)).

2.2 Amendment No. 1 to Agreement and Plan of Mergeledlas of August 17, 2009, by and among
Capitol Acquisition Corp., Two Harbors Investmendr@., Two Harbors Merger Corp. and Pine
River Capital Management L.P. (incorporated byneziee to Annex A2 filed with Amendment Nc
4).

2.3 Amendment No. 2 to Agreement and Plan of Mergeiedlas of September 20, 2009, by and ar
Capitol Acquisition Corp., Two Harbors Investmemrf@., Two Harbors Merger Corp. and Pine
River Capital Management L.P. (incorporated bynesfee to Annex A3 filed with Amendment N¢

4).

3.1 Articles of Amendment and Restatement of Two Hasbovestment Corp. (incorporated by
reference to Annex B filed with Amendment No. 4).

3.2 Bylaws of Two Harbors Investment Corp. (incorpodabg reference to Annex C filed with
Amendment No. 4).

4.1 Warrant Agreement between Continental Stock Trargferust Company and Capitol Acquisition
Corp. (filed herewith)

4.2 Specimen Common Stock Certificate of Two Harbokgestment Corp. (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.2 filed with Amendment No. 4).

4.3 Specimen Warrant Certificate of Two Harbors InvesitCorp. (incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 4.3 filed with Pre-Effective Amendment Nbto the Registrant’s Registration Statement on
Form S-4 (File No. 333-160199), which was filediwiihe Securities and Exchange Commission on
August 5, 2009).

4.4 Supplement and Amendment to Warrant Agreement legtv@mntinental Stock Transfer & Trust
Company, Capitol Acquisition Corp. and Two Harblorgestment Corp. (filed herewith)

10.1 Management Agreement (filed herewith)

10.2  Voting and Support Agreement (filed herewith)

10.3 Sub-Management Agreement (filed herewith)

10.4 Shared Facilities and Services Agreemdat(herewith)
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Exhibit
Number Exhibit Index

10.5* 2009 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by refeeeto Exhibit 10.9 filed with Amendment No.

10.6* Form of Restricted Common Stock Award (incorpordigdaeference to Exhibit 10.10.1 filed with
Amendment No. 4).

10.7* Form of Phantom Share Award (incorporated by refegdo Exhibit 10.10.2 filed with Amendment
No. 4).

10.8 Letter agreement, dated June 10, 2009, betweenaCAgquisition Corp. and Citigroup Global
Markets Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhlifit4 filed with Capitol Acquisition Corp.’s
Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed with the Secigstand Exchange Commission on August 21,
2009).

10.9 Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of Oct@Be009, by and among Two Harbors
Investment Corp., Capitol Acquisition Corp. andtagr persons listed on Schedule 1 thereto
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 filedwthe Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioiOatober 28, 2009 (the “Merger Closing 8-
K™).

10.10 Letter Agreement, dated as of October 28, 200%ra/between Two Harbors Investment Corp.
Integrated Holding Group LP (incorporated by refieeeto Exhibit 10.2 filed with the Merger
Closing 8-K).

10.11  Letter Agreement, dated as of October 27, 200%rmy/among Two Harbors Investment Corp.,
Federated Kaufmann Fund, Federated Kaufmann Fuenttl Federated Kaufmann Growth Fund
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 filedwthe Merger Closing 8-K).

10.12  Letter Agreement, dated as of October 28, 200%ra/between Two Harbors Investment Corp.
Whitebox Special Opportunities Fund, LP Seriesredrporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 filed
with the Merger Closing 8-K).

10.13  Letter Agreement, dated as of October 28, 200@ruy/between Capitol Acquisition Corp., Two
Harbors Investment Corp. and Ladenburg Thalmanro&Igx. (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.5 filed with the Merger Closing 8-K).

10.14  Form of Indemnification Agreement (incorporatedrbference to Exhibit 10.1 filed with the Form
8-K dated November 19, 2009)

21.1 Subsidiaries of registrant (filed herewith)

31.1 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer, puesut to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pur:
to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 20f2d herewith)

31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer, puest to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pur:
to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 200@&d herewith)

32.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer, puesut to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2062. (filed herewith)

32.2 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer, puesu to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2062. (filed herewith)

* Management contract or compensatory agreement.

(1) Two Harbors Investment Corp. is also a partgponsor’s Voting and Support Agreements (“Agreetsignvith each of the
following Sponsors: Arno Penzias, Brooke Coburmi@é Acquisition Management LLC, Hugh Panero, Jp#im,
Lawrence Calcano, Mark Ein, Miles Gilburne, Piy&tdha, Richard Donaldson, Raul Fernandez, Thomaelath Ted
Leonsis, and ZG Ventures LLC. In each case, thedmgents differ from Exhhibit 10.2 with respecttie tdentity and
notice address of the Sponsor. In some casespthesSr has not provided a notice address. The Agrats with Capitol
Acquisition Management LLC and ZG Ventures LLC @intan additional representation in Section 3.Majch is not
found in Exhibit 10.2, regarding the good standifithe Sponsor and due authorization to entertimtoAgreement. In all
other material respects, the Agreements are sufabaidentical to Exhibit 10.2.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the usidgeed, hereunto duly authorized.

Two Harbors Investment Corp.
Date: March 4, 2010 By: /s/ THOMAS SIERING

Thomas Siering
Chief Executive Officer, President and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements the Securities Exehawrtof 1934, this report has been signed belowhbyfollowing
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the @éipa and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ THOMAS SEERING Chief Executive Officer, President and March 4, 2010
Director (Principal Executive Officer)

Thomas Siering

/sl EFFREY STOLT Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer March 4, 2010
(Principal Accounting and Financial Officer)

Jeffrey Stolt
/s/ BriAN C. TAYLOR Chairman of the Board of Directors March 4, 2010

Brian C. Taylor

/s/ Mark D. EIN Non-Executive Vice Chairman of the March 4, 2010
Board of Directors

Mark D. Ein
/s] STEPHEN G. KASNET Director March 4, 2010

Stephen G. Kasnet
/s/ WiLLIaAM W. JOHNSON Director March 4, 2010

William W. Johnson
/s W. ReID SANDERS Director March 4, 2010

W. Reid Sanders
/s/ FETER NICULESCU Director March 4, 2010

Peter Niculescu
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Exhibit 4.1
WARRANT AGREEMENT

Agreement made as of November 8, 2007 betweenda&mtuisition Corp., a Delaware corporation, witfices at 509 ' Street,
N.W., Washington, D.C. 2000“Company”), and Continental Stock Transfer & Tr@&tmpany, a New York corporation, with offices at 17
Battery Place, New York, New York 10004 (“Warrargext”).

WHEREAS, the Company has received binding commitméhe “Subscription Agreementsfiom Mark D. Ein, Amanda Eilia
Raul J. Fernandez, Piyush Sodha, Richard C. DomaJdsawrence Calcano, Brooke B. Coburn, Arno Penzitugh Panero, Thomas
Wheeler, Ted Leonsis, Dr. Jeong H. Kim and ZG VesgW LC (collectively, the “Sponsorstd purchase an aggregate of 7,000,000 wal
to purchase one share of the Company’s common ,sgackvalue $.0001 per share (“Common Stodkt)$7.50, subject to adjustment
described herein (“Sponsors’ Warrants”); and

WHEREAS, the Company is engaged in a public oftg(ifPublic Offering”)of Units and, in connection therewith, has detegditt
issue and deliver up to 28,750,000 Warrants (“Rutifarrants” and together with the Sponsors’ Wagattie “Warrants”}to the publi
investors, each Warrant evidencing the right ofttbkeler thereof to purchase one share of CommockStr $7.50, subject to adjustmen
described herein; and

WHEREAS, the Company has filed with the Securiied Exchange Commission a Registration Statemeiroom S-1, No. 333-
144834 (“Registration Statement”), for the regitra under the Securities Act of 1933, as amend&dt”) of, among other securities,
Warrants and the Common Stock issuable upon exeotithe Warrants; and

WHEREAS, the Company desires the Warrant Agenttma behalf of the Company, and the Warrant Agemtilling to so act, i
connection with the issuance, registration, transiechange, redemption and exercise of the Wasrand

WHEREAS, the Company desires to provide for thenfand provisions of the Warrants, the terms upoithvthey shall be issu
and exercised, and the respective rights, limitaté rights, and immunities of the Company, the War Agent, and the holders of
Warrants; and




WHEREAS, all acts and things have been done arfdrmpeed which are necessary to make the Warrantsnwefecuted on behalf
the Company and countersigned by or on behalf efVitarrant Agent, as provided herein, the validdisig and legal obligations of t
Company, and to authorize the execution and delieethis Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agnents herein contained, the parties hereto agréslews:
1. Appointment of Warrant AgenfThe Company hereby appoints the Warrant Ageattas agent for the Company for the Warr

and the Warrant Agent hereby accepts such appoitarel agrees to perform the same in accordantethétterms and conditions set fc
in this Agreement.

2. Warrants

2.1 Form of Warrant Each Warrant shall be issued in registered fomy, shall be in substantially the form of Exhil
hereto, the provisions of which are incorporatexkimeand shall be signed by, or bear the facsisigaature of, the Chairman of the Boar
President and Treasurer, Secretary or Assistaretey of the Company and shall bear a facsimilthefCompanys seal. In the event t
person whose facsimile signature has been placed apy Warrant shall have ceased to serve in thacity in which such person signed
Warrant before such Warrant is issued, it may beed with the same effect as if he or she hadewstead to be such at the date of issuance.

2.2. Effect of CountersignaturéJnless and until countersigned by the Warranémtgursuant to this Agreement, a War
shall be invalid and of no effect and may not bereised by the holder thereof.

2.3. Registration

2.3.1. Warrant RegisterThe Warrant Agent shall maintain books (“WarrBetister”),for the registration of origin
issuance and the registration of transfer of thersivds. Upon the initial issuance of the Warratite, Warrant Agent shall issue and reg
the Warrants in the names of the respective holdengof in such denominations and otherwise i@tamce with instructions deliverec
the Warrant Agent by the Company.




2.3.2. Registered HolderPrior to due presentment for registration ohsfar of any Warrant, the Company and
Warrant Agent may deem and treat the person in @hame such Warrant shall be registered upon threaviteRegister (“registered holdgr”
as the absolute owner of such Warrant and of eamhrait represented thereby (notwithstanding angtioot of ownership or other writing
the Warrant Certificate made by anyone other tienGompany or the Warrant Agent), for the purpdsany exercise thereof, and for
other purposes, and neither the Company nor theaMafgent shall be affected by any notice to thetiary.

2.4. Detachability of WarrantsThe securities comprising the Units will not &eparately transferable until 35 days afte:
date hereof unless Citigroup Global Markets In€itfgroup”) informs the Company of its decision to allow earleparate trading, but in
event will Citigroup allow separate trading of thecurities comprising the Units until the Compaitgsfa Current Report on Formk8which
includes an audited balance sheet reflecting theipe by the Company of the gross proceeds of thadid® Offering including the procee
received by the Company from the exercise of thdddnriter’'s over-allotment option, if the ovalotment option is exercised prior to
filing of the Form 8-K.

25 Sponsor§Varrants. The SponsordNarrants will be issued in the same form as thdi®uBarrants but they (i) will not t
transferable or salable until the Company complatbasiness combination (subject to the terms@&hbscription Agreements) and (ii) \
be exercisable on a cashless basis and will beredeemable by the Company so long as they arelyettle Sponsors or their permit
transferees (as described in the Subscription Ageats).

3. Terms and Exercise of Warrants

3.1 Warrant Price Each Warrant shall, when countersigned by ther&a Agent, entitle the registered holder thersabjec
to the provisions of such Warrant and of this WatrrAgreement, to purchase from the Company the murob shares of Common Stc
stated therein, at the price of $7.50 per wholgeshsubject to the adjustments provided in Sedfidrereof and in the last sentence of
Section 3.1. The term “Warrant Prica% used in this Warrant Agreement refers to theepper share at which Common Stock ma
purchased at the time a Warrant is exercised. Gtipany in its sole discretion may lower the WatrBrice at any time prior to t
Expiration Date for a period of not less than 18ibess days; provided, however, that any such tedushall be identical in percentage te
among all of the Warrants.




3.2. Duration of WarrantsA Warrant may be exercised only during the gk(i&Exercise Period’rommencing on the later
(i) the consummation by the Company of a mergguiteastock exchange, asset acquisition, stockhase, reorganization or other sim
business combination (“Business Combination”) (ascdbed more fully in the CompamsyRegistration Statement) and (i) Novembe
2008, and terminating at 5:00 p.m., New York Citye on the earlier to occur of (i) November 7, 2@tZii) the date fixed for redemption
the Warrants as provided in Section 6 of this Agreet (“Expiration Date”).Except with respect to the right to receive the étegtion Pric
(as set forth in Section 6 hereunder), each Warrahéxercised on or before the Expiration Datdl dlewome void, and all rights thereun
and all rights in respect thereof under this Agreetrshall cease at the close of business on thedfiop Date. The Company in its s
discretion may extend the duration of the Warrémytslelaying the Expiration Date; provided, howetbat the Company will provide noti
to registered holders of the Warrants of such eskbenof not less than 20 days.

3.3. Exercise of Warrants

3.3.1. Payment Subject to the provisions of the Warrant ang tWarrant Agreement, a Warrant, w
countersigned by the Warrant Agent, may be exeatdigethe registered holder thereof by surrendeitirgt the office of the Warrant Agent,
at the office of its successor as Warrant AgenthenBorough of Manhattan, City and State of Newkyavith the subscription form, as
forth in the Warrant, duly executed, and by payimdull the Warrant Price for each full share off@mon Stock as to which the Warrar
exercised and any and all applicable taxes duennection with the exercise of the Warrant, aofed:

(a) in cash, good certified check or good banktdqrajable to the order of the Company (or as otlseragreed to by the Company);

(b) in the event of redemption pursuant to Sec@dmereof in which the Comparsymanagement has elected to force all holde
Warrants to exercise such Warrants on a “cashlasis,bby surrendering the Warrants for that number ofeshaf Common Stock equal
the quotient obtained by dividing (x) the produéttile number of shares of Common Stock underlylmg Warrants, multiplied by tl
difference between the Warrant Price and the “Mairket Value”by (y) the Fair Market Value. Solely for purposdshis Section 3.3.1(k
the “Fair Market Valueshall mean the average reported last sale pridtheofCommon Stock for the 10 trading days endinghanthirc
trading day prior to the date on which the notiteedemption is sent to holders of Warrant purst@ai@ection 6 hereof; or




(c) with respect to any Sponsors’ Warrants, so lsguch SponsorgV/arrants are held by the Sponsors or their perdhitensferee
(as described in the Subscription Agreements),uoseadering such SponsoMarrants for that number of shares of Common Seaplal tc
the quotient obtained by dividing (x) the produéttile number of shares of Common Stock underlylmg Warrants, multiplied by tl
difference between the exercise price of the Wasrand the “Fair Market Valudiy (y) the Fair Market Value. Solely for purposdsthis
Section 3.3.1(c), the “Fair Market Valushall mean the average last sales price of the Gomtock in the principal trading market for
Common Stock as reported by any national secugtiehange or quoted on the NASD OTC Bulletin Bo@mdsuccessor exchange), as
case may be, for the five trading days ending ertridlding day preceding the date the Sponsors’ Alitarare exercised.

3.3.2. Issuance of Certificate#\s soon as practicable after the exercise of\ayrant and the clearance of the fi
in payment of the Warrant Price, the Company shalle to the registered holder of such Warrantticate or certificates for the number
full shares of Common Stock to which he is entitiegdjistered in such name or names as may be atirbgthim, her or it, and if such Warr
shall not have been exercised in full, a new casigeed Warrant for the number of shares as to lwhiech Warrant shall not have b
exercised. Subject to Section 7.4 and notwithstanthe foregoing, the Company shall not be obéidab deliver any securities pursuar
the exercise of a Warrant and shall have no oliigab settle such Warrant exercise unless a ragjish statement under the Act with res
to the Common Stock issuable upon exercise of therdiits is effective and a current prospectusingldd such Common Stock is availal
or in the opinion of counsel to the Company, thereise of the Warrants is exempt from the registnatequirements of the Act and si
securities are qualified for sale or exempt fronaldication under applicable securities laws of gtates or other jurisdictions in which
registered holders reside. For purposes of clatifia, in no event will a Sponsoré/arrant be exercised unless a registration stateomate
the Act relating to the Common Stock issuable uprercise of the Public Warrants is effective ancuerent prospectus relating to s
Common Stock is available. In the event that @stegfion statement with respect to the Common IStoderlying a Warrant is not effect
under the Act and a current prospectus relatingutth Common Stock is not available, the holderumhsWarrant shall not be entitled
exercise such Warrant and such Warrant may hawalue and expire worthless. In no event will therpany be required to net cash s
the exercise of the Public Warrants. Warrants nwybe exercised by, or securities issued to, agistered holder in any state in which s
exercise would be unlawful. In the event that aistegtion statement is not effective for the exeedi Warrants and a current prospe
relating to such Common Stock is not available,pghechaser of a unit containing such Warrant, téive paid the full purchase price for
unit solely for the shares included in such unit.




3.3.3. Valid IssuanceAll shares of Common Stock issued upon the prepercise of a Warrant in conformity w
this Agreement shall be validly issued, fully paitd nonassessable.

3.3.4. Date of IssuanceEach person in whose name any such certificatseifares of Common Stock is issued sha
all purposes be deemed to have become the holdecoid of such shares on the date on which thedffawas surrendered and paymel
the Warrant Price was made, irrespective of the datelivery of such certificate, except thatthié date of such surrender and paymen
date when the stock transfer books of the Compaayclased, such person shall be deemed to havenget®e holder of such shares at
close of business on the next succeeding date arhwie stock transfer books are open.

3.3.5. Intentionally Omitted.

4. Adjustments

The number of shares of Common Stock issuable tipexercise of each Warrant is subject to adjustritem time to time upc
the occurrence of the events enumerated in thiidded. For purposes of this Section 4, “Commoac8t means shares now or heree
authorized of any class of common stock of the Camgpand any other stock of the Company, howevegdated, that has the right (sub
to any prior rights of any class or series of pmefé stock) to participate in any distribution bétassets or earnings of the Company wi
limit as to per share amount.

4.1 Adjustment for Change in Capitalckto If the Company:
(1) pays a dividend or makes a distritnuton its Common Stock in either case in sharéts @ommon Stock;
2 subdivides its outstanding shareS@hmon Stock into a greater number of shares;
3) combines its outstanding shares ah@on Stock into a smaller number of shares;
(4) makes a distribution on its CommoacRtin shares of its capital stock other than Comi@tock; or




(5) issues by reclassification of its @Gnan Stock any shares of its capital stock,

then the number of shares of Common Stock issugie exercise of each Warrant immediately priosuoh action shall be proportional
adjusted so that the holder of any Warrant thezeafercised shall receive the aggregate numbekiandof shares of capital stock of
Company which he would have owned immediately feifg such action if such Warrant had been exerdisadediately prior to such actic

The adjustment shall become effective immediatdtgrathe record date in the case of a dividend istridution an
immediately after the effective date in the case sfibdivision, combination or reclassification.

Such adjustment shall be made successively whea@yeevent listed above shall occur.

4.2 Adjustment for Rights Issudf the Company distributes any rights, optionsaarrants to all holders of its Common St
entitling them to purchase shares of Common Stoekpaice per share less than the Closing Pricesipare on the Business Day immedie
preceding the edividend date for such distribution of rights, apts or warrants, the number of shares of CommonkSg&suable upc
exercise of each Warrant shall be adjusted in aecme with the formula:

N =N x O + A

O + (APAM)
where:

N’ = the adjusted number of shares of Common Stsmkable upon exercise of each Warrant.

N = the current number of shares of Common Stseskable upon exercise of each Warrant.

O =the number of shares of Common Stock outstgnain the record date for such distribution.

A = the number of additional shares of Common Stesuable pursuant to such rights or warrants.
P = the purchase price per share of the additsihaes.

M = the Closing Price per share of Common Stockherrecord date.




The adjustment shall be made successively whermwersuch rights, options or warrants are issued siradl becom
effective immediately after the record date for determination of stockholders entitled to recaherights, options or warrants. If at the
of the period during which such rights, optionsa@rrants are exercisable, not all rights, optionsvarrants shall have been exercised
number of shares of Common Stock issuable uporciseeof each Warrant shall be immediately readfustevhat it would have been if “N”
in the above formula had been the number of stetemlly issued.

4.3 Adjustment for Other Distributionslf the Company distributes to all holders of @@mmon Stock any of its ass
(including cash) or debt securities or any rigbggions or warrants to purchase debt securitisgta®r other securities of the Company (¢
than Common Stock), the number of shares of ComB&took issuable upon exercise of each Warrant beadldjusted in accordance with
formula:

N = N x M
M- F

where:
N’ =  the adjusted number of shares of Common Stockh$sugon exercise of each Warre
N =  the current number of shares of Common Stock idesuginn exercise of each Warrs
M =  the Closing Price per share of Common Stock onBihginess Day immediately preceding thedexedend date for suc

distribution.
F = the fair market value on the ekvidend date for such distribution of the asss¢gurities, rights or warrants distributabl

one share of Common Stock after taking into accoimthe case of any rights, options or warrarig, ¢onsideratic
required to be paid upon exercise thereof. TherdBo&Directors shall reasonably determine the fia@irket value in goc
faith.

The adjustment shall be made successively whersawesuch distribution is made and shall becomecefie immediatel
after the record date for the determination of ldtoedders entitled to receive such distribution.




This Section 4.3 does not apply to regular quarteaksh dividends including increases thereof dntsigoptions or warrar
referred to in Section 4.2. If any adjustment &de pursuant to this Section 4.3 as a result ofsteance of rights, options or warrants at
the end of the period during which any such rigbfgtjons or warrants are exercisable, not all sigiits, options or warrants shall have t
exercised, the Warrant shall be immediately reaeguas if “F” in the above formula was the fair k&trvalue on the egividend date fc
such distribution of the indebtedness or assetsaligtdistributed upon exercise of such rights,jam or warrants divided by the numbe
shares of Common Stock outstanding on thelieidend date for such distribution. Notwithstamglianything to the contrary contained in
Section 4.3, if “M-F” in the above formula is letan $1.00, the Company may elect to, and if “MeF’is a negative number, the Comp
shall, in lieu of the adjustment otherwise requildthis Section 4.3, distribute to the holderstted Warrants, upon exercise thereof,
evidences of indebtedness, assets, rights, optiongrrants (or the proceeds thereof) which wowdehbeen distributed to such holders
such Warrants been exercised immediately priohéaécord date for such distribution.

4.4 Adjustment for Common Stock Issuethe Company issues shares of Common Stock famsideration per share less |
the Closing Price per share on the date the Comfeery the offering price of such additional shatbe number of shares of Common S
issuable upon exercise of each Warrant shall bestalj in accordance with the formula:

N = N x A
O + PM

where:
N’ =  the adjusted number of shares of Common Stockh$sugon exercise of each Warre
N =  the current number of shares of Common Stock ideuginn exercise of each Warrs
O = the number of shares outstanding immediately poidhe issuance of such additional sha
P = the aggregate consideration received for the issiahsuch additional share
M =  the Closing Price per share on the date of issuahsech additional share
A =  the number of shares outstanding immediately #tieeissuance of such additional sha

The adjustment shall be made successively whers@weisuch issuance is made, and shall become eHeictimediatel
after such issuance.




This Section 4.4 does not apply to:
Q) any of the transactions described irtiSes 4.2 and 4.3,

2 the exercise of Warrants, or the coriearsr exchange of other securities convertiblexarhangeable for Comm
Stock, or the issuance of Common Stock upon theceesof rights or warrants issued to the holdéSGamnmon Stock,

3) Common Stock (and options exercisabdedtor) issued to the Compasyemployees, officers, directors, consult
or advisors (whether or not still in such capaoitythe date of exercise) under bona fide emplogeefit plans or stock option ple
adopted by the board of directors of the Compary approved by the holders of Common Stock wheniredwy law, if suc
Common Stock would otherwise be covered by thigiGed.4,

4) Common Stock issued in a bona fide pubffering for cash,

(5) Common Stock issued in a bona fide peiyaacement to noaffiliates of the Company, including without limiian
the issuance of equity as consideration or pastinkideration for acquisitions from persons thatrat affiliates of the Company.

4.5 Adjustment for Convertible Securitissue. If the Company issues any securities convertible or exchangeable 1
Common Stock (other than securities issued in &etitns described in Sections 4.2 and 4.3) forresideration per share of Common St
initially deliverable upon conversion or exchandesach securities less than the Closing Price pareson the date of issuance of ¢
securities, the number of shares of Common Statlalsle upon exercise of each Warrant shall be &djuis accordance with this formula:

N = N x O + D
O + P/M
where:
N’ =  the adjusted number of shares of Common Stockh$sugon exercise of each Warre
N =  the current number of shares of Common Stock idsuginn exercise of each Warrs
O = the number of shares outstanding immediately poidhe issuance of such securiti

10




P =  the aggregate consideration received for the isgiahsuch securitie
M =  the Closing Price per share on the date of issuahsech securities
D = the maximum number of shares deliverable upon asiofe or in exchange for such securities at thiéaintonversion ¢

exchange rate

The adjustment shall be made successively whersweisuch issuance is made, and shall become eHeictimediatel
after such issuance.

If all of the Common Stock deliverable upon coniarsor exchange of such securities have not besred when su
securities are no longer outstanding, then the murobshares of Common Stock issuable upon exedfisach Warrant shall promptly
readjusted to what it would have been had the &dprst upon the issuance of such securities beer madhe basis of the actual numbe
shares of Common Stock issued upon conversionalragge of such securities.

This Section 4.5 does not apply to:
Q) convertible securities issued in adéide public offering for cash; or

2 convertible securities issued in anddide private placement to neifffiliates of the Company, including 1
issuance of convertible securities as consideratiopartial consideration for acquisitions from gmrs that are not affiliates of -
Company.

4.6 Adjustment for Tender or Exchangé&©OfIf the Company or any of its subsidiaries makesyment in respect of a ten
offer or exchange offer for the Common Stock, & ttash and value of any other consideration indudethe payment per share of
Common Stock exceeds the Closing Price of the ComBimck on the trading day next succeeding the dag¢ on which tenders
exchanges may be made pursuant to such tendercbarge offer, the number of shares of Common Sisxikable upon exercise of e
Warrant will be increased based on the followingrfola:

o o AC + (SF xO8")
N'=N x - -
5 4:_. 'I.l:lrl_ v ;Jl:Dl
where,
N =  the adjusted number of shares of Common Stocklidswgon exercise of each Warre
N = the current number of shares of Common Stock idsugibn exercise of each warrant;
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AC=  the aggregate value of all cash and any other deration (as determined by the board of directdth® Company) paid
payable for shares purchased in such tender omegehoffer

Os, = the number of shares of Common Stock outstandimgeidiately prior to the date such tender or exchafige expires;
Of< = the number of shares of Common Stock outstandimgeidiately after the date such tender or exchanfge expires; an
SF = the Closing Price of the Common Stock on the trgdiay next succeeding the date such tender or egehaifer expires

The adjustment shall be made successively and sbedme effective immediately following the datetstender or
exchange offer expires.

4.7 Consideration Receive#or purposes of any computation respecting cenatibn received pursuant to Sections 4.4
and 4.6, the following shall apply:

1) in the case of the issuance of shaf&ommon Stock for cash, the consideration dhallhe amount of such ca
provided that in no case shall any deduction beariadany commissions, discounts or other expeimsesred by the Company 1
any underwriting or other sale or disposition @ thsue or otherwise in connection therewith;

2 in the case of the issuance of shaf€dommon Stock for a consideration in whole opart other than cash, !
consideration other than cash shall be deemed toebfair market value thereof as reasonably detemnby the board of directors
the Company (irrespective of the accounting treatnkereof) and described in a board resolutionctvighall be filed with tr
Warrant Agent; and

) in the case of the issuance of séieariconvertible into or exchangeable for shares,aggregate considerat
received therefor shall be deemed to be the coraida received by the Company for the issuanceumh securities plus t
additional minimum consideration, if any, to beaiwed by the Company upon the conversion or exahamereof for the maximu
number of shares used to calculate the adjustrftbetconsideration in each case to be determindukisame manner as provide
clauses (1) and (2) of this Section 4.7).
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4.8 Defined Terms; When De Minimis Adusint May Be DeferredAs used in this Section 4:

Q) The “Closing Price” of the Common Stamn any date of determination means;

() the closing sale price for the regular trading imes@wvithout considering after hours or other tragoutside reguli
trading session hours) of the Common Stock (regubar) on the American Stock Exchange on that dateif(nc
closing price is reported, the last reported saltepuring that regular trading sessic

(i) if the Common Stock is not listed for trading ore tAmerican Stock Exchange on that date, as repantele
composite transactions for the principal Unitedé&aecurities exchange on which the Common Sios& listed

(iii) if the Common Stock is not so reported, the lasiteg bid price for the Common Stock in the overtbante
market as reported by the OTC Bulletin Board, tlatidhal Quotation Bureau or similar organization

(iv) if the Common Stock is not so quoted, the averdgheomidpoint of the last bid and ask prices for the Com
Stock from at least three nationally recognizedstment banking firms that the Company selectshisrpurpose

(2 “ex-dividend date” means the firstadan which the shares of Common Stock trade oapipéicable exchange or in the
applicable market, regular way, without the righteceive the issuance or distribution in question;

3) “trading dayfmeans, with respect to the Common Stock or anyr aéaeurity, a day during which (i) trading in ther@mor
Stock or such other security generally occurstliigre is no market disruption event (as definddveand (iii) a Closing Price for the
Common Stock or such other security (other thatoai@y Price referred to in the next to last claoksuch definition) is available for such
day; providedthat if the Common Stock or such other securityasadmitted for trading or quotation on or by &xghange, bureau or other
organization, “trading day” will mean any Businé3ay;
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4 “market disruption event” means, wiéspect to the Common Stock or any other secuhig/pccurrence or existence of
more than one-half hour period in the aggregatngrscheduled trading day for the Common Stockioh ®ther security of any suspension
or limitation imposed on trading (by reason of mmesits in price exceeding limits permitted by thecktexchange or otherwise) in the
Common Stock or such other security or in any e@i@ontract, or future contracts relating to tleen@on Stock or such other security, and
such suspension or limitation occurs or existsgttame before 1:00 p.m. (New York time) on sucly;dand

(5) “Business Day” means, any day on Whiee American Stock Exchange is open for tradimdj\ahich is not a Saturday, a
Sunday or any other day on which banks in the &fitflew York, New York, are authorized or requirgdlaw to close.

No adjustment in the number of shares of CommaorkSissuable upon exercise of each Warrant needdue unless tl
adjustment would require an increase or decreasg lefaist 1% in such number. Any adjustmentsdhatnot made shall be carried forwn
and taken into account in any subsequent adjustment

All calculations under this Section 4 shall be m&mlthe nearest cent or to the nearest 1/10(sbfre, as the case may

4.9 When No Adjustment Requireo adjustment need be made for a transactionreeféo in Sections 4.2, 4.3, 4.4, 4.5 or
if Warrant holders are to participate, without rigitng the Warrants to be exercised, in the transaain a basis and with notice that the b
of directors of the Company reasonably determinelset fair and appropriate in light of the basis antice on which holders of Comm
Stock participate in the transaction.

No adjustment need be made for a change in thegbae or no par value of the Common Stock.

To the extent the Warrants become convertible dgatsh, no adjustment need be made thereafter the tamount of ca:
into which such Warrants are exercisable. Intesésnot accrue on the cash.

4.10 Notice of AdjustmentWhenever the number of shares of Common Stoalalide upon exercise of each Warrar
adjusted, the Company shall provide the noticesired by Section 4.19 hereof.
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4.11 Notice of Certain Transaction§

Q) the Company takes any action thatldioequire an adjustment in the Warrant Price pamstio Sections 4.1, 4
4.3,4.4, 4.5 or 4.6 and if the Company does natnge for Warrant holders to participate pursuar@dction 4.9;

(2) the Company takes any action thatldioequire a supplemental Warrant Agreement putsteeSection 4.12; or
3) there is a liquidation or dissolutioithe Company,

the Company shall mail to Warrant holders a nosi@ing the proposed record date for a dividendistribution or the proposed effect
date of a subdivision, combination, reclassificaticonsolidation, merger, transfer, lease, liquatabr dissolution. The Company shall n
the notice at least 15 days before such dateureaib mail the notice or any defect in it shalt affect the validity of the transaction.

412 Reorganization of Companlf the Company consolidates or merges with oo,ior transfers or leases all or substant
all its assets to, any person, upon consummatiosuol transaction the Warrants shall automatida#lyome exercisable for the kind
amount of securities, cash or other assets whiehhtiider of a Warrant would have owned immediatdter the consolidation, merg
transfer or lease if such holder had exercisedvaerant immediately before the effective date af transactionprovidedthat (i) if the
holders of Common Stock were entitled to exercismglat of election as to the kind or amount of gé@s, cash or other assets receiv
upon such consolidation or merger, then the kind amount of securities, cash or other assets fdchwhach Warrant shall beco
exercisable shall be deemed to be the weightedhgeenf the kind and amount received per share dyhdhders of Common Stock in s
consolidation or merger that affirmatively makeIsedection or (i) if a tender or exchange offealhhave been made to and accepted b
holders of Common Stock under circumstances in lwhipon completion of such tender or exchange offfer maker thereof, together w
members of any group (within the meaning of Ruld-2®)(1) under the Exchange Act) of which such magex part, and together with ¢
affiliate or associate of such maker (within theamiag of Rule 12t2 under the Exchange Act) and any members of acly gtoup of whic
any such affiliate or associate is a part, own fieiafly (within the meaning of Rule 138-under the Exchange Act) more than 50% o
outstanding shares of Common Stock, the holder @faarant shall be entitled to receive the highesbant of cash, securities or ot
property to which such holder would actually haeeib entitled as a shareholder if such Warrant hdldd exercised the Warrant prior to
expiration of such tender or exchange offer, a@xeptich offer and all of the Common Stock heldunhsholder had been purchased purs
to such tender or exchange offer, subject to agiests (from and after the consummation of suchedemd exchange offer) as ne¢
equivalent as possible to the adjustments provfdedn this Section 4. Concurrently with the comsunation of any such transaction,
corporation or other entity formed by or surviviagy such consolidation or merger if other thanGloenpany, or the person to which s
sale or conveyance shall have been made, shall erte a supplemental Warrant Agreement so progdamd further providing fi
adjustments which shall be as nearly equivalembag be practical to the adjustments provided fahis Section 4. The successor Comj
shall mail to Warrant holders a notice describimg $upplemental Warrant Agreement.
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If the issuer of securities deliverable upon exs@f Warrants under the supplemental Warrant Ageee is an affiliate (
the formed, surviving, transferee or lessee cotmmrathat issuer shall join in the supplementalrk&iat Agreement.

If this Section 4.12 applies, Sections 4.1, 4.3, 4.4, 4.5 and 4.6 do not apply.

4.13 Warrant Agerg Disclaimer. The Warrant Agent has no duty to determine whreadjustment under this Section 4 sh
be made, how it should be made or what it shouldTdee Warrant Agent has no duty to determine wdredimy provisions of a supplemel
Warrant Agreement under Section 4.12 are corfébe Warrant Agent makes no representation as tedhdity or value of any securities
assets issued upon exercise of Warrants. The Wakgent shall not be responsible for the Compafsilsire to comply with this Section 4.

414 When Issuance or Payment May Be Dedertn any case in which this Section 4 shall reqtiva an adjustment in t
number of shares of Common Stock issuable uporciseeof each Warrant be made effective as of ardedate for a specified event,
Company may elect to defer until the occurrencsumh event (i) issuing to the holder of any Warmxercised after such record date
Warrant Shares and other capital stock of the Compi& any, issuable upon such exercise over aravatthe Warrant Shares and o
capital stock of the Company, if any, issuable upaoh exercise on the basis of the number of shaEfr€&ommon Stock issuable ug
exercise of each Warrant and (ii) paying to suchldroany amount in cash in lieu of a fractional rehpursuant to Section 4.18 her
provided, however, that the Company shall deliver to such holdeue kill or other appropriate instrument evidencingh holders right tc
receive such additional Warrant Shares, other algtivck and cash upon the occurrence of the eegniring such adjustment.
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4.15 Adjustment in Warrant Pric&pon each event that provides for an adjustmétiitenumber of shares of Common St
issuable upon exercise of each Warrant pursuattisoSection 4, each Warrant outstanding priorh® making of the adjustment sl
thereafter have an adjusted Warrant Price (cakdltt the nearest ten millionth) obtained fromféilowing formula:

N
E'=E x—
N'
where:
E'= the adjusted Warrant Pric

= the Warrant Price prior to adjustme

N’ = the adjusted number of Warrant Shares issuable egercise of a Warrant by payment of the adjustedra
Price.
N =  the number of Warrant Shares previously issuabta gxercise of a Warrant by payment of the WarPaite prio

to adjustment

Following any adjustment to the Warrant Price panguo this Section 4, the amount payable, wheostéelfl and togeth
with any consideration allocated to the issuancthefWarrants, shall never be less than the paleviaér Warrant Share at the time of ¢
adjustment. Such adjustment shall be made suvetssihenever any event listed above shall occur.

4.16 Form of Warrantsirrespective of any adjustments in the numbekiond of shares issuable upon the exercise @
Warrants or the Warrant Price, Warrants theretoforéhereafter issued may continue to express @ngesnumber and kind of shares
Warrant Price as are stated in the Warrants ihjtisbuable pursuant to this Agreement.

4.17 Other Dilutive Eventdn case any event shall occur affecting the Camgpas to which the provisions of this Section ¢
not strictly applicable, but would impact the haklef Warrants adversely as compared to holdefSoofimon Stock, and the failure to m
any adjustment would not fairly protect the pur@&hdghts represented by the Warrants in accordaitbethe essential intent and principle:
this Section then, in each such case, the Comgaallyappoint a firm of independent public accoutgamvestment banking or other appre
firm of recognized national standing which shaileggtheir opinion upon the adjustment, if any, dpaais consistent with the essential in
and principles established in this Section 4, nesngsto preserve, without dilution, the purchagats represented by the Warrants.
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4.18 Fractional InterestsThe Company shall not be required to issue faeli shares of Common Stock on the exerci:
Warrants. If more than one Warrant shall be priesefor exercise in full at the same time by thmedolder, the number of full shares
Common Stock which shall be issuable upon the ésethereof shall be computed on the basis of gigeegate number of shares of Comi
Stock purchasable on exercise of the Warrants egepted. If any fraction of a shares of CommorlSwould, except for the provisions
this Section 4.18, be issuable on the exercis@pMdarrants (or specified portion thereof), the @amy shall pay an amount in cash equ
the fair market value on the day immediately préwgthe date the Warrant is presented for exeroisstiplied by such fraction.

4.19 Notices to Warrant HolderdJpon any adjustment of the Warrant Price purst@ection 4, the Company shall prom
thereafter, and in any event within five dayscélse to be filed with the Warrant Agent a cedificexecuted by the Chief Financial Off
of the Company setting forth the number of shafegSammon Stock issuable upon exercise of each Whaféer such adjustment and set
forth in reasonable detail the method of calculatimd the facts upon which such calculations asedhaand (ii) cause to be given to eac
the registered holders of the Warrant Certificatehis address appearing on the Warrant registétewmotice of such adjustments by first-
class mail, postage prepaid. Where appropriath satice may be given in advance and includederiaof the notice required to be ma
under the other provisions of this Section 4.18e Warrant Agent shall be fully protected in retyion any such certificate and on
adjustment therein contained and shall not be ddeimérave knowledge of such adjustment unless amidl iti shall have received su
certificate.

In case:

(@) the Company shall authorize the issado all holders of shares of Common Stock dftegoptions or warrants
subscribe for or purchase shares of Common Stookamy other subscription rights or warrants; or

(b) the Company shall authorize the ihstion to all holders of shares of Common Stockeeofdences of i

indebtedness or assets (other than regular castedils or dividends payable in shares of CommorkStw distributions referred to
Section 4.2 hereof); or
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(c) of any consolidation or merger to gfhthe Company is a party and for which approvamf shareholders of t
Company is required, or of the conveyance or temnef the properties and assets of the Companytantiely as an entirety, or of a
reclassification or change of Common Stock issuaplen exercise of the Warrants (other than a changar value, or from par value to
par value, or from no par value to par value, oaassult of a subdivision or combination), or ader offer or exchange offer for share
Common Stock; or

(d) of the voluntary or involuntary digston, liquidation or winding up of the Company; o

(e) the Company proposes to take anypmgibt specified above which would require an adjest of the Warra
Price pursuant to Section 4 hereof;

then the Company shall cause to be filed with thetaht Agent and shall cause to be given to eatheofegistered holders of the War
Certificates at his address appearing on the Waregister, at least 10 calendar days prior toajmglicable record date hereinafter speci
or as promptly as practicable under the circum&srno the case of events for which there is norcedate, by firstlass mail, postay
prepaid, a written notice stating (i) the date fsvbich the holders of record of shares of CommuociSto be entitled to receive any s
rights, options, warrants or distribution are tode¢ermined, or (ii) the initial expiration datd g&rth in any tender offer or exchange offer
shares of Common Stock, or (iii) the date on whaadly such consolidation, merger, conveyance, trangdigsolution, liquidation or windir
up is expected to become effective or consummated the date as of which it is expected that heldérecord of shares of Common St
shall be entitled to exchange such shares for gesuor other property, if any, deliverable uparls reclassification, consolidation, mer
conveyance, transfer, dissolution, liquidation anding up. The failure to give the notice requitgdthis Section 4.19 or any defect the
shall not affect the legality or validity of anystlibution, right, option, warrant, consolidatiomerger, conveyance, transfer, dissolu
liquidation or winding up, or the vote upon anyiawt

Nothing contained in this Agreement or in any @& Warrant Certificates shall be construed as canfgupon the holders thereof the right

vote or to consent or to receive notice as shadehslin respect of the meetings of shareholdetiseoelection of directors of the Company or
any other matter, or any rights whatsoever as sloéders of the Company.
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4. Transfer and Exchange of Warrants.

4.1. Registration of TransferThe Warrant Agent shall register the transfeymf time to time, of any outstanding Wari
upon the Warrant Register, upon surrender of sudrraMt for transfer, properly endorsed with sigreguproperly guaranteed ¢
accompanied by appropriate instructions for transfépon any such transfer, a new Warrant représgrgn equal aggregate numbe
Warrants shall be issued and the old Warrant &lealtancelled by the Warrant Agent. The Warrantsaselled shall be delivered by
Warrant Agent to the Company from time to time upequest.

4.2. Procedure for Surrender of Warranfgarrants may be surrendered to the Warrant Adegéther with a written requi
for exchange or transfer, and thereupon the Warkgent shall issue in exchange therefor one or mmene Warrants as requested by
registered holder of the Warrants so surrendesgesenting an equal aggregate number of Warnamtgided, however, that in the event:
a Warrant surrendered for transfer bears a raswidégend, the Warrant Agent shall not cancel srrant and issue new Warrant:
exchange therefor until the Warrant Agent has xeckian opinion of counsel for the Company stathmgf such transfer may be made
indicating whether the new Warrants must also beastrictive legend.

4.3. Fractional WarrantsThe Warrant Agent shall not be required to @féaty registration of transfer or exchange which
result in the issuance of a warrant certificategfdraction of a warrant.

4.4. Service ChargedNo service charge shall be made for any exchangegistration of transfer of Warrants.
4.5. Warrant Execution and Countersigreat The Warrant Agent is hereby authorized to cagiga and to deliver,

accordance with the terms of this Agreement, theréiviss required to be issued pursuant to the pangsof this Section 5, and the Compi
whenever required by the Warrant Agent, will supfilg Warrant Agent with Warrants duly executed ehaif of the Company for su
purpose.
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5. Redemption

5.1. RedemptionSubject to Section 6.4 hereof, not less thanfate outstanding Warrants may be redeemedgeatjtion o
the Company, at any time while they are exercisabl& so long as an effective registration staternenering the shares of common st
issuable upon exercise of the Warrants is curredtavailable throughout the “30-day redemption gri(defined below) and prior to thi
expiration, at the office of the Warrant Agent, opbe notice referred to in Section 6.2, at theguof $.01 per Warrant (“Redemption Prige”
provided that the last sales price of the CommamiShas been at least $14.25 per share (subjeafjistment in accordance with Sectic
hereof), on each of twenty (20) trading days withiy thirty (30) trading day period ending on thed business day prior to the date
which notice of redemption is given.

5.2. Date Fixed for, and Notice of, Req¢ion . In the event the Company shall elect to rede#rmofahe Warrants, tt
Company shall fix a date for the redemption. Noti€eedemption shall be mailed by first class madglstage prepaid, by the Company not
than 30 days prior to the date fixed for redemp(ibe “30-day redemption periodt) the registered holders of the Warrants to beested ¢
their last addresses as they shall appear on tistragion books. Any notice mailed in the mannerein provided shall be conclusiv
presumed to have been duly given whether or notapistered holder received such notice.

5.3. Exercise After Notice of Redemptiofthe Warrants may be exercised for cash (or trashless basisih accordanc
with Section 3.3.1 of this Agreement) at any tinfieranotice of redemption shall have been giverth®y Company pursuant to Section
hereof and prior to the time and date fixed foreragtion. On and after the redemption date, therdelolder of the Warrants shall have
further rights except to receive, upon surrendehefWarrants, the Redemption Price.

6.4 Exclusion of Certain Warrant&ny of the SponsorsVarrants shall not be redeemable by the Compahgnasas suc
SponsorsWarrants continue to be held by the Sponsors ar pleemitted transferees (as described in the Sigigm Agreements). Howeve
once the Sponsors or their permitted transferessfier such Sponsors’ Warrants, such Spons@estants shall then be redeemable by
Company pursuant to Section 6 hereof.
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6. Other Provisions Relating to Righit$iolders of Warrants

6.1. No Rights as StockholdeA Warrant does not entitle the registered hottiereof to any of the rights of a stockholde
the Company, including, without limitation, the higto receive dividends, or other distributions;lirding the right to participate in a
liquidation of the trust account (as describedhi@ Registration Statement), exercise any preempitings to vote or to consent or to rect
notice as stockholders in respect of the meetifigsockholders or the election of directors of @@mpany or any other matter.

6.2. Lost, Stolen, Mutilated, or DesedyWarrants If any Warrant is lost, stolen, mutilated, ostteyed, the Company a
the Warrant Agent may on such terms as to indenmitptherwise as they may in their discretion ing@which shall, in the case o
mutilated Warrant, include the surrender thereis§ue a new Warrant of like denomination, tenod date as the Warrant so lost, stc
mutilated, or destroyed. Any such new Warrant Isbahstitute a substitute contractual obligationtiee Company, whether or not
allegedly lost, stolen, mutilated, or destroyed k&far shall be at any time enforceable by anyone.

6.3. Reservation of Common Stockhe Company shall at all times reserve and kaglable a number of its authorized
unissued shares of Common Stock that will be defiicto permit the exercise in full of all outstémgl Warrants issued pursuant to
Agreement.

6.4. Registration of Common StocRhe Company agrees that prior to the commenceafehe Exercise Period, it shall 1
its best efforts to file with the Securities andcBange Commission a posffective amendment to the Registration Statemang nev
registration statement, for the registration, unther Act, of, and it shall use its best effortdake such action as is necessary to qualif
sale, in those states in which the Warrants weitially offered by the Company, the Common Stockumble upon exercise of
Warrants. In either case, the Company will uséést efforts to cause the same to become effeatideo maintain the effectiveness of ¢
registration statement until the expiration of tMarrants in accordance with the provisions of thigeement. The Warrants shall noi
exercisable and the Company shall not be obligideidsue Common Stock unless, at the time a hadeks to exercise the Warrant
prospectus relating to Common Stock issuable upercese of the Warrants is current and the ComntonkShas been registered or quali
or deemed to be exempt under the securities lawteddtate of residence of the holder of the Wasrafhe provisions of this Section 7.4 r
not be modified, amended or deleted without therpsiritten consent of Citigroup.
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7. Concerning the Warrant Agent and ©OMatters.

7.1. Payment of TaxesThe Company will from time to time promptly palf taxes and charges that may be imposed up¢
Company or the Warrant Agent in respect of theassa or delivery of shares of Common Stock uponettercise of Warrants, but |
Company shall not be obligated to pay any transbess in respect of the Warrants or such shares.

7.2. Resignation, Consolidation, or MergeWarrant Agent

7.2.6. Appointment of Successor Warrant Agefihe Warrant Agent, or any successor to it héseafppointed, me
resign its duties and be discharged from all furttheties and liabilities hereunder after givingtgiX60) days’notice in writing to th
Company. If the office of the Warrant Agent becemvacant by resignation or incapacity to act oentlise, the Company shall appoin
writing a successor Warrant Agent in place of thariaht Agent. If the Company shall fail to makelsappointment within a period of
days after it has been notified in writing of suelignation or incapacity by the Warrant Agent grtfte holder of the Warrant (who sh
with such notice, submit his Warrant for inspectipnthe Company), then the holder of any Warrany eqaply to the Supreme Court of
State of New York for the County of New York forettappointment of a successor Warrant Agent at trapg@anys cost. Any success
Warrant Agent, whether appointed by the Companlyyosuch court, shall be a corporation organizedeatisting under the laws of the St
of New York, in good standing and having its prpadioffice in the Borough of Manhattan, City anat8tof New York, and authorized un
such laws to exercise corporate trust powers abgesuto supervision or examination by federal wates authority. After appointment, ¢
successor Warrant Agent shall be vested with allaiithority, powers, rights, immunities, dutiesd abligations of its predecessor War
Agent with like effect as if originally named as ¥kt Agent hereunder, without any further act eed} but if for any reason it becor
necessary or appropriate, the predecessor Warigent/shall execute and deliver, at the expensheoCompany, an instrument transfer
to such successor Warrant Agent all the authopityyers, and rights of such predecessor Warrant tAigereunder; and upon request of
successor Warrant Agent the Company shall makeuéxeacknowledge, and deliver any and all instmisié writing for more fully an
effectually vesting in and confirming to such sussm® Warrant Agent all such authority, powers, tsghmmunities, duties, and obligations.

7.2.7. Notice of Successor Warrant Agetih the event a successor Warrant Agent shaligmointed, the Compa
shall give notice thereof to the predecessor Warkgent and the transfer agent for the Common StaxtHater than the effective date of .
such appointment.
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7.2.8. Merger or Consolidation of Warrant Ageriny corporation into which the Warrant Agent nizg merged «
with which it may be consolidated or any corponatiesulting from any merger or consolidation to ebhthe Warrant Agent shall be a pi
shall be the successor Warrant Agent under thigémgent without any further act.

7.3. Fees and Expenses of Warrant Agent

7.3.1. Remuneration The Company agrees to pay the Warrant Agenbnede remuneration for its services as
Warrant Agent hereunder and will reimburse the WWatriAgent upon demand for all expenditures thatWheerant Agent may reasona
incur in the execution of its duties hereunder.

7.3.2. Further AssurancesThe Company agrees to perform, execute, ackmmeleand deliver or cause to
performed, executed, acknowledged, and deliveresuah further and other acts, instruments, andraases as may reasonably be req:
by the Warrant Agent for the carrying out or pemfiorg of the provisions of this Agreement.

7.4. Liability of Warrant Agent

7.4.1. Reliance on Company StatemeiVhenever in the performance of its duties uniter Warrant Agreement, t
Warrant Agent shall deem it necessary or desirtilsieany fact or matter be proved or establishethbyCompany prior to taking or suffer
any action hereunder, such fact or matter (unléssrcevidence in respect thereof be herein spadifiprescribed) may be deemed tc
conclusively proved and established by a statersigmied by the President or Chairman of the BoarthefCompany and delivered to
Warrant Agent. The Warrant Agent may rely uporhsstettement for any action taken or suffered indgi@aith by it pursuant to the provisic
of this Agreement.

7.4.2. Indemnity The Warrant Agent shall be liable hereunder dahyjits own negligence, willful misconduct or t
faith. The Company agrees to indemnify the Warfsgent and save it harmless against any and aillitias, including judgments, costs ¢
reasonable counsel fees, for anything done or edhifty the Warrant Agent in the execution of thisrégnent except as a result of
Warrant Agent’s negligence, willful misconduct,lwad faith.
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7.4.3. Exclusions The Warrant Agent shall have no responsibilitthwespect to the validity of this Agreem
or with respect to the validity or execution of aMarrant (except its countersignature thereof);siail it be responsible for any breach by
Company of any covenant or condition containechisa Agreement or in any Warrant; nor shall it bepansible to make any adjustme
required under the provisions of Section 4 hereateponsible for the manner, method, or amouringfsuch adjustment or the ascertai
of the existence of facts that would require anghsadjustment; nor shall it by any act hereundedéemed to make any representatic
warranty as to the authorization or reservatioargf shares of Common Stock to be issued pursudhisté\greement or any Warrant or a
whether any shares of Common Stock will when isheedalid and fully paid and nonassessable.

7.5. Acceptance of AgencyThe Warrant Agent hereby accepts the agenchledtad by this Agreement and agrees to per
the same upon the terms and conditions hereinostit &and among other things, shall account promgutlghe Company with respect
Warrants exercised and concurrently account fod, @ay to the Company, all moneys received by ther&via Agent for the purchase
shares of Common Stock through the exercise of &vitsr

8. Miscellaneous Provisions

8.1. SuccessorsAll the covenants and provisions of this Agreeirgy or for the benefit of the Company or the VeatrAgen
shall bind and inure to the benefit of their redpecsuccessors and assigns.

8.2. Notices Any notice, statement or demand authorized s/\Warrant Agreement to be given or made by thersvarAgen
or by the holder of any Warrant to or on the Conypsimall be sufficiently given when so deliveredyf hand or overnight delivery or if s
by certified mail or private courier service withiive days after deposit of such notice, postaggpaid, addressed (until another addre
filed in writing by the Company with the Warrant &), as follows:

Capitol Acquisition Corp.
509 7" Street, N.W.

Washington, D.C. 20004
Attn: Mark D. Ein, Chief Executive Officer

Any notice, statement or demand authorized byAlgieement to be given or made by the holder of \Wayrant or by the Company to or
the Warrant Agent shall be sufficiently given wrmmndelivered if by hand or overnight delivery osént by certified mail or private cour
service within five days after deposit of such ocetipostage prepaid, addressed (until another sslidiled in writing by the Warrant Age
with the Company), as follows:
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Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company
17 Battery Place

New York, New York 10004

Attn: Compliance Department

with a copy in each case to:

and

and

Graubard Miller

The Chrysler Building

405 Lexington Avenue

New York, New York 10174
Attn: David Alan Miller, Esq.
Facsimile: (212) 818-8881

Davis Polk & Wardwell

450 Lexington Avenue

New York, New York 10017
Attn: Deanna L. Kirkpatrick, Esq.
Facsimile: (212) 450-3800

Citigroup Global Markets Inc.
388 Greenwich Street

New York, New York 10013
Attn: David Spivak
Facsimile: (212) 723-8871

Applicable law The validity, interpretation, and performancetlis Agreement and of the Warrants shall be gaabir
all respects by the laws of the State of New Yarithout giving effect to conflicts of law principdethat would result in the application of
substantive laws of another jurisdiction. The Camphereby agrees that any action, proceedingadnagainst it arising out of or relating
any way to this Agreement shall be brought and reefibin the courts of the State of New York or tated States District Court for t
Southern District of New York, and irrevocably sutsrto such jurisdiction, which jurisdiction shdle exclusive. The Company her
waives any objection to such exclusive jurisdictaord that such courts represent an inconvenienmcenfoAny such process or summon
be served upon the Company may be served by trititgna copy thereof by registered or certified Imaturn receipt requested, post
prepaid, addressed to it at the address set forSection 9.2 hereof. Such mailing shall be deepedonal service and shall be legal

binding upon the Company in any action, proceedingaim.
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8.4. Persons Having Rights under this Agrergt. Nothing in this Agreement expressed and notltiag may be implied fro
any of the provisions hereof is intended, or shaltonstrued, to confer upon, or give to, any pemaorporation other than the parties he
and the registered holders of the Warrants andhfopurposes of Sections 2.5, 6.1, 6.4, 7.4, 82%8 hereof, Citigroup, any right, reme
or claim under or by reason of this Warrant Agreetr@ of any covenant, condition, stipulation, pise or agreement hereof. Citigrc
shall be deemed to be a thjpdsty beneficiary of this Agreement with respecBextions 2.5, 6.1, 6.4, 7.4, 9.2 and 9.8 herédifcovenants
conditions, stipulations, promises, and agreemesrigained in this Warrant Agreement shall be fergble and exclusive benefit of the pal
hereto (and Citigroup with respect to the Sectidsis 6.1, 6.4, 7.4, 9.2 and 9.8 hereof) and th&icassors and assigns and of the regis
holders of the Warrants.

8.5. Examination of the Warrant Agreemewt copy of this Agreement shall be available lateasonable times at the office
the Warrant Agent in the Borough of Manhattan, Gibd State of New York, for inspection by the regisd holder of any Warrant. T
Warrant Agent may require any such holder to subisitVarrant for inspection by it.

8.6. Counterparts This Agreement may be executed in any numbeorigfinal or facsimile counterparts and each of :
counterparts shall for all purposes be deemed tarberiginal, and all such counterparts shall togetconstitute but one and the si
instrument.

8.7. Effect of Headings The Section headings herein are for convenientgand are not part of this Warrant Agreement
shall not affect the interpretation thereof.

9.8 Amendments This Agreement may be amended by the partiesttn@vithout the consent of any registered holdeittie
purpose of curing any ambiguity, or of curing, eating or supplementing any defective provisiontamed herein or adding or changing
other provisions with respect to matters or questiarising under this Agreement as the parties degyn necessary or desirable and the
parties deem shall not adversely affect the intarethe registered holders. All other modificatsoor amendments, including any amendi
to increase the Warrant Price or shorten the Esereeriod, shall require the written consent ofréggstered holders of a majority of the t
outstanding Warrants. Notwithstanding the foregpthe Company may lower the Warrant Price or ektbe duration of the Exercise Pel
pursuant to Sections 3.1 and 3.2, respectivel\howit the consent of the registered holders.
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9.9 Severability This Agreement shall be deemed severable, anéhtfadidity or unenforceability of any term or prision
hereof shall not affect the validity or enforcedpibf this Agreement or of any other term or peh hereof. Furthermore, in lieu of any s
invalid or unenforceable term or provision, thetigsrhereto intend that there shall be added astaopthis Agreement a provision as sin
in terms to such invalid or unenforceable provisasmmay be possible and be valid and enforceable.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been dubcexed by the parties hereto as of the day andfystabove written.

CAPITOL ACQUISITION CORP

By: /s/ Mark Ein

Name:
Title:

CONTINENTAL STOCK TRANSFEF
& TRUST COMPANY

By: /s/ John W. Comer, J

Name: John W. Comer, .
Title: Vice Presiden
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Exhibit 4.4
SUPPLEMENT AND AMENDMENT TO WARRANT AGREEMENT
This Supplement and Amendment to the Warrant Agezgmdated as of October 28, 2009 (the “ Amendrijeit executed by Capitol

Acquisition Corp., a Delaware corporation (the ‘n@fmany”), Two Harbors Investment Corp. (* Two Harbdysand Continental Stock
Transfer & Trust Company, a New York corporatidme(t Warrant Agent).

WHEREAS, the Company and Warrant Agent are pattigbat certain Warrant Agreement dated as of Nden8, 2007 (the “
Warrant Agreemeri?); and

WHEREAS, the parties desire to supplement and arttentVarrant Agreement upon the terms and conditie@rein provided.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual ceugts and agreements herein contained and othdragabvaluable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agréalows:

1. Definitions. Capitalized terms use herein and not otherwi§eet® herein shall have the meanings ascribedemtim the
Warrant Agreement.

2. Amendment to Warrant Agreement

(a) Section 3.1 of the Warrant Agreement is heaahgnded and restated in its entirety as follows:

“3.1. Warrant Price Each Warrant shall, when countersigned by ther&via Agent, entitle the registered holder thereahject to
the provisions of such Warrant and of this Warrsgteement, to purchase from the Company the numbsgnares of Common Stock stated
therein, at a Warrant Price of $11.00, subjech&adjustments provided in Section 4 hereof ariddrast sentence of this Section 3.1. The
term “Warrant Price” as used in this Warrant Agreatrrefers to the price per share at which ComntookSmay be purchased at the time a
Warrant is exercised. The Company in its sole disan may lower the Warrant Price at any time priothe Expiration Date for a period of
not less than 10 business days; provided, how#hvatrany such reduction shall be identical in petage terms among all of the Warrants.”

(b) Section 3.2 of the Warrant Agreement is her@imgnded and restated in its entirety as follows:

“3.2 Duration of Warrants A Warrant may be exercised only during the pefiékercise Period”) commencing on the
consummation by the Company of a merger, capitgkséxchange, asset acquisition, stock purchassgasization or other similar business
combination (“Business Combination”) and termingtat 5:00 p.m., New York City time on the earlieroccur of (i) November 7, 2013 or
(i) the date fixed for redemption of the Warraassprovided in Section 6 of this Agreement (“Exfiina Date”). Except with respect to the
right to receive the Redemption Price (as set fiortBection 6 hereunder), each Warrant not exetaseor before the Expiration Date shall
become void, and all rights thereunder and alltsg respect thereof under this Agreement shaleet the close of business on the
Expiration Date. The Company in its sole discretizay extend the duration of the Warrants by delgyfire Expiration Date; provided,
however, that the Company will provide notice tgistered holders of the Warrants of such extensfarot less than 20 days.”




(c) Section 3.3.5 of the Warrant Agreement is hgiebhended and restated in its entirety as follows:

“3.3.5 Limitations on ExerciseNotwithstanding anything to the contrary contdiherein, no Warrant may be exercised if it wi
cause the holder to Beneficially Own or ConstruagvOwn, within the meaning of Two Harbor’s Artislef Amendment and Restatement,
outstanding Common Stock in excess of the Commook3Dwnership Limit or Excepted Holder Limit, adided in Two Harbor’s Articles
of Amendment and Restatement, as applicable . ”

(d) Section 4.12 of the Warrant Agreement is her@iended and restated in its entirety as follows:

“4.12 Reorganization of Companyf the Company consolidates or merges with ar,iot transfers or leases all or substantiallyts
assets to, any person, upon consummation of sachaction the Warrants shall automatically becoxeecisable for the kind and amount of
securities, cash or other assets which the holideMdarrant would have owned immediately afterdabasolidation, merger, transfer or lease
if such holder had exercised the Warrant immedjdiefore the effective date of the transactjmmyvidedthat (i) if the holders of Common
Stock were entitled to exercise a right of electisrio the kind or amount of securities, cash loerassets receivable upon such consolidation
or merger, then the kind and amount of securitiash or other assets for which each Warrant skafiine exercisable shall be deemed to be
the weighted average of the kind and amount redgiee share by the holders of Common Stock in sacisolidation or merger that
affirmatively make such election or (ii) if a tema® exchange offer shall have been made to angpéed by the holders of Common Stock
under circumstances in which, upon completion ehsiender or exchange offer, the maker thereogttag with members of any group
(within the meaning of Rule 13d-5(b)(1) under thelange Act) of which such maker is a part, anétiogr with any affiliate or associate of
such maker (within the meaning of Rule 12b-2 urilerExchange Act) and any members of any such gobumich any such affiliate or
associate is a part, own beneficially (within theaming of Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act) moae 60% of the outstanding shares of
Common Stock, the holder of a Warrant shall betledtio receive the highest amount of cash, seéesritr other property to which such
holder would actually have been entitled as a $twdder if such Warrant holder had exercised therdfdrmprior to the expiration of such
tender or exchange offer, accepted such offer Ard the Common Stock held by such holder had hméechased pursuant to such tender or
exchange offer, subject to adjustments (from atet #fie consummation of such tender or exchange)ds nearly equivalent as possible to
the adjustments provided for in this Section 4. kdiately upon the consummation of a business caatibim between the Company and Two
Harbors Investment Corp. (“* Two Harbdjs (i) each holder of a Warrant shall be entittedeceive a new Warrant representing the right to
purchase one share of Two Harbors common stoglgl(iieferences to the “Company” in this Agreem&mall mean Two Harbors and (iii)
Two Harbors shall assume all of the rights anathe obligations of the Company under this AgreemIf Two Harbors subsequently
consolidates or merges with or into, or transfereases all or substantially all its assets tg, @@rson, upon consummation of such
transaction, concurrently with the consummatiosuth transaction, the corporation or other entityned by or surviving any such
consolidation or merger if other than the Compamythe person to which such sale or conveyancé Ishaé been made, shall enter into a
supplemental Warrant Agreement so providing anthésrproviding for adjustments which shall be aarlyeequivalent as may be practical to
the adjustments provided for in this Section 4. $hecessor Company shall mail to Warrant holdersti@e describing the supplemental
Warrant Agreement.

If the issuer of securities deliverable upon exara@f Warrants under the supplemental Warrant Ageet is an affiliate of the
formed, surviving, transferee or lessee corporatioat issuer shall join in the supplemental Warksgreement.




If this Section 4.12 applies, Sections 4.1, 4.3, 4.4, 4.5 and 4.6 do not apply.”

3. Amendment All references in the Warrant Agreement (anchim d¢ther agreements, documents and instrumentedriteo in
connection therewith) to the “Warrant Agreementélsbe deemed for all purposes to refer to the WrdarAgreement, as amended by this
Amendment.

4. Remaining Provisions of Warrant AgreemeBkcept as expressly provided herein, the pronssiof the Warrant Agreement
shall remain in full force and effect in accordamdth their terms and shall be unaffected by thiseldment.

5. Counterparts This Amendment may be executed in counterpaatsh ef which when executed shall be deemed amaiigind
both of which when executed shall be deemed onetengame instrument.

6. Headings The headings to this Amendment are for convemierficeference only and shall not limit or othemvidfect the
meaning hereof.

7. Governing Law This Amendment shall be governed by, and condtiniaccordance with, the laws of the State of Rale,
without regard to the principles of conflicts ofdaf any jurisdiction.

8. Effective Time This Amendment shall be effective immediatelippto the consummation of a business combinatetween
the Company and Two Harbors.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment has been dubcexed and delivered by the authorized officersamh of the
undersigned as of the date first above written.

CAPITOL ACQUISITION CORP

By: /s/ Mark Ein

Name:
Title:

TWO HARBORS INVESTMENT CORL

By: /s/ Jeff Stoll

Name: Jeff Stol
Title: Chief Financial Office

CONTINENTAL STOCK TRANSFER & TRUST
COMPANY

By: /s/ Alexander Albrect

Name: Alexander Albrect
Title: Vice Presiden




Exhibit 10.1
MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT

THIS MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT is made as of October 2809 by and among TWO HARBORS INVESTMENT CORF
Maryland corporation (the * Compariy, TWO HARBORS OPERATING COMPANY LLC, a Delawaraniited liability company (the “
Operating Company) and PRCM ADVISERS LLC, a Delaware limited lialbjl company (together with its permitted assigndés, “

Manager’).

WHEREAS, the Company is a newly organized corponathat intends to elect to be taxed as a REITféderal income te
purposes;

WHEREAS, Pine River Capital (as defined below)agistered as an investment adviser under the ImesdtAdvisers Act of 194
as amended (the “ Advisers A%t and the Manager is a wholly-owned subsidiaryofe River Capital; and

WHEREAS, the Company and each of the Subsidiagsgral to retain the Manager to provide investmenisary services to the
on the terms and conditions hereinafter set fantial, the Manager wishes to be retained to providk searvices.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreets herein set forth, the parties hereto agréallasis:

Section 1. DefinitionsThe following terms have the following meaniragsigned to them:
@) “ Agreemeritmeans this Management Agreement, as amendedtinoento time.
(b) “ Bankruptcy means, with respect to any Person, (a) the filipgstich Person of a voluntary petition see

liquidation, reorganization, arrangement or reapast, in any form, of its debts under Title 11ltleé United States Code or any other fed
state or foreign insolvency law, or such Persdiling an answer consenting to or acquiescingng such petition, (b) the making by s
Person of any assignment for the benefit of itglitoes, (c) the expiration of 60 days after thanfil of an involuntary petition under Title 11
the Unites States Code, an application for the mppent of a receiver for a material portion of #esets of such Person, or an involur
petition seeking liquidation, reorganization, agament or readjustment of its debts under any ddudaral, state or foreign insolvency i
providedthat the same shall not have been vacated, set asistayed within such 60-day period or (d) thieyeagainst it of a final and non-
appealable order for relief under any bankruptegoivency or similar law now or hereinafter in etfe

(c) “ Base Management Feeneans a base management fee equal to 1.5% per analomated and paid (in ca
quarterly in arrears, of the Stockholders’ Equilthe Base Management Fee will be reduced, but etdwbzero, by the Compary’
proportionate share of any securitization base g@mant fees that Pine River receives in connedtiidim any securitizations in which t
Company invests, based on the percentage of ettp@it€ompany holds in such securitizations.

(d) “ Board of Directorsmeans the Board of Directors of the Company.

(e) “ CLA Founders LLCmeans CLA Founders LLC, a Delaware limited lighicompany.

® “ Cod€ means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as aatend




(9) “ Company has the meaning set forth in the first paragrapthis Agreement.

(h) “ Company Accourithas the meaning set forth in Section 5 of thisesgnent.

0] “ Company Indemnified Partyhas the meaning set forth in Section 11(b) of #hgreement.

)] “ Effective Termination Dafehas the meaning set forth in Section 13(a) of thjreement.

(k) “ Excess Fundshas the meaning set forth in Section 2(m) of thigeement.

)] “ Exchange Actmeans the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asdetk

(m) “ Expenseshas the meaning set forth in Section 9 of thisefgnent.

(n) “ GAAP" means generally accepted accounting principlespplied in the United States.

(0) “ Governing Instrumest means, with regard to any entity, the articlesetificate of incorporation and byla

in the case of a corporation, certificate of lirdifgartnership (if applicable) and the partnerslgypament in the case of a general or lin
partnership, the articles or certificate of forroatand the operating agreement in the case ofitediiability company, the trust instrumen
the case of a trust, or similar governing documenteach case as amended from time to time.

(p) “ Guideline$ has the meaning set forth in Section 2(b)(i)ro$ tAgreement.
(a) “ Indemniteé& has the meaning set forth in Section 11(b) of thijreement.
(9] “ Indemnitof has the meaning set forth in Section 11(c) of #hgreement.
(s) “ Independent Directotsmeans the members of the Board of Directors whamatefficers or employees of 1

Manager or any Person directly or indirectly coliing or controlled by the Manager, and who areeoftise “independentin accordanc
with the Companys Governing Instruments and policies and, if apfiie, the rules of any national securities exchamgewhich th
Company’s common stock is listed.

® “ Initial Term” has the meaning set forth in Section 13(a) of thjreement.

(u) “ Investment Company Atteans the Investment Company Act of 1940, as aexrn

(v) “ Investments means the investments of the Company and theidalss.

(w) “ Managef has the meaning set forth in the first paragraptiis Agreement.

x) “ Manager Indemnified Partjhas the meaning set forth in Section 11(a) of thgreement.
) “ MBS” means mortgage-backed securities.

-2




2 “ Monitoring Service’shas the meaning set forth in Section 2(b) of thigeement.

(aa) “ Notice of Proposal to Negotiateas the meaning set forth in Section 13(a) of tjreement.

(bb) “ NYSE" means the New York Stock Exchange, Inc.

(cc) “ Operating Compariyhas the meaning set forth in the first paragrapthis Agreement.

(dd) “ Persori means any individual, corporation, partnershipntjaienture, limited liability company, estate, t;

unincorporated association, any federal, statentyoor municipal government or any bureau, depantroe agency thereof and any fiduci
acting in such capacity on behalf of any of theefming.

(ee) “ Pine Rivef means, separately and collectively, Pine River @ah@ind its direct and indirect subsidiar
provided, however, that the term “Pine River” shall not include thempany or any of the Subsidiaries.

() “ Pine River Capitdl means Pine River Capital Management L.P., a Detavimited partnership.
(99) “ Portfolio Management Servicelsas the meaning set forth in Section 2(b) of thigeement.
(hh) “ REIT" means a “real estate investment trust” as definadker the Code.
(i) “ Renewal Term has the meaning set forth in Section 13(a) of thjreement.
an “ Securities Act means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.
(k) “ Shared Services Agreemémheans the Shared Facilities and Services Agreerateg the date hereof, betw
the Manager and Pine River Capital.
(I “ StockholdersEquity " means:
® the sum of the net proceeds from assuances of the Compasykquity securities since incept

(allocated on aro ratadaily basis for such issuances during the fiscakigm of any such issuance), plus

(i) the Company retained earnings at the end of the most receotypleted quarter (without taking i
account any non-cash equity compensation expense@d in current or prior periods), less

(iii) any amount that the Company pays fgpurchases of its common stock since inception, uamgalize:
gains, losses or other items that do not affedizexh net income (regardless of whether such itamesincluded in other comprehens
income or loss, or in net income), as adjustedttuele




(iv) one-time events pursuant to changeSARAP and certain nowash charges after discussions betwee
Manager and the Company’s Independent Directorsappdoved by a majority of the Company’s Indepehdsrectors.

For purposes of calculating Stockholdegsjuity, outstanding limited liability company inésts in the Operating Company (other than lin
liability company interests held by the Companyglkhe treated as outstanding shares of capiteksibthe Company.

(mm) “ Subsidiary means any subsidiary of the Company; any partrgriiie general partner of which is the Comg
or any subsidiary of the Company; any limited ligdpicompany, the managing member of which is tr@mPany or any subsidiary of 1
Company; and any corporation or other entity ofalihé majority of (i) the voting power of the votieguity securities or (ii) the outstand
equity interests is owned, directly or indirecthy, the Company or any subsidiary of the Company.

(nn) “ SubManagement Agreemehhas the meaning set forth in Section 2(e) of Agseement.

(00) “ Termination Fe€has the meaning set forth in Section 13(b) of thgreement.

(pp) “ Termination Notick has the meaning set forth in Section 13(a) of thgreement.

(qq) “ Treasury Regulatiorisneans the regulations promulgated under the @sdemended from time to time.
Section 2. Appointment and Dutieshef Manager

€)) The Company and each of the Subsédidrereby appoints the Manager to manage thesasistte Company a

the Subsidiaries subject to the further terms amdlitions set forth in this Agreement and the Mamagereby agrees to use its commerc
reasonable efforts to perform each of the dutie$osth herein. The appointment of the Managelldl&@exclusive to the Manager exceg
the extent that the Manager otherwise agreessisale and absolute discretion, and except toxtenethat the Manager elects, pursual
the terms of this Agreement, to cause the dutiekeoManager hereunder to be provided by thirdgmrt

(b) The Manager, in its capacity as managf the assets and the dayd@y operations of the Company and
Subsidiaries, at all times will be subject to thpeyvision of the Company’Board of Directors and will have only such fuong an
authority as the Company may delegate to it inclgdhe functions and authority identified herein @lelegated to the Manager hereby.
Manager will be responsible for the dayetay operations of the Company and the Subsidiareswill perform (or cause to be perform
such services and activities relating to the assedsoperations of the Company and the Subsidiasesay be appropriate, including:

() serving as the Company’s and the #lidnses’ consultant with respect to the periodic review loé
investment guidelines and other parameters forltlrestments, financing activities and operationsy anodifications to which shall |
approved by a majority of the Independent Direc{stch guidelines as initially approved and attdchereto as Exhibit A, as the same |
be modified with such approval, the “ Guidelirigsand other policies for approval by the Boardifectors;
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(i) investigating, analyzing and selectjggsible investment opportunities and acquiriir@ricing, retaining
selling, restructuring or disposing of Investmertasistent with the Guidelines;

(iii) with respect to prospective purchassales or exchanges of Investments, conductingtiaipns ol
behalf of the Company and the Subsidiaries witleselpurchasers and brokers and, if applicablgt tespective agents and representatives;

(iv) negotiating and entering into, on bélwdlthe Company and the Subsidiaries, repurchgsseaents, cre(
finance agreements, securitizations, agreemerasngito borrowings under programs establishechbyl.S. government, commercial par.
interest rate swap agreements and other hedgingunimsnts, custodial agreements, warehouse fasiliéied all other agreements
engagements required for the Company and the Sabieglto conduct their business;

(v) engaging and supervising, on behalfhef Company and the Subsidiaries and at the Compaxpens:
independent contractors which provide investmemkivey, securities brokerage, mortgage brokeradeerdinancial services, due diliget
services, underwriting review services, legal aocbanting services, and all other services as reayquired relating to Investments;

(vi) coordinating and managing operationgiy joint venture or caavestment interests held by the Comg
and the Subsidiaries and conducting all matters thi¢ joint venture or co-investment partners;

(vii) providing executive and administratipersonnel, office space and office services reduinerenderin
services to the Company and the Subsidiaries;

(viii)  administering the day-tday operations and performing and supervising tdopmance of such ott
administrative functions necessary to the managewiethe Company and the Subsidiaries as may beedgupon by the Manager and
Board of Directors, including the collection of emwes and the payment of the debts and obligatibtire Company and the Subsidiaries
maintenance of appropriate computer and technabg@rvices to perform such administrative functjon

(ix) communicating on behalf of the Compamd the Subsidiaries with the holders of any ofrthquity o
debt securities as required to satisfy the repgréind other requirements of any governmental bogliesgencies or trading markets an
maintain effective relations with such holders;

(x) counseling the Company in connectidth\golicy decisions to be made by the Board ofbiors;

(xi) evaluating and recommending to the fBloaf Directors hedging strategies and engagindeédging
activities on behalf of the Company and the Subsie$, consistent with such strategies as so neaflifom time to time, with the Compasy’
qualification as a REIT and with the Guidelines;

(xii) counseling the Company regarding thaintenance of its qualification as a REIT and nmmnifg

compliance with the various REIT qualification &stnd other rules set out in the Code and TreaRegulations thereunder and us
commercially reasonable efforts to cause the Compaqualify for taxation as a REIT;
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(xiii) counseling the Company and the Subsidfaregarding the maintenance of their exemptioos the
status of an investment company required to registeer the Investment Company Act, monitoring cbamge with the requirements
maintaining such exemptions and using commerciatigonable efforts to cause them to maintain skemptions from such status;

(xiv)  assisting the Company and the Subsidgaiin developing criteria for asset purchase commnits that a
specifically tailored to the Comparsyinvestment objectives and making available toGoenpany and the Subsidiaries its knowledge
experience with respect to MBS, mortgage loand, estate, real estate-related securities, othdrestate-related assets and non-real estate
related assets;

(xv) furnishing reports and statistical amdmomic research to the Company and the Subsigiergarding the
activities and services performed for the Compartyythe Subsidiaries by the Manager;

(xvi)  monitoring the operating performancelmiestments and providing periodic reports withpezs thereto 1
the Board of Directors, including comparative imiation with respect to such operating performarne laudgeted or projected opera
results;

(xvii) investing and reinvesting any moneys asturities of the Company and the Subsidiarieslyging
investing in shorterm Investments pending investment in other Inmests, payment of fees, costs and expenses, orgrayrof dividends «
distributions to stockholders and partners of tleen@any and the Subsidiaries) and advising the Cagnpad the Subsidiaries as to tl
capital structure and capital raising;

(xviii) causing the Company and the Subsidiat@esetain qualified accountants, auditors and llegansel, a
applicable, to assist in developing appropriateoanting procedures and systems, internal contnots @ther compliance procedures
testing systems with respect to financial reportifdigations and compliance with the provisionstitd Code applicable to REITs anc
conduct quarterly compliance reviews with respkeetéto;

(xix) assisting the Company and the Subsigkain qualifying to do business in all applicaplesdictions an
to obtain and maintain all appropriate licenses;

(xx) assisting the Company and the Subs&bain complying with all regulatory requiremenigplcable tc
them in respect of their business activities, idilg preparing or causing to be prepared all firdnstatements required under applic:i
regulations and contractual undertakings and plbnts and documents, if any, required under theh&mge Act, the Securities Act, or by
NYSE;

(xxi) assisting the Company and the Subsdigsain taking all necessary action to enable themake require
tax filings and reports, including soliciting stéxkders and partners for required information t® #xtent required by the provisions of
Code applicable to REITs;

(xxii)  placing, or arranging for the placemeft all orders pursuant to the Manageirivestment determinatic
for the Company and the Subsidiaries, either diredth the issuer or with a broker or dealer (indihg any affiliated broker or dealer);

(xxiii)  handling and resolving all claims, diges or controversies (including all litigationbaration, settlemel
or other proceedings or negotiations) in which @mnpany and/or the Subsidiaries may be involveth avhich they may be subject aris
out of their day-taday operations (other than with the Manager oaffiiates), subject to such limitations or paraerstas may be impos
from time to time by the Board of Directors;




(xxiv)  using commercially reasonable effortctuuse expenses incurred by the Company and thed@ules o
on their behalf to be commercially reasonable onmercially customary and within any budgeted patanseor expense guidelines set by
Board of Directors from time to time;

(xxv)  representing and making recommendationthe Company and the Subsidiaries in connectigh the
purchase and financing of, and commitment to puwetend finance, MBS, mortgage loans (including growfolio basis), real estate, r
estate-related securities and loans, other reateegtlated assets and non-real estltged assets, and the sale and commitment tcuse
assets;

(xxvi) advising the Company and the Subsidameéth respect to obtaining appropriate repurctageement
warehouse facilities or other secured and unsedorets of borrowing for their assets;

(xxvii) advising the Company on preparing, négtiig and entering into, on the Compasyehalf, applicatiol
and agreements relating to programs establisheédeby.S. government;

(xxviii) advising the Company and the Subsidiangth respect to and structuring lotegm financing vehicles fi
their portfolio of assets, and offering and sellsegurities publicly or privately in connection veiny such structured financing;

(xxix)  performing such other services as maydapiired from time to time for management and iodwivities
relating to the assets and business of the Compadiyhe Subsidiaries as the Board of Directord séasonably request or the Manager ¢
deem appropriate under the particular circumstgrazes

(xxx)  using commercially reasonable effortscmuse the Company and the Subsidiaries to comifily a¥l
applicable laws.

Without limiting the foregoing, the Manager willfferm portfolio management services (the “ Portidlanagement Servicés on behalf ¢
the Company and the Subsidiaries with respect & Itivestments. Such services will include consgltivith the Company and 1t
Subsidiaries on the purchase and sale of, and dtwestment opportunities in connection with, thentpanys portfolio of assets; tl
collection of information and the submission of agp pertaining to the Comparsyassets, interest rates and general economictiomg
periodic review and evaluation of the performanéehe Companys portfolio of assets; acting as liaison between @ompany and tl
Subsidiaries and banking, mortgage banking, investrhanking and other parties with respect to thehmse, financing and dispositior
assets; and other customary functions related ttiofio management. Additionally, the Manager wikrform monitoring services (the “
Monitoring Services) on behalf of the Company and the Subsidiaries vaipect to any loan servicing activities providedtlird parties
Such Monitoring Services will include negotiatingngcing agreements; acting as a liaison betweenstrvicers of the assets and
Company and the Subsidiaries; review of servicdedinquency, foreclosure and other reports on assepervising claims filed under ¢
insurance policies; and enforcing the obligatiomio§ servicer to repurchase assets.
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(c) For the period and on the terms andditions set forth in this Agreement, the Compamyg a&ach of th
Subsidiaries hereby constitutes, appoints and aatd®the Manager as its true and lawful agentatatney-infact, in its name, place a
stead, to negotiate, execute, deliver and enter snth credit finance agreements and arrangemedtsecurities repurchase and rev
repurchase agreements and arrangements, brokegmgen®nts, interest rate swap agreements, custadr@ements and such ol
agreements, instruments and authorizations on tetialf, on such terms and conditions as the Managting in its sole and absol
discretion, deems necessary or appropriate. Taviepof attorney is deemed to be coupled with terést.

(d) The Manager may enter into agreemeiitts other parties, including its affiliates, fdret purpose of engaging ¢
or more parties for and on behalf, and at the so# and expense, of the Company and the Subsigliiriprovide property management, ¢
management, leasing, development and/or othercesrto the Company and the Subsidiaries (incluBiogfolio Management Services ¢
Monitoring Services) pursuant to agreement(s) wathns which are then customary for agreements daggaithe provision of services
companies that have assets similar in type, quality value to the assets of the Company and thei@ales;providedthat (i) any suc
agreements entered into with affiliates of the Mparashall be (A) on terms no more favorable to saftiiate than would be obtained fron
third party on an arm’ength basis and (B) to the extent the same ddatlowithin the provisions of the Guidelines, apped by a majority ¢
the Independent Directors, (ii) with respect totfio Management Services, (A) any such agreemshédl be subject to the Compasay’
prior written approval and (B) the Manager shathaén liable for the performance of such PortfolimMdgement Services, and (iii) w
respect to Monitoring Services, any such agreensh#h be subject to the Compasyirior written approval. Notwithstanding the fgoing
the Shared Services Agreement shall not be sutmeftirther review or approval by the IndependemnteBliors prior to the expiration of
initial term, unless such agreement shall be am@nie which case such amendment shall be subje¢hdoforegoing limitations ¢
agreements between the Manager and its affiliates.

(e) The Company and the Operating Compapressly acknowledge and agree that the ManaggPie Rive
Capital are, concurrent with this Agreement, engginto the SuliManagement Agreement, dated as of even date hlrdwitand among tl
Manager, Pine River Capital and CLA Founders LU (t SusManagement Agreemefl, and nothing herein shall limit the ability of -
Manager or Pine River Capital to enter into andgrer their respective obligations under such $Mdnagement Agreement or otherv
limit the effectiveness of such agreement. The @amy represents and warrants that the Mabagement Agreement has been
authorized and approved by all necessary actioth@fCompany. After the date of this Agreementthi extent that the Manager de:
necessary or advisable, the Manager may, from tiintiene, propose to retain one or more additiomdities for the provision of subevisory
services to the Manager in order to enable the Men&o provide the services to the Company andStbksidiaries specified by tl
Agreement;providedthat any such agreement (i) shall be on terms anditons substantially identical to the terms aoaditions of thi
Agreement or otherwise not adverse to the Compauaythe Subsidiaries, and (ii) shall be approvedhsy Independent Directors of -
Company.

® The Manager may retain, for and ohdleand at the sole cost and expense of the Coynpad the Subsidiarie
such services of accountants, legal counsel, eggysiinsurers, brokers, transfer agents, regsstdmvelopers, investment banks, finar
advisors, due diligence firms, underwriting revimns, banks and other lenders and others as thealytex deems necessary or advisak
connection with the management and operations @fGbmpany and the Subsidiaries. Notwithstandinghémg contained herein to t
contrary, the Manager shall have the right to caarse such services to be rendered by its emplogeexffiliates. Except as otherw
provided herein, the Company and the Subsidiahiedl pay or reimburse the Manager or its affiligpesforming such services for the ¢
thereof;providedthat such costs and reimbursements are no gréaterthose which would be payable to outside prafaats or consultan
engaged to perform such services pursuant to agrgsmegotiated on an arm’s-length basis.
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(9) The Manager may effect transaction®ibthrough the agency of another person with itoaffiliates which hav
an arrangement under which that party or its afé will from time to time provide to or procui@ the Manager and/or its affiliates goc
services or other benefits (including research addsory services; economic and political analysis|uding valuation and performar
measurement; market analysis, data and quotatiouices; computer hardware and software inciderdathe above goods and servit
clearing and custodian services and investmenteljaublications), the nature of which is such fratvision can reasonably be expecte
benefit the Company and the Subsidiaries as a wénode may contribute to an improvement in the penéorce of the Company and
Subsidiaries or the Manager or its affiliates inyiding services to the Company and the Subsidiarfeterms that no direct payment is nr
but instead the Manager and/or its affiliates utader to place business with that party.

(h) In executing portfolio transactiomalaselecting brokers or dealers, the Manager 8#l its best efforts to seek
behalf of the Company and the Subsidiaries the destall terms available. In assessing the bestativterms available for any transact
the Manager shall consider all factors that it deeetevant, including the breadth of the markethim security, the price of the security,
financial condition and execution capability of theoker or dealer, and the reasonableness of thenission, if any, both for the spec
transaction and on a continuing basis. In evalgatie best overall terms available, and in selgdtie broker or dealer to execute a partis
transaction, the Manager may also consider whetlhar broker or dealer furnishes research and atf@mation or services to the Manager.

0] The Manager has no duty or obligatiorseek in advance competitive bidding for the thfiagorable commissic
rate applicable to any particular purchase, saletloer transaction, or to select any broker-deatethe basis of its purported or “posted”
commission rate, but will endeavor to be awarehefdurrent level of charges of eligible brokigralers and to minimize the expense inct
for effecting purchases, sales and other transactio the extent consistent with the interests palicies of the Company and -
Subsidiaries. Although the Manager will generalBek competitive commission rates, it is not rexflito pay the lowest commission
commission equivalenprovidedthat such decision is made to promote the begteisite of the Company and the Subsidiaries.

()] As frequently as the Manager may dewuessary or advisable, or at the direction ofBbard of Directors, tt
Manager shall, at the sole cost and expense oftmapany and the Subsidiaries, prepare, or caudm tprepared, with respect to
Investment, reports and other information with eetfio such Investment as may be reasonably rexgubgtthe Company.

(k) The Manager shall prepare, or causdé prepared, at the sole cost and expense oCtimepany and tt
Subsidiaries, all reports, financial or otherwiséh respect to the Company and the Subsidiariasamably required by the Board of Direc
in order for the Company and the Subsidiaries topg with their Governing Instruments or any othaaterials required to be filed with ¢
governmental body or agency, and shall prepareaose to be prepared, all materials and data reegetsscomplete such reports and o
materials including an annual audit of the Compamyid the Subsidiariebboks of account by a nationally recognized registéndepende
public accounting firm.




()] The Manager shall prepare regular reppimr the Board of Directors to enable the Boafr@irectors to review tf
Company’s and the Subsidiariegtquisitions, portfolio composition and charactesss credit quality, performance and compliancéhwine
Guidelines and policies approved by the Board oé&iors.

(m) Notwithstanding anything contained InistAgreement to the contrary, except to the exteat the payment
additional moneys is proven by the Company to Haaen required as a direct result of the Managacts or omissions which result in
right of the Company and the Subsidiaries to teatsirthis Agreement pursuant to Section 15 of thiseAment, the Manager shall not
required to expend money (* Excess Futidm connection with any expenses that are requindaktpaid for or reimbursed by the Comg
and the Subsidiaries pursuant to Section 9 in axoéshat contained in any applicable Company Aotdas herein defined) or otherw
made available by the Company and the Subsiditoid®e expended by the Manager hereunder. FailutbeoManager to expend Exc
Funds out-ofsocket shall not give rise or be a contributingdado the right of the Company and the Subsidsadeder Section 13(a) of tl
Agreement to terminate this Agreement due to thedder’s unsatisfactory performance.

(n) In performing its duties under thiscBen 2, the Manager shall be entitled to rely ozably on qualified expel
and professionals (including accountants, legalnseland other service providers) hired by the Manaat the Compang’ and th
Subsidiaries’ sole cost and expense.

Section 3. Devotion of Time; AdditadrActivities.

€)) The Manager and its affiliates wilbpide the Company and the Subsidiaries with a mament team, including
Chief Executive Officer, President, Chief Finanddficer, Chief Investment Officer, and other suggzersonnel, to provide the managen
services to be provided by the Manager to the Compad the Subsidiaries hereunder, the membersimhweam shall devote such port
of their time to the management of the Company thedSubsidiaries as is necessary to enable the &omand the Subsidiaries to ope
their business.

(b) The Manager agrees to offer the Cargpand the Subsidiaries the right to participateaih investmer
opportunities that the Manager determines are gpjate for the Company and the Subsidiaries in vaétheir investment objectives, polic
and strategies, and other relevant factors, sulbjettte exception that the Company and the Subigdianight not participate in each s
opportunity but will on an overall basis equitalpgarticipate with the Manager’other clients in relevant investment opportusitie
accordance with the Managerthen prevailing investment allocation policy. thing in this Agreement shall (i) prevent the MasadPine
River or any of their affiliates, officers, direcsg employees or personnel, from engaging in dikismesses or from rendering services of
kind to any other Person, including investing im,rendering advisory services to others investingany type of business (includ
investments that meet the principal investment aihjes of the Company), whether or not the investnubjectives or policies of any st
other Person or entity are similar to those ofGmenpany or (ii) in any way bind or restrict the Maer, Pine River or any of their affiliat
officers, directors, employees or personnel fromimy, selling or trading any securities or investrtsefor their own accounts or for
account of others for whom the Manager, Pine Rivaany of their affiliates, officers, directors, plmyees or personnel may be acting. W
making decisions where a conflict of interest magea the Manager will endeavor to allocate investirand financing opportunities in a-
and equitable manner over time as between the Quyranad the Subsidiaries and the Managether clients, in each case in accordance
the Manager’s then prevailing allocation policy.
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(c) Managers, partners, officers, emplsygrsonnel and agents of the Manager or affiiatethe Manager mi
serve as directors, officers, employees, persoraggnts, nominees or signatories for the Compamyoarany Subsidiary, to the ext
permitted by their Governing Instruments or by aggolutions duly adopted by the Board of Direcfmuissuant to the ComparsyGovernini
Instruments. When executing documents or otheragsig in such capacities for the Company or thbs&liaries, such persons shall
their respective titles in the Company or the Sdibsies.

Section 4. AgencyThe Manager shall act as agent of the Compadytte Subsidiaries in making, acquiring, financamy
disposing of Investments, disbursing and collectihg funds of the Company and the Subsidiariesingathe debts and fulfilling tt
obligations of the Company and the Subsidiariepesusing the performance of professionals engdyedr on behalf of the Company ¢
the Subsidiaries and handling, prosecuting andirgetiny claims of or against the Company and thbsfliaries, the Board of Directc
holders of the Company’s securities or represergstdr properties of the Company and the Subsadiari

Section 5. Bank AccountsAt the direction of the Board of Directors, thkanager may establish and maintain one or |
bank accounts in the name of the Company or angifialy (any such account, a * Company Acco)nend may collect and deposit fui
into any such Company Account or Company Accouatsl disburse funds from any such Company Accour@anpany Accounts, unc
such terms and conditions as the Board of Direattag approve; and the Manager shall from timert@trender appropriate accounting
such collections and payments to the Board of Birscand, upon request, to the auditors of the Gompr any Subsidiary.

Section 6. Records; Confidentialityrhe Manager shall maintain appropriate booka@founts and records relating
services performed under this Agreement, and sodkdof account and records shall be accessiblengpection by representatives of
Company or any Subsidiary at any time during norinainess hours upon reasonable advance notice Mahager shall keep confiden
any and all information obtained in connection witie services rendered under this Agreement artrgitadisclose any such information
use the same except in furtherance of its dutideuthnis Agreement) to unaffiliated third partiesept (i) with the prior written consent of
Board of Directors; (ii) to legal counsel, accountsaand other professional advisors; (iii) to apgmes, financing sources and others in
ordinary course of the Compagybusiness; (iv) to governmental officials havingigdiction over the Company or any Subsidiary;if
connection with any governmental or regulatonniis of the Company or any Subsidiary or disclosungresentations to Company invest
or (vi) as required by law or legal process to Wwhihe Manager or any Person to whom disclosuresimitted hereunder is a party. ~
foregoing shall not apply to information which haeviously become publicly available through théicars of a Person other than
Manager not resulting from the Manageviolation of this Section 6. The provisions bistSection 6 shall survive the expiration or e
termination of this Agreement for a period of omary

Section 7. Obligations of Manager; tReons.

€)) The Manager shall require each seltetransferor of investment assets to @@mpany and the Subsidiaries
make such representations and warranties regastioly assets as may, in the judgment of the Manhgenecessary and appropriate
addition, the Manager shall take such other ac®it deems necessary or appropriate with regatttetprotection of the Investments.
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(b) The Manager shall refrain from anyi@tthat, in its sole judgment, (i) is not in comapice with the Guideline
(i) would adversely and materially affect the stabf the Company as a REIT under the Code, (biilel adversely and materially affect
Company’s or any Subsidiag/status as an entity intended to be exemptedabuaed from investment company status under thedimer
Company Act or (iv) would violate any law, rule mgulation of any governmental body or agency hgyimisdiction over the Company
any Subsidiary or that would otherwise not be p#adiby the Compang’Governing Instruments. If the Manager is ordécethke any suc
action by the Board of Directors, the Manager sphadmptly notify the Board of Directors of the Maysar's judgment that such action wo
adversely and materially affect such status oratélany such law, rule or regulation or the Govegrinstruments. Notwithstanding
foregoing, the Manager, its officers, stockholderembers, managers, personnel, directors, any Persatrolling or controlled by tt
Manager and any Person providing sudwisory services to the Manager shall not be diablthe Company or any Subsidiary, the Boa
Directors, or the Company’s or any Subsidiargtockholders, members or partners, for any acnussion by any such Person excef
provided in Section 11 of this Agreement.

(c) The Board of Directors shall periadig review the Guidelines and the Companportfolio of Investments b
will not review each proposed investment, excepbthgrwise provided herein. If a majority of tmelépendent Directors determine in t
periodic review of transactions that a particutansaction does not comply with the Guidelineshthemajority of the Independent Direct
will consider what corrective action, if any, cae taken. The Manager shall be permitted to relgnuiiie direction of the Secretary of
Company to evidence the approval of the Board of@ors or the Independent Directors with respeet proposed investment.

(d) Neither the Company nor the Subsid&shall invest in any security structured or éskby an entity managed
the Manager or any affiliate thereof, unless (@ thvestment is made in accordance with the Guids]i(ii) such Investment is approve:
advance by at least one of the Independent Dirgcamd (iii) the Investment is made in accordanitk applicable laws.

(e) The Manager shall use its best efféot at all times during the term of this Agreemerdintain ‘errors an
omissions” insurance coverage and other insurance coveragehwkicustomarily carried by property, asset angestment manage
performing functions similar to those of the Manageder this Agreement with respect to assets aimniil the assets of the Company anc
Subsidiaries, in an amount which is comparablé#b customarily maintained by other managers oficgens of similar assets.

Section 8. Compensation
€)) During the Initial Term and any Rem¢werm (each as defined below), the Company gi@lithe Manager tl

Base Management Fee quarterly in arrears commemgthghe quarter in which this Agreement was exedywith such initial payment pro-
rated based on the number of days during sucheyuast this Agreement was in effect).

(b) The Manager shall compute each imstait of the Base Management Fee within 30 days #ie end of the fisc
quarter with respect to which such installmentagable. A copy of the computations made by the Man# calculate such installment s
thereafter, for informational purposes only andjsctbin any event to Section 13(a) of this Agreempromptly be delivered to the Boarc
Directors and, upon such delivery, payment of sastallment of the Base Management Fee shown therell be due and payable in cas
later than the date which is five business dayer difte date of delivery to the Board of Directofsuch computations.
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(©) The Base Management Fee is subjeatijiostment pursuant to and in accordance wittptbeisions of Section 13
(a) of this Agreement.

Section 9. Expenses of the Comparijhe Company shall pay all of its expenses arall shimburse the Manager
documented expenses of the Manager incurred dreftalf (collectively, the “ Expensép excepting those expenses that are specificall
responsibility of the Manager as set forth hereédnch costs and reimbursements shall be in amaeurith are no greater than those wi
would be payable to outside professionals or caastd engaged to perform such services pursuaagrements negotiated on an arm’s-
length basis. Expenses include all costs and exgzawhich are expressly designated elsewheresrAtiieement as the Compasytogethe
with the following:

0] expenses in connection with the isg@aand transaction costs incident to the acquisitilisposition an
financing of Investments;

(i) costs of legal, tax, accounting, cdtisg, auditing, administrative, and other simik@rvices rendered 1
the Company and the Subsidiaries by providersmethby the Manager or, if provided by the Manag@ersonnel, in amounts which are
greater than those which would be payable to oetpitfessionals or consultants engaged to perfoch services pursuant to agreem
negotiated on an arm’s-length basis;

(iii) the compensation and expenses of them@anys directors and the cost of liability insurancerntdemnify
the Company'’s directors and officers;

(iv) costs associated with the establishmesnd maintenance of any of the Company’s or anysilidry’s
repurchase agreements, warehouse facilities aret etftured and unsecured forms of borrowings (@t commitment fees, account
fees, legal fees, closing and other similar cast@ny of the Company’s or any Subsidiary’s semgibfferings;

(v) expenses in connection with the apgilicafor, and participation in, programs establsh®y the U.S
government;

(vi) expenses connected with communicationbolders of the Company’s or any Subsidiargécurities ar
other bookkeeping and clerical work necessary imtaming relations with holders of such securité®l in complying with the continuc
reporting and other requirements of governmentalidsoor agencies, including all costs of prepamng filing required reports with t
Securities and Exchange Commission, the costs paysbthe Company to any transfer agent and registr connection with the listit
and/or trading of the Comparsystock on any exchange, the fees payable by thep@uwy to any such exchange in connection withstsg,
and costs of preparing, printing and mailing thenpanys annual report to its stockholders and proxy nmedtewith respect to any meeting
the Company’s stockholders;

(vii) costs associated with any computerwafe or hardware, electronic equipment or purchasidmatior
technology services from third party vendors thaised for the Company and the Subsidiaries;

(viii)  expenses incurred by managers, officpersonnel and agents of the Manager for travelinbertainmer
on the Company’s behalf and other outpoicket expenses incurred by managers, officersppeel and agents of the Manager in conne
with the purchase, financing, refinancing, saleotiter disposition of an Investment or establishnmamd maintenance of any repurct
agreements, warehouse facilities, borrowings umegrams established by the U.S. government, atheured and unsecured form:
borrowings or any of the Company’s or any Subsidsasecurities offerings;
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(ix) costs and expenses incurred with respecmarket information systems and publicationssearc
publications and materials, including financial lgtias and market data, and settlement, clearirjaurstodial fees and expenses;

(x) compensation and expenses of the Cagipa&ustodian and transfer agent, if any;

(xi) the costs of maintaining compliancethwall federal, state and local rules and regufstior any othe
regulatory agency;

(xii) all taxes and license fees;

(xiii) all insurance costs incurred in contiee with the operation of the Compasybusiness, except for
costs attributable to the insurance that the Manafgets to carry for itself and its personr@vided, however, that the Company will |
responsible for itpro rataportion of the premiums related to the Managerisdis and omissions” insurance coverage, as prdviedow;

(xiv)  costs and expenses incurred in contngctiith third parties, including affiliates of thdanager, for th
servicing and special servicing of the assets ®Qbmpany and the Subsidiaries;

(xv) all other costs and expenses relatintheobusiness of the Company and the Subsidiandsrevestmer
operations, including the costs and expenses afideg, owning, protecting, maintaining, developiagd disposing of Investments, incluc
appraisal, valuation, reporting, audit and legakfe

(xvi)  expenses relating to any office(s) diiaaf facilities, including disaster backup recoveites and facilitie:
maintained for the Company and the Subsidiaridava@stments separate from the office or officethefManager;

(xvii) expenses connected with the paymentintdrest, dividends or distributions in cash or atlger forn
authorized or caused to be made by the Board cdcltirs to or on account of holders of the Compamwy’'sany Subsidiarg securitie:
including in connection with any dividend reinvesim plan;

(xviii) any judgment or settlement of pending threatened proceedings (whether civil, criminalotinerwise
against the Company or any Subsidiary, or agamgtustee, director or officer of the Company bany Subsidiary in his capacity as s
for which the Company or any Subsidiary is requiethdemnify such trustee, director or officerdayy court or governmental agency;

(xix) all other expenses actually incurred thg Manager (except as described below) whichreasonabl
necessary for the performance by the Manager diities and functions under this Agreement; and

(xx) any costs and expenses (including thdsscribed above) incurred by a sadviser engaged by t
Manager pursuant to Section 2(e) in connection thighprovision of suladvisory services in respect of the Manager, inolyduch costs ai
expenses of CLA Founders LL@rovided, however, that the reimbursement of any such costs andnsgseshall be subject to the si
limitations set forth in this Agreement on the rbumsement of the costs and expenses of the Manager.
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The Company shall have no obligation to reimbureeManager for the salary, bonus, benefit and atberpensation costs of |
personnel of the Manager and its affiliates whovjgte services to the Company under this Agreemexdept that, the Company sl
reimburse the Manager for, without duplication,tfig Companys allocable share of the compensation paid by thedder to its personi
serving as the Company’s principal financial offi@nd general counsel and personnel employed byimeager as itouse legal, ta
accounting, consulting, auditing, administrativeprmation technology, valuation, computer prograngrand development and baoKice
resources to the Company, and (i) any amountpéosonnel of the Manageraffiliates arising under the Shared Services Agwnt. Th
Companys share of such out of pocket costs shall be bagend commercially reasonable estimates of the p&age of time devoted by st
personnel of the Manager and its affiliates to @mmpanys affairs. The Manager shall provide the Compan wuch information as t
Company may reasonably request to support therdigtation of the Compang’share of such costs. The Manager shall be reigp@figr the
compensation paid by the Manager to its persorar@lrgy as the Company'Chief Executive Officer, President, and Chiefdsivnent Office
and the Manager’s investment professionals.

In addition, the Company will be required to pag ompany'spro rata portion of (i) rent, telephone, utilities, officairhiture
equipment, machinery and other office, internal amdrhead expenses of the Manager and its affiliedquired for the operations of
Company and the Subsidiaries and (ii) premiumsedl#o the “errors and omissionsisurance coverage referred to in Section 7(e)pest
expenses will be allocated between the Managette@ompany based on the ratio of the Compapyoportion of net assets compared t
remaining net assets managed or held by Pine Riveranaged or held by the Manager as calculatedct quarter end. The Manager
the Company will modify this allocation methodologybject to the Independent Directors’ approv¥dhe allocation becomes inequitable.

The Manager may, at its option, elect not to seskbursement for certain expenses during a giveartegudy period, whic
determination shall not be deemed to construe aewadf reimbursement for similar expenses in futpegiods. In the event that -
Company’s business combination transaction (theusifBiess Combination Transactidh with Capitol Acquisition Corp., a Delaws
corporation, is consummated, the Company will reirsb the Manager for all organizational, formationd transaction costs it has incui
on behalf of the Company, but the Company shallb@otesponsible for such costs in the event thénBas Combination Transaction is
consummated.

The provisions of this Section 9 shall survive &xpiration or earlier termination of this Agreemémthe extent such expenses
previously been incurred or are incurred in conbeavith such expiration or termination.

Section 10. Calculations of Expensd$he Manager shall prepare a statement docungetitenExpenses of the Company
the Subsidiaries and the Expenses incurred by @ealfer on behalf of the Company and the Subsididtieing each fiscal quarter, and s
deliver such statement to the Company within 30sd&fjer the end of each fiscal quarter. Expensagriad by the Manager on behalf of
Company and the Subsidiaries shall be reimbursatidoCompany to the Manager on the fifth businessithmediately following the date
delivery of such statemergrovided, however, that such reimbursements may be offset by theaganagainst amounts due to the Com
and the Subsidiaries. The provisions of this eactiO shall survive the expiration or earlier teration of this Agreement.
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Section 11. Limits of Manager Respottigyh Indemnification.

(@) The Manager assumes no responsihbitider this Agreement other than to render theises\called for under tt
Agreement and shall not be responsible for anyoactf the Board of Directors in following or dechig to follow any advice ¢
recommendations of the Manager, including as sét fo Section 7(b) of this Agreement. The Mana@irA Founders LLC, their respect
officers, stockholders, members, managers, per$@mukdirectors, any Person controlling or conglby the Manager or CLA Found
LLC and any Person providing s@olvisory services to the Manager and the manag#isers, directors and personnel of the Managé&mn
Founders LLC and their respective officers, membdirectors, managers and personnel will not bHaldido the Company or any Subsidii
to the Board of Directors, or the Company’s or &ubsidiarys stockholders, members or partners for any actarossions by any su
Person (including trade errors that may result fosdinary negligence, such as errors in the investrdecision making process or in the ti
process), pursuant to or in accordance with thissAgent, except by reason of acts constitutinglesskdisregard of the Managedutie:
under this Agreement which has a material adveffeeteon the Company and the Subsidiaries, wilfhisconduct or gross negligence
determined by a final noappealable order of a court of competent jurisdictiThe Company and the Operating Company sloathe ful
extent lawful, reimburse, indemnify and hold theridger, CLA Founders LLC, their respective officateckholders, directors, members
personnel, any Person controlling or controlledtrsy Manager or CLA Founders LLC and any Personighoy subadvisory services to tl
Manager, together with the managers, officers,ctlirs and personnel of the Manager, CLA Founder€ land their respective office
members, directors, managers and personnel (edddanager Indemnified Party), harmless of and from any and all expenses, Ic
damages, liabilities, demands, charges and clafrasyonature whatsoever (including attornefggs) in respect of or arising from any aci
omissions of such Manager Indemnified Party notstiarting such Manager Indemnified Party’s reckldssegard of the Managsrdutie:
under this Agreement which has a material advdfseteon the Company and the Subsidiaries, wiltfisconduct or gross negligence.

(b) The Manager shall, to the full ext&awful, reimburse, indemnify and hold the Compday any Subsidiary) at
its directors and officers (each, a “* Company Indiied Party” and together with a Manager Indemnified Partg, thindemnite€’), harmles
of and from any and all expenses, losses, daméigbdities, demands, charges and claims of anyneatvhatsoever (including attorneys’
fees) in respect of or arising from the Managegktess disregard of the Manageduties under this Agreement which has a matadetrs
effect on the Company and the Subsidiaries, willfidconduct or gross negligence.

(c) The Indemnitee will promptly notifgie party against whom indemnity is claimed (theddmnitor”) of any clain
for which it seeks indemnificatioqrovided, however, that the failure to so notify the Indemnitor wilbt relieve the Indemnitor from a
liability which it may have hereunder, except te #xtent such failure actually prejudices the Indiéon. The Indemnitor shall have the ri
to assume the defense and settlement of such gowided, that the Indemnitor notifies the Indemnitee af @ection to assume st
defense and settlement within 30 days after therhmitee gives the Indemnitor notice of the claimsuch case, the Indemnitee will not st
or compromise such claim, and the Indemnitor wdt be liable for any such settlement made withdsitprior written consent. If tl
Indemnitor is entitled to, and does, assume sufdnde by delivering the aforementioned notice ®ltidemnitee, the Indemnitee will (i) h:
the right to approve the Indemnitsrtounsel (which approval will not be unreasonatityheld, delayed or conditioned), (ii) be oblighte
cooperate in furnishing evidence and testimonyiarahy other manner in which the Indemnitor maysoggbly request and (iii) be entitlec
participate in (but not control) the defense of angh action, with its own counsel and at its owpesse.
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Section 12. No Joint VenturdNothing in this Agreement shall be construethtatke the Company (or any Subsidiary) anc
Manager partners or joint venturers or impose abjlity as such on either of them.

Section 13. Term; Termination

€)) Until this Agreement is terminatedaiocordance with its terms, this Agreement shalinbeffect until [ ], 201
(the “ Initial Term”) and shall be automatically renewed for a oneryeam (a “ Renewal Terrf) upon the expiration of the Initial Term ¢
on each anniversary date thereafter unless attleaghirds of all of the Independent Directors or tlwdders of a majority of the outstand
shares of common stock (other than those shardslgePine River or its affiliates) agree that (igte has been unsatisfactory performanc
the Manager that is materially detrimental to tt@mpany and the Subsidiaries or (ii) the compensgtayable to the Manager hereund:
unfair; providedthat the Company shall not have the right to teat@nthis Agreement under clause (ii) above if thenkfer agrees
continue to provide the services under this Agregraéa reduced fee that at least tihives of all of the Independent Directors deterasirx
be fair pursuant to the procedure set forth beltthe Company elects not to renew this Agreenagtihe expiration of the Initial Term or &
Renewal Term as set forth above, the Company dkbller to the Manager prior written notice (th&€rmination Notice) of the Companyg
intention not to renew this Agreement based upent¢éhms set forth in this Section 13(a) not less th80 days prior to the expiration of
then existing term. If the Company so elects natenhew this Agreement, the Company shall desigihetelate (the Effective Terminatio
Date”), not less than 180 days from the date of the noticayhich the Manager shall cease to provide sesvimder this Agreement, and
Agreement shall terminate on such datmvided, however, that in the event that such Termination Noticgiien in connection with
determination that the compensation payable tdvtheager is unfair, the Manager shall have the rightenegotiate such compensatior
delivering to the Company, no fewer than 45 daysrgo the prospective Effective Termination Daigjtten notice (any such notice, a “
Notice of Proposal to Negotia”) of its intention to renegotiate its compensatiodanthis Agreement. Thereupon, the Company (reptee
by the Independent Directors) and the Manager shalkeavor to negotiate the revised compensatioabpayto the Manager under t
Agreement. In the eventthat the Manager and at least tiirds of all of the Independent Directors agreethte terms of the revis
compensation to be payable to the Manager withidad%s following the receipt of the Notice of Proglo® Negotiate, the Termination Not
shall be deemed of no force and effect and thisségrent shall continue in full force and effect ba terms stated in this Agreement, ex
that the compensation payable to the Manager hdesushall be the revised compensation then agrgesh by the parties to tt
Agreement. The Company and the Manager agree @¢ouéx and deliver an amendment to this Agreemeingeforth such revise
compensation promptly upon reaching an agreemeatdag same. In the event that the Company aaf/iimager are unable to agree tc
terms of the revised compensation to be payaktieetdlanager during such 4y period, this Agreement shall terminate, sucmitgation tc
be effective on the date which is the later of {A)days following the end of such day period and (B) the Effective Termination C
originally set forth in the Termination Notice.

(b) In recognition of the level of thefugnt effort required by the Manager to structunel acquire the assets of
Company and the Subsidiaries and the commitmergsafurces by the Manager, in the event that thigément is terminated in accorda
with the provisions of Section 13(a) or Sectiont)5gf this Agreement, the Company shall pay toKenager, on the date on which s
termination is effective, a termination fee (th&érmination Fe€) equal to three times the sum of the average arBast Management F
earned by the Manager during the énth period immediately preceding the date of dechination, calculated as of the end of the |
recently completed fiscal quarter prior to the daftéermination. The obligation of the Companypty the Termination Fee shall survive
termination of this Agreement.
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(c) No later than 180 days prior to thaigersary date of this Agreement of any year duting Initial Term ¢
Renewal Term, the Manager may deliver written motic the Company informing it of the Managemtention to decline to renew t
Agreement, whereupon this Agreement shall not hewed and extended and this Agreement shall tetengféective on the anniversary d
of this Agreement next following the delivery ofcéunotice. The Company is not required to payhtoNlanager the Termination Fee if
Manager terminates this Agreement pursuant to3aigion 13(c).

(d) If this Agreement is terminated pusuto Section 13 or Section 15 of this Agreemsuth termination shall |
without any further liability or obligation of eign party to the other, except as provided in Saesti®, 9, 10, 13(b), 15(b), and 16 of
Agreement. In addition, Sections 11, 13(d) an@®this Agreement shall survive termination of tAigreement.

Section 14. Assignment
€)) Except as set forth in Section 14(bbhis Agreement, this Agreement shall terminatmatically in the event

its “assignment” s defined under the Advisers Act), in whole opamt, by the Manager, unless such assignment secoed to in writing £
the Company with the consent of a majority of theelpendent Directors; provided, however, that roh @ionsent shall be required in the «
of an assignment by the Manager to Pine River grddrits affiliates. Any such permitted assignmémtan affiliate shall bind the assigi
under this Agreement in the same manner as the géans bound, and the Manager shall be liable é@oGbmpany for all errors or omissit
of the assignee under any such assignment. Itiaadihe assignee shall execute and deliver t@Cdmapany a counterpart of this Agreen
naming such assignee as Manager. This Agreematitrsit be assigned by the Company without therpsiotten consent of the Manag
except in the case of assignment by the Compargntdher REIT or other organization which is a sasoe (by merger, consolidatit
purchase of assets, or similar transaction) tcCiiapany, in which case such successor organizsliath be bound under this Agreement
by the terms of such assignment in the same mawigre Company is bound under this Agreement.

(b) Notwithstanding any provision of thdggreement, the Manager may subcontract and asmignor all of it
responsibilities under Sections 2(b), 2(c) and 2(fd)his Agreement to any of its affiliates in acdance with the terms of this Agreemr
applicable to any such subcontract or assignmeuittlee Company hereby consents to any such assigrand subcontracting. In additi
providedthat the Manager provides prior written noticelte Company for informational purposes only, nothingtained in this Agreeme
shall preclude any pledge, hypothecation or othemsfer of any amounts payable to the Manager uthderAgreement. In addition, t
Manager may assign this Agreement to any of ittigés without the approval of the Independentebiors.

Section 15. Termination for Cause

€)) The Company may terminate this Agrestreffective upon 30 daygrior written notice of termination from t
Company to the Manager, without payment of any Tieation Fee, if (i) the Manager, its agents orassignees materially breaches
provision of this Agreement and such breach shatltioue for a period of 30 days after written netibereof specifying such breach
requesting that the same be remedied in suctia§Qperiod (or 90 days after written notice of sbebach if the Manager takes steps to
such breach within 30 days of the written noti¢#) the Manager engages in any act of fraud, npsapriation of funds, or embezzlem
against the Company or any Subsidiary, (iii) thisran event of any gross negligence on the path@fManager in the performance of
duties under this Agreement, (iv) there is a conteerent of any proceeding relating to the ManagBenkruptcy or insolvency, including
order for relief in an involuntary bankruptcy casehe Manager authorizing or filing a voluntarynkeuptcy petition, (v) there is a dissolut
of the Manager or (vi) the Manager is convictedin¢luding a plea oholo contenderg a felony.
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(b) The Manager may terminate this Agreetreffective upon 60 daysrior written notice of termination to t
Company in the event that the Company shall defautie performance or observance of any mategiah t condition or covenant contait
in this Agreement and such default shall contirareafperiod of 30 days after written notice therguécifying such default and requesting
the same be remedied in suchd&dr period. The Company is required to pay toMtamager the Termination Fee if the terminationha$
Agreement is made pursuant to this Section 15(b).

(c) The Manager may terminate this Agreetnwithout payment of any Termination Fee, in ¢lvent the Compal
becomes regulated as an “investment compamyer the Investment Company Act, with such tertmmadeemed to have occur
immediately prior to such event.

Section 16. Action Upon TerminatiorFrom and after the effective date of terminatafnthis Agreement, pursuant
Sections 13 or 15 of this Agreement, the Managel slot be entitled to compensation for furthevgsgs under this Agreement, but shal
paid all compensation accruing to the date of teatidn and, if terminated pursuant to Section 13(&)Section 15(b), the applica
Termination Fee. Upon such termination, the Manaball forthwith:

® after deducting any accrued comptosaand reimbursement for its expenses to whidh then entitlec
pay over to the Company or a Subsidiary all monalected and held for the account of the Company @ubsidiary pursuant to t
Agreement;

(i) deliver to the Board of Directorddl accounting, including a statement showingpallyments collecte
by it and a statement of all money held by it, congthe period following the date of the last ameting furnished to the Board of Direct
with respect to the Company or a Subsidiary; and

(iii) deliver to the Board of Directoadl property and documents of the Company or arlysiliary then i
the custody of the Manager.

Section 17. Release of Money or Otheyp€rty Upon Written Request The Manager agrees that any money or .
property of the Company or any Subsidiary held ey Manager under this Agreement shall be held byManager as custodian for
Company or Subsidiary, and the Manageagcords shall be appropriately marked clearlyeftect the ownership of such money or o
property by the Company or such Subsidiary. Upanréteipt by the Manager of a written request signea duly authorized officer of t
Company requesting the Manager to release to tinep@oy or any Subsidiary any money or other propixy held by the Manager for
account of the Company or any Subsidiary underAkieement, the Manager shall release such moneyher property to the Company
any Subsidiary within a reasonable period of timg,in no event later than 30 days following suetuest. The Manager shall not be liab
the Company, any Subsidiary, the Independent Qirecbr the Company’s or a Subsidiargtockholders, members or partners for any
performed or omissions to act by the Company or Sulysidiary in connection with the money or otherperty released to the Compan:
any Subsidiary in accordance with the second seatehthis Section 17. The Company and any Sufrsidihall indemnify the Manager ¢
the other Manager Indemnified Parties against anty @l expenses, losses, damages, liabilities, ddsjacharges and claims of any na
whatsoever, which arise in connection with the Mpams release of such money or other property to thengamy or any Subsidiary
accordance with the terms of this Section 17. nmiiécation pursuant to this provision shall beanidition to any right of the Manager or i
such other Manager Indemnified Party to indemnificaunder Section 11 of this Agreement.
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Section 18. Notices Unless expressly provided otherwise in this A&gnent, all notices, requests, demands and
communications required or permitted under thisekgnent shall be in writing and shall be deemedaeehbeen duly given, made
received when delivered against receipt or uponahceceipt of (i) personal delivery, (ii) delivelby reputable overnight courier, (iii) delive
by facsimile transmission with telephonic confirfoator (iv) delivery by registered or certified hygostage prepaid, return receipt reque:
addressed as set forth below:

€)) If to the Company:

Two Harbors Investment Corp.
601 Carlson Parkway

Suite 330

Minnetonka, MN 55305
Attention: General Counsel

(b) If to the Manager:

PRCM Advisers LLC

601 Carlson Parkway

Suite 330

Minnetonka, MN 55305
Attention: General Counsel

Either party may alter the address to which comgeations or copies are to be sent by giving notfceuch change of address in conforr
with the provisions of this Section 18 for the gigiof notice.

Section 19. Binding Nature of Agreeme3uiccessors and AssignsThis Agreement shall be binding upon and inoré¢ht
benefit of the parties hereto and their respedtsies, personal representatives, successors andtfael assigns as provided in this Agreerr

Section 20. Entire AgreemenThis Agreement contains the entire agreemenuadérstanding among the parties hereto
respect to the subject matter of this Agreemerd, supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agrégmenlerstandings, inducements
conditions, express or implied, oral or written,asfy nature whatsoever with respect to the sulmjeter of this Agreement. The expi
terms of this Agreement control and supersede anyse of performance and/or usage of the tradengistent with any of the terms of t
Agreement. This Agreement may not be modifiedmeaded other than by an agreement in writing sidnyetthe parties hereto.

Section 21. GOVERNING LAW THIS AGREEMENT AND THE RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OHFHE PARTIES
UNDER THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND CONSRUED AND INTERPRETED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, TH
LAW OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK WITHOUT REGARD TO CONKCTS OF LAW PRINCIPLES TO THE CONTRARY.
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Section 22. No Waiver; Cumulative Renesdi No failure to exercise and no delay in exergsion the part of any pa
hereto, any right, remedy, power or privilege hedar shall operate as a waiver thereof; nor stmglisingle or partial exercise of any ri¢
remedy, power or privilege hereunder preclude atmgroor further exercise thereof or the exerciseamy other right, remedy, power
privilege. The rights, remedies, powers and s herein provided are cumulative and not exausf any rights, remedies, powers
privileges provided by law. No waiver of any preiein hereunder shall be effective unless it is iiitimg and is signed by the party asserte
have granted such waiver.

Section 23. HeadingsThe headings of the sections of this Agreementbeen inserted for convenience of reference
and shall not be deemed part of this Agreement.

Section 24. Counterpart§his Agreement may be executed in any numbeoohterparts, each of which shall be deem
be an original as against any party whose signafyogears thereon, and all of which shall togethemsttute one and the sa
instrument. This Agreement shall become bindingmvbne or more counterparts of this Agreementyiddally or taken together, shall b
the signatures of all of the parties reflected beras the signatories.

Section 25. SeverabilityAny provision of this Agreement that is prohdaltor unenforceable in any jurisdiction shall,
such jurisdiction, be ineffective to the extentsath prohibition or unenforceability without inva@diting the remaining provisions hereof,
any such prohibition or unenforceability in anyigaliction shall not invalidate or render unenfotdeasuch provision in any other jurisdictit

Section 26. GendeWords used herein regardless of the number andey specifically used, shall be deemed and aget
to include any other number, singular or plurafj any other gender, masculine, feminine or neatethe context requires.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have exettlis Agreement as of the date first written above
TWO HARBORS INVESTMENT CORF

By:/s/ Jeff Stoli

Name: Jeff Stol
Title: Chief Financial Office

TWO HARBORS OPERATING COMPANY LL(C

By:/s/ Jeff Stoli

Name: Jeff Stol
Title: Authorized Signator

PRCM ADVISERS LLC

By:/s/ Jeff Stoli

Name: Jeff Stol
Title: Chief Financial Office




Exhibit A
« No investment shall be made that would cause thepgaay to fail to qualify as a REIT for U.S. fedeirsdome tax purposes; ai

« Noinvestment shall be made that would cause thepgaay to be required to register as an investmampany under the Investme
Company Act

« The Company will primarily invest within the Compesitarget assets, consisting primarily of AgendyiBS and non-Agency RMBS;
approximately 5% to 10% of the Compi’s portfolio may include financial assets other tAgency RMBS and nc-Agency RMBS.

« Until appropriate investments can be identifie&, @ompany may invest available cash in interestifig@@and short-term investments,
that are consistent with (i) the Company’s intemtio qualify as a REIT, and (ii) the Company’s &adh Subsidiary’s exemption from
“investment compar” status under the Investment Company ,

For purposes of the above, “ Agency RMB®eans residential mortgage-backed securitiedMBRB ") for which a U.S. government agency
(including the Government National Mortgage Asstioig or a federally chartered corporation (inchglthe Federal National Mortgage
Association and the Federal Home Loan Mortgage @atjpn) guarantees payments of principal and ésteon the securities and “ non
Agency RMBS’ means RMBS that are not issued or guaranteedUhysagovernment agency or a federally charteregaration.
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Exhibit 10.2
SPONSOR’S VOTING AND SUPPORT AGREEMENT

SPONSOR’S VOTING AND SUPPORT AGREEMENT, dated asJohe 11, 2009 (this “ Agreemef)t by and among Capit
Acquisition Corp. (the “ Company, Pine River Capital Management L.P._(* Pine Rit)e Two Harbors Investment Corp. (* Paréjit Two
Harbors Merger Corp. (* Merger Stih PRCM Advisers LLC (the “ Managé) and Amanda Eilian (the “ Sponstr(capitalized terms us
but not defined herein have the meanings set forfitticle I).

WHEREAS, on the date hereof, the Company, PinerRRarent and Merger Sub are entering into a mexgerement (the Merge!
Agreement’) whereby Merger Sub will be merged with and into @@mpany and pursuant to which each issued andaodiag share
common stock of the Company (the “ Shdfeshall be converted into the right to receive aaiarhumber of fully paid and nonassess
shares of common stock of Parent upon the termsuainigct to the conditions set forth in the Merggreement;

WHEREAS, as a condition to Pine River’'s, Parentid derger Suls willingness to enter into the Merger AgreemeimgeMRiver
Parent and Merger Sub have requested that the Gongmal Sponsor enter into this Agreement purswanthich Sponsor agrees to vote
Shares acquired after the IPO (“Post-IPO Sharesfguor of the Merger at the Company Stockholdeeetihg (as defined herein);

WHEREAS, in connection with the Merger, the Compangeeking an agreement substantially in the fattacched hereto @&xhibit
B (the “ Warrant Agreement Amendmeitto amend the Warrant Agreement, made as of Ndezr8, 2007 (the “ Warrant Agreemént
between the Company and Continental Stock TradsfBrust Company (the * Warrant Agefijt to, among other things, increase the exe
price and duration of the Company’s warrants (thedrrants’);

WHEREAS, Section 9.8 of the Warrant Agreement nexguthe written consent of the registered holdéms majority of the then-
outstanding Warrants to amend the Warrant Agreement

WHEREAS, as a condition to Pine River’'s, Parentid &erger Suls willingness to enter into the Merger AgreemeimmgeMRiver
Parent and Merger Sub have requested that the Gogngral Sponsor enter into this Agreement pursuamthich Sponsor, as a holder
Warrants, if any, agrees to give his written conserthe Warrant Agreement Amendment at the Comp#iayrantholders Meeting (as defir
herein);

WHEREAS, Sponsor is the record and beneficial ovafeand has the right to vote and dispose oth@} number of Shares (st
Shares, together with any other Shares of the Coynpaneficially owned or acquired by the Sponsterahe date hereof whether acqu
directly or indirectly, being collectively referréd herein with respect to such Sponsor as thechS@r Share¥), if any, and (ii) that numb
of Warrants (such Warrants, together with any otvarrants of the Company beneficially owned or &egliby the Sponsor after the c
hereof whether acquired directly or indirectly,rmecollectively referred to herein with respecstch Sponsor as the “ Sponsor Warrdts
any, set forth opposite Sponsor’s name _on Exhiliiefeto;

WHEREAS, as a condition to Pine River’s, Parentid derger Suls willingness to enter into the Merger AgreemeimgeMRiver
Parent and Merger Sub have also requested tha@dhgpany and Sponsor enter into this Agreement patsto which Sponsor agrees
certain transfer restrictions in respect of hisr8sand/or Warrants and to the cancellation oaiscellation Securities (as defined below
any, at or prior to the Closing Date; and




WHEREAS, Sponsor desires Pine River, Parent, Me&ydr and the Company to enter into the Merger Agesg and Spons
desires the Company and the Warrant Agent to émtethe Warrant Agreement Amendment;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premised tre representations, warranties and agreementaiged herein and f
good and valuable consideration, the receipt aedaakty of which are hereby acknowledged, the saatigee as follows:

ARTICLE |
DEFINITIONS

Section 1.1 Definitions For purposes of this Agreement, the followingrie have the following meanings (capitalized te
used herein but not otherwise defined shall hagentbanings ascribed to them in the Merger Agreement

“ Agreement’ shall have the meaning set forth in the Recitals.

“ Cancellation Securitiesshall have the meaning set forth in Section 4.1.

“ Company” shall have the meaning set forth in the Recitals.

“ Escrow Agreement means that Stock Escrow Agreement dated Novemb20®/ between the Company, the Sponsors
Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company, as@sagent (the “ Escrow Ageiit

“ Expiration Date” means the earlier of (i) the Closing Date andtli€ termination of the Merger Agreement in accocgawith its
terms.

“ Manager” shall have the meaning set forth in the Recitals.

“ Merger Agreement shall have the meaning set forth in the Recitals.

“ Merger Sub’ shall have the meaning set forth in the Recitals.
“ Parent” shall have the meaning set forth in the Recitals.
“ Pine River” shall have the meaning set forth in the Recitals.

“ Pine River Partie§ means Pine River, Parent, Merger Sub and the Fema

“ PostIPO Shares shall have the meaning set forth in the Recitals.
“ Sponsor” shall have the meaning set forth in the Recitals.
“ Sponsor Sharesshall have the meaning set forth in the Recitals.

“ Sponsor Warrant$shall have the meaning set forth in the Recitals.

“ Sub-Management Agreemehshall have the meaning set forth in Section 4.2.

“ Warrant Agent’ shall have the meaning set forth in the Recitals.




“ Warrant Agreement shall have the meaning set forth in the Recitals.

“ Warrant Agreement Amendmehshall have the meaning set forth in the Recitals.

“ Warrants” shall have the meaning set forth in the Recitals.

Section 1.2 Genderor the purposes of this Agreement, the words™this” or “himself’ shall be interpreted to include
masculine, feminine and corporate, other entityrast form.

ARTICLE Il
COVENANTS TO SUPPORT THE MERGER

Section 2.1 Voting of Sponsor Securities

€)) Sponsor, as a holder of P&D Shares, if any, hereby agrees that from angl dlfte date hereof until the earlier
(i) receipt of the Company Stockholder Approval giijithe termination of the Merger Agreement incadance with its terms, at ¢
Company Stockholders Meeting, or in connection witly written consent of the Compasystockholders, Sponsor will (A) appear at ¢
Company Stockholders Meeting or otherwise caus®b&iPO Shares, if any, to be counted as present thérepurposes of calculating
quorum and (B) vote or cause to be voted (includipgvritten consent, if applicable) all of his R#BO Shares, if any, (1) for approval
adoption of the Merger Agreement and the transastioontemplated by the Merger Agreement (withogareé to any Change
Recommendation), (2) against any Acquisition Praposithout regard to the terms of such AcquisitProposal, or any other transact
proposal, agreement or action made in oppositicadtmption of the Merger Agreement or in competitimrinconsistent with the Merger &
the other transactions contemplated by the Mergge@ment, (3) against any other action that iswoee or could prevent, impede, or, in
material respect, interfere with, delay the tratisas contemplated by the Merger Agreement, oir(4avor of any other matter necessar
the consummation of the transactions contemplayetidoMerger Agreement.

(b) Sponsor, as a holder of Sponsor Wigsraf any, hereby agrees that from and afterdhte hereof until the earlier
(i) receipt of the Company Stockholder Approval #iidthe termination of the Merger Agreement ircaancewith its terms, in connectic
with any Company Warrantholders Meeting or reqdi@stvritten consent at or through which proxiesagitten consents of the Company’
Warrant holders are solicited to approve and atleptWarrant Agreement Amendment, Sponsor will eteeemd deliver to the Compan
proxy or written consent, as applicable, with respe Sponsor’'s Sponsor Warrants, if any, to consethe Warrant Agreement Amendment.

Section 2.2 No Restraint on Officer aredtor Action. The agreements set forth herein shall in no keatrict any director
officer in the exercise of his fiduciary dutiesaslirector or officer of the Company. Each Sporsas executed this Agreement solely ir
capacity as the beneficial owner of Sponsor Shaneléor Sponsor Warrants and no action taken bysanly director or officer solely in st
Person’s capacity as a director or officer of tleenpany shall be deemed to constitute a breachyopavision of this Agreement.




ARTICLE Il
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

Section 3.1 Representations and Wagsimi Sponsor Sponsor hereby represents and warrants to thgp@uwy and the Pil
River Parties as follows:

€)) Sponsor has all requisite legal cdpaor other power and authority to execute andveelthis Agreement and
consummate the transactions contemplated herebig. Agreement has been duly executed and deliveye8ponsor and, assuming 1
Agreement constitutes a valid and binding obligatidd the Company and the Pine River Parties, cotes a valid and binding obligation
Sponsor enforceable against the Sponsor in accoedaiith its terms, except that (i) such enforcemematy be subject to bankrupt
insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, or othenikr laws now or hereafter in effect, and (ii) tremedy of specific performance ¢
injunctive and other forms of equitable relief mbg subject to equitable defenses and to the disoref the court before which a
proceeding therefor may be brought. Except fohdoformational filings with the Securities and lBange Commission as may be neces
under the Exchange Act, neither the executionydslior performance of this Agreement by Sponsertine consummation by Sponsor of
transactions contemplated hereby will (i) requipmi@sor to make any filing with, or obtain any pdrrauthorization, consent or approval
any Governmental Entity, (ii) result in a violatian breach of, or constitute (with or without duatice or lapse of time or both) a def:
under, or give rise to any right of termination,eamdment, cancellation or acceleration under, arlr@s the creation of any Lien upon any
the properties or assets of the Sponsor underpfthe terms, conditions or provisions of any natend, mortgage, indenture, lease, lice
permit, concession, franchise, contract, agreemeather instrument or obligation to which Sponisoa party or by which Sponsor or any
Sponsors properties or assets, including the Sponsor ShareéSponsor Warrants, may be bound (other tharEfweow Agreement)
(iii) result in a violation by Sponsor of any Lawmlicable to Sponsor or any of Sponsgproperties or assets, including the Sponsor Sl
Sponsor Warrants.

(b) The Sponsor Shares, if any, set fogposite such Sponsor’'s name _on Exhibiheketo and the certificates represer
such Sponsor Shares are held of record or berlsfibia the Sponsor and the Sponsor has good an#atanie title to such Sponsor Sha
free and clear of any Liens, proxies, voting trusteigreements, understandings or arrangementspiefar any such Liens arising hereur
or under the Escrow Agreement. Neither the Sponsorany affiliate of the Sponsor owns of recordbeneficially any securities of t
Company, or any options, warrants or rights exahtesfor securities of the Company, other thanShares and Warrants set forth Exhibit
A hereto. Other than under this Agreement, neitipenSor nor any affiliate of Sponsor has grantedpgointed any proxy, power of attori
or other rights (except any expired or effectivedyoked proxy) with respect to any Sponsor Shares.

(c) The Sponsor Warrants, if any, sethfapposite such Sponsor’'s name_on Exhiblieketo and the certificates represer
such Sponsor Warrants are now, and until the EtipirdDate will be, held of record or beneficially Bponsor, and Sponsor has good
marketable title to such Sponsor Warrants, freedear of any Liens, proxies, voting trusts or agnents, understandings or arrangem
except for any such Liens arising hereunder or utite Subscription Agreement, dated as of OctoBeP@07, relating to the purchase of
Sponsor Warrants. Other than under this Agreenmaither Sponsor nor any affiliate of Sponsor hastgd or appointed any proxy, po
of attorney or other rights (except any expire@fbectively revoked proxy) with respect to any s@gonsor Warrants.

(d) No broker, investment banker, finah@dvisor or other person is entitled to any brakdinder’s, financial advisos ol
other similar fee or commission in connection wtik transactions contemplated by this Agreemergdapon arrangements made by ¢
behalf of the Sponsor.




(e) Sponsor understands and acknowlettgesine River, Parent and Merger Sub are enténitogthe Merger Agreement
reliance upon Sponsor’s execution and delivenhisf Agreement.

® As of the date of this Agreement,rthés no litigation, suit, claim, action, proceegliar investigation pending or, to !
knowledge of Sponsor, threatened against Sponsanyoproperty or asset of Sponsor, before any Gwwental Entity that (i) seeks to de
or prevent the consummation of the transactiongecoplated by this Agreement, the Merger Agreementhe Warrant Agreeme
Amendment or (ii) relates to the Sponsor SharéeeSponsor Warrants.

Section 3.2 Representations and Warmuatfieche Company The Company represents and warrants to Spomsbtha Pin
River Parties as follows: (a) this Agreement haanbduly and validly authorized by the Company, udahg by its board of directors, (b) t
Agreement has been duly executed and delivered Byl authorized officer or other representativetltd Company, (c) assuming 1
Agreement constitutes a valid and binding agreeréihe other parties, this Agreement constitutasledd and binding agreement of
Company, enforceable against the Company in acnoedwith its terms, and (d) except for such infaiorel filings with the Securities a
Exchange Commission as may be necessary undexttafge Act, neither the execution, delivery ofgrenance of this Agreement by !
Company nor the consummation by the Company oftrénesactions contemplated hereby will (i) requite Company to make any fili
with, or obtain any permit, authorization, consentipproval of, any Governmental Entity, (ii) resual a violation or breach of, or constit
(with or without due notice or lapse of time or lijot default under, or give rise to any right afrtmation, amendment, cancellatior
acceleration under, or result in the creation of aien upon any of the properties or assets ofGbmpany under, any of the terms, condit
or provisions of any note, bond, mortgage, indentlgase, license, permit, concession, franchisgtract, agreement or other instrumer
obligation to which the Company is a party or byishhthe Company or any of its properties or assetg be bound, other than, the Esc
Agreement or (iii) result in a violation by the Cpany of any Law applicable to the Company or anigsoproperties or assets.

Section 3.3 Representations and Warrsofithe Pine River Parties

@ Each of the Pine River Parties regmesand warrants to Sponsor and the Company lasvfol (a) this Agreement has b
duly and validly authorized by such party (inclugliny its board of directors or other applicable gming body), (b) this Agreement has k
duly executed and delivered by a duly authorizditef or other representative of such party, (suasing this Agreement constitutes a v
and binding agreement of the other parties, thiseAent constitutes a valid and binding agreemesuch party, enforceable against <
party in accordance with its terms, and (d) exdeptsuch informational filings with the Securitia®id Exchange Commission as ma
necessary under the Exchange Act, neither the &raculelivery or performance of this Agreementsuch party nor the consummation
such party of the transactions contemplated heveby(i) require such party to make any filing wjtlor obtain any permit, authorizatir
consent or approval of, any Governmental Entify résult in a violation or breach of, or constit\tvith or without due notice or lapse of ti
or both) a default under, or give rise to any rightermination, amendment, cancellation or acegien under, or result in the creation of
Lien upon any of the properties or assets of sactypunder, any of the terms, conditions or pravisi of any note, bond, mortgage, inden
lease, license, permit, concession, franchise racitagreement or other instrument or obligatmmvhich such party is a party or by wh
such party or any of such parsyproperties or assets may be bound or (i) réaudt violation by such party of any Law applicabdesucl
party or any of such party’s properties or assets.




(b) Parent represents and warrants to SponsoitithaBubManagement Agreement among PRCM Advisers LLC, CloArieler
LLC and Pine River to be entered into on the Clgsias been duly authorized and approved by allssacg action of Parent.

ARTICLE IV
SHARE CANCELLATION AND OTHER AGREEMENTS

Section 4.1 Surrender and CancellatibSexurities. On or prior to the Closing Date, Sponsor shalise the Company
instruct its transfer agent to cancel all of theSwr Shares set forth opposite Sponsor’s namexbibiEA hereto, but not including any Post-
IPO Shares beneficially owned or acquired by thenSpr whether acquired directly or indirectly, (th@ancellation Securiti€’y, except the
after the Closing, Sponsor will continue to holb8gors Sponsor Warrants, subject to the revision oftéhms of such Warrants pursuar
the Warrant Agreement Amendment. On the ClosingeDhaé transfer agent shall cancel such Cancell&iecurities in accordance w
Section 3.1(c) of the Merger Agreement, if not poegly cancelled. Without limiting the provision$ Section 5.1, Sponsor hereby agres
execute such additional documents and to provideCibmpany or its transfer agent with any furtheuesnces as may be necessary to ¢
the cancellation of the Cancellation Securities.

Section 4.2 Sullanagement AgreementPine River, the Manager and Sponsor agree th#tedate of this Agreement, F
River, the Manager and CLA Founders LLC shall emér the sub-management agreement (the “-lMabhagement Agreemefi}t attache
hereto as Exhibit C

Section 4.3 Escrow Agreement Terminatiohhe Company and Sponsor agree that on or poidhé Closing Date, tl
Company, Citigroup Global Markets Inc. and eachrSpo shall enter into an agreement to terminateegwow Agreement effective on
Closing Date.

Section 4.4 Registration Rights AgreemeRine River, the Company and Sponsor agree that @rior to the Closing Dal
Pine River, the Parent and Sponsor shall enterReistration Rights Agreement in form to be agreedn by the parties thereto
ARTICLE V
Section 5.1 Further AssuranceSubject to the terms and conditions of this &gnent, each of the parties hereto agrees |

all reasonable efforts to take, or cause to bentadt actions, and to do, or cause to be donehadfys necessary, proper or advisable u
applicable laws to consummate and make effectigerdmsactions contemplated hereby. At the othdyis reasonable request and witt
further consideration, each party hereto shall eteeand deliver such additional documents and #dlkeuch further lawful action as may
necessary or desirable to consummate and makdiedfein the most expeditious manner practicaliie, ttansactions contemplated her
Sponsor acknowledges that Parent and the Comparyydisalose information regarding Sponsor, this Agnent and the transactic
contemplated hereby in filings required to be miagi®arent and/or the Company under the Securitik®ithe Exchange Act.

Section 5.2 Assignment; Binding Effedieither this Agreement nor any of the rightserasts or obligations hereunder s
be assigned by any of the parties hereto (whetlyeogeration of law or otherwise) without the priarritten consent of the otk
parties. Subject to the preceding sentence, thie@ment will be binding upon, inure to the benefiand be enforceable by the parties
their respective successors and assigns.




Section 5.3 Termination This Agreement, and all rights and obligatioristhe parties hereunder, shall terminate or
Expiration Date. Nothing in this Section 6.3 shialleve any party from liability for willful bredcof this Agreement.

Section 5.4 Stop TransferThe Company shall not register the transfer rof eertificate representing SponsoiSponsc
Shares or Sponsor Warrants unless such transfeads in accordance with the terms of this Agreement

Section 5.5 Expensed£xcept as otherwise provided in this Agreemerindhe Merger Agreement, each party shall bes
own expenses in connection with the transactionsecoplated by this Agreement.

Section 5.6 AmendmentsThis Agreement may be amended by the partiesttheby duly authorized action taken. 1
Agreement may not be amended except by an instrLimeriting signed on behalf of each of the partiereto.

Section 5.7 Extension; WaiveThe parties hereto may (i) extend the time Far performance of any of the obligation:
other acts of the other parties hereto, (ii) waawsy inaccuracies in the representations and wagnbntained herein or in any docun
delivered pursuant hereto or (iii) waive compliamdth any of the agreements or conditions contaimetin. Any agreement on the part
party hereto to any such extension or waiver db@Nalid only if set forth in a written instrumesigned on behalf of such party. The fai
of any party to this Agreement to assert any ofiglsts under this Agreement or otherwise shallauststitute a waiver of those rights.

Section 5.8 Notice All notices and other communications hereundedlshe in writing and shall be deemed given
receipt by the parties at the following addresses{ such other address for a party as shall beifigd by like notice):

0] if to any Pine River Party, to:

Pine River Capital Management LP
601 Carlson Parkway, Suite 330
Minnetonka, MN 55305

Attention: Tim O’Brien

Facsimile: (612) 23-3301

with a copy to:

Clifford Chance US LLP

31 West 52" Street

New York, New York 1001

Attention: Jay Bernstein and Brian Hoffmann

Facsimile: (212) 878-8375
(i) if to the Company, to:

Capitol Acquisition Corporation
509 7th Street, NW
Washington, D.C. 20004
Attention: Mark Ein

Facsimile: (202) 65-7063




with a copy to:

Graubard Miller

The Chrysler Building

405 Lexington Avenue

New York, NY 10174-1901

Attention: David Alan Miller
Facsimile: (212) 818-8881

and

Latham & Watkins LLP

555 Eleventh Street, N.W.

Washington, DC 20004

Attention: Paul F. Sheridan, Jr.
David I. Brown

Facsimile: 202-637-2201

and

(iii) if to Sponsor, to the address set forth under #maenof Sponsor on the signature pages hereto (gucht othe
address for Sponsor as shall be specified by litee)

with a copy to:

Graubard Miller

The Chrysler Building

405 Lexington Avenue

New York, NY 10174-1901

Attention: David Alan Miller
Facsimile: (212) 818-8881

and

Latham & Watkins LLP

555 Eleventh Street, N.W.

Washington, DC 20004

Attention: Paul F. Sheridan, Jr.
David I. Brow

Facsimile: 20-637-2201

Section 5.9 InterpretationWords used herein, regardless of the numbergander specifically used, shall be deemed
construed to include any other number, singulgiaral, and any other gender, masculine, feminineeuter, as the context requires. Wh
reference is made in this Agreement to an Artiglea Gection, such reference shall be to an Articla Section of this Agreement unl
otherwise indicated. The headings contained i Algjreement are for reference purposes only antirsttaaffect in any way the meaning
interpretation of this Agreement. This Agreemarthie result of the joint efforts of the Pine RifRanrties, the Company, and Sponsor and
provision hereof has been subject to the mutuaswitetion, negotiation and agreement of the paatrabsthere shall be no construction agi
any party based on any presumption of that paitywelvement in the drafting thereof. The wordsclude”, “includes” or “including”shal
be deemed to be followed by the words “without tation.” A “subsidiary”of any person means another person, an amountofdting
securities, other voting ownership or voting parsh@ interests of which is sufficient to electiedst a majority of its Board of Directors
other governing body (or, if there are no suchnginterests, 50% or more of the equity intereftstich) is owned directly or indirectly |
such first person. The term “ordinary course ddibess” (or similar terms) shall be deemed to tlevi@d by the wordsconsistent with pa
practice.”




Section 5.10 Counterpart§his Agreement may be executed in two or mormterparts, all of which shall be considered
and the same agreement and shall become effechiga two or more counterparts have been signeddly @ahe parties and delivered to
other parties, it being understood that all paniesd not sign the same counterpart. This Agreestell be binding upon Sponsor upon
execution of this Agreement by the Pine River [gartthe Company and Sponsor.

Section 5.11 Entire Agreement; No THrarty Beneficiaries This Agreement (including the documents anditis&rument
referred to herein, including, for the avoidancedotibt, the Merger Agreement, the Escrow Agreemdenéndment, the Revenue Shai
Agreement and the Registration Rights Agreemenj)cdastitutes the entire agreement and supersetlepriar agreements al
understandings, both written and oral, among thiégsawith respect to the subject matter hereod, @) is not intended to confer upon .
person other than the parties hereto any righteroedies hereunder.

Section 5.12 Severability This Agreement shall be deemed severable; thalidity or unenforceability of any term
provision of this Agreement shall not affect thdidity or enforceability of the balance of this Aggment or of any other term hereof, wi
shall remain in full force and effect. If of anfthe provisions hereof are determined to be imlvafiunenforceable, the parties shall negc
in good faith to modify this Agreement so as teeeffthe original intent of the parties as closelyassible.

Section 5.13 Enforcementhe parties agree that irreparable damage wamddr in the event that any of the provisions o
Agreement were not performed in accordance witlir g@ecific terms or were otherwise breacheds ladcordingly agreed that the pai
shall be entitled to an injunction or injunctiomsgrevent breaches of this Agreement and to enfgpeeifically the terms and provisions
this Agreement, in addition to any other remedywioich they are entitled at law or in equity, indlhugl damages, which shall inclt
reasonable out-of-pocket expenses and any otheragesnactually suffered. THE PARTIES HEREBY (i) SUBMIT TO THE
EXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION OF ANY FEDERAL OR STATE COUR T SITTING IN THE STATE OF DELAWARE AND AGREE
NOT TO BRING ANY ACTIONS RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY
IN ANY OTHER COURT, OTHER THAN TO ENFORCE THE JUDGM ENTS OF SUCH COURTS, (ii) AGREE NOT TO OBJECT
TO VENUE IN SUCH COURTS OR TO CLAIM THAT SUCH FORUM IS INCONVENIENT AND (iii) AGREE THAT NOTICE
OR THE SERVICE OF PROCESS IN ANY PROCEEDING SHALL BE PROPERLY SERVED OR DELIVERED IF DELIVERED
IN THE MANNER CONTEMPLATED BY SECTION 5.13 HEREOF. IN ADDITION, EACH OF THE PARTIES HERETO
WAIVES ANY RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY WITH RESPECT TO A NY CLAIM OR PROCEEDING RELATED TO OR ARISING
OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY OF THE TRANSACTIONS CO NTEMPLATED HEREBY.

Section 5.14 Governing LawTHIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUEIN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE, WITHOUT RESRD TO ANY APPLICABLE CONFLICTS OF LAW.




Section 5.15 Publicity Except as otherwise required by law, court psea® the rules of any applicable securities exgbar
as contemplated or provided elsewhere herein, rtg pareto shall issue any press release or oteermiake any public statement with res
to the transactions contemplated by this Agreem#ithbut prior consultation with the other partiesréto.

[SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each party has duly signed Agseement, all as of the date first written above.

PINE RIVER PARTIES:

PINE RIVER CAPITAL MANAGEMENT L.P.

By: /s/ Jeff Stoll

Name: Jeff Stol
Title: Chief Financial Office

TWO HARBORS INVESTMENT CORF

By: /s/ Thomas Sierin

Name: Thomas Sierin
Title: Presiden

TWO HARBORS MERGER CORF

By: /s/ Thomas Sierin

Name: Thomas Sierin
Title: President and Chief Executive Offic

PRCM ADVISERS LLC
By Pine River Capital Management, L.P., Mem

By: /s/ Jeff Stoll

Name: Jeff Stol
Title: Chief Financial Office

THE COMPANY :

CAPITOL ACQUISITION CORP

By: /s/ Mark Ein

Name:
Title:

(Signature Page to Sponsors’ Voting and Supporedgent)




SPONSOF:

By: /s/ Amanda G. Eiliai

Name: Amanda G. Eilia
Address:

(Signature Page to Sponsors’ Voting and Supporeégent)




BENEFICIAL AND RECORD OWNERSHIP OF SPONSOR SECURES

Equity Interests of Sponsors

EXHIBIT A

Shares Warrants
Lawrence Calcano 196,86¢ 250,00(
Capitol Acquisition Management LL 5,938,83! —
Brooke B. Coburn 32,81: 100,00(
Amanda Eilian — 160,00(
Mark D. Ein — 3,040,001
Richard C. Donaldson 65,62¢ 200,00(
Raul J. Fernandez 65,62¢ 750,00(
Miles Gilburne —
Dr. Jeong H. Kim 32,81 750,00(
Ted Leonsis 32,81: 100,00(
Hugh Panero 32,81 100,00(
Arno Penzias 32,81: 200,00(
Piyush Sodha 65,62¢ 1,000,00!
Thomas E. Wheeler 32,81 100,00(
ZG Ventures LLC 32,81: 250,00(
TOTAL 6,562,25 7,000,001

A-1




EXHIBIT B

WARRANT AGREEMENT AMENDMENT

B-1




EXHIBIT C

SUB-MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT
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Exhibit 10.3
SUB-MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT

THIS SUB-MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT (this “ Agreement), is entered into as of October 28, 2009, by ambngPRCM
ADVISERS LLC , a Delaware limited liability company (the “ Marag), CLA FOUNDERS LLC , a Delaware limited liability compa
(the “ SubManager”), and solely with respect to Sections 1, 9, 11(&d(a), 15, and 18 through 2®8INE RIVER CAPITAL
MANAGEMENT L.P. , a Delaware limited partnership (“ Pine River Gald).

RECITALS

WHEREAS , on the date hereof, Two Harbors Investment Carplaryland corporation (the “ Compatly is acquiring, through
merger (the “ Merget), Capitol Acquisition Corp., a Delaware corpoaati(* Capitol”), pursuant to an agreement and plan of merger,
as of June 11, 2009, among Pine River CapitalCiivapany, Two Harbors Merger Corp., a Delaware aatpum, and Capitol (the Merge!
Agreement); and

WHEREAS , on the date hereof, the Manager, the CompanyTamdHarbors Operating Company LLC, a Delawaretkahiliability
company (the “ Operating Compatjy are entering into that certain Management Agreenieral material respects in the form attachedr
exhibit to the Merger Agreement and dated as ofitite hereof (as amended from time to time, theahdjement Agreemetfjt pursuant t
which the Manager will provide investment advis@srvices to the Company and the Subsidiaries ortetms and conditions set fo
therein; and

WHEREAS , the Manager wishes to enter into this Agreemeétit the Sub-Manager in order to engage the Blaldager to serve
a sub-advisor to the Manager to support the pedooa of the Manages’services under the Management Agreement on thes tan:
conditions set forth herein; and

WHEREAS , in connection with the execution of this Agreemdtine River Capital has agreed to provide the-8abager witl
opportunities to serve as a satlvisor to (or to enter into alternative arrangermenmith) the Manager on selected additional ady
arrangements, on the terms and subject to the tomsliset forth herein.

NOW , THEREFORE , in consideration of the foregoing and of the malitovenants and agreements contained herein attie:s
hereto agree as follows:

1. Definitions Capitalized terms used herein without definitglrall have the respective meanings ascribed tm ihethe
Management Agreement. In addition, the followiagrs have the following meanings assigned to them.

“ Affiliate " means, with respect to any Person, any other Pdhsindirectly or indirectly controls, is contraléoy, or is unde
common control with, that Person. For purposethisf definition, “control” (including, with correteve meanings, the terms “controlling”
“controlled by” and “under common control with'\ith respect to any Person, means the possessiectly or indirectly, of the power
direct or cause the direction of the managementpenidies of that Person, whether through the owimierof voting equity securities or
contract or otherwise.

“ Agreement’ means this Sub-Management Agreement, as amemnoledtime to time.




“ Base Management Féehas the meaning set forth in the Management Agregrpeovided that, notwithstanding anything to
contrary in this Agreement, including without ligiion any requirement that the Base ManagementhBee been earned or received,
purposes of calculating any amount payable undier Algreement, the Base Management Fee will be &l without any reductic
described in the last sentence of the definitiofBafse Management Fee” in the Management Agreement.

“ Book Value” means (i) in the case of the Company, the Stolddre’ Equity, and (i) in the case of any other Publichitée, the
book value of such Public Vehicle used for purpasfesalculating the management and termination ésesed by the Manager or any F
River Manager pursuant to the management or agvagneement between such Public Vehicle and thealglemor any Pine River Manager.

“ Capitol” has the meaning set forth in the Recitals to fgseement.

“ Cause” means a final determination by a court of compejarisdiction (a) that the Sullanager has materially breached
Agreement that has a material adverse effect oigmeager or the Company and such material breastctiatinued for a period of 30 di
after receipt by the Sub-Manager of written noticereof specifying such breach and requestingttiesame be remedied in such &8~
period, (b) that an action taken or omitted todleeh by the Subdanager in connection with this Agreement consguwillful misconduct ¢
gross negligence that results in material harmhto Manager and/or the Company and such willful omsicict or gross negligence
continued for a period of 30 days after receiptthy SubManager of written notice thereof specifying suciiifil misconduct or gros
negligence and requesting that the same be remadisdch 30-day period, or (c) that an action takemmitted to be taken by the Sub-
Manager in connection with this Agreement consgufraud that results in material harm to the Managd/or the Company.

“ Company” has the meaning set forth in the Introductoryagaaph to this Agreement.

“ Final Payment has the meaning set forth in Section 11(b) of thjreement.

“ Grant” has the meaning set forth in Section 9(a) of Agseement.

“ Indemnitor” has the meaning set forth in Section 13(b) of thgreement.

“ Independent Revenue Sharemeans any Person who, in connection with a PingeerRManagers entry into a managem
agreement with a Public Vehicle (other than the gany), is offered a Grant so long as (i) such Reisanot an Affiliate of Pine Riw
Capital, the Manager or any of their respectivaliates, and (ii) neither Pine River Capital, thahhger nor any of their respective Affilic
has any pecuniary interest (through contract, gqoiit debt interests or otherwise) in such Persorther Grant offered to such Pers

provided, that “Independent Revenue Sharstiall not include any Person who is offered a Giantonnection with the financing
recapitalization of the Manager.

“ Interest Raté’ means the current (as of the Termination Date) bandterbank Offered Rate as quoted by Citibanl4.Nor any
successor entity thereto) for interest periodsnaf pear, plus 200 basis points per annum, compaogrgliarterly.

“ Management Agreemefithas the meaning set forth in the Recitals to Agseement.

“ Manager” has the meaning set forth in the Introductorya@aaph of this Agreement.




“ Mark Ein Control Person$ means, collectively: (i) Mark D. Ein, (i) any Affate of Mark D. Ein, including without limitatic
Leland Investments, Inc., and (iii) upon Mark DnEideath or disability, if applicable, any execut@torneys in fact, or administrators
Mark D. Ein or his estate, or any trustee (whetitarot as a testamentary trustee or as a sucdesstae under a non-testamentary trust).

“ Mark Ein Related Persorismeans, collectively: (i) Mark D. Ein, (ii) any Afifates of Mark D. Ein, including without limitatic
Leland Investments, Inc., (iii) any trusts (or tees thereof), family limited partnerships or otkestate planning vehicles over which on
more Mark Ein Control Persons exercise control, @ipon Mark D. Eins death or disability, if applicable, any execut@sorneys in fac
administrators, testamentary trustees, legatebsmeficiaries of Mark D. Ein or his estate, or amst formed by either, and (v) to the ex
any Mark Ein Control Person retains voting contreér the applicable interest, any charitable troigganization or entity.

“ Merger” has the meaning set forth in the Recitals to fgseement.

“ Merger Agreement has the meaning set forth in the Recitals to Agseement.

“ Notice Date” has the meaning set forth in Section 9(c) of hiseement.

“ Operating Company has the meaning set forth in the Recitals to Agseement.

“ Pine River Capital has the meaning set forth in the Introductorydgaaph of this Agreement.

“ Pine River Managet has the meaning set forth in Section 9(a) of Agseement.

“ Public Vehicle” means an entity (a) (i) whose common equity saesrére publicly issued or traded or (ii) that &sgecurities
an offering that expressly contemplates such siesirfor other securities of such entity issue@xchange therefor or conversion ther
being listed on a national securities exchange fatuae date and (b) that is a REIT or other entfity business of which involves mak
investments in securities and other financial assetluding without limitation publicly traded RE$ and closeend funds. Notwithstandii
the foregoing, and without limiting the foregoirf§ublic Vehicle” shall not include (i) any company that is primawly operating busine
(i) Pine River Capital or any of its Affiliatesng of the private investment funds currently mamhbg Pine River Capital and any sim
private investment vehicles that Pine River mayhe future manage, or any successor to any of anegbing, (iii) any vehicle that
externally managed by the Company or any otheri@¥ghicle with respect to which the Siianager has an effective agreement in pla
accordance with Section 9(a), (iv) a bank, saviamgd loan company, other thrift or insurance corgpamother similar operating financ
institution, or (v) any entity whose sole matehakiness is the management of private investmdiities.

“ Section 409A Penaltigshas the meaning set forth in Section 29 of thigeement.

“ Services’ has the meaning set forth in Section 3(a) of &gseement.
“ Sub-Manager’ has the meaning set forth in the Introductoryagaaph of this Agreement.

“ Sub-Manager Base Management Femeans a base management fee equal to the sum 2§i%i) calculated and paid (in ca
quarterly in arrears, of the Base Management Feeddy the Manager or its assignee under the Managt Agreement with respect to
first $1 billion of the Stockholder€quity and (ii) 10%, calculated and paid (in caghdrterly in arrears, of the Base Management Faee
by the Manager or its assignee under the ManageAgneement with respect to the Stockholddfquity in excess of $1 billion; provide
that such reference to quarterly calculation angnnt shall be amended without further action ef parties hereto to read “monthlid the
extent the Management Agreement is amended or raddi provide for payments on a monthly basis.




“ Sub-Manager Indemnified Partyhas the meaning set forth in Section 13(a) of thjreement.

“ Sub-Manager Termination Féemeans a termination fee equal to the sum of (i) 2d%e Termination Fee earned by the Man
or its assignee under the Management Agreement rgigpect to the first $1 billion of the StockhokleEquity and (i) 10% of th
Termination Fee earned by the Manager or its assigmder the Management Agreement with respedbttkSolders’Equity in excess of §
billion.

“ Termination Daté' has the meaning set forth in Section 11(a) of thjreement.

2. Appointment The Manager hereby appoints the Sub-Managert@ sas subadvisor on the terms and conditions set 1
in this Agreement, and the Sub-Manager hereby a&sggh appointment.
3. Duties of the Sulanager.
€)) The Sub-Manager shall provide théofeing services (the " Servicé} to support the Manages’performance 1

services to the Company under the Management Agreeiim each case upon reasonable request by thadda

0] serving as a consultant to the Mamagjth respect to the periodic review of the Guides;
(i) identifying for the Manager potentiaw lines of business and investment opportunitiethe Company;
(iii) identifying for and advising the Mager with respect to selection of independent caitdra that provid

investment banking, securities brokerage, mortghgakerage and other financial services, due dikgerservice:
underwriting review services, legal and accountsagvices, and all other services as may be requitting to th

Investments;
(iv) advising the Manager with respectite Company’s stockholder and public relations msitte
(v) advising and assisting the Managehwéispect to the Company’s capital structure apitadaaising; and
(vi) advising the Manager on negotiatingeggnents relating to programs established by ti$e gbvernmen

including the Term Asset-Backed Securities Lendtagility.

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to ttentrary, the Manager shall remain primarily andedily responsible for tl
provision of all services provided to the Compamgler the Management Agreement. Without limiting foregoing, the Manac
shall be solely responsible for (i) identifying aoshsummating all Investments to be made by the f@aowy and the Subsidiaries,
any and all portfolio monitoring or reporting sews to be provided to the Company and (iii) anytenstrelating to the Comparsy’
REIT qualification for U.S. federal income tax pasges or the status of the Company and its Affdiabeder the Investment Compi
Act.




(b) The Suldanager shall, and shall cause its officers andl@yeps to, devote such portion of its and theiretitt
the provision of the Services to the Manager agssary for the proper performance of all of thevi8es hereunder.

4, Authority of the Sublanager. The SubManager is not authorized to advise or bind the @amy or to enter into a
agreements relative to the Company, and, with etsfge the Manager, is to act only as an advisoth® Manager, upon reasone
request. The Sub-Manager shall have no obligatiauthority under the Management Agreement.

5. Confidentiality The SubManager and the Manager shall each keep confidearia nonpublic information obtained
connection with the Services rendered under thieégent and shall not disclose any such informdtiomise the same except in furtherz
of its duties under this Agreement), except: (idhe other party hereto and its respective emplyafficers, directors, consultants or advis
(i) with the prior written consent of the otherrpgahereto; or (iii) as required by law or legalopess. The foregoing shall not apph
information which has previously become availalieotigh the actions of a Person not resulting aatimh this Section 5 or to a
information within the public domain or, for the @glance of doubt, with respect to Sub-Manager'stoiAffiliates’ business enterpris
unrelated to the Services or the Company. The pias of this Section 5 shall survive the expimatio earlier termination of this Agreem
for a period of one year.

6. Fees

€)) As compensation for all Services perfed by the Subdanager under this Agreement, the Manager shalltipe
Sub-Manager (i) the Suldlanager Base Management Fee; and (ii) in recogndfahe level of the upfront effort and commitmer
resources required by the Sub-Manager in conneetitim this Agreement, either the Stanager Termination Fee or the Fi
Payment, in each case pursuant to the terms ghtHerein. Payment of the Sidanager Base Management Fee by the Manau
the SubManager for any quarter shall be contingent upan riceipt by the Manager of the Base ManagementuRder th
Management Agreement for such quarter. The SubaglemBase Management Fee shall be payable by timadéa to the Sub-
Manager within five (5) days of receipt by the Mganof the Base Management Fee. Payment of theviauager Termination F
by the Manager to the SWManager shall be contingent upon the receipt by NMfamager of the Termination Fee under
Management Agreement. Subject to the provisiorSeation 11, the Sultanager Termination Fee shall be payable by thedda
to the SubManager within five (5) days of receipt by the Mganof the Termination Fee. Payment of the Fireglinfent shall t
made in accordance with the provisions of Sectibn 1

(b) The Manager agrees that, without dpproval of the Subanager (which approval will not be unreason
withheld, delayed or conditioned), it shall notegito any modification of the Management Agreentieait would both (i) amend
waive (A) the terms of payments due to the Manageter the Management Agreement or (B) the indecatifin or expen:
reimbursement provisions of the Management Agre¢raad (ii) have either (A) a disproportionately atbe effect on the Sub-
Manager or (B) a disproportionately positive resoftthe Manager.




(©) The Manager agrees to use reasoiaslieefforts to collect the Base Management Fedtandermination Fee
a prompt and timely basis.

(d) The Manager covenants that no paymerade to the Sultanager under this Agreement shall be deemed
directly or indirectly, from a “nonqualified entityinder Section 457A of the Code.

7. Expenses The Manager shall promptly submit any expensesried by the Subanager on behalf and at the reque:
the Manager that are eligible for reimbursementi®sy Company pursuant to the terms of the Managemgrdement to the Company
reimbursement. The Sub-Manager shall preparetensést documenting such eligible expenses of theManager during each quarter, :
shall deliver such statement to the Manager witivia (5) business days after the end of each quaftke Manager shall reimburse the Sub-
Manager for such eligible expenses within five ays of receipt by the Manager of reimbursemeninftbe Company for such eligit
expenses (provided, that a failure to deliver sstekement within such period shall not limit thghts of the SuldManager hereunder excep
the extent it prevents the Manager from being reirséd by the Company). Reimbursement by the Maniagthe SubiManager for an
expenses shall be contingent upon the receiptddgnager of reimbursement from the Company urideManagement Agreement for s
expenses, and the Manager will pursue such reiramast with substantially the same level of efftwttit pursues requests for its ¢
reimbursement of expenses.

8. Restrictions on Transfer

(@) The Sub-Manager shall not directlgnsfer all or any portion of its right to receiveetSubManager Bas
Management Fee, the Sub-Manager Termination Femof the amounts payable to the Sddnrager under this Agreement (
excluding proceeds thereof) to any other Persothowt the prior written consent of the Manager @hhconsent shall not
unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned).

(b) The consent of the Manager (whichllshat be unreasonably be withheld, delayed or @wwed) shall b
required prior to a transfer of membership intexdst the SubiManager that would result in Mark Ein Related Pessdn thi
aggregate, holding less than a majority in inteoéshe SubManager. The term transfer as used in this Se&bjshall include ar
actions that may result in any Mark Ein RelatedsBerceasing to be a Mark Ein Related Person.




9. Other Public Vehicles

(@) During the period from the date oé thlerger Agreement through the Termination DateePRiver Capit:
represents and warrants that it has used, andsatijraeit shall use, as the case may be, commigrogisonable efforts to ensure
the Manager is designated as the investment mamédtierespect to any Public Vehicle to which PinigdR Capital or its direct
indirect majorityowned subsidiaries serves as external investmenages. Subject in all cases to Section 9(b) heiaahe ever
that the Manager or any direct or indirect majedtyned subsidiary of Pine River Capital is desigdats the investment manage
“ Pine River Managef) with respect to any other Public Vehicle, the ’dger and the Sulllanager shall enter into good fe
negotiations with regard to (a) an agreement puntsteawhich the Sub-Manager will be engaged asmahager with regard to t
management of such other Public Vehicle on sulisthnthe terms set forth herein or (b) alternatareangements that are reason
acceptable to both the Manager and the Babager and that provide for substantially the spneportionate compensation to
Sub-Manager as set forth herein and Pine Rivert@laghiall cause the Pine River Manager to provigeSubManager with the rigl
to enter into such an agreement; provided, howetat, (x) the payment under such agreement thabisparable to the Fir
Payment will be payable in connection with thehfifinniversary of the closing of the Merger (ratiiean the fifth anniversary of t
date of such agreement) and (y) if the Pine Rivandger grants to an Independent Revenue Shareodakle and fully veste
contractual rights (a “ Grari} to a percentage of the total fees payable utidePine River Manager’management agreement \
such Public Vehicle, then the fees to which the-Blamager is entitled under its applicable agreemséttt the Pine River Manag
with respect to such Public Vehicle will be redudsda percentage equal to the percentage interesidpd to such Independ:
Revenue Sharer in such Grant during the life ohsBant. If the Manager proposes any Grant in eotion with this Section 9(
Pine River Capital will provide the Sub-Managertwdll information and certifications reasonably uested by the Sublanagel
including with respect to (x) whether the Persorerdng the applicable Grant is an Independent RegeSharer and (y) the ter
and conditions of the Grant. In connection witly @nch Grant, to the extent that one or both ofShbManager and Pine Riv
Capital parties believe in good faith that the atipent to the Sub-Managsrfee under this Section 9(a) does not fairly altechs
dilution between the parties, the parties will e in good faith to adjust the terms of suchuatipent. Notwithstanding any de
in executing such agreement or arrangement, theMgutager shall be entitled to the accrual for payneériees commencing up
the receipt of management fees by the Managerar Bine River Manager with regard to such otheriPMehicle. Neither Pin
River Capital nor the Manager shall have any obiligs pursuant to the foregoing sentences of taii&n 9(a) if the Sulbanage
remains in material breach of any provision of thigseement after written notice of such materigawh delivered by the Manage
the Sub-Manager; provided, however, upon cure bySibManager of any such breach, Pine River Capital shalse the applicat
Pine River Manager to negotiate in good faith viib Sub-Manager and provide the Sdanager with the right to enter into
agreement described in this paragraph to the etttahthe SuliManager was, due to such breach, previously ndtexhto enter int
such an agreement.

(b) Notwithstanding any other provisiointlois Agreement, the Suldlanager shall only be entitled to receive (A)
sum of (i) 20% of the aggregate management feeseddry the Manager and any Pine River Manager reipect to the first ¢
billion of aggregate Book Value of all Public Velais (including the Company) cumulatively managedh®/Manager and any P
River Manager and (ii) 10% of the aggregate manageriees earned by the Manager and any Pine Riesraljer with respect
the aggregate Book Value of all Public Vehiclexlliding the Company) cumulatively managed by ttendfjer and any Pine Ri
Manager in excess of $1 billion; (B) the sum ofAQ% of the aggregate termination fees earned éyvtainager and any Pine Ri
Manager with respect to the first $1 billion of aggate Book Value of all Public Vehicles (includiti,e Company) cumulative
managed by the Manager and any Pine River Manamgg(iia 10% of the aggregate termination fees edumethe Manager and a
Pine River Manager with respect to the aggregaiekB/alue of all Public Vehicles (including the Cpamy) cumulatively manag
by the Manager and any Pine River Manager in exoé$l billion; and (C) the sum of the Final Payment and all coatye
payments under other agreements entered into byuh&anager pursuant to Section 9(a). Notwithstandimgthing to the contra
contained herein with regard to each of the Compamd/each Public Vehicle, the SManager shall not be entitled to receive bc
Termination Fee and a Final Payment with regaslitth entity.




(c) Nothing in this Agreement shall prd&ithe SubMlanager with any rights, obligations or interestsatgoever wit
respect to the private capital management busifeéBme River Capital and its Affiliates; and PiRever and the Manager shall hi
no rights, obligations or interests whatsoever witbpect to any business of the Sdanager, its members or their respec
Affiliates, other than the Services in respecthef Sub-Manager set forth in this Agreement. WitHimiting the foregoing, the Sub-
Manager shall have (i) no rights with respect tg aew private vehicles that Pine River CapitaltsrAffiliates may form or mana
during the term of this Agreement, regardless oéthbr any such vehicles may invest in strategieslai to the strategy of tl
Company or any Public Vehicle and (ii) no rightshMiespect to any Public Vehicle that is externatignaged by any managernr
entity at the time such management entity is aeguiny Pine River Capital or its Affiliates afteretidate of this Agreeme
provided, however, that in connection with any such acquisition,ePRiver Capital shall, or shall cause its applieahffiliate to,
offer to the SubiManager (which may assign the right to acceptdffesr to any if its Affiliates in whole or in parthe right to inves
on the same terms and conditions as Pine Rivert&apiits applicable Affiliate (except that thelBManager and/or any designa
Affiliate will be entitled to customary and reasbieminority investor protections), in up to 20%ezch class of securities of s
management entity acquired by Pine River CapitdlitmAffiliates, collectively, provided further, that the SulManager and/or i
designated Affiliates will have 45 days to acceptts offer after receiving written notice from PiRéver Capital describing
reasonable detail all the material terms of therofthe “ Notice Daté), and will have 60 days to fund the purchase pricaidgh offe
is accepted after the Notice Date. Subject to airndf interest policies to be agreed upon betwibenparties, nothing will limit tt
ability of Pine River Capital and its Affiliatesy the SubManager and its Affiliates, to enter into othemsactions, including (.
trading in the securities of special purpose adfipis companies other than Capitol through one @renfunds managed by P
River Capital or its Affiliates, (y) investing oratding in securities, or pursing investment strigtgthat are the same or simila
those of the Company, or (z) subject to applicddle pursuing any other investment or opportunfitsttmay be of interest to 1
Company.

10. Relationship of StManager, Manager, Pine River Capital and Compaijpe Manager and Pine River Capital, on the
hand, and the Sulllanager, on the other hand, are not partners, menaingoint venturers with each other nor with @@mpany, and nothit
in this Agreement shall be construed to make thaoh partners, members or joint venturers or imparsg liability as such on any
them. The relationship of the parties is intenttede contractual and not fiduciary in nature.

11. Term and Termination

€)) This Agreement shall terminate onehdiest to occur of (i) the fifth anniversarytbe closing of the Merger, (
the termination of the Management Agreement by Gompor (iii) the effective date of the removaltbé SubManager for Cau:
(the “ Termination Dat€’); provided that all rights and obligations witlespect to any earned but unpaid $ddmager Bas
Management Fee and any other amounts payable thidekgreement with respect to periods prior to,0orin connection with tf
Termination Date shall survive the terminationta§tAgreement; provided, further, that, subjedi® foregoing proviso, in the ew
of termination pursuant to clause (i) or (iii) alkgthere shall be no Sub-Manager Termination Féktpahe SubivMianager and, i
the event of termination pursuant to clause (iijiigrabove, there shall be no Final Payment gaithe SubManager. If, in the eve
of a termination pursuant to clause (ii) above, @mmpany or any of its Affiliates, on the one haald the Manager or any P
River Manager, on the other hand, enter into a nemagement agreement effective within six monthsumh termination, th
Agreement will be deemed to apply with respect teshsnew management agreement, and, without limitiveg foregoing, fc
purposes of Section 9(a), the Termination Datel dlmdeemed not to have occurred. Pine River @bglitall cause the applica
Pine River Manager, if it is not the Manager, teuase the Manages’'obligations under this Agreement. In the everd or more ¢
the SubManager and the applicable Pine River Manageredien good faith that this Agreement should be raded to reflec
differences between the new management agreemeithaManagement Agreement, the Sdnager and the applicable Pine R
Manager shall enter into good faith negotiationthwegard to any such appropriate amendments arelRver Capital shall cac
the Pine River Manager to provide the Svanager with the right to enter into any such ameewts. In any such event Pine R
Capital will provide the Sub-Manager with all infoation and certifications reasonably requested Ime tSub-
Manager. Notwithstanding any delay in executing such amendment, the Sianager shall be entitled to the accrual for payt
of fees (on the terms as so amended) commencing tiygoreceipt of management fees by the Managsudr Pine River Manac
with regard to such new agreement.




(b) If the Termination Date occurs und@mction 11(a)(i) above, subject to Section 14(bg BubManager sha
receive a final payment (the “ Final Paym&nof 7.7 times the annualized rate afd., 30.8 times) the last quarterly payment of
SubManager Base Management Fee; provided that, (ifthal Payment shall be calculated and determinedccordance wi
Section 11(e) and (ii) for purposes of calculatihg Final Payment, the last quarterly Sdanager Base Management Fee pay!
shall be re-calculated to reverse any reductiorStockholders’Equity that results, pursuant to clause (iii) oé thefinition o
Stockholders’ Equity in the Management Agreemeawinfany repurchases of common stock of the Comgiaatyoccurred in the 12-
month period prior to such termination. The Finayfent shall be paid on the date that is 60 datgs tfe Termination Date (or,
such date is not a business day, the next busitasgs If during the six months following the Temation Date, the Company rai
new equity capital, then the Final Payment will leealculated to include the increase in Stockhsldequity resulting from th
issuance of such new equity capital, but reducedryyreductions in Stockholders’ Equity occurringidg such sixnonth perio
(other than any reductions that, pursuant to thjesanent described above, would have been excliirdea the calculation of tt
termination payment if such reductions had occudedng the 12 months preceding the TerminatioreDatith the net increase
the amount of the Final Payment ascedculated payable on the date that is 60 days #iee date that is six months after
Termination Date (or, if such date is not a busirdsy, the next business day).

(©) Upon the termination of this Agreemdaor in the case of a termination pursuant to iBactLll(a)(iii), the
determination of termination in accordance with tibec 14(b)), except to the extent inconsistent wagbplicable law, the Sub-
Manager shall as promptly as reasonably practiog@leeliver to the Manager one copy of all expesistements generated pursi
to Section 7 hereof covering the period followihg tate of the last provision of such expensersetés to the Manager through
Termination Date; and (B) deliver to the Managémabperty and documents of the Company providedrtobtained by the Sub-
Manager pursuant to or in connection with this Agnent, including all copies and extracts thereafliatever form, then in the Sub-
Manager’'s possession or under its control (provitleat the Sub-Manager’outside counsel may retain one copy to be
confidential and used solely for archival purposes)

(d) Subject to other provisions of thigréement, if the SuManager is removed for Cause, the effective date
removal for Cause shall be the date upon whichMtheager shall have delivered to Sub-Manager bdthr{tten notice that the Sub-
Manager is being removed for Cause in accordantethé Sub-Management Agreement, and (i) a coph@fpplicable final, non-
appealable order evidencing the required finalrdateation of the court of competent jurisdiction.




(e) For the purposes of calculating tiraFPayment and the SilManager Base Management Fee on which the
Payment is based, the Manager shall (i) calculébekBolders’Equity (A) in accordance with (1) the books andores of th
Company and (2) the definition of Stockholddgsjuity in the Management Agreement and (B) usimgsidime accounting principl
policies, practices and methodologies used in,appdied consistently with, the prior calculatiorfsStockholders’Equity under th
Management Agreement, and (ii) shall otherwiseofelithe past practices of the Manager and the Coypéth respect t
calculating Stockholders' Equity, in each casejenilio the adjustments expressly provided forect®n 11(a). In connection w
the calculation of the Final Payment, upon the M@na calculation of the applicable SManager Base Management Fee,
Manager shall promptly deliver to the Sklanager a written statement setting forth in reabtm detail its calculation of the Fil
Payment (including the applicable calculations ab-$/anager Base Management Fee and Stockhol&eprsty) and provide tt
SubManager reasonable access, during normal busimess hnd upon reasonable notice, to all work papetedules, memorar
and other documents prepared or reviewed by thealyemor by any of its representatives that arevagleto its calculation of tt
Final Payment (or the applicable calculation of ${dnager Base Management Fee or Stockholdegsity), and such access s
be provided promptly after request by the Sub-Manaand the Manager shall request that its accats\t@mmunicate with the Sub-
Manager and its representatives; provided, thatSthle-Manager may be required to sign an “indematibn letter”in the form
generally used by the Manager’ccountant prior to receiving access to any riaddeprepared by such accountant. The Mar
shall cause its representatives to be availablenglmormal business hours and upon reasonableendti the Sulddanager to revie
the calculation of the Final Payment (including &pplicable Sub-Manager Base Management Fee oklg8iluers’ Equity). In the
event that the Sub-Manager disputes the calculatiche Final Payment (including the calculationtloé applicable Subanage
Base Management Fee or Stockholders’ Equity), thieManager and the Manager will use commercially reabte efforts, ar
negotiate in good faith, to promptly reach agreemasrto the correct calculation of the Final Paymen

12. Assignment The Manager may not assign any of its rights @ldyations under this Agreement, except thatMlamage
may assign, in their entirety, its rights and oéligns under this Agreement to any third party ug@nassignment of its rights and obligati
under the Management Agreement to such third pprouided that both the assignee agrees in wrttrgssume all obligations hereunder
the Manager shall continue to remain liable foroitdigations to the Subanager hereunder. The transfer of fees and atimeuunts payab
to the SubManager under this Agreement shall be governeddntié 8(a). Otherwise this Agreement shall nobsigned by any pa
hereto without the prior written consent of theestparties.

13. Indemnification The Manager will use commercially reasonableresfto cause the Sidanager to be indemnified by 1
Company in accordance with the Management Agreement
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14. Remedies; Limitation of Liability

(@) Notwithstanding any other provisidrtlus Agreement, in no event shall Pine River @pithe Company or ai
of their Affiliates (including the Manager), on tlmme hand, or the Sudlanager, on the other hand, be responsible orelifdn
special, indirect, punitive or consequential lossdamage of any kind whatsoever (including, but kmited to, loss of profil
irrespective of whether Pine River Capital, the @any or their Affiliates, on the one hand, or thdo$lanager, on the other ha
has been advised of the likelihood of such losdamnage and regardless of the form of action; pexlithowever, that in connect
with any dispute between Pine River or the Managerthe one hand, and the Sub-Manager, on the btret, regarding the Sub-
Manager’s right to receive payments under this Agrent, (x) if the Sulddanager is finally determined to have been entitl
receive any amounts (not paid when due) underdgisement, the Subtanager will be entitled to (1) reimbursement aigenabl
costs and expenses (including attorndges) incurred in connection with such dispute ewltection of such amounts and (2) inte
accruing at the Interest Rate on such unpaid aredumin the date payment was originally due untibatty paid, and (y) if the Sub-
Manager is finally determined not to have beentledtito receive any amounts (not paid when due)eunhis Agreement, tl
Manager will be entitled to reimbursement of readada costs and expenses (including attornéess) incurred in connection w
such dispute. Further, notwithstanding any otmevigion of this Agreement, neither the ManageneMRiver Capital nor any of th
respective Affiliates shall be liable to the Subsidger for payment of a Sub-Manager Base ManageifReat Subvlanage
Termination Fee or any similar compensation (othen any Final Payment or other final payment) pkd¢e the extent that tl
Manager, Pine River Capital or such Affiliate (hg ttase may be) or its assignee has actually emteivcorresponding fee fre
corresponding Public Vehicles (including the ComparThis Agreement may only be enforced againsd, any claim or cause
action based upon, arising out of, or related t® Agreement or the transactions contemplated lyemsy only be brought agair
the entities that are expressly named as partisstchend then only with respect to the specificdgatilons set forth herein wi
respect to such party. Except to the extent a dgpagty to this Agreement (and then only to thesekbf the specific obligatio
undertaken by such named party in this Agreemeadt raot otherwise), no past, present or future diecofficer, employe:
incorporator, member, partner, stockholder, Affdiaagent, attorney, advisor or representative filigie of any of the foregoin
shall have any liability (whether in contract, toemuity or otherwise) for any one or more of tlepresentations, warranti
covenants, agreements or other obligations or liigsi of any one or more of the parties under thgreement (whether f
indemnification or otherwise) of or for any claimased on, arising out of, or related to this Agreetmer the transactiol
contemplated hereby.

(b) Notwithstanding anything to the camyr in this Agreement, the Manager will not be #adi to terminate tt
Agreement (except as expressly set forth in theniteation provisions above), withhold or offset amtsuowed hereunder
otherwise seek recourse against the Blalmager for any breach of this Agreement, exceat the Manager may seek paymer
monetary damages to the extent a court of compgtasdiction finally determines such damages avarded to the Manager agai
the SubManager as a result of Cause (and such damagesdegog amounts released from escrow to the Mariagarcordanc
with this Section 14(b)); provided that, in the elvéhat the Manager has, in good faith in accordamith this Agreement, initiats
litigation with respect to Cause prior to the fifdmniversary of the closing of the Merger, the Mgeramay, in lieu of makir
payments to the Suldlanager with respect to the Final Payment, buhatime at which such payments would otherwisecheired
deposit such payments into an interest-bearingoesarrangement reasonably satisfactory to the iBabager. If Cause is fina
determined to have occurred prior to the fifth aensary of the Merger, the amounts then in escrdibe released to the Mana
(and the Manager shall have no further obligatimnmiake payments with respect to the Final Payméh#. court of compete
jurisdiction finally determines that no Cause ocedrprior to the fifth anniversary of the Mergdremn the amounts then in esci
will be released to the Sudlanager, and the Manager will be responsible fgr @asditional amounts owing in respect of the F
Payment.

15. Representations and Warranties of Finer Capital and the ManagerThe Manager and Pine River Capital e
severally and not jointly, hereby represents andams to the Sub-Manager, as follows:
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€)) It, in the case of the Manager, iémdted liability company and, in the case of PiRever Capital, is a limite
partnership and, in any case, is duly organizelidlyaexisting and in good standing under the lafishe State of Delaware, anc
qualified to do business in every jurisdiction ihieh the failure to so qualify might reasonablydxpected to have a material adv:
effect on the financial condition, operating resulassets, operations or business prospects ofditita subsidiaries taken a
whole. It has all requisite corporate or other pownd authority and all material licenses, permitd authorizations necessar
own and operate its properties, to carry on itdrnasses as now conducted and to carry out theatttioss contemplated by tl
Agreement.

(b) The execution, delivery and perforggmnf this Agreement has been duly authorized by fitis Agreement h
been duly executed and delivered by it and, assydhiie execution and delivery by the Subnager, constitutes a valid and binc
obligation of it, enforceable in accordance withtierms. The execution and delivery by it of thggeement, and the fulfillment
and compliance with the terms hereof by it, do @oedl will not (i) conflict with or result in a brelamf the terms, conditions
provisions of, (ii) constitute a default underj)(fiesult in the creation of any lien, securityergst, charge or encumbrance upo
capital stock or membership interests, as appkgai assets pursuant to, (iv) give any third pérg/right to modify, terminate
accelerate any obligation under, (v) result in @ation of, or (vi) require any authorization, cens approval, exemption or ot
action by or notice to any court or administratbregovernmental body pursuant to, its organizatidegauments, or any law, statt
rule or regulation to which it is subject, or argreement, instrument, order, judgment or decreehich it is a party or by which it
bound.

16. Representations and Warranties ofShbManager. The SubManager hereby represents and warrants to Piner
Capital and the Manager as follows:

€)) The Subdanager is a limited liability company duly orgagilz validly existing and in good standing undel
laws of the State of Delaware and is qualified aobdisiness in every jurisdiction in which the feéluo so qualify might reasonal
be expected to have a material adverse effecteffitancial condition, operating results, asseperations or business prospect
the Sub-Manager taken as a whole. The Habager has all requisite power and authority dhdnaterial licenses, permits a
authorizations necessary to own and operate itpepties, to carry on its businesses as now conduatel to carry out tt
transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

(b) The execution, delivery and perforggmof this Agreement has been duly authorized byStbManager. Thi
Agreement has been duly executed and deliveredeb$tibManager and, assuming due execution and deliveBity River Capit:
and the Manager, constitutes a valid and bindinkgation of the SubiManager, enforceable in accordance with its terfis
execution and delivery by the Stdanager of this Agreement, and the fulfilment edacompliance with the terms hereof by
SubManager, do not and will not (i) conflict with oesult in a breach of the terms, conditions or miovis of, (ii) constitute
default under, (iii) result in the creation of dign, security interest, charge or encumbrance uperSub-Manages’ capital stock ¢
assets pursuant to, (iv) give any third party fbtrto modify, terminate or accelerate any obiigatunder, (v) result in a violatit
of, or (vi) require any authorization, consent, @ppal, exemption or other action by or notice ty amurt or administrative
governmental body pursuant to, the Svlanager's certificate of formation or amended asdated limited liability company, or e
law, statute, rule or regulation to which the Svanager is subject, or any agreement, instrumedgrpjudgment or decree to wh
the Sub-Manager is a party or by which it is bound.
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17. Further Assurances he SubManager and the Manager will use commercially reabte efforts to cooperate to give ef
to the arrangements contemplated hereby, includiitg a view towards compliance with the AdviserstAcounterpart state law a
regulations adopted thereunder, and any amendriertto or registration requirements thereunddrrttegy in arise the future.

18. Notices Unless expressly provided otherwise in this &gnent, all notices, requests, demands and othemoaination
required or permitted under this Agreement shalhbariting and shall be deemed to have been divigrg made and received when delive
against receipt or upon actual receipt of (i) peatodelivery, (ii) delivery by reputable overniglkburier, (iii) delivery by facsimil
transmission with telephonic confirmation or (iglidery by registered or certified mail, postagepaid, return receipt requested, addre
as set forth below:

. If to the Manager:

PRCM Advisers LLC

601 Carlson Parkway

Suite 330

Minnetonka, MN 55305
Attention: General Counsel

. If to the Sub-Manager:

CLA Founders LLC
c/o Kastle Systems
1501 Wilson Bivd
Arlington, VA 22209
Attn: Mark D. Ein

With a copy (which shall not constitute notice) to:

Richard C. Donaldson
1650 Tysons Boulevard
14™ Floor

McLean, Virginia 22102

. If to Pine River Capital:

Pine River Capital Management L.P.
601 Carlson Parkway

Suite 330

Minnetonka, MN 55305

Attention: General Counsel

. If to the Company:

Two Harbors Investment Corp.
601 Carlson Parkway

Suite 330

Minnetonka, MN 55305
Attention: General Counsel
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Any party may alter the address to which commuiovoator copies are to be sent by giving noticeusthschange of address in conforr
with the provisions of this Section 18 for the gigiof notice.

19. Binding Nature of Agreement; Sucoessind Assigns This Agreement shall be binding upon and inoréhe benefit ¢
the parties hereto and their respective heirsopatgepresentatives, successors and permitteghasss provided in this Agreement.

20. Entire AgreementThis Agreement contains the entire agreementadérstanding among the parties hereto with re
to the subject matter of this Agreement, and s@ues all prior and contemporaneous agreements,rsiaddings, inducements ¢
conditions, express or implied, oral or written,asfy nature whatsoever with respect to the sulmjetter of this Agreement. The expi
terms of this Agreement control and supersede anyse of performance and/or usage of the tradengistent with any of the terms of t
Agreement. This Agreement may not be modifiedmeaded other than by an agreement in writing sidnetthe parties hereto.

21. GOVERNING LAW. THIS AGREEMENT AND THE RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OHHE PARTIES UNDEF
THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUEBND INTERPRETED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAW O
THE STATE OF NEW YORK WITHOUT REGARD TO CONFLICTSFOLAW PRINCIPLES TO THE CONTRARY.

22. JurisdictionWaiver of Jury Trial Any proceeding or action based upon, arisingobutr related to this Agreement or
transactions contemplated hereby shall be broughny state court of the State of Delaware orhadase of claims to which the fed
courts have subject matter jurisdiction, any fedeoairt of the United States of America, in eitlcase, located in the State of Delaware,
each of the parties irrevocably submits to thewsigk jurisdiction of each such court in any suobcpeding or action, waives any objectic
may now or hereafter have to personal jurisdicti@mue or to convenience of forum, agrees thatlalims in respect of the proceeding
action shall be heard and determined only in amh fwurt, and agrees not to bring any proceedinaction arising out of or relating to t
Agreement or the transactions contemplated henetany other court. Nothing herein contained shealldeemed to affect the right of i
party to serve process in any manner permittecatwydr to commence legal proceedings or otherwisegad against any other party in
other jurisdiction, in each case, to enforce judgieebtained in any action, suit or proceeding phbypursuant to this Section 2RACH
PARTY HERETO HEREBY IRREVOCABLY AND UNCONDITIONALLYWAIVES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED B
APPLICABLE LAW, ANY RIGHT THAT SUCH PARTY MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY OF ANY CLAIM OR CAUSE Ol
ACTION DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY BASED UPON OR ARISIN®UT OF THIS AGREEMENT.

23. No Waiver; Cumulative Remedieblo failure to exercise and no delay in exergjsion the part of any party hereto,
right, remedy, power or privilege hereunder shakkmate as a waiver thereof; nor shall any singleastial exercise of any right, reme
power or privilege hereunder preclude any otherfuosther exercise thereof or the exercise of anyeothight, remedy, power
privilege. Subject to Section 14, the rights, rdies, powers and privileges herein provided areutative and not exclusive of any rigt
remedies, powers and privileges provided by law. waiver of any provision hereunder shall be effectinless it is in writing and is sigr
by the party asserted to have granted such waiver.

24, Headings The headings of the sections of this Agreementheen inserted for convenience of reference amilysha
not be deemed part of this Agreement.
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25. CounterpartsThis Agreement may be executed in any numbaoahterparts, each of which shall be deemed ton
original as against any party whose signature agpb&reon, and all of which shall together constitone and the same instrument.
Agreement shall become binding when one or morateoparts of this Agreement, individually or takegether, shall bear the signature
all of the parties reflected hereon as the sigiegor

26. Severability Any provision of this Agreement that is proh@aitor unenforceable in any jurisdiction shall, asstict
jurisdiction, be ineffective to the extent of symtohibition or unenforceability without invalidatinthe remaining provisions hereof, and
such prohibition or unenforceability in any juristion shall not invalidate or render unenforceatieh provision in any other jurisdiction.

27. Gender Words used herein regardless of the number amdieg specifically used, shall be deemed and aceubtic
include any other number, singular or plural, ang ether gender, masculine, feminine or neutethagontext requires.

28. NorDisparagement The SubManager hereby agrees to refrain, and to use rabioefforts to cause its members, f
making any defamatory or derogatory statements erairty the Company, the Manager and Pine Rivert@laphd the Company, t
Manager and Pine River Capital hereby agree tairefrom making any defamatory or derogatory st&tets concerning the Suanage
and its members. This Section 28 shall survivenitgition of this Agreement for a period of five y®aNotwithstanding the foregoir
nothing herein shall be deemed to prohibit any\itdial or entity from making any truthful statem&nh response to a subpoens
connection with a legal proceeding or as othenngsgiired by law or legal process.

29. Section 409AThis Agreement is intended to be written, adntéred, interpreted and construed in a manner swatmt
payments provided under the Agreement become dulbjéa) the gross income inclusion set forth witBiection 409A(a)(1)(A) of the Co
or (b) the interest and additional tax set forthhim Section 409A(a)(1)(B) of the Code (togetheferred to herein as thé&éction 409/
Penalties”),including, where appropriate, the construction efirted terms to have meanings that would not ctheseémposition of Sectic
409A Penalties. The Sudanager expects that the payments provided undeireement will be exempt from the applicationS#ctior
409A of the Code because the Sv¥bnager intends to account on an accrual basid f8r income tax purposes. If, following the datelo¢
Agreement, the Sub-Manager reasonably determirsgsittis no longer advisable for Silanager to account on an accrual basis for
income tax purposes (as a result in a change ilicapfe laws or regulations or otherwise), or thdv$anager reasonably determines that
payments under this Agreement may be subject ttidded09A Penalties, the parties agree to work ttogrein good faith to adopt st
amendments to this Agreement as most closely tsftbe original intent of the parties (includingemdments with retroactive effect) or t
any other commercially reasonable actions necessaappropriate to (x) exempt each of the paymprasided under this Agreement fri
Section 409A of the Code and/or preserve the irgendx treatment of such payments or (y) comply it requirements of Section 409/
the Code and related Department of Treasury gualabach payment provided under this Agreementudinlf) each separate installmen
the Sub-Manager Base Management Fee shall be eas=pad distinct payment under this Agreemenalfigourposes.

[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF , the parties hereto have executed this Agreenseot the date first written above.
PRCM ADVISERS LLC

By: /s/ Jeff Stoli

Name: Jeff Stol
Title: Chief Financial Office

CLA FOUNDERS LLC
By: Leland Investments, Inc., its managing men

By: /s/ Mark D. Ein

Name: Mark D. Eir
Title: Presiden

PINE RIVER CAPITAL MANAGEMENT L.P.,
solely with respect to Sections 1, 9, 11(a), 14(ap,
and 18 through 28

By: /s/ Jeff Stoli

Name: Jeff Stol
Title: Chief Financial Office

Signature Page to Sub-Management Agreement
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Exhibit 10.4
SHARED FACILITIES AND SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS SHARED FACILITIES AND SERVICES AGREEMENT (thisAgreement’), dated as of October 28, 2009, is entered in
PRCM Advisers LLC, a Delaware limited liability cgany (the “_Managet) and Pine River Capital Management L.P., a Delawari¢ed
partnership (“ Pine Rive?).

WHEREAS, the Manager was formed to manage the bssiaffairs of Two Harbors Investment Corp., a Néarg Corporatio
(the “ Company), in conformity with the policies and investmeguidelines established by the Companlpbard of directors, pursuant to
terms of that certain Management Agreement, dateaf the date hereof (the_* Management Agreerferity and among the Company,
Manager and Two Harbors Operating Company LLC; and

WHEREAS, the Manager desires to utilize the persband other resources of Pine River that may loessary or appropriate
the Manager to carry out its duties and performoltfigations under the Management Agreement, and River is willing to make su
personnel and other resources available for theaglams use.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual pises set forth below, the parties hereby agreelbsifs:

1. Services ProvidedPine River shall provide the Manager with persrand other resources necessary or appropriatée
Manager to carry out its duties and perform itsgattions under the Management Agreement (collelgtivke “ Resource?).

2. Office Personnel All Pine River personnel who provide servicesel@der shall be employees of Pine River or itdiatis
and shall not be employees of the Manager. PimerRihall provide the Manager with a managememh tka the Company along with a
other support personnel necessary for the Managaowide the services it is required to providdemthe Management Agreement. Initic
the management team shall consist of the follovindgviduals:

Name Title

Brian C. Taylor Chairman and Directc

Thomas Siering Chief Executive Officer, President and Direc
Jeffrey Stoli Chief Financial Officer and Treasul

Steven Kuhr Cc-Chief Investment Office

William Roth Cc-Chief Investment Office

Timothy C Brien General Counsel and Corporate Secre
Andrew Garcie Vice Presiden— Business Developme

The Manager shall have no right to specify the @cperson or persons who will perform services tfee Manager under tt
Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, howewine River will employ good faith efforts to idégtsuitable personnel possessing
necessary skill and training to facilitate the ps@n of adequate services under this Agreemantdtition, upon a good faith demonstra
by the Manager that any person supplied by PinemRga/not suitable for the Managemeeds under this Agreement, Pine River will hi
extent available, substitute other qualified pemsbrfor such unsuitable personnel. Office persbshall be advised that, while providi
services to the Manager, they are to follow thedions of the officers of the Manager and arectdrathe best interests of the Manager.




3. Pine River EmployeesPine River shall at all times during the terntlef Agreement provide the following benefits tbRihe
River personnel who provide services to the Man&gen time to time (the “ Manager Personiiglwhether or not such Manager Perso
are also officers of the Manager or the Compamy:afly and all compensation and benefits (includacation, holiday and sick pay, life ¢
health insurance, and pension benefits) compatabieose maintained for Pine Riverémployees not engaged in rendering servicese
Manager or as required by any applicable employmeanttices, policies and contracts and (b) the gayrof all required federal, state, i
local taxes, social security contributions and fatend state unemployment compensation insuraaeest subject in each case to
Company'’s obligation to reimburse the Manager fer Companys allocable share of the compensation paid by thadder to its persont
serving as the Company’s principal financial offieed general counsel and personnel hired by thealjier to serve as imsuse legal, ta
accounting, consulting, auditing, administrativefpirmation technology, valuation, computer prograngrand development and baoflice
resources to the Company. Pine River shall alsmtaia workers compensation and liability insurance covering &ger Personnel
compliance with applicable law. Such liability imance shall contain limits for personal injury gobperty damage comparable to tt
maintained for Pine River's employees not engageéndering services to the Manager.

4. Charges for Services

(@) _Out of Pocket ExpensesThe Manager shall reimburse Pine River for attof-pocket expenses incurred by Pine River ar
applicable Manager Personnel in the performansewnfices for the Manager under this Agreement.

(b) Office Personnel The Manager shall have no obligation to reiméu?ge River or its affiliates for the salary, benbenefi
and other compensation costs of the personnelrd River and its affiliates who provide servicestie Manager under this Agreem:
except that, the Manager shall reimburse Pine Riverits affiliates for, without duplication, théogable share of the compensation pair
Pine River and its affiliates to their respectiwegonnel serving as the Companprincipal financial officer and general counssd @ersonni
employed by Pine River and its affiliates ashouse legal, tax, accounting, consulting, auditiadgministrative, information technoloy
valuation, computer programming and developmenttautkoffice resources to the Company. The allocableesbfisuch out of pocket co
shall be based upon commercially reasonable esifadtthe percentage of time devoted by such peedai Pine River and its affiliates
the Companys affairs. Pine River shall provide the Managethvguch information as the Manager may reasonagyest to support t
determination of the allocable share of such coBtee River and its affiliates shall be resporesitdr the compensation paid by Pine R
and its affiliates to their respective personneVisg as the Compang'Chief Executive Officer, President, and Chiefdstvnent Officer ar
the investment professionals of Pine River andffifiates.

(c) _Other Reimbursable Costdhe Manager shall reimburse Pine River for tlleo costs and expenses incurred by Pine Ri
connection with the provision of services hereunttethe extent such costs and expenses are resatiiarby the Company to the Mane
under the Management Agreement.

(d) _Payments and Recordd’he Manager shall pay the aggregate amountaene River under this Sectionyiarterly on th
same day the Company reimburses the Manager faxjienses pursuant to Section 10 of the Managemgmement. Pine River sh
maintain accurate records of the Manager Persofmeed. , title, wage rate, and time used) provided to kh&nager pursuant to tt
Agreement, and, upon request, the Manager shalhtiéed to review such records at reasonable times




5. Term. The term of this Agreement shall begin as ofda&e hereof and it shall extend until October ZB1.2 (the “Initial
Term”). At the expiration of the Initial Term, the term #Hze automatically extended for one additionalryeach year thereafter provic
the Management Agreement has not been termin&telibwing a termination of the Management Agreenf{éstany reason and by any ps
thereto), any party to this Agreement shall have tight to terminate this Agreement by providing @8ys advance written notice
termination to all other parties hereto.

6. Miscellaneous

(&) All provisions of this Agreement shall bedling upon the parties hereto, their respectiveessors, legal representatives
assigns. No party shall have the right to asslbaraany portion of its obligations under or irgst in this Agreement, except monies wl
may be due pursuant hereto, without the prior @mittonsent of all other parties.

(b) No waiver by any party hereto of any ofrights under this Agreement shall be effective sslan writing and signed by
officer of the party waiving such right. No waivefrany breach of this Agreement shall constituteaaver of any subsequent breach, whe
or not of the same nature. This Agreement maybeanodified except by a writing signed by eachhef parties hereto; provided, howe
absent the written consent of the Company, thisAgrent may not be modified so as to increase thgatibn of the Company to reimbui
amounts to the Manager under the Management Agrgeme

(c) This Agreement constitutes the entire ageydmf the parties hereto with respect to the stibjeatter hereof, and cancels
supersedes any and all prior written or oral cansrar negotiations between the parties hereto mwipect to the subject matter hereof.

(d) This Agreement and the rights and obligatiorf the parties under this Agreement shall be ged by and construed ¢
interpreted in accordance with the laws of theestdtNew York, without regard to conflicts of lawinciples thereof.

(e) The descriptive headings of the severali@esthereof are inserted for convenience only arall 10t control or affect tt
meaning or construction of any of the provisionsebé

(H Any notice, request or other communicatiequired or permitted in this Agreement shall beviiting and shall be sufficient
given if hand-delivered to the applicable partg@t Carlson Parkway, Suite 330, Minnetonka, MN G 3Attention: General Counsel.

() Wherever possible each provision of this éggnent shall be interpreted in such manner as teffeetive and valid und
applicable law, but if any provision of this Agreent shall be prohibited by or invalid under apghiealaw, such provision shall be ineffect
to the extent of such prohibition or invalidity, thout invalidating the remainder of such provisionthe remaining provisions of tl
Agreement.

[Signature Page Follows]




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caubéexd Agreement to be executed in their respectimes by their du
authorized representatives as of the date firstakaitten.

PRCM ADVISERS LLC

By: /s/ Jeff Stoll

Name: Jeff Stol
Title: Chief Financial Office

PINE RIVER CAPITAL MANAGEMENT L.P.

By: /s/ Jeff Stoll

Name: Jeff Stol
Title: Chief Financial Office

[Shared Services Agreement Signature Page]




SUBSIDIARIES OF TWO HARBORS INVESTMENT CORP.

Subsidiary
Corporatior

As of December 31, 2009

Two Harbors Operating Company LL
Capitol Acquisition Cor

Two Harbors Asset |, LL(

State of
Incorporation

EXHIBIT 21.1

Delaware
Delaware

Delaware




EXHIBIT 31.1

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO S ECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Thomas Siering, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10fR'wo Harbors Investment Corp.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or dmnéttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nistatisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedores designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatmeg to the registrant, including its consolidhsubsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durihg toeriod in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financigloting, or caused such internal control over fiahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragtisslosure controls and procedures and presentiaisineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgatures, as of the end of the period coveredibydport based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the teghid’s internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrarfiurth quarter in the case of an annual repbai lhas materially affected, or is reasonably il
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal tmhover financial reporting.

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers anldave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cordvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regigteaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaweaanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 4, 2010 /s/ Thomas Sierin
Thomas Siering
President and Chief Executive Offic




EXHIBIT 31.2

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO S ECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

[, Jeffrey Stolt, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10fR'wo Harbors Investment Corp.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioriny untrue statement of a material fact or dmnéttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nistatisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers anadré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedores designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatmeg to the registrant, including its consolidhsibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durihg toeriod in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financigloting, or caused such internal control over fiahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragtisslosure controls and procedures and presentiaisineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgatures, as of the end of the period coveredibydport based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the teghid’s internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrariburth quarter in the case of an annual repbai lhas materially affected, or is reasonably il
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal tmhover financial reporting.

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers anldave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cordvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regigteaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaweaanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 4, 2010 /sl Jeffrey Stol
Jeffrey Stoll
Chief Financial Officer and Treasut




EXHIBIT 32.1
CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 81350, the undersigned oftit&wo Harbors Investment Corp. (the “Registram@reby certifies that the
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for theipgrended December 31, 2009 (the “Annual Repdutty complies with the requiremer
of Section 13(a) or 15 (d), as applicable, of teeuities Exchange Act of 1934 and that the infdaromacontained in the Annual Report fairly
presents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the Regidtran

Date: March 4, 2010 /s/ Thomas Sierin
Thomas Siering
President and Chief Executive Offic

The foregoing certification is being furnished $pleursuant to 18 U.S.C. 81350 and is not beirggfths part of the Annual Report or ¢
separate disclosure document.




EXHIBIT 32.2
CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 81350, the undersigned oftit&wo Harbors Investment Corp. (the “Registram@reby certifies that the
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for theipgrended December 31, 2009 (the “Annual Repdutty complies with the requiremer
of Section 13(a) or 15 (d), as applicable, of teeuities Exchange Act of 1934 and that the infdaromacontained in the Annual Report fairly
presents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the Regidtran

Date: March 4, 2010 /sl Jeffrey Stol
Jeffrey Stoll
Chief Financial Officer and Treasut

The foregoing certification is being furnished $pleursuant to 18 U.S.C. 81350 and is not beirggfths part of the Annual Report or ¢
separate disclosure document.




